
 

 

- 1 - 

 
 

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 

CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 

 

 
 
 

CABINET: THURSDAY, 11 JUNE 2015 at 4.00 PM 
 

 
A Cabinet Meeting will be held in the Ferrier Hall at City Hall on Thursday 11 June 2015 at 
4.00 pm 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
1   Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held on 28 May 2015  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
Leader - Economic Development & Partnerships   
 
2   Assistant Cabinet Members  (Pages 7 - 12) 

 
3   Welsh Language Scheme Annual Monitoring Report 2014 -15  (Pages 13 - 84) 

 
Corporate Services & Performance   
 
4   Proposed Merger of Coroners Areas  (Pages 85 - 112) 

 
5   Review of the Attendance & Wellbeing Policy  (Pages 113 - 204) 

 
6   Anti - Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy (Including Money Laundering Policy 

and Procedure)  (Pages 205 - 220) 
 

Health, Housing & Wellbeing   
 
7   Approach to Homelessness 'Intentionality' Decisions  (Pages 221 - 224) 

 
Safety, Engagement & Democracy   
 
8   Community Councils Charter  (Pages 225 - 240) 

 
Transport, Planning & Sustainability   
 
9   Residential Extensions & Alterations Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)  

(Pages 241 - 300) 
 

 
 
PAUL ORDERS 
Chief Executive 
5 June 2015 



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

     
MINUTES

CABINET MEETING: 28 MAY 2015

Cabinet Members Present: Councillor Phil Bale (Chair)
Councillor Sue Lent
Councillor Peter Bradbury
Councillor Dan De’Ath 
Councillor Bob Derbyshire
Councillor Susan Elsmore 
Councillor Sarah Merry

Councillor Ramesh Patel

Observers: Councillor Dianne Rees
Councillor Eleanor Sanders
Councillor Judith Woodman

Officers: Paul Orders, Chief Executive
Marcia Sinfield, for Section 151 Officer
Shaun Jamieson, County Solicitor 
Joanne Watkins, Cabinet Office

Apologies: Councillor Graham Hinchey

1 RESOLVED: that the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 2 April be
agreed

2. ‘YR HEN LYFRGELL’ WELSH LANGUAGE AND CULTURAL CENTRE

Councillor Peter Bradbury declared a personal interest in this item as a 
Council appointed trustee of the Cardiff Story Museum and was not 

present during consideration of this item.

The Cabinet received a report outlining proposals for the establishment 
of a Welsh Language and Cultural Centre at the Old Library. The aim of 
the centre was to create a welcoming Open Space that would promote
and facilitate Welsh as a living language for all citizens of Cardiff and its 
visitors. The Council had identified The Old Library as a suitable location 
capable of delivering the vision for the new centre through a consortium 
of partners including Menter Caerdydd (as lead partner), Cardiff 
University, Clwb Ifor Bach, Mudiad Meithrin and Mela. It was reported 
that an offer of funding had been received from the Welsh Government to 
cover the fit out cost for the purpose of establishing the centre at the Old 
Library.

Page 1 of 5

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Cabinet was advised that the loss of the gallery space was a substantive 
concern for the Cardiff Story Museum trustees. The Trustees remained to 
be convinced of the asserted level of benefit to the Museum of co-
location with the WLCC, especially regarding the additional footfall 
assisting with fund-raising. However the trustees were committed to 
working with the Council with a view to protecting the interests of the 
Museum in the context of co-location with the WLCC and officers advised 
that the head lease would  include provisions to safeguard the interests 
of the Cardiff Story and arrangements between the Council and the 
Welsh Language Centre would be put in place to ensure a partnership 
approach to the management of the Old Library as a whole, including 
ensuring that the Cardiff Story would have reasonable access to gallery 
space. Appropriate monitoring arrangements would be put in place to 
further support the development of the overall concept.

RESOLVED: that

(1) the development of the Welsh Language and Cultural Centre 
(WLCC) in the Old Library, alongside the Cardiff Story be 
authorised

(2) authority be delegated to the Director of Economic Development to 
progress with the proposed development and capital works 
programme.  

3. ST MELLONS COMMUNITY HUB – PHASE 2 EXTENSION

A report outlining proposals for extending the St Mellons Community Hub 
was considered. It was proposed that consultation take place on 
amalgamating the services currently provided at the St Mellons Youth & 
Community Centre and St Mellons Enterprise Centre and the Community 
Hub by extending the hub to include a youth area, multi-purpose 
community hall, café and kitchen, multi-use spaces, and training room. It 
was also proposed that St Mellons Flying-Start would transfer to the 
extended facility. 

RESOLVED: that

1. consultation on proposals for a phase 2 extension to the St 
Mellons Hub and associated land disposals be agreed; 

2. the intention to report back to a future Cabinet meeting on the 
outcome of the consultation  programme which will inform a final 
decision on any realignment of services and facilities in St Mellons 
be noted.

Page 2 of 5Page 2



4. SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLANNING: THE PROVISION OF 
ADDITIONAL PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES IN THE ADAMSDOWN 
AND SPLOTT WARDS

Authorisation to hold a public consultation on options which respond to 
the rising demand for both English-medium and Welsh-medium primary 
school places in the Adamsdown and Splott wards was sought. It was 
proposed that the proposal to increase the capacity of Baden Powell 
School be withdrawn and public consultation on two further options to 
increase provision of primary school places in the Adamsdown and Splott 
wards be held.

RESOLVED: that

1. officers be authorised to formally withdraw the proposal to 
increase the capacity of Baden Powell to 3FE published on 01 July 
2013. 

2. Officers be authorised to consult on options  to increase English-
medium and Welsh-medium primary school places on the 
following options:

Option 1
• A new 2FE *‘standardised build’ Baden Powell Primary 

school with additional part-time nursery places on the
Willows High School site which would require the transfer of 
Baden Powell Primary to the Willows High School site.  
Both schools (Baden Powell Primary School and Willows 
High School would remain as separate entities and be 
funded accordingly)

• Increase the capacity of Ysgol Glan Morfa from 1FE to 2FE 
with 80 part-time equivalent nursery places.

• Transfer the expanded Ysgol Glan Morfa to the vacated 
Baden Powell Primary School site.

• Increase the capacity of Moorland Primary School from 2FE 
to 3FE with 96 part-time nursery places utilising the vacated 
Ysgol Glan Morfa buildings.

Option 2
• Increase the capacity of Ysgol Glan Morfa from 1FE to 2FE 

with 80 part-time nursery places.
• Transfer the expanded Ysgol Glan Morfa to a new 2FE 

*‘standardised build’ primary school on a new site on land at 
the Maltings.

• Increase the capacity of Moorland Primary School from 2FE 
to 3FE with 96 part-time nursery places, utilising the 
vacated Ysgol Glan Morfa buildings

• Baden Powell Primary School to remain at its existing 
capacity on its current site

3. it be noted that officers will bring a report on the outcome of the 
consultation to a future meeting to seek authorisation as to 

Page 3 of 5Page 3



whether to proceed to publish proposals in accordance with 
section 48 of The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 
2013.

5. SCHOOLS ORGANISATION PLANNING: THE PROVISION OF 
ADDITIONAL ENGLISH-MEDIUM PRIMARY SCHOOL PROVISION IN 
CYNCOED, PENYLAN AND PARTS OF PLASNEWYDD.

A report outlining details of objections received in relation to proposals to
establish a new 2FE English-medium community primary school serving 
the age range 3-11 on part of the Howardian Community Education 
Centre, Hammond Way, Cardiff, CF23 9NB from September 2015 was 
received. The Cabinet considered details of the five objections together 
with the Council’s response. 

RESOLVED: That 

1. the proposal as set out in paragraph 2 of the report be approved 
without modification

2. officers be authorised to take the appropriate actions to implement 
the proposal as set out in paragraph 2 of the report

3. officers be authorised to publish a summary of the statutory 
objections and the Authority’s response to those objections 
(referred to as the “Objection Report”) within 7 days of the 
determination of the proposal.

4. approval of any necessary contracts be delegated to the Director 
of Education and Lifelong Learning in consultation with the Section 
151 Officer, Director of Legal Services and the Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Education and Lifelong Learning.

6. SCHOOLS ORGANISATION PLANNING: SECONDARY SCHOOL 
PROVISION IN THE WEST OF CARDIFF.

The Cabinet received a report containing details and an evaluation of the 
responses received following consultation on a proposal to rationalise 
high school accommodation in the West of the city as part of maximising 
educational outcomes. It was proposed that Glyn Derw High School be
transferred to the Michaelston Community College site from January 
2016 with the two schools remaining as schools in their own right, under 
their existing federation and sharing the accommodation. 

RESOLVED: that

1 officers be authorised to publish a statutory notice to transfer Glyn 
Derw High School to the Michaleston High Community College 
site from January 2016.  

2 It be noted that prior to implementation of the proposal a further 
report will be provided to the Cabinet providing details of any 

Page 4 of 5Page 4



objections received, the proposed response to those objections 
and recommendations for implementation or otherwise of the 
proposal.

7. LLANDAFF COMMUNITY POLL

Cabinet received details of the results of the Llandaff Community Poll. It 
was reported that the first poll question had been raised in the Fairwater 
Community Poll and full Council had agreed to take no further action on 
the basis that the closure of Waungron Road Recycling Centre was part 
of the approved budget savings for 2014/2015, and there was no
provision to allow for its re-opening in the 2015/16 budget. In relation to 
the second question it was reported that as part of the statutory LDP 
Examination process, Hearing Sessions had been held and the Planning 
Inspectors were currently assessing the soundness of the submitted 
Plan. The Inspectors Report, with binding recommendations on the 
Council, was anticipated in Autumn 2015 and therefore it was 
recommended that no further action be taken.

RESOLVED: that

1. the results of the Llandaff Community Poll held on 9th April 2015 
(Appendix A to this report) be noted; and

2. the matter be referred to full Council, with a recommendation that, 
in response to the Llandaff Community Poll:

(i) Poll Question 1; and
(ii) Poll Question 2

No further action should be taken.

8. CARBON REDUCTION STRATEGY AND ENERGY POLICY

The Cabinet considered the Carbon Reduction Strategy and supporting 
policies. It was reported that adoption of the strategy would help  
contribute towards Cardiff's One Planet aspiration and e national and 
local carbon reduction and renewable energy targets. It was also 
intended to promote energy efficient behaviour of the Council’s occupiers 
and staff and help reduce the Council's operational costs

RESOLVED: that the Carbon Reduction Strategy be approved as the 
basis for ongoing energy saving and carbon reduction activity across the 
Council's Estate.

Page 5 of 5Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

ASSISTANT CABINET MEMBERS

REPORT OF COUNTY CLERK AND MONITORING OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM: 2

PORTFOLIO : LEADER (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PARTNERSHIPS)

Reason for this Report

1. To consider the appointment of Assistant Cabinet Members for 2015/16.

Background

2. Article 7.5 of the Council’s Constitution provides that:

“The Cabinet may appoint Councillors to act as assistants to the Cabinet 
as the Cabinet considers necessary and appropriate. Their role will be:

(a) to assist the Cabinet collectively; 
(b) to liaise with the Chairs and members of relevant Scrutiny 

Committees; and 
(c) to act as observers at meetings of the Cabinet or a committee of the 

Cabinet.

Assistants to the Cabinet may not vote on any matters before the 
Cabinet, neither may they substitute for a Cabinet Member at a meeting 
of the Cabinet nor in any decision-making role.”

3. Assistant Cabinet Members that are appointed by the Cabinet can work 
with a Cabinet Member or Cabinet Members in taking forward particular 
projects or programmes and can represent the Cabinet at any meeting or 
function which does not involve any decision-making role.

Assistant Cabinet Members 2014/15

4. On 15 May 2014, the Cabinet agreed to create three new Assistant 
Cabinet Member roles to provide additional support to Cabinet portfolios 
on the following issues:

Delivering the Co-Operative Council

Young People and Learning (including libraries)

Housing and Tackling Poverty

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



5. A copy of the Role Description for Assistant Cabinet Members that was 
agreed previously by the Cabinet is attached as Appendix A to this 
report.

6. On 12 June 2014, the Cabinet agreed the appointment of the following 
Members to these roles:

Cllr Sam Knight – Delivering the Co-Operative Council

Cllr Sarah Merry – Young People and Learning (including libraries)

Cllr Darren Williams – Housing and Tackling Poverty

Assistant Cabinet Members 2015/16

7. Following the appointment by Council on 21 May 2015 of Councillor 
Sarah Merry as the new Cabinet Member for Education, it is proposed 
that Councillor Chris Weaver be appointed to the vacant Assistant 
Cabinet Member position for 2015/16 and to take on a new role providing
additional support to the Cabinet on transport policy matters relating 
specifically to the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 and the development of 
the city’s new transport interchange.

8. In addition, it is proposed that the Assistant Cabinet Member role of 
Councillor Sam Knight be amended in 2015/16 to focus specifically on 
the provision of additional support to the Cabinet in developing the 
Council’s ‘Smart Cities’ agenda, including work to develop the provision 
of open data by the Council.

Reasons for Recommendations

9. To approve the appointment and roles of Assistant Cabinet Members for 
2015/16.

Legal Implications

10. There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications

11. There are no financial implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

Cabinet is recommended to approve the appointment of three Assistant Cabinet 
Members in 2015/16 to the following roles:

Councillor Sam Knight – Technology, Innovation and Skills

Councillor Chris Weaver – Active Travel & Wellbeing (including Libraries)

Councillor Darren Williams – Housing and Tackling Poverty

Marie Rosenthal
County Clerk & Monitoring Officer
5 June 2015

The following appendix is attached:

Page 2 of 3
Page 8



Appendix A: Assistant Cabinet Member Role Description

The following background papers have been taken into account:

Cabinet Report, 12 June 2014 – Deputy Cabinet Members Appointments
Cabinet Report, 15 May 2014 – Deputy Cabinet Members and Member 
Champions

Page 3 of 3
Page 9



 

APPENDIX A

ASSISTANTS TO CABINET MEMBERS – Article 7.5 Cardiff Constitution 

The Cabinet may appoint Councillors to act as Assistants to the Cabinet as the 

Cabinet considers necessary and appropriate. Their role will be: 

(a) To assist the Cabinet collectively

(b) To liaise with the Chairs and members of relevant Scrutiny Committees 

and

(c) To act as observers at meetings of the Cabinet or a committee of Cabinet 

ROLE DESCRIPTION 

1. Assistants to Cabinet Members are members appointed by the Cabinet to 

work with a Cabinet Member or Cabinet Members and deputise for them for 

any function except decision-making subject to the limitations set out below. 

2. This includes taking forward particular projects or programmes. Most 

Assistant posts will range across the functions of the Cabinet Member but it is 

a matter for each individual Cabinet Member, after discussion with the Leader 

of the Council, to establish any limits or conditions on the ways in which the 

Assistant will operate. Any limitations on the role of Assistant which the 

Cabinet Member wishes to impose should be a matter of record, to be copied 

to the Leader of the Council and the Monitoring Officer.

3. The role of Assistant to Cabinet member does not attract a special 

responsibility allowance

4. Assistants to Cabinet Members may:

• Undertake specific tasks, research and investigations and attend 

conferences, seminars and meetings as requested by the Cabinet Member 

so as to keep abreast of current policy and development initiatives.

• Deputise for a Cabinet Member at Cabinet Briefings.

• Deputise for a Cabinet Member (but not vote) at Cabinet meetings.

• Deputise for the Cabinet Member at formal and informal functions except 

for official openings or ceremonies where it is appropriate for the Cabinet 

Member to have a role in which case, in the event of the absence of the 

Cabinet Member, the Lord Mayor will normally represent the  Council.

• To liaise with non-executive members in order to ensure that the Cabinet 

Member is fully aware of issues which are of concern to members.

• Appear before a Scrutiny Committee where the Cabinet Member cannot 

attend or where the Assistant has focussed on the particular project or 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 10



programme. (However, the Scrutiny Committee may also request the 

Cabinet Member to attend on a further occasion).

• Be a member of a Scrutiny Committee which does not relate to his or her 

Cabinet Member’s portfolio.

• Be a member of a Scrutiny Task and Finish Group.

5. However, an Assistant to a Cabinet Member cannot:

• take decisions

• deputise for a Cabinet Member at Council Meetings

• be a member of the Scrutiny Committee which scrutinises his or her 

Cabinet Member’s portfolio

Marie Rosenthal

County Clerk and Monitoring officer

2 April 2014

Page 2 of 2 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING:11 JUNE 2015

WELSH LANGUAGE SCHEME ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 
TO THE WELSH LANGUAGE COMMISSIONER 2014 - 2015

REPORT OF COUNTY CLERK & MONITORING OFFICER
         AGENDA ITEM:  3

PORTFOLIO: LEADER (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PARTNERSHIPS)

Reason for this Report 

1. To agree and approve the content of the 2014-15 Welsh Language 
Scheme Annual Monitoring Report prior to presentation to the Office of 
the Welsh Language Commissioner in accordance with The Welsh 
Language Act 1993 and Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

Background

2. The Council recognises that, as a Capital City, Cardiff represents Wales 
and is committed to ensuring equality between the Welsh and English 
languages by actively promoting and supporting the Welsh language and 
increasing its capacity to deliver bilingual services. The Welsh Language 
Scheme sets out how the Council will deliver this commitment.

3. The report provides the formal basis on which compliance with the 
Council’s statutory Welsh Language Scheme is monitored.  Conducted 
annually, the report provides a clear picture of the progress made in 
2014-15, as well as identifying any areas for improvement.

Issues

4. The Welsh Language Scheme monitoring report has been completed to
meet the requirements of the Welsh Language Act 1993.

5. Approval needs to be given by the Cabinet so the report can proceed to 
Council prior to it being accepted by the Office of the Welsh Language 
Commissioner within the required timescales. The Council is required to 
present an approved bilingual report to the Office of the Welsh Language 
Commissioner by 30th of June 2015 and publicise the report thereafter. It 
is envisaged that this will be the last reporting year in the current format 
as reporting arrangements will change when the Welsh language 
standards come into force later this year.

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 3

Page 13



6. In order to prepare for the standards, the Bilingual Cardiff Members 
Group has asked for a progress report from each directorate on meeting 
the proposed standards. The Council will receive its compliance notice 
from the Welsh Language Commissioner on the 22nd of June, and after a 
consultation period the council will be issued with a set of standards 
which will replace the current arrangement of Welsh language schemes. 
This will be the last reporting year in the current format as reporting 
arrangements will change when the Welsh language standards (under 
the Welsh Language [Wales] Measure 2011) come into force next year.

Reasons for Recommendations

7. Compliance with the Welsh Language Scheme is a statutory 
requirement, monitoring the Council’s progress against it is an effective 
way to ensure that targets are being met.  

Legal Implications

8. The Welsh Language Scheme is a requirement of the Welsh Language 
Act 1993. The Welsh Language Act 1993 has been repealed by the 
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

9. The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 introduces a new system of 
regulation through ‘standards’, which specify how an organisation should 
use the Welsh Language. Until such a time as the ‘standards’ come into 
force organisations should continue to implement their ‘Welsh Language 
Scheme’ which will continue to be monitored/inspected by the Welsh 
Language Commissioner.

10. It is expected that the ‘Standards’ will be enforced by September of this 
year;

11. The Assembly approved Regulations on the 24th March 2015 (The Welsh 
Language Standards (Number 1) Regulations 2015) which specify 
standards in relation to the Conduct of County Councils (and other 
organisations). The following is an outline of the timetable for the 
implementation:

April – June 2015 -the Welsh Language Commissioner will prepare 
individual compliance notices for each organisation. 

22 June 2015- A consultation period will begin with organisations on the
content of the compliance notices (s.47 Welsh Language (Wales) 
Measure 2011)

20 July – Consultation period Ends 

September 2015 - it is expected that the Welsh Language Commissioner 
will issue a compliance notice on the Authority (s.44 Welsh Language 
(Wales) Measure 2011)

Page 2 of 3

Page 14



Financial Implications

12. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. In the 
event of any action being required to be taken then any associated costs 
would need to be found from within the existing budgetary resource 
allocation.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet is recommended to approve the Welsh Language Monitoring 
Report (as attached as Appendix A) for consideration at Council prior to 
submission to the Office of the Welsh Language Commissioner in accordance 
with the Welsh Language Act 1993 and Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 
2011.

MARIE ROSENTHAL
County Clerk & Monitoring Officer
5 June 2015

The following Appendix is attached:

Appendix A The Welsh Language Scheme Annual Monitoring Report 2014 - 15.

Page 3 of 3

Page 15



T
R

A
4
9

4
3

2
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 S
c

h
e

m
e

A
n

n
u

a
l 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
e

p
o

rt
to

 t
h

e
 

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r

2
0

1
4

-
2

0
1

5

1

Page 16



C
o

n
te

n
ts

P
a

g
e

In
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
4

1
.

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 –
T

im
e

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

6

2
.

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 F
ro

n
t 
L

in
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

i.
T

h
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

ii.
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
2

iii
.

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
6

iv
.

M
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 j
u

s
t 
w

o
rd

s
 /

 M
w

y
 n

a
 g

e
ir
ia

u

2
6

3
.

S
c
h

e
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 A
d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o
n

3
1

4
.

L
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 S

k
ill

s
: 

C
o

m
p
a

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 N
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 C
a
p

a
c
it
y

3
5

5
.

M
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

in
g

3
7

6
.

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n
c
e

 b
y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 T

a
rg

e
t

4
3

7
.

P
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

4
3

2

Page 17



8
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

4
4

9
.

C
o

n
ta

c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
5

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
 -

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 ‘
M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 /

 M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 j
u

s
t 
W

o
rd

s
’ 
A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
5

1

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
I

–
F

ro
n

tl
in

e
 p

o
s
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
5

7

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
II

–
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
5

9

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
V

-
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
6

1

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 V
–

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 -
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
6

2

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 V
I

-
C

2
C

 C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 R
e
p

o
rt

s
6

4

3

Page 18



In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il’

s
 t

h
ir
d

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
w

a
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

B
o

a
rd

 o
n
 1

s
t
o
f 

J
u

ly
 2

0
0

9
.

A
s
 a

 C
a
p

it
a

l 
c
it
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
C

a
rd

if
f 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 W

a
le

s
 a

n
d
 i

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 b

y
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

a
n

d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i

ts
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h
e

m
e

s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t.

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
, 

w
h

ils
t 

a
ls

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il

m
e

e
ts

 i
ts

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 A
c
t

1
9
9

3
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

(W
a

le
s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 2

0
1

1
, 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

:

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

n
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

, 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
l 

w
it
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 n
e

w
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 g

ro
u

p
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

s
 o

n
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

, 
o
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
o

r
a

b
o

v
e

,
fr

o
m

e
a

c
h
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

to
c
h
a

m
p

io
n
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lis

m
, 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
.

R
e

-b
ra

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 u
n

it
 a

s
 ‘
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f’
 w

it
h

a
 n

e
w

 e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

n
a
d

v
is

o
ry

 r
o

le
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

w
h

ils
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
d

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
ra

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 b
e
tt

e
r 

c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

re
a

l 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

 e
q
u

a
lly

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 W

e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 s

p
e
a

k
in

g
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

2
C

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e
n

tr
e

.

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

c
h
e

m
e

’s
 T

im
e

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

C
IS

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

p
la

y
e

d
 a

 k
e

y
 r

o
le

 i
n
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
S

tr
a

te
g
y
.

T
h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 C
ro

s
s
-P

a
rt

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

fo
rw

a
rd

th
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

a
g
e

n
d

a
.

In
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

, 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
in

 H
e

a
lt
h
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 r
e

le
a

s
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

o
u

rs
 f

ro
m

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

to
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 ‘
M

w
y
 N

a
 

G
e

ir
ia

u
’ 
S

tr
a

te
g
y

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
m

a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 3
 y

e
a

r 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

.

4

Page 19



T
h
e

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 W

e
ls

h
L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

.

W
e

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 

m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

lis
e

 o
u

r 
a
m

b
it
io

n
 o

f 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 t
ru

ly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

W
a
le

s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
u

tl
in

e
s

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

.

T
h
e

 A
n
n

u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

a
g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 f

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il

o
n
 2

5
th

o
f 

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
5

p
ri
o

r 
to

 b
e

in
g
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r
b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
a
d

lin
e

 o
f 

3
0

th
o
f 

J
u
n
e

 2
0
1

5
.

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

 t
o

 d
o

w
n

lo
a

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
w

w
.c

a
rd

if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
/b

ili
n

g
u

a
lc

a
rd

if
f

P
le

a
s
e

 N
o

te
 -

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
tl
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
re

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

s
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
0

9
 a

n
d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
tl
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 
a
p

p
ro

v
a

l.
 
A

s
 t
h

e
 T

im
e

ta
b

le
 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 l
if
te

d
 o

u
t 
o

f 
a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
w

e
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 t

it
le

s
, 
o

r 
a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
e

le
m

e
n

t
o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 y

e
a

r 
in

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fo
rm

a
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

 n
e
w

 W
e

ls
h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 c

o
m

e
 i
n

to
 f

o
rc

e
 l
a

te
r

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 a
s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

e
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 n
e
x
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
h

a
t 
a

d
e

q
u
a

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
tl
e

s
 a

t 
th

a
t 

ti
m

e
.

5

Page 20



W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 –
T

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
T

IM
IN

G
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
1

. 
W

E
L

S
H

 L
A

N
G

U
A

G
E

 
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
1

T
o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a

n
d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
n
u

a
lly

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 %
 o

f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s
:

i.
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
ii.

y
o

u
th

 a
n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

iii
.

p
re

-s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
 u

p
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

P
la

n
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

lis
te

d
 b

y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

th
e

n
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

 
a

n
n
u

a
lly

.

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r.

i.
  

  
 C

a
re

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

ii
 (

a
) 

Y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

ii
 (

b
) 

L
e

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 

ii
i 

  
  

P
re

-s
c

h
o

o
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

F
o

r 
fu

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
 p

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

. 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
(p

a
g
e

 3
0

).

F
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 ‘
M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 /
 M

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 j
u

s
t 

W
o
rd

s
’ 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
s
e
e

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
2

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 
p

o
s
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 

to
 s

p
e

a
k
 o

r 
w

ri
te

 W
e

ls
h

 
is

 a
n

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
d

e
s
ir
a

b
le

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
(u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

o
o

l)
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
5

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

O
v
e

r 
9

7
5

p
o

s
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r,

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 
1

1
1

p
o

s
ts

 (
1

1
%

) 
w

ill
n

o
w

b
e

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 W
e
ls

h
 E

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y

(p
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 I
I)

. 
 

T
h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

S
k
ill

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
o
n

 t
h
e

 1
3

th
o
f 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1
4

. 
A

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
, 

m
e
a

s
u

re
s
, 

a
n

d
 

a
ls

o
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 l
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
o

l 
w

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 l
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

te
a
m

s
 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 i
n

 2
0
1

5
-1

6
.

6

Page 21



W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
3

C
re

a
te

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a
u

d
it
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
o
ft

w
a

re
 

a
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

re
 a

n
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
ll 

e
-G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

.

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

a
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
ri
e
f 

o
r 

n
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n

d
a

te
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 –
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
e
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 

ti
m

e

IC
T

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
fo

r 
a

ll 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fa

c
in

g
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b

ri
e

f 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

IT
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
u
t 

it
 

is
 t

h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 

re
q
u

ir
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

a
n

y
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

ft
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 t

h
is

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 s

o
 i
t 

is
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 s
a

ti
s
fy

 t
h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
e
a

s
u
re

.

W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
4

T
o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 %
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 
W

e
ls

h
 t
o

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d
 %

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
.

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 

fu
ll 

re
p

o
rt

 
b

y
 A

p
ri
l 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 
th

e
 W

L
B

.

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r.

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d

 W
e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
re

c
o

rd
s
 k

e
p

t 
o

n
 D

ig
iG

o
v
. 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e
e

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 I
II

fo
r 

b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 t
h

e
s
e
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
. 

7

Page 22



W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
5

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 %

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

s
p

e
a

k
 W

e
ls

h
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 

to
 i.

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

ii.
p

o
s
t 

g
ra

d
e

iii
.

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 

fu
ll 

re
p

o
rt

 
b

y
 A

p
ri
l 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 
th

e
 W

L
B

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

4
,5

4
6

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 v
a

lid
a

te
d

 t
h
e

ir
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 D

ig
iG

o
v
 

s
y
s
te

m
.

F
ro

m
 t

h
e

s
e

 2
2

1
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 s
ta

te
d

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
k
ill

s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 4
.8

6
%

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
, 

p
o

s
t 

g
ra

d
e
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

tt
a

c
h
e

d
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 I
V

W
L

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
6

M
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a
n
d

 
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
9

 
a

n
d

 e
v
e

ry
 

A
p

ri
l 

th
e

re
a
ft

e
r 

in
 

re
a

d
in

e
s
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

R
e

p
o

rt

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

2
4

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 
re

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 (

2
3

5
4

)
is

 1
%

. 
T

h
e

 A
n
n

u
a
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 R

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
5

.

2
. 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

A
s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
o

lic
y
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 i
n

to
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n
d

 k
e

y
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 

B
i-
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

u
d

it
. 
 F

ir
s
t 

a
u

d
it
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

C
h

ie
f 

P
o

lic
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

T
h
e

 P
o

lic
y
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
o

li
c

y
 S

c
re

e
n

in
g

 T
o

o
l

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 e

v
o

lv
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

c
o

n
te

x
t.

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 5
. 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 (

p
a

g
e

 3
4

) 
fo

r 
fu

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
.

8

Page 23



s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

P
re

p
a

re
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

k
e

y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
c
h

e
c
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
n

s
e

rt
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 w
o

rd
in

g
 i
n

to
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 t
e
n

d
e

r 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 

re
n

e
w

e
d

 o
r 

is
s
u

e
d

.

L
is

t 
b

y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
C

h
e

c
k
 

o
n

e
 k

e
y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

p
e

r 
m

o
n
th

 
th

e
re

a
ft

e
r.

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

r 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
n

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

o
u

r 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

o
rt

a
l 
h

a
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

1
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

‘S
e

rv
ic

e
s
’ 
o

n
b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 O
n

ly
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p
u

b
lic

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

.

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

/f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e
d

 p
re

-
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

/s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
ri
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 S

Q
u

ID
 s

e
t 

o
f 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 

w
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

is
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
. 

D
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 y

o
u

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 /
 o

r 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 W
a
le

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 a

re
 m

e
t,

 a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
b

y
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

te
rm

in
a

te
d

 a
n

d
/o

r 
b
e

e
n

 n
o

ti
fi
e
d

 
o
f 

a
 b

re
a

c
h

 o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
b

re
a

c
h
 o

f 
a

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 
fo

r 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 
3

 
y
e

a
rs

?
 

W
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 e

ff
e

c
t 

is
 i
n

s
e

rt
e

d
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
  
L

e
g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
  

le
g
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

  
te

a
m

 a
re

 r
e

m
in

d
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

s
e

rt
 s

u
c
h

 a
 

c
la

u
s
e

:

‘D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

th
e

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
s
h

a
ll 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f:

  
  

  
  

  
  
a

) 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g

u
a

g
e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
; 

a
n

d
 

b
) 

th
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
1

1
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 

9

Page 24



p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 M
e

a
s
u
re

 c
o

m
e

 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e

, 
a
n

d
  

 i
n

 s
o
 f

a
r 

a
s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
.’

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

3
 -

1
4

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
o
n

g
o

in
g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

re
v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

. 
T

h
e

 f
re

q
u
e

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

is
 d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
, 

b
u

t 
g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 r
a

n
g
e

 f
ro

m
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t

o
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
.

A
n

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 f

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a
n

 b
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

ra
n

t 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e

A
u

d
it
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 

a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 G

ra
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e
g
a

rd
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
.

A
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
ra

n
t 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

h
a

v
e

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 W

e
ls

h
 v

e
rs

io
n

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 C

IS
.

O
n

g
o

in
g
 d

a
y
 

to
 d

a
y

a
d

h
e

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

W
e
ls

h
 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
le

tt
e

rs
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 w

h
e

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
. 

3
. 

D
E

A
L

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 W
E

L
S

H
 S

P
E

A
K

IN
G

 P
U

B
L

IC

S
e

t 
u
p

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
a
ta

b
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
p

re
fe

re
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 f
o

r 
u

s
e

 b
y

a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
2

C
h

ie
f 

IT
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
it
h

 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t,
 i
n
 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
  

a
n
d

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 B

lu
e
p

ri
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

(C
R

M
) 

S
y
s
te

m
w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 B

lu
e

p
ri
n

t 
c
le

a
rl
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

s
 h

o
w

 m
a

rk
e

rs
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
to

re
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 a

 s
in

g
le

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
m

a
s
te

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

, 
p
o

p
u

la
te

d
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 C
R

M
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
R

M
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 g

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 i
n

 
th

e
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 (

p
h
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
a

il 
c
h
a

n
n
e

ls
) 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

1
0

Page 25



H
u

b
s
 (

fa
c
e
 t

o
 f
a

c
e

).
 A

s
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
s
e
 t

h
re

e
 c

h
a

n
n
e

ls
, 

th
e

ir
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

ir
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
re

c
o

rd
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h
is

, 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

g
o

 l
iv

e
, 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
b
a

s
e

s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

a
ti
o

n
a

lis
e

d
a

n
d
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 i
n

p
u

tt
e

d
 i
n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
R

M
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

. 
P

le
a

s
e

 n
o

te
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fi
rs

t 
p
h

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 C
R

M
 (

a
n

d
 b

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

h
e

 c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

) 
w

ill
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 c
o
v
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

C
2

C
 f

o
o

tp
ri
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
o
a

d
m

a
p

 f
o

r 
w

id
e

r 
ro

ll 
o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 

m
o

n
th

s
.

In
 t

h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 (
2

-3
 y

e
a

rs
) 

a
s
 S

A
P

 C
R

M
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 a

 M
a

s
te

r 
D

a
ta

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
o

lu
ti
o
n

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 w
id

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 g

iv
e

 a
 s

in
g
le

 v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r.

Is
s
u

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 a

ll 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s

N
e

w
 

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 

w
h

e
n

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 v
ia

 n
e

w
 a

rt
ic

le
s
 o

n
 ‘
Y

o
u

r 
In

b
o

x
’ 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

. 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 s
e
n

t 
v
ia

 a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 “

W
e

ls
h

 M
a

tt
e

rs
” 

b
ri
e
f 

w
h

ic
h

 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 l
a

te
s
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
.
A

rt
ic

le
s
 i
n

 
2

0
1
4

-1
5

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
fo

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 

la
rg

e
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

.
T

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

C
a

rd
if
f 

in
tr

a
n
e

t 
p

a
g
e

. 
A

s
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
y
e

a
rs

 m
o

s
t 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

re
 f
a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

re
q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o
n

s
. 

P
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
T

o
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 

IC
T

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 I
C

T
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 W
e

ls
h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a
p

a
b

le
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 a
s
 a

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 
W

e
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
o

 n
o

t 
re

c
o

rd
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 r
e

c
o

rd
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 

1
1

Page 26



a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

to
 a

ll 
n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
ta

ff
 a

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 i
n

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e

im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
s
o
ft

w
a

re
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
 t

ru
e
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
o

n
o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a

p
a
b

le
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o
u

t 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a
p

a
b
le

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 i
n

 o
u

r 
W

in
d
o

w
s
 7

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
 2

0
1
0

 d
e
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

ll 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
s
 /

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 e
it
h
e

r 
o

n
 P

C
 o

r 
v
ia

 o
u

r 
th

in
 c

lie
n

t 
d
e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

.

C
y
s
g
lia

d
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 P
C

’s
 a

s
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 

in
te

rf
a

c
e
,

a
n

d
 i
ts

 a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 i
s
 f

re
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 N

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
rt

ic
le

s
 o

n
 Y

o
u

r 
In

b
o
x
. 

S
ta

ff
 c

a
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

a
 c

o
p

y
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
s
k
.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

d
h

e
re

 t
o
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
:

i.
P

h
o

n
e

 b
a

c
k
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
  

ii.
W

e
ls

h
 c

a
lls

 a
re

 
d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 
W

e
ls

h
 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
iii

.
A

d
v
e

rt
is

e
d

 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

g
re

e
ti
n

g
s

M
o

n
it
o

r 
o

n
c
e

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

v
ia

 
M

y
s
te

ry
 

S
h

o
p
p

e
r

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 U
n

it
 

a
n

d
 M

e
n

te
r 

C
a
e

rd
y
d

d
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
 a

n
s
w

e
ri
n

g
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 c
a

lls
 w

e
re

 
u

p
d
a

te
d
 i
n

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t 
p

a
g
e
. 

T
h

e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t
o

 
s
ta

ff
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
in

d
e

rs
 a

re
 

fe
a

tu
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
th

ly
 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

-M
a

te
ri
o

n
 C

y
m

ra
e

g
’ 
b

ri
e
f.

 
M

e
n

te
r 

C
a

e
rd

y
d

d
 c

o
n
d
u

c
te

d
 a

 m
y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o

p
p
e

r 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

n
 

b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

in
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
a
n

d
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
5

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 m
y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o

p
p

e
r 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
re

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 f
o

rw
a

rd
e

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

d
ir
e

c
to

rs
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 c
a

lls
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
. 
S

ta
ff

 
w

e
re

 r
e

m
in

d
e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 g
re

e
t 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

, 
a

n
d

 
h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 d
ra

ft
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 c

a
lls

. 
T

h
e

 d
ra

ft
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

w
e

re
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
fo

r 
B

ili
n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

h
a

s
 

a
ls

o
 g

iv
e

n
 a

 p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 a
 S

M
T

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
o

n
 t
h

e
 9

th
o
f 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

.

P
ro

v
id

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 
s
ta

ff
 o

n
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
d

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 
is

s
u

e
d

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
9

. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

In
tr

a
n
e

t 
p
a

g
e

. 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 e
a

c
h

 r
e

s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

in
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 n
o

ti
c
e
 (

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
2
0

1
5

).
 

E
a

c
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

n
 

1
2

Page 27



fo
llo

w
e

d
.

a
u

d
it
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 

e
v
e

ry
 6

 
m

o
n
th

s
.

c
o

n
d
u

c
ti
n

g
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

it
s
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

a
n

d
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

H
R

 w
e

re
 b

ri
e

fe
d

 b
y
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

in
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
 o

n
 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
e

e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

ll 
in

te
rn

a
l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

(e
.g

. 
d

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
, 

g
ri
e

v
a

n
c
e

) 
in

 W
e
ls

h
 i
f 

re
q
u

e
s
te

d
. 
A

 H
R

 a
c
ti
o
n

 
p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 c
re

a
te

d
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
d

ra
ft

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
o

u
r 

W
e

ls
h

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 c
o

n
d

u
c
ti
n

g
 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

u
p

d
a

te
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

(B
IM

S
).

S
im

u
lt
a

n
e
o

u
s
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 a
t 
a

ll 
m

o
n

th
ly

 f
u

ll 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

re
a

te
d

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 (
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

) 
a

p
p
e

a
rs

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
o
n

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 m

a
in

 
w

e
b

s
it
e

A
n

n
u
a

l 
a
u

d
it
 

o
f 

e
a

c
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
’s

 
c
o

n
te

n
t.

 
F

ir
s
t 

a
u

d
it
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
0

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il’

s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
a

s
 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 i
n
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

c
o

n
te

n
t 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n
 a

 n
e

w
 S

h
a

re
P

o
in

t 
c
o

n
te

n
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 w
a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
w

e
b

 t
e

a
m

 a
n
d

 I
C

T
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
o

u
ld

 t
re

a
t 
b

o
th

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
 e

q
u

a
lly

. 
W

e
b

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 w

e
re

 d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 t
o

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
w

e
b

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

in
 f

u
tu

re
 –

th
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

a
d

h
e

ri
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
e
b
 

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

b
o

a
rd

. 
K

e
y
 p

o
in

ts
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

A
ll 

c
o

n
te

n
t 

is
 f
u

lly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
e

e
ts

 b
o

th
 t
h
e

 P
la

in
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

’s
 C

ry
s
ta

l 
M

a
rk

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

y
m

ra
e

g
C

lir
 

p
o

lic
y
.

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
d
d

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
s
 f

ile
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 w

o
rd

 /
 P

D
F

 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 t

ra
n

s
la

te
d
 i
n

to
 W

e
ls

h
 a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 

1
3

Page 28



T
h
e

 w
e

b
 t

e
a

m
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 l
e

g
a

c
y
 3

rd
p

a
rt

y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 e

x
is

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 o

n
ly

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

in
 s

c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

e
b

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 W
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
re

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
in

 f
u

tu
re

.

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
c
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
h

e
 m

o
d
e

rn
.g

o
v
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 b
o
th

 W
e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o
u

n
c
il 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 f
u

ll 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
m

o
d
e

rn
.g

o
v
 d

u
a

l 
la

n
g
u
a

g
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 W

e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 
E

n
g
lis

h
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
p

a
c
k
s
, 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 7

5
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

.

If
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
E

n
g
lis

h
 

o
n

ly
 m

a
te

ri
a

l/
p

a
g
e

s
 

a
re

 f
o
u

n
d
, 

c
re

a
te

 a
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
n

g
 

s
c
h

e
d
u

le

T
o
 t

ie
 i
n

 w
it
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
s

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
T

h
e

 c
e
n

tr
a

l 
w

e
b

 t
e
a

m
 i
n

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
ll

re
q
u

e
s
ts

 
fo

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
/ 

e
d

it
e
d

 w
e

b
 c

o
n

te
n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
it
e

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

’s
 p

u
b

lis
h

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

ll 
c
o
n

te
n

t 
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
t 

fo
r 

tr
a

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
a

n
e
t 

re
q
u

e
s
t 
fo

rm
 t

o
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

te
a
m

. 
S

o
m

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
in

s
is

t 
o
n

 h
a

v
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 
in

 E
n

g
lis

h
 o

n
ly

 d
u

e
 t

o
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 /

 p
u
b

lic
 (

w
it
h

 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
o
n

 
to

 f
o

llo
w

).
T

h
e

 w
e

b
 t

e
a
m

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
to

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
to

 m
a

k
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
w

e
b

 c
o

n
te

n
t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
 f

in
e
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
:

“I
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g

u
a
g

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
a

b
le

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

) 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f
u

lly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l.
 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 t
re

a
ti
n

g
b

o
th

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 
o

f 
e
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
b

o
th

 E
n

g
lis

h
/W

e
ls

h
 v

e
rs

io
n

s
 a

re
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 a

s
 t

o
 n

o
t 

d
is

a
d

v
a
n

ta
g
e

 W
e

ls
h

 
s
p

e
a

k
e

rs
. 

If
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

 c
o

rr
e

s
p
o

n
d

in
g

 
W

e
ls

h
 (

o
r 

E
n

g
lis

h
) 

v
e

rs
io

n
th

e
n

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

1
4

Page 29



d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 l
ia

b
le

 f
o

r 
b

e
in

g
 i
n

 b
re

a
c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

A
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
e
n

t 
to

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

. 

P
le

a
s
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

w
a

re
 t
h

a
t
a

 s
e

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 W
e

ls
h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 i
n

to
 f

o
rc

e
 n

e
x
t 
y
e

a
r 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 g
iv

e
 t

h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
th

e
 p

o
w

e
r 

to
 i
s
s
u

e
 f

in
e

s
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 b

re
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

W
el

sh
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e 
S

ch
em

e

3
.5

 O
T

H
E

R
 D

E
A

L
IN

G
S

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 P
U

B
L

IC
T

h
e 

co
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

en
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

ed
 s

p
ec

if
ic

a
ll

y 
fo

r 

m
em

b
er

s 
o
f 

th
e 

p
u

b
li

c 
a

n
d

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 o

n
 a

n
y 

co
u

n
ci

l 
w

eb
si

te
 o

r 
a

n
y 

w
eb

si
te

 d
es

ig
n

ed
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
ed

 b
y 

it
 w

il
l 

b
e 

b
il

in
g
u

a
l.

 T
h

e 
co

u
n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 a

u
to

m
a

te
d

 r
es

p
o

n
se

s 
a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
il

in
g

u
a

ll
y.

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 d
o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

b
il

in
g

u
a

l

C
a

te
g
o
ry

 A
 -

F
u

ll
y 

B
il

in
g

u
a
l

W
eb

si
te

s 
a

n
d

 w
eb

 p
a
g

es

E
a

ch
 E

n
g

li
sh

 p
a
g

e 
m

u
st

 h
a

ve
 a

 W
el

sh
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 l

a
n
g

u
a
g

e 

n
a

vi
g

a
ti

o
n

 b
u

tt
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
in

cl
u

d
e 

a
n
y 

re
le

va
n

t 
d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

a
b

le
 

d
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
, 

fe
ed

b
a

ck
 f

o
rm

s 
et

c.
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 p
o

li
cy

”

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

 c
e
n

tr
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs

O
n

g
o

in
g
.

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
A

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t.
 E

a
c
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a
m

e
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 n

e
w

 W
e

ls
h
 s

p
e
a

k
e

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 1

5
8

W
e

ls
h

 s
p
e

a
k
e

rs
 l
is

te
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 b

o
o

k
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
g
re

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 

lis
te

d
 a

n
d

 e
a

c
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

is
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
. 
A

n
 a

rt
ic

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 e

d
it
io

n
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 s
ta

ff
 

to
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 ‘
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f’
 p

a
g
e

 o
n

 T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t 
c
o
n

ta
in

s
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 

1
5

Page 30



in
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n
 c

a
lls

, 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
. 
F

o
r 

te
le

p
h
o

n
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

lo
w

 c
h

a
rt

 t
o

 
h

e
lp

 s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
to

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
a

lls
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 (

u
p

d
a

te
d

 F
e
b

 2
0
1

5
).

 T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
s
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 t

o
 f

in
d

 W
e

ls
h

 s
p
e

a
k
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
.

T
h
e

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 S

p
e
a

k
e

r 
o
p

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 7

 y
e

a
rs

a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

m
o

te
d

 i
ts

 e
x
is

te
n

c
e

 t
o

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir
 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

. 
M

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n

tl
y
 s

ta
ff

 w
e

re
 

re
m

in
d
e

d
 i
n
 F

e
b
 2

0
1

5
 i
n

 t
h
e

 m
o

n
th

ly
 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

’ 
b

ri
e
f 

to
 

u
p

d
a

te
 t
h

e
ir
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

n
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 c

a
lls

.

U
s
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
k
ill

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 
fo

rm
 t
o

 a
d

d
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 s

ta
ff

W
it
h

 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

e
ff

e
c
t

C
h

ie
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r

S
in

c
e

 D
ig

iG
o

v
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

w
e

n
t 

liv
e

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

 w
e

 n
o

w
 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 c

a
p

tu
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a
n

ts
.
S

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

’ 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
a

b
ili

ty
 i
s

c
a

p
tu

re
d
 i
n

 D
ig

iG
o

v
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s

u
s
e

d
 t

o
 u

p
d
a

te
 t

h
e

 
d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e
a

k
in

g
 s

ta
ff

.

4
.

T
H

E
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
’S

 P
U

B
L

IC
 F

A
C

E

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

ti
tl
e

, 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
m

a
g
e

 
a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 

a
re

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
o
n

:
i.

P
ro

p
e

rt
y

ii.
V

e
h

ic
le

s
iii

.
C

lo
th

in
g

iv
.

P
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
v
.

A
ll 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 D

is
p

la
y

T
h
e

m
a

ti
c
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
s
 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
T

h
is

 i
s

o
n

g
o

in
g
. 

A
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

ra
n
d

 T
o
o

lk
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 t

it
le

, 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
m

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 
d

e
ig

n
s
 a

re
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l.
 A

ll 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
ra

n
d

in
g
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i
s
 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l.
 T

h
e

 g
u

id
e

 d
ir
e

c
ts

 g
u

id
e

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

s
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

w
h

e
n

 a
p

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e

 v
is

u
a

l 
s
ty

le
 o

f 
T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

to
 a

n
y
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
A

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
, 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

p
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

to
 f

o
llo

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

A
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 M
e

d
ia

a
re

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 a

ll 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

 a
n

d
 i
s
 t

ra
n

s
la

te
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

. 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 g

o
 t
o

 C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 

o
n

 u
n

if
o

rm
s
 -

b
u
t 

a
ll 

a
re

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 c

o
lo

u
r 

o
f 

id
e

n
ti
ty

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 d
e

ta
ils

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 

1
6

Page 31



re
g
a

rd
in

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

n
e

w
 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
(t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 o
r 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t)
 s

ig
n

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

te
rn

a
l,
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

s
ig

n
s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
.

A
n

n
u
a

l 
s
p
o

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
 b

y
 

W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
O

n
g
o

in
g
 -

a
ll 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
s
 a

re
 s

e
n

t 
to

 
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 o

r 
p

ro
o
fi
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
re

c
te

d
 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
lly

.

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 s

tr
e

e
t 

n
a

m
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 b
o

o
k
le

t 
a
n

d
 

g
a

z
e

tt
e

e
r 

o
f 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l,
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ls

h
 

s
tr

e
e

t 
n
a
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
in

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
s
ta

te
s
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 g

a
z
e

tt
e

e
r 

th
a

t 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

n
a

m
e

s
 c

re
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
N

a
m

in
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
.

T
h
e

 G
a

z
e

tt
e

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 U

K
 w

id
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
e

d
 b

y
 s

tr
ic

t 
d

a
ta

 e
n
tr

y
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
e

n
s
u

re
 W

e
ls

h
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

.

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 f

in
a

lis
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

L
iv

e
a

b
le

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
5

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

m
b

it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
, 
u

rb
a

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
a

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

re
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

it
y
.
T

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 f
o

rm
s
 a

 k
e

y
 c

o
m

p
o

n
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 1

0
 ‘
m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
’ 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 t
h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

la
c
e
m

a
k
in

g
 o

f 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

. 
P

le
a

s
e
 s

e
e

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

a
g
e

 4
2
.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

p
re

s
s
 

re
le

a
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0

1
0

 
o

n
w

a
rd

s
 b

u
t 

w
it
h

 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

e
ff

e
c
t 
if
 

a
p

p
e

a
ri
n

g
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs

T
h
e

 m
e

d
ia

 t
e
a

m
 i
n

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 p

re
p
a

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

m
 a

re
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
lly

. 
S

t 
D

a
v
id

’s
 H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 N
e

w
 T

h
e

a
tr

e
 s

e
n

d
 a

ll 
th

e
ir
 p

re
s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
n
d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 T

w
it
te

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f
e

a
tu

ri
n

g
 n

e
w

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
C

a
rd

if
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
.

1
7

Page 32



o
n

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 
h

o
m

e
p
a

g
e

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

liv
e

 t
w

e
e

ts
 f

ro
m

 f
u

ll 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 i
n

 
W

e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 3

7
,6

1
4

 f
o

llo
w

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

n
d

 1
,5

6
6

 
fo

llo
w

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(f

ig
u

re
 a

s
 o

f 
1
5

th
o
f 

A
p

ri
l)
. 
T

h
e

 
m

e
d

ia
 t

e
a

m
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
tw

e
e

ts
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
m

 a
re

 i
s
s
u

e
d
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
W

e
ls

h
 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
. 

In
 a

 s
u

rv
e

y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
(S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

) 
o

n
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 o
n
 T

w
it
te

r.
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

w
a

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
s
 a

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
g
o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

ta
te

d
 

“C
a

rd
if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
a

in
ta

in
s
 s

e
p
a

ra
te

 W
e

ls
h

 a
n
d

 E
n
g

lis
h

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 i
s
 o

n
e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
g

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 t
h

is
 m

e
th

o
d
. 

It
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 b
o

th
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

d
o

e
s
 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 W

e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n
g

lis
h

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ir
ro

r 
e

a
c
h

 o
th

e
r 

in
 c

o
n

te
n

t.
 T

h
e

 a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 i
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
is

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
n

d
 e

a
s
y
 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

.”

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

re
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l:

i.
P

u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 

ii.
F

o
rm

s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 

m
a

te
ri
a

l
iii

.
P

u
b

lic
 n

o
ti
c
e

s
 

a
n

d
a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

ts
 

iv
.

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 

T
h
e

m
a

ti
c
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
s
 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 v

ia
 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

’ 
e

m
a

il 
b

ri
e
f 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 t
o

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

in
tr

a
n

e
t 

p
a

g
e

. 
A

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n
d

e
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

ili
n
g
u

a
l 
u

n
le

s
s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
a
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l’s

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

. 
A

ll 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 i
s
 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

ll 
re

la
te

d
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 p
o

s
t 

s
w

y
d

d
i.
c
a

e
rd

y
d

d
.g

o
v
.u

k

1
8

Page 33



5
. 

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 T

H
E

 S
C

H
E

M
E

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

k
ill

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 2

0
0

9
-

2
0

1
2

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
9

 –
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

–
H

R
P

e
o

p
le

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
.

T
h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
o
n

 t
h
e

 1
3

th
o
f 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1
4

.
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 

to
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t,

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

o
p

le
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
im

b
a

la
n

c
e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 a
re

 m
o

re
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 s

e
rv

e
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 s

to
ra

g
e

/r
e

tr
ie

v
a

l,
 t

h
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 i
ts

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

3
 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
to

o
lk

it
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 i
n

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

D
e

ta
ile

d
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

re
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt
e

rs
’ 
m

o
n

th
ly

 b
ri
e
f 

to
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 (

v
ia

 t
h

e
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
).

 R
e
m

in
d
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

ir
 t

e
a
m

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 a
ll

m
o
n

th
ly

 b
ri
e
fs

 i
n

 2
0
1

4
-1

5
.
T

h
e
 

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f

h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

s
e

 b
ri
e
fs

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

te
a
m

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
w

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

e
a

m
s
. 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 
c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 F
A

Q
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 o

ft
e

n
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

R
o

ll 
o

u
t
W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 

W
it
h

 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
–

P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 
8

 S
ta

ff
 a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 a
 ‘
T

ra
in

 t
h
e

 T
ra

in
e

r’
 c

o
u

rs
e

 r
u

n
 b

y
 C

w
m

n
i 
Ia

it
h

 
in

 J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

4
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h
e

m
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

1
9

Page 34



tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 b

y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 d

e
liv

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n

e
 d

a
y
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 
p

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 u
n

ti
l 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

e
ff

e
c
t.

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t,
 W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 U
n

it

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 

B
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

4
0

H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

ir
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
y
 a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t

ra
in

 t
h

e
 t

ra
in

e
r 

c
o

u
rs

e
. 
T

h
e

s
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
c
u

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 o
n

 t
h

e
 ‘
M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 /
 

M
o

re
 T

h
a

n
 J

u
s
t 
W

o
rd

s
’ 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

O
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 c

o
u

rs
e
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

g
in

in
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
(2

0
1

5
) 

a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 r

o
ll 

th
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

u
t 
to

 m
a

n
y
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
5

-1
6

. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
, 

a
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

h
a

v
e

 j
o

in
tl
y
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

d
 a

n
 e

-L
e

a
rn

in
g
 m

o
d
u

le
 o

n
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 b

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 w

it
h

 H
y
w

e
l 
D

d
a

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n
d

 n
o

w
 a

d
a
p

te
d
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 b
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 
W

e
 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
. 

O
n

c
e
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d

 o
n

 
th

e
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
’s

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 g

iv
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

w
a

y
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t.

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

re
e

 t
o

 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
.
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

tt
e

n
d
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 

re
m

in
d
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t,
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
.

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 n
e

w
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri
e

s
 o

f 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
, 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
n

g
 

A
s
 s

o
o
n

 a
s
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs

A
ll 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f’
s
 

in
tr

a
n

e
t 
p

a
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

g
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

ll 
re

la
te

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
s
c
h
e
m

e
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 f

o
r 

W
e

ls
h

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 
fo

rm
. 
T

h
e

re
 

2
0

Page 35



s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

n
d

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs

is
 a

 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 p
a

g
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t 
h

o
m

e
p
a

g
e

 
s
o

 i
t 

is
 e

a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 f
re

q
u

e
n
t 

a
rt

ic
le

s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

in
 t
h

e
 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 ‘
Y

o
u

r 
In

b
o

x
’ 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

ri
e

f 
to

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

W
e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n
e

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
la

to
rs

. 

O
n

 t
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
a

l 
p
h

o
n

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

n
 f

ilt
e

r 
to

 v
ie

w
 a

ll 
W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
p

e
a

k
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 v

ie
w

 t
h

e
ir
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 C
o
o

rd
in

a
to

r.
 A

 f
u

ll 
lis

t 
o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
o

 a
tt

a
c
h

e
d
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

.

A
rt

ic
le

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o

 r
e
m

in
d

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 ‘
p

la
n

 a
h

e
a
d

 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o
n

s
’ 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
tu

rn
a

ro
u

n
d

.

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
re

 
n

o
w

 a
ls

o
 e

a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 v

ia
 

w
w

w
.c

a
rd

if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
/b

ili
n

g
u

a
lc

a
rd

if
f

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 ‘
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f’
 t
e

a
m

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

n
 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
n
 C

a
rd

if
f.

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 m

e
e
t 

m
o

n
th

ly
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
 

la
te

s
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
g
e

n
d

a
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

s
h

a
re

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 
T

h
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

re
 k

e
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti
e

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

In
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 a

 n
e

w
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
ro

s
s
-P

a
rt

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
)

w
a

s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

 t
h
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

a
g
e
n

d
a

 f
o

rw
a

rd
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t
h

e
 6

th

2
1

Page 36



o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

. 
T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 h
o

ld
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e
, 

to
 a

c
t 
a

s
 a

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 g
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 
v
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 a
 l
e

a
d

 r
o

le
, 
a

n
d

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
in

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 t
ru

ly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

w
h

e
re

 
c
it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

 e
it
h
e

r 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 e
q
u

a
lly

. 
F

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

ils
 s

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 4
1

.

A
ls

o
, 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
u

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

fr
e
e

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

L
o

g
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

n
 n

o
n

 
-

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
S

y
s
te

m

If
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 
n

o
n

–
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 
is

 n
o

te
d

A
u

d
it
o

rs
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

, 
W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
a
n

d
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
4

in
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

s
e
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
fo

r 
A

L
L

 n
e

w
 a

n
d

 
re

n
e

w
e

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

F
ro

m
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

n
w

a
rd

s

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

it
h

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il

h
a

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

r 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
n

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

o
u

r 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

o
rt

a
l 
h

a
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

1
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

‘S
e

rv
ic

e
s
’ 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 O
n

ly
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p
u

b
lic

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

.

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

/f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e
d

 p
re

-
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

 /
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
ri
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 S

Q
u

ID
 s

e
t 

o
f 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 

w
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

is
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
. 

2
2

Page 37



D
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 y

o
u

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 /
 o

r 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 W
a
le

s
 t
o

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 a

re
 m

e
t,

 a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
b

y
 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

te
rm

in
a

te
d

 a
n

d
/o

r 
b
e

e
n

 n
o

ti
fi
e
d

 o
f 

a
 

b
re

a
c
h

 o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
b

re
a

c
h

 o
f 

a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
fo

r 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
a

s
t 
3

 y
e

a
rs

?

A
ls

o
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 T
e

rm
s
 a

n
d

 C
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 s
ig

n
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

la
u

s
e

: 

T
h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
s
h

a
ll 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 2

0
1
1

 (
"t

h
e

 M
e

a
s
u

re
")

 (
a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 M
e

a
s
u

re
 c

o
m

e
 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

s
o
fa

r 
a
s
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e

s
),

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 T
e

rm
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t.

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

3
 -

1
4

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
o
n

g
o

in
g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

re
v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

. 
T

h
e

 f
re

q
u
e

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

is
 d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
, 

b
u

t 
g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 r
a

n
g
e

 f
ro

m
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t

o
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
.

A
n

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 f

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
a
n

 b
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 C
a

rd
if
f 

B
u

s
 

a
n

d
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 B
o

a
rd

to
 

F
ro

m
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 W
a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 

C
a

rd
if
f 

B
u

s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 a
d
o

p
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 P
o

lic
y
 o

n
 i
ts

 w
e

b
s
it
e

.
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
in

s
id

e
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

, 
it
s
 

2
3

Page 38



im
p

le
m

e
n
t 

th
e

ir
 p

o
lic

y
 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 
o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
rd

if
f 

B
u

s
.

o
n

w
a

rd
s
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
a

re
 a

ls
o

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
w

h
e

n
e

v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

W
o

rk
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
u

d
io

 a
n

d
 v

is
u

a
l 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
n

e
x
t 

s
to

p
 a

n
n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
4

 
a

n
d

 2
0

1
5

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 f
le

e
t 

re
n

e
w

a
l.

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
lic

e
n

c
e

s
, 
p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

a
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 (
e

.g
. 
e

v
e

n
ts

)

A
n

n
u
a

l 
a
u

d
it

A
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
A

ll 
lic

e
n

c
e

/r
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

rm
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 W
e

ls
h

 u
p

o
n

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

2
0

1
5

).
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 s
ta

rt
e
d

 t
o

 u
p

lo
a

d
 W

e
ls

h
 v

e
rs

io
n

s
 o

f 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
to

 
th

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5
.

O
n

lin
e

 r
e

g
is

te
rs

 a
re

 n
o
w

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e

.

In
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
n

ti
m

e
, 
th

e
d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
 i
f 

a
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
rm

 
a

tt
a

c
h

e
d
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

s
k
s
:

If
 y

o
u

 w
is

h
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
li
e

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 t
ic

k
 h

e
re

:

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
S

u
b
m

it
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

s
 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 W
e
ls

h
 

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 B
o

a
rd

.

A
n

n
u
a

lly
 b

y
 

W
L
B

 
d

e
a
d

lin
e

S
e

n
io

r 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 f

ro
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

re
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

te
a
m

. 
T

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
is

 t
h

e
n

 d
ra

ft
e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
to

 t
h
e

 S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a

m
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
, 

th
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
,

th
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t,
 a

n
d

 f
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
b

e
fo

re
 

b
e

in
g
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
L
C

 b
y
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
a
d

lin
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
3

0
th

o
f 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
is

 r
a

is
e

s
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
e

m
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
y
 

s
h

o
rt

fa
lls

 i
n

 i
ts

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
e

v
e

l.

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

N
e

x
t 

re
p

o
rt

 
w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 
y
e

a
r 

o
f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 

S
e

n
io

r 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
a

n
d
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 a
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 a

b
o

v
e

.

2
4

Page 39



a
p

p
ro

v
a

l

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

in
 e

v
e

ry
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 w

a
y
, 

b
o

th
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 a

n
d

 
in

te
rn

a
lly

 a
s
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e

O
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 
S

c
h

e
m

e

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s

A
 m

o
n

th
ly

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
“W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 –
M

a
te

ri
o

n
 C

y
m

ra
e

g
” 

is
 

s
e

n
t 

to
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
. 
T

h
is

 b
ri
e
f 

c
o

n
ta

in
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

la
te

s
t 

p
o

lic
y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 (
e

.g
. 

S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
),

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
, 
Ia

it
h

 
G

w
a

it
h

 m
a

te
ri
a

l,
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 
re

m
in

d
e

rs
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

. 
A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
is

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
rt

ic
le

s
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 ‘
Y

o
u

r 
In

b
o

x
’ 
n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r 
a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
tr

a
n

e
t 
p

u
b

lic
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

in
d

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
ls

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

A
n

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
in

tr
a

n
e

t 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 v

ia
 

w
w

w
.c

a
rd

if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
/b

ili
n

g
u

a
lc

a
rd

if
f

A
ls

o
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
u

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

fr
e
e

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

ll 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 t

o
 

g
a

u
g
e

 p
u

b
lic

 o
p

in
io

n
 

o
n

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 W

e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

e
.g

. 
A

s
k
 C

a
rd

if
f)

A
n

n
u
a

lly
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 a
ll 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 t
e

a
m

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

2
C

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
V

I

2
5

Page 40



2
. 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 F

ro
n

t 
L

in
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

i.
T

h
e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 (
p

re
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

Y
P

P
’s

)

1
) 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 a

s
s
e

s
s

e
d

 t
o

 w
h

a
t 

e
x

te
n

t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

?
 W

h
a

t 
g

a
p

s
 o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

n
e

e
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
?

 T
o

 w
h

a
t 

e
x

te
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
 s

u
c

h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 U
rd

d
; 

M
e

n
tr

a
u

 I
a

it
h

; 
a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 F

a
rm

e
rs

 C
lu

b
s

, 
w

h
e
re

 
re

le
v
a

n
t,

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s

 w
it

h
in

 y
o

u
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
?

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
C

a
rd

if
f’
s
 s

in
g
le

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 p
la

n
,

‘W
h
a

t 
M

a
tt

e
rs

’,
 

w
h

ic
h

 n
o

w
 i

n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 t

h
e

 o
ld

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

. 
A

ll 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d

 a
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
th

a
t 

‘P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

(W
a

le
s
)

M
e

a
s
u

re
2

0
1
1

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

.’
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 s
ix

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e
s
. 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 T
h

e
 S

p
ro

u
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
O

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

a
tt
e

n
ti
o
n
 h

a
d

 b
e
e

n
 

p
a

id
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 v
e

rs
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 l

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

h
o

ic
e

 (
s
e
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 6

 b
e

lo
w

).
 T

h
e

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

fu
n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t

h
is

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
. 

T
h
e

 S
p

ro
u

t 
h

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 

W
e
ls

h
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

2
) 

C
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

E
x

p
la

in
 t

h
e

 e
x

a
c

t 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

n
y

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 W

e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
, 

e
.g

. 
M

e
n

tr
a

u
 I

a
it

h
; 

th
e

 U
rd

d
; 

a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 
F

a
rm

e
rs

 
C

lu
b

s
 
w

h
e

re
 
re

le
v

a
n

t.
 
Y

o
u

 
c

a
n

 
re

fe
r 

to
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
le

v
e

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
; 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 
o

f 
th

e
 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 
a

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
; 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

; 
c

o
u

n
ty

 f
o

ru
m

s
 o

r 
a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 T

h
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 a

n
d

 U
rd

d
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a
d

e
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f
W

e
ls

h
 i
n

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 2
6

Page 41



T
h
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

&
Y

P
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 e

n
d

e
d

 a
s
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 e
n
ti
ty

 a
n

d
n

e
w

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o

w
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

‘W
h
a

t 
M

a
tt

e
rs

’.
 
‘W

h
a
t 

M
a

tt
e

rs
’ 

is
 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

a
rd

if
f 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a

rd
, 

w
h

o
 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
 
e

ig
h

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r

lin
e

 o
f 

s
ig

h
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

’s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n

, 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 W
h
a
t 

M
a

tt
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 W
e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 i

s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 w

ill
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

to
 d

ri
v
e

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
g
e

n
d
a

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

th
e

 p
re

s
e

rv
e

 o
f 

o
n

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

. 

3
) 

S
ta

ff
 S

k
il
ls

 

H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 p
la

n
 y

o
u

r 
y

o
u

th
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
o

rk
 f

o
rc

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s

 o
f 

W
e

ls
h

 s
p

e
a
k

in
g

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

?
 

Y
o

u
 
w

il
l 

b
e

 
e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 
to

 
m

e
n

ti
o

n
 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c

e
s

s
e

s
; 

m
a
p

p
in

g
 
th

e
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 
s

ta
ff

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
ir

 l
in

g
u

is
ti

c
 s

k
il
ls

; 
p

la
n

s
 
to

 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 l

in
g

u
is

ti
c
 s

k
il
ls

 o
f 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 s
ta

ff
; 

a
n

d
 a

n
y

 t
ra

in
in

g
.

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
ff

 l
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 s

u
rv

e
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
.

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 9
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ra
ft

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 W
a
le

s
 s

ta
te

s
:

‘T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

, 
c
u

lt
u

re
, 

h
is

to
ry

 a
n

d
 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 
W

a
le

s
.

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
re

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

i
L

e
v
e

l 
1

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
ii

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 W

e
ls

h
iii

 L
e

v
e

l 
3

 A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
c
e

le
b

ra
te

s
 t

h
e

 c
u

lt
u

re
, 
h

is
to

ry
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 
W

a
le

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.’

T
h

is
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

-
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 t

w
o

 f
u

ll 
ti
m

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h

o
 w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 

W
e
ls

h
. 
C

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 t
o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
 s

ix
 p

a
rt

 t
im

e
 s

ta
ff

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 6

0
 h

o
u

rs
 a

 w
e

e
k

o
f
W

e
ls

h
-m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

o
p

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
tt

ra
c
ti
n

g
 o

v
e

r 
4

0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
e

e
k
ly

, 
in

 b
o
th

th
e

 E
a

s
t 

a
n

d
 W

e
s
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 W

e
ls

h
-m

e
d

iu
m

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 D
u

k
e

 o
f 

E
d

in
b

u
rg

h
 A

w
a

rd
, 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
, 

y
e

a
r 

s
ix

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

  

2
7

Page 42



E
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 a

 W
e
ls

h
-s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 L

e
a

d
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

n
c
e

 p
o

s
t 
1

6
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
m

e
n

to
ri
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

in
th

e
 t
h

re
e

 W
e
ls

h
-

m
e
d

iu
m

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

a
re

 m
o

s
t 
a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n
,

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p
o

s
t 

1
6

 y
e

a
rs

o
f 

a
g
e
.

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
o

s
t 
1

6
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e
 w

h
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 W
e
ls

h
-m

e
d

iu
m

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

to
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
v
ia

 t
h
e

 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

o
a

c
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
n

g
 W

e
ls

h
 c

u
lt
u

re
 t

h
o

u
g
h

 E
n

g
lis

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 y
o

u
th

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

im
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 w
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
. 

S
o

 f
a

r,
 t

h
e

s
e

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 l
o

w
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 s

ta
ff

 w
h

o
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 i
f 

n
e
e

d
e
d

.

4
) 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 

W
h

a
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

s
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
v

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

in
 y

o
u

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

?
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
u

m
 

L
e

n
g
th

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
-

Y
o

u
th

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
o

re
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
a

rd
if
f 

Y
o

u
th

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

L
A

 C
o

re
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

£
1

3
2

,5
4
7

4
.8

0
%

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

s
ta

ff
in

g

2
0

1
4

 -
1

5
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

re
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

 t
im

e
 p

a
id

 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

re
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 F

T
E

 w
o

rk
e

rs

5
) 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

W
h

a
t 

m
e

th
o

d
s

 d
o

 y
o

u
 u

s
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

 w
it

h
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

ie
ld

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
?

 
G

iv
e

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s

. 

C
a

rd
if
f 

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

 o
n

 a
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

. 
A

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 

W
e
ls

h
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 

s
h

a
p

in
g
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

2
8

Page 43



F
a

m
ili

e
s
’

F
ir
s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i

s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 v
ia

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n

. 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
a
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 d

e
p
e

n
d

 o
n

 h
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
.

6
) 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

T
h
e

re
 
is

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 
a

llo
c
a

te
d
 
w

it
h

in
 
th

e
 
E

a
rl
y
 
Y

e
a

rs
 
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 
to

 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
p
a

re
n

ts
 
a
n

d
 
e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 
m

e
d

iu
m

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
M

e
n

te
r 

C
a

e
rd

y
d

d
 a

n
d

 M
u

d
ia

d
 M

e
it
h

ri
n

 a
re

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 s

u
c
h

 b
u

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
h

e
lp

 t
o

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 i
n
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 (
0

-8
).

ii
.

W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
2
 –

N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 %

 o
f 

m
a
in

 r
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
, 
c
a
ll
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 o

r 
o

n
e
s
 s

to
p

 s
h

o
p

 p
o

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
n

o
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a
l’
 a

n
d

 f
il
le

d
 b

y
 b

il
in

g
u

a
l 

s
ta

ff
.

T
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4
.

T
h
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

to
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 l
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 s

k
ill

 n
e

e
d

s
a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 e

n
s
u

re
s

th
a

t 
th

e
 l

in
g
u

is
ti
c
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

ll 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
a
n

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 W
e
ls

h
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l,
 W

e
ls

h
 d

e
s
ir
a

b
le

 o
r 

n
o
 

lin
g
u

is
ti
c
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

a
n

d
/o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r
m

e
t 

w
it
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
9

7
5

p
o

s
ts

fo
r 

lin
g
u

is
ti
c
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t
b

e
fo

re
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
, 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
1

1
p

o
s
ts

 (
1

1
%

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 W
e
ls

h
 E

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
in

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 
W

e
ls

h
 
L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
S

k
ill

s
 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
.

A
 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 
o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 
in

 
e

a
c
h

 
te

a
m

a
n
d

/o
r 

fr
o

n
tl
in

e
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n
 

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 W
e
ls

h
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d
/o

r 
d
e

s
ir
a

b
le

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 g

u
a

ra
n

te
e
 a

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

A
 l
is

t 
o
f 

te
a
m

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5
 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

I.

G
o

o
d

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 E
x

a
m

p
le

C
o

n
n

e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
re

 c
o

n
d
u

c
ti
n

g
 W

e
ls

h
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
. 

E
v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 a

g
e

n
ts

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

2
0

 c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 t

o
 

c
o

n
d
u

c
t 

a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
.
T

h
e
 q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

s
 a

s
k
e
d

 a
re

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

g
e

tt
in

g
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l

in
e

 
c
a

n
 b

e
im

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 V
I
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

2
9

Page 44



E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 E

x
e

rc
is

e

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

D
ig

iG
o

v
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 v
a

lid
a

te
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 p
e

rs
o

n
a
l 
d

a
ta

, 
th

is
 h

a
s
 e

n
a
b

le
d

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 (
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
) 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
.

A
 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

4
,5

4
6

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 v
a

lid
a

te
d
 t

h
e

ir
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 D
ig

iG
o

v
 s

y
s
te

m
.

F
ro

m
 t
h

e
s
e

 2
2

1
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 s
ta

te
d

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
k
ill

s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 4
.8

6
%

o
f 

th
o

s
e

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

ro
ll-

o
u

t 
o
f 

D
ig

iG
o

v
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
),

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 w

id
e

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

A
rt

ic
le

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 f
e

a
tu

re
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt
e

rs
 b

ri
e
f 

re
m

in
d

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 u
p

d
a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 o

n
 D

ig
iG

o
v
.

ii
i.

W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
6
 –

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f
2

4
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

W
h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 
w

e
re

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
in

 
th

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 

E
n

g
lis

h
 
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 
th

e
y

w
e

re
 
d

e
a

lt
 
w

it
h

 
in

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
.

T
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 w

e
ll 

p
u

b
lic

is
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
M

o
n
it
o

r 
F

o
rm

 
e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 r
e

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
.

iv
. 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
1
 –

M
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 j
u

s
t 

w
o

rd
s
 /
 M

w
y
 n

a
 g

e
ir

ia
u

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

  
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

  
fo

r 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 i

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
S

o
c

ia
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 -

M
w

y
 n

a
 G

e
ir

ia
u

 /
 M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 J
u

s
t 

W
o

rd
s

.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
4

 -
1

5

T
h

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

a
s
 s

lo
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

 a
s
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
n

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 h
a

m
p

e
re

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 l
im

it
e

d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 m
o

n
th

s
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
, 

in
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
, 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 a

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
in

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 r
e

le
a

s
e
d

 s
o
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
o

u
rs

 f
ro

m
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
to

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 M
w

y
 N

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e

 s
in

c
e

 t
h
e
n

.

3
0

Page 45



1
.

A
ft

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 t
h

re
e

 d
a

y
 T

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

T
ra

in
e

rs
 C

o
u

rs
e

 i
n
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 (
 r

u
n

 b
y
 I

A
IT

H
),

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 t
o

 4
0

  
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 
T

h
e

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e

s
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
, 
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

w
y
 N

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 
a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

.
2

.
M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

re
 s

e
n

d
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 s
k
ill

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 a

im
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

ll 
1

0
0
0

 s
ta

ff
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
5

.
3

.
L

ia
is

o
n

 w
it
h

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y

4
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 u

p
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
p

e
a

k
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 w

a
rd

 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f

5
.

L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 o
f 

c
h
o

ic
e

 a
n
d

 n
e
e

d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 c

lie
n

t 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
 i
n

 u
s
e
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

(C
a

re
F

ir
s
t)

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 d

ir
e

c
t 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
in

it
ia

l 
‘r
e

fe
rr

a
l’ 

fo
rm

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
lle

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

r’
s
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
.

6
.

A
s
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
d
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
, 

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
in

 t
h
e

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

7
.

T
h
e

 c
a

s
e

 f
ile

 a
u

d
it
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 f

o
r 

c
a

s
e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
, 

w
ill

 n
o

w
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 n
e

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

h
e

c
k
lis

t.
8

.
L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 n
e

e
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
ig

h
ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
id

d
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n
 C

a
rd

if
f 

fo
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
o
f 

d
o

m
ic

ili
a

ry
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

.
9

.
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a

re
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 n
o

w
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h

 r
e

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
e

a
m

 i
n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.
1

0
.T

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

h
a

s
 m

e
t 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

s
e

c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
M

w
y
 N

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 t
o

 s
u

g
g
e

s
t 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 W
e
ls

h
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
.

1
1

.W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 t
h
e

 G
o
fa

lu
 t

rw
y
’r
 G

y
m

ra
e

g
 a

p
p
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

b
ile

 d
e

v
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

h
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 a
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
 c

a
re

 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 d
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 l
a
u

n
c
h

e
d

 i
n

 J
u

ly
. 
W

e
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 c

a
re

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
.

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 s

ti
ll 

to
 d

o
, 

s
o

 w
e

 a
re

 h
o
p

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

a
n

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 i
n

to
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 h
a

s
 a

 r
e
m

it
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 a
n
d

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
Y

e
a

r 
3

 o
f 

th
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
.

3
. 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

i.
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
1

 
–

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

W
L
I 

1
re

la
te

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 %
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h
a

t 
c
o
n
fo

rm
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
in

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

re
a

s
:-

i)
c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

ii
)

y
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 l

e
is

u
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

3
1

Page 46



ii
i)

p
re

-s
c

h
o

o
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

i)
C

a
re

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

W
it
h

 T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

  
D

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 C
a

re
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
in

g
 t
o

 a
n

 e
n
d

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
, 

th
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
ro

lm
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

in
v
it
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 b
o

th
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u

rs
in

g
 h

o
m

e
 

c
a

re
, 

to
 j
o

in
 a

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 l
is

t.
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
, 

th
e

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 ‘
M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
’ 
–

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 
H

e
a

lt
h

, 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 

T
h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
ti
v
e

 O
ff

e
r 

h
a

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

re
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 o

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 

C
a

re
 F

ir
s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

r 
d

a
ta

 r
e

c
o

rd
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
P

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 (
 t

h
e
 M

a
tr

ix
 s

y
s
te

m
) 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

e
ig

h
te

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
b

id
d

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

n
a
ir
e

s
 a

n
d

 q
u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e

s
 f

ro
m

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
. 

A
s
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 o

n
ly

 b
e

e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

s
t 
2

 m
o

n
th

s
, 

w
e

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 d
a

ta
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
5

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u

rs
in

g
 c

a
re

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 

a
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

fo
r 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
.

W
e
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
c
ti
v
e

 O
ff

e
r 

fr
o

m
 ‘
M

w
y
 n

a
 G

e
ir
ia

u
’ 
b
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 l
in

g
u

is
ti
c
 s

k
ill

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

. 
S

ta
rt

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

ro
n

tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 4

5
0

 s
ta

ff
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

4
0

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

, 
s
o
 t

h
a
t

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 A
c
ti
v
e

 O
ff

e
r 

a
n

d
 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 n
e
e

d
 o

n
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
s
. 

C
a

rd
if
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

T
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 C

y
m

ru
 (

4
C

's
).

 
4

C
s
 s

ta
ff

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
te

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 o

f 
c
a

re
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
.

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 4
C

s
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(Q

P
A

),
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 a
s
k
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 ‘
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
’.

N
u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

.
E

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 4
C

s
 t
e

a
m

.

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

it
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

M
o

re
 T

h
a

n
 J

u
s
t 
W

o
rd

s
 

3
2

Page 47



a
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 r
e

le
a

s
e

 
d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
.

It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

n
e

w
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 e
a

rl
y
 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
. 
  

 

S
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 I
fo

r 
2
0
1

4
-1

5
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

ii
 (

a
) 

Y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

N
o

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

ii
 (

b
) 

L
e

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 

L
e

is
u

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
s
 t
w

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 M
e
n

te
r 

C
a

e
rd

y
d

d
 a

n
d

 U
rd

d
, 

b
o

th
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h
e
m

e
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

ls
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 C
a

rd
if
f 

a
n
d

 V
a

le
 H

e
a

lt
h

 B
o
a

rd
 w

h
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 m

id
w

if
e

ry
 u

n
it
 o

f 
th

e
 B

u
m

p
 i
n
to

 A
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 F

a
lls

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 F
o

o
d
 W

is
e
. 

3
 t

h
ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 w

it
h

 2
 f
u
lly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t.
 (

6
6

%
)

L
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
le

is
u

re
, 
w

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 g

iv
in

g
 d

is
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

u
p

 t
o
 5

0
%

 o
n

 
s
p

a
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 p
o
o

l 
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 

le
s
s
o

n
s
, 
h

a
ll 

s
p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
g

y
m

n
a

s
ti
c
s
 e

tc
. 
W

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r,
 M

e
n

te
r 

h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 £

3
0

k
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

is
c
o
u

n
t 

o
n

 h
ir
e

 o
f 

s
p

a
c
e

. 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 e

x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
y
m

n
a

s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 d
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 h
o

lid
a

y
s
.

ii
i.

p
re

-s
c

h
o

o
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

D
u

ti
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
c
a

re
 A

c
t 
2

0
0

6
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

h
ild

c
a

re
 S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
c
a

re
.

W
it
h

in
 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
w

e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
c
a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

re
-s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 T

h
e

 C
h

ild
c
a

re
 S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
fr

e
s
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 3

0
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
5

.

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 
2

 N
e

w
 F

u
ll 

D
a

y
 C

a
re

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
p
e

n
e
d

 o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 1

9
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 p
la

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 7
8

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
2

 C
y
lc

h
 M

e
it
h

ri
n

 (
5

1
 p

la
c
e

s
) 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 M
u

d
ia

d
 M

e
it
h

ri
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 a

im
in

g
 t

o
 s

e
t 
u

p
 a

 n
e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

3
3

Page 48



D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I
a

it
h
 F

y
w

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 f
o

r 
L

iv
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

e
re

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

u
t 
o
f 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
 t

h
a

t 
o
ff

e
r 

c
h

ild
c
a

re
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
d
a

y
 (

th
is

 c
a

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 w
ra

p
a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e

 n
u

rs
e

ry
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
3
 a

n
d

 4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
)

T
h
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
5

/1
6

 O
u

t 
o
f 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
, 

th
e

 t
h

re
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
: 
L

o
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
, 

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 

w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
, 
F

a
m

ili
e

s
 w

is
h

in
g
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
ild

c
a

re
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
. 
 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h
e

m
e

; 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 2

0
1
1

 (
“t

h
e

 M
e

a
s
u

re
”)

 a
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 c

o
m

e
 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e
 a

n
d
 i
n

s
o
fa

r 
a

s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 G
ra

n
t.

A
 C

h
ild

c
a

re
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
n

e
w

 a
n

d
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

h
ild

c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
s
u

s
ta

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

3
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e

a
m

 a
re

 W
e
ls

h
 S

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
 w

is
h

in
g
 t

o
 

o
ff

e
r 

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
.

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
it
 b

u
y
s
 g

o
o

d
s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
; 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 w

e
 i
n

te
n

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

 i
n
 

o
u

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 (

2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
5

).
T

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
 w

ill
 s

e
e

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i

n
 h

o
w

 w
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

r 
£

3
0

0
 m

ill
io

n
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 s

p
e

n
d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 w

it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
.

T
o
 
d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 
v
a

lu
e

 
fo

r 
m

o
n
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 
a

d
o

p
ti
n
g
 
a

 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 
m

a
n

a
g
e

 
a
n

d
 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

 a
ll 

o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
s
ix

 k
e

y
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 a

 c
le

a
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
ro

u
p

in
g
 

re
la

te
d
 s

p
e
n

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
.

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 p
u
b

lic
 

s
e

c
to

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

te
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 v
a

lu
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

T
h
e

 s
ix

 k
e

y
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 a

re
: 

* 
  

  
  
 

S
o

c
ia

l 

* 
  

  
  
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

* 
  

  
  
 

C
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 S
p
e

c
ia

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 

* 
  

  
  
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

* 
  

  
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n
d

 I
C

T
 

3
4

Page 49



* 
  

  
  
 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 E
U

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
, 

U
K

 C
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 L

a
w

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
.

4
. 

L
in

g
u

is
ti

c
 S

k
il
ls

: 
c
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 c
a
p

a
c
it

y

W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

4
 -

W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g

u
a
g

e
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s

 T
ra

in
in

g

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

 –
s

k
il

ls

W
L

I 
4

(a
) 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 %

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
 t
o

 a
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

 l
e
v
e

l.

6
2

2
/

5
,5

0
5

o
r 

1
1

.3
0

%
*

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

ta
ff

, 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
u

a
l 
s
ta

ff
) 

h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 a

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 l
e

v
e

l.

(b
) 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 %

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 

tr
a

in
in

g
.

8
7

0
/

5
,5

0
5

o
r 

1
5

.8
0

%
*

o
f

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

ta
ff

, 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
u

a
l 
s
ta

ff
) 

h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
.

*
T

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
. 

It
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
(S

e
p

 2
0

1
4

) 
th

a
t 
w

e
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ta
rt

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 a

fr
e

s
h

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 a

d
o
p

te
d
. 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 D

ig
iG

o
v
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 o

n
ly

 a
 f

e
w

 y
e

a
rs

 a
g
o

 w
ill

g
iv

e
 u

s
 a

 m
o

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 c

a
p
tu

re
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
a

s
 t
h

e
re

 
s
e

e
m

s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 w

h
e

n
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

A
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 D

ig
iG

o
v
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
e

re
b

y
 s

o
m

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
to

 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
. 

3
5

Page 50



W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

T
ra

in
in

g

W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i

s
 a

im
e

d
 i

n
it
ia

lly
 a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 

s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

. 
In

 f
u

tu
re

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 n

e
e

d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 l

is
t 

o
f 

W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

c
o
u

rs
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
a

ll 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 w
h

o
 w

is
h

e
d

 t
o

 l
e

a
rn

 o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 W

e
ls

h
 f

ro
m

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
h

ig
h
 d

ro
p
 o

u
t 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

, 
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 l
o

n
g
e

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
 W

e
ls

h
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 i
n

 h
o

u
s
e

 
a

n
d

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 g
a

v
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 W

e
ls

h
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

t 
a

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

 m
o

re
 c

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

m
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
t 

o
th

e
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
rd

if
f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 a

ll 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

a
t

c
h

o
o

s
e

 t
o

 l
e

a
rn

 o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 W

e
ls

h
 b

y
 p

a
y
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 g

iv
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t
im

e
 o

ff
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
.

A
to

ta
l 
o
f 

5
8

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
to

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

. 
F

o
r 

fu
ll 

d
e
ta

ils
a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
p

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
II

I.

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 T

ra
in

in
g

4
0

H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 2
0
1

4
-1

5
.

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
4

 8
 s

ta
ff

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 a
 t

ra
in

 t
h

e
 t
ra

in
e

r 
c
o

u
rs

e
 r

u
n

 b
y
 C

w
m

n
i 
Ia

it
h

. 
A

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 c

o
u

rs
e

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 b

y
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

te
a
m

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 s
u

m
m

e
r

2
0
1

5
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

re
 r

u
n

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
to

 t
e

a
m

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
.

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 e

L
e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d

u
le

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 h
e

lp
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 C

o
n

v
e

rs
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
W

e
ls

h
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 
fo

u
r 

c
o
u
n

c
ils

 h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 t
o

 a
d

a
p

t 
th

e
 e

L
e
a

rn
in

g
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 m
o

d
u

le
(t

h
a

t 
w

a
s

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

m
 a

n
d

 H
y
w

e
l 
D

d
a

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
B

o
a

rd
 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

c
to

r)
fo

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
in

 W
a
le

s
.

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 o
f 

C
a

rd
if
f,

C
a

e
rp

h
ill

y
,

R
h

o
n

d
d

a
 C

y
n

o
n

 T
a
f 

a
n

d
 M

e
rt

h
y
r 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
, 

w
h

ic
h

 n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 c

ro
s
s
-b

o
u
n
d

a
ry

 a
n

d
re

g
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 

b
u

t 
h
a

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

b
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

s
 a

n
 a

d
-h

o
c
 c

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 w

it
h

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
.

N
o

t 
o

n
ly

 w
ill

 t
h

e
 e

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 m

o
d

u
le

 a
s
s
is

t 
T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u

n
c
il

in
 f

in
a

lly
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 t

o
 a

ro
u
n

d
 a

 t
h

ir
d
 o

f 
it
s
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

a
n

e
t,

 b
u

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 k

e
e

p
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f

h
a

s
tr

a
n
s
la

te
d

th
e
 

m
o

d
u

le
, 
th

u
s
 a

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 f
u

lly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
e

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 m

o
d

u
le

 f
it
s
 p

e
rf

e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 A

ll 
W

a
le

s
 A

c
a

d
e
m

y
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t,
 l
e

d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 W

L
G

A
 (

th
a

t 
is

 h
o

p
e

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 E

S
F

 b
id

 
v
ia

 W
E

F
O

).

3
6

Page 51



T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

5
-1

6
b

u
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 n

o
te

d
 h

e
re

 a
s
 a

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c

ti
c

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 b

y
 

fo
u

r 
c

o
u

n
c

il
s

 i
n

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

W
a

le
s

.

5
. 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g

T
h
e

 P
o

lic
y
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
o

li
c

y
 S

c
re

e
n

in
g

 T
o

o
l

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 e
v
o

lv
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 c

o
n

te
x
t.

 I
f

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
 o

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
a

t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 o

r 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

 i
n
 a

n
y
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

n
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
a

p
p

ly
. 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
o

r 
d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
, 

c
a
n

 e
x
p

o
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 l
e
g
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

.

C
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

y
 S

c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
.

W
h

e
re

 a
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 i
s
s
u
e

 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
, 

th
e

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
w

ill
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 i
f 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a

 f
u

ll 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 a

s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t.

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 
re

fl
e

c
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

:

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 -
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
B

ill

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 –
S

h
a

re
d

 P
u

rp
o

s
e

 S
h
a

re
d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

U
n

it
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
s
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 R

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

U
n

it
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
s
 P

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 f

o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

rs
o

n
s

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
2

0
1

1

H
e

a
lt
h

 I
m

p
a

c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t

H
a

b
it
a

ts
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
•

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t

T
h
e

 P
o

lic
y
 S

c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

a
ll 

th
e

s
e

p
ie

c
e

s
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 m

e
th

o
d
 

th
a

t 
u

s
u
a

lly
 t

a
k
e

n
 n

o
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

n
 h

o
u

r.
 M

o
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

tl
y
, 

it
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
s
 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
in

fo
rm

e
d

. 

T
h
e

 T
o
o

l 
is

 e
m

b
e
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

A
ll 

re
p

o
rt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 a
 f
o

rm
a

l 
c
a

b
in

e
t 
d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
u

s
t 
fi
rs

t 
o
f 

a
ll 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

. 
T

h
e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
/p

o
lic

y
 o

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l.
 I
f 

y
e

s
, 

th
e

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

3
7

Page 52



b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
g
o

e
s
 t
o

 c
a
b

in
e

t 
fo

r 
fi
n
a

l 
d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ts

 w
e

re
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

 e
m

b
e
d

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h

e
 t
o

o
l 
is

 u
p

d
a

te
d
 o

n
 a

 r
o

lli
n

g
 b

a
s
is

 a
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 t
o
 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 F

o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

, 
th

e
 t

o
o

l 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
o

lic
y
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
2

0
1

1
. 
T

h
e

to
o

l 
w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 N
IC

O
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r’
s
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 i
n

 W
a
le

s
. 
T

h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
, 

th
e

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

le
 a

n
d

 m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 w

a
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

o
u

n
d
.

In
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
 w

e
 c

a
n

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
w

id
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
m

a
tt
e

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

.

T
o

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
n

y
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 i
t 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t

h
e

 9
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
in

g
le

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
t 

a
n

d
 f
e

a
tu

re
s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 E
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 (

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 

P
la

n
).

 T
h

is
 a

llo
w

s
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

e
d

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 9

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

.

W
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l 
it
s
e

lf
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

p
ts

 a
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(p
o

s
it
iv

e
, 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

, 
n

e
u

tr
a

l
o

r 
u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
) 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

. 
S

e
e
 b

e
lo

w
:

W
ill

 t
h

is
 P

o
lic

y
/S

tr
a

te
g
y
/P

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
:

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

G
e
n

d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t
• 

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 &
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 &

 M
a

te
rn

it
y

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

R
a

c
e

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

R
e

lig
io

n
/B

e
lie

f
•

  
  

  
  

  
S

e
x

• 
  

  
  
  

  
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
• 

  
  

  
  

  
 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

T
h
e

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
c
a
n

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 a

 s
e

lf
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

d
 s

e
s
s
io

n
, 

s
h

o
u

ld
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e
d

. 

A
s
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
a
n

a
ly

s
is

, 
a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 (

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 P

la
n

) 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t;
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
th

a
t 

a
 w

id
e

r 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
s
 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

. 
It
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
th

a
t 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
p

ir
it
 a

n
d

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
u

c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 d

o
n

e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
c
a
d

e
m

y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 I
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
.

3
8

Page 53



A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g
, 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
re

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 b

u
t 

it
 a

ls
o

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 A
c
t.
 S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r,
 t

h
e

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
o
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

p
o

lic
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

.

A
ll 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

, 
a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 T

o
o

l.
 H

a
v
in

g
 e

n
s
u

re
d

 t
h
e

 t
o
o

l 
c
o

v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i

s
 a

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

, 
o
b

s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

n
e

w
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 T
e

a
m

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 u

p
d

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 p
o

lic
y
 a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 s

it
 w

it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
a

s
. 

F
o

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

, 
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

C
a

rd
if
f 

w
ill

 
a

d
v
is

e
 o

n
 a

n
y
 a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l 
in

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t
o
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

.

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 P

la
n

n
in

g

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
n

in
g

: 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e

ts
 i
ts

 d
u

ti
e

s
 i
n

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
. 

Im
p
o

rt
a
n

t 
re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 W

a
le

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t,
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 

w
e

ll 
p

o
s
it
io

n
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
F

u
tu

re
 G

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 B

ill
 a

re
 a

ll 
a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d
 f

o
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
ls

o
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

it
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 d
u

ti
e

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 S
in

g
le

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e
a

s
u

re
2

0
1
1

w
h

ic
h

is
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
. 

(p
6

).

T
h

is
 s

h
a

p
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

s
, 

te
a
m

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

Im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
c
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 e

m
p
h

a
s
is

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
.

C
a

rd
if
f’
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

‘W
h

a
t 

M
a

tt
e

rs
: 

T
h

e
 1

0
 Y

e
a

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

C
a

rd
if

f’
w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

, 
s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

7
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 ‘
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
’ 
w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 t
h
e

 u
lt
im

a
te

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r.
 T

h
e

 7
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
: 

P
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

a
re

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 

P
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a
n

, 
a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
P

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

a
re

 s
a
fe

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 
C

a
rd

if
f 

h
a

s
 a

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 

3
9

Page 54



P
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

is
 a

 g
re

a
t 
p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
 

C
a

rd
if
f 

is
 a

 f
a

ir
, 

ju
s
t 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

o
c
ie

ty
 

‘W
h
a

t 
M

a
tt

e
rs

’ 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 

h
e

lp
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 i
s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

 a
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e

s
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 W

h
a

t 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 l
in

e
 o

f 
s
ig

h
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

re
 a

 c
ro

s
s
-c

u
tt
in

g
 t

h
e

m
e
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

W
e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 f
e

a
tu

ri
n

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

e
a

c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
s
e

 p
la

n
s
. 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 d

o
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

e
a
tu

re
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 p

ro
m

in
e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

tw
o

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
: 

‘C
a

rd
if
f 

is
 a

 f
a

ir
, 

ju
s
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

o
c
ie

ty
’ 

a
n

d
 ‘

P
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 C

a
rd

if
f

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l’.
  

F
o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
e

 
‘f
a

ir
, 

ju
s
t 

a
n
d

 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
’ 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
 
g
iv

e
s
 
a

n
 
e

x
p

lic
it
 
fo

c
u

s
 
to

 
o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 
th

e
 
W

e
ls

h
 
L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
A

c
t 

a
n

d
 
c
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 
to

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 t
h
e

 r
is

in
g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

W
e
ls

h
-m

e
d

iu
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

S
im

ila
rl
y
, 

th
e

 ‘
fu

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l’ 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 a

 f
o

c
u
s
 t

o
 W

e
ls

h
-m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

s
p

o
rt

, 
le

is
u
re

 a
n

d
 p

la
y
. 

T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

is
 i

n
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 w
it
h

in
 C

a
rd

if
f.

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 
th

a
t 

W
e
ls

h
 
L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 
a

re
 
b

u
ilt

 
in

to
 
th

e
 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

w
it
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
a

re
a

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 
re

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 
th

e
 
w

id
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
s
.

E
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 –

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s

 P
la

n

T
h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 p
la

c
e

d
 a

 d
u
ty

 o
n

 a
ll 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 P

la
n

. 
'E

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 M
a

tt
e

rs
' 

is
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
 
o
f 

C
a

rd
if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 P

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 2
n
d

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
2

. 

T
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f

a
ll 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 W
h
a

t 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
’s

 7
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 (

a
s
 l

is
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

).
 B

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

re
v
e

a
le

d
 t

h
a

t 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i

t 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

h
a

t 
o
u

r 
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

la
n
 a

im
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 w

a
s
 d

o
n
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 ‘
9

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
’,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

, 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
.

‘E
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 M
a

tt
e

rs
' 

th
e
re

fo
re

 s
e

e
k
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

C
a

rd
if
f'
s
 7

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
, 

w
it
h

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 9
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

, 
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 

h
a

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 F
o

ru
m

.

4
0

Page 55



E
q

u
a

li
ty

 T
ra

in
in

g

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 /

 b
ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
, 

th
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 A
c
a
d

e
m

y
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 A
c
a
d

e
m

y
B

u
d

g
e

t 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

ri
e
fi
n

g
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 T

e
a

m
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
u

d
g
e

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 (

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s

s
ti
ll 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

) 
v
ia

 t
h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 T

e
a
m

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
ts

 m
a

in
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 f
u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

K
e

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 h

u
b

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
R

e
g
io

n
a

lis
in

g
 R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 2

0
1
5

/1
6

 b
u

d
g
e

t
(T

h
e
 E

IA
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n
g
u

a
g
e

)

B
il

in
g

u
a

l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
G

ro
u

p

In
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 a

 n
e

w
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
ro

s
s
-P

a
rt

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

a
g
e

n
d

a
 f
o

rw
a

rd
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t
h

e
 6

th
o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
. 
T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p
 h

o
ld

s
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 
to

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e

 g
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 v
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 

a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 a
 l
e

a
d
 r

o
le

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
, 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 t
ru

ly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

w
h

e
re

 c
it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

 e
it
h
e

r 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 e
q
u

a
lly

.

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 2

0
1

4
-1

5

8
th

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

–
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r’
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

1
7

th
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

4
–

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
C

e
n

tr
e
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

w
it
h

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
,

to
 d

ri
v
e

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u
a

l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

a
g
e
n

d
a
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.

1
1

th
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
–

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 t

h
a

t 
e

a
c
h

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
a

s
 

a
s
k
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
T

h
e

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 a
u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

a
c
h
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
a

s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
k
ill

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 t
e

a
m

s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h
e

ir
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
q
u

a
l 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

4
1

Page 56



C
a

rd
if

f 
L

iv
e

a
b

le
 D

e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 f

in
a

lis
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

L
iv

e
a

b
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

5
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
h

o
w

 n
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 C

a
rd

if
f 

b
e

c
o
m

e
 E

u
ro

p
e

’s
 m

o
s
t 

liv
e

a
b

le
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
c
it
y
. 

T
h
e

 g
u

id
e

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

m
b

it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
, 
u

rb
a

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

re
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
s
it
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

it
y
.

T
h
e

 g
u

id
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 t
e

n
 ‘
m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
’ 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

. 
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

liv
e

a
b

le
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 g
o

o
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
.

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

m
b

it
io

n
 i
s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
x
e

m
p

lif
y
 t

h
e
 v

e
ry

 b
e

s
t 

in
 U

K
 a

n
d

 E
u

ro
p

e
a
n

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

k
e

y
 l
iv

e
a

b
ili

ty
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
:

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
,

id
e

n
ti
ty

,
p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
,

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

a
n
d

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

.

T
h
e

 g
u

id
e

 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
t 

la
rg

e
-s

c
a

le
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

s
, 
w

h
e

re
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

re
a

te
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
C

it
y
 R

e
g
io

n
.

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 t
h
e

 g
u

id
e
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

:

B
ili

n
g

u
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 p

e
o
p

le
 c

a
n

 r
e

c
o
g

n
is

e
 a

n
d

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
, 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e

 v
a

lu
e

. 
F

e
a

tu
re

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 i
n
to

 
th

e
 a

re
a

 t
o

 p
ic

k
 u

p
 o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 d

is
ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
th

a
t 
e

x
is

ts
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 
a

n
d

 W
a

le
s
 t

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

x
p

re
s
s
 t
h

is
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
q

u
a

lit
y
.

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 t
h
e

 g
u

id
e

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
:

0
3

. 
O

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 (

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 

tr
a

d
it

io
n

a
l 

C
a

rd
if

f)
 v

e
rn

a
c

u
la

r 
b

u
ilt

 f
e

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 W
e

ls
h
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
o

n
 i
n

 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 w
h

y
. 
S

e
e

k
 a

u
th

e
n

ti
c
 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
o
o

k
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 b
o

lt
-o

n
 f
a

c
a

d
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
a

s
ti
c
h

e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g

.

0
4

. 
S

ta
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 f
a

c
ili

ty
 n

a
m

in
g

.

4
2

Page 57



T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
g
u

id
e

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

4
3

Page 58



6
. 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 b

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 T

a
rg

e
t

T
h
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 (

C
IS

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 i
n

tr
a

n
e

t 
s
it
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 m

a
in

 t
o

o
l 
fo

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 S
c
h
e

m
e

. 
A

ll 
th

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
’s

 T
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
n

te
re

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
 

o
n

C
IS

. 
E

a
c
h

 m
e
a

s
u

re
 a

p
p

e
a

rs
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
a

c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t 

a
ll 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 m

e
a

s
u

re
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

t 
d
a

te
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

a
n

d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 w

h
o

 o
b

s
e

rv
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 l
o

g
 t

h
e

m
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 (

IA
C

T
s
)

o
n
 C

IS
.

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 
a

re
 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 
a

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 
w

h
e

re
 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
a
n

d
 
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 
a

re
 
u
p

d
a

te
d

 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
T

h
is

 
e
n

s
u

re
s
 
th

a
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

S
e

n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

re
a

s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

.

7
. 

P
u

b
li
s
h

in
g

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

O
n

c
e

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r,
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 u
n

d
e

r
w

w
w

.c
a

rd
if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
/b

ili
n

g
u

a
lc

a
rd

if
f.

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 p

u
b

lis
h

in
g
 a

n
 a

rt
ic

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 l
in

k
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
n

e
w

s
p

a
p

e
r 

C
a
p

it
a

l 
T

im
e

s
,

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 1

5
0

,0
0

0
 h

o
m

e
s

in
 C

a
rd

if
f.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

p
ro

d
u

c
e

s
 a

n
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 
q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 p
u
b

lis
h

in
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

ll
th

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

.

4
4

Page 59



8
. 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

W
e

ls
h

 i
n

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 

T
h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 a

n
d

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 (

W
a
le

s
) 

A
c
t 

(2
0

1
3

) 
b
e

c
a
m

e
 l
a

w
 i
n

 W
a
le

s
 o

n
 4

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
.

T
h

e
 A

c
t 
p

la
c
e
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 W

e
ls

h
 i
n

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
la

n
.

T
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

p
la

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 c
o

v
e

r 
a

 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o
d

 u
p

 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
.

T
h

e
 A

c
t 
e

n
a
b

le
s
 W

e
ls

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 t
o

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

th
e

 P
la

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
, 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 P
la

n
 w

it
h

 m
o

d
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
re

je
c
t 
th

e
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 t
h
e

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 a

n
o

th
e

r.

T
h
e

 P
la

n
 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 E
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

n
u
a

lly
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
:

m
o

re
 s

e
v
e

n
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 c

h
ild

re
n

 b
e

in
g
 t

a
u

g
h

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a

r 
2

 c
o

h
o

rt
m

o
re

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 l
a
n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
k
ill

s
 o

n
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 s
e

c
o
n

d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l
m

o
re

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 s
tu

d
y
in

g
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
m

o
re

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 a
g
e

d
 1

6
-1

9
 s

tu
d

y
in

g
 w

e
ls

h
 a

n
d
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
m

o
re

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
in

 W
e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 S

e
c
o

n
d

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 l
is

t 
o
f 

p
re

s
c
ri
b

e
d

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
 A

c
t 

a
s
 t
h

e
 P

la
n
 w

a
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

 i
s
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
p

ie
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 i
ts

 o
ff

ic
e

s
.

T
h
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

le
v
e

l 
lo

c
a

lly
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

e
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 o

f 
T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il. 4

5

Page 60



B
il

in
g

u
a

l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

–
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 D

d
w

y
ie

it
h

o
g

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

‘W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 U
n

it
’
w

a
s

re
n

a
m

e
d

 C
a
e

rd
y
d

d
 D

d
w

y
ie

it
h

o
g
 -

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
n

 f
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
, 
a

n
d

 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
it
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 U
n

it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
b

ra
n
d

e
d
 a

s
 ‘
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f'
 i
n
 a

 
p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

. 

A
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
c
it
y
, 

C
a

rd
if
f 

is
 t

h
e

 g
a

te
w

a
y
 t

o
 W

a
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

it
s
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 m

u
s
t 

re
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f 
W

a
le

s
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 o
f 

it
s
 o

w
n

 c
it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

re
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r,
 

C
a

rd
if
f 

w
a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
e

w
 c

o
u

n
ti
e

s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 a
 r

is
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e
a

k
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

s
t

c
e

n
s
u

s
 w

it
h

 w
e

ll 
o

v
e

r 
a

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

o
u

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 5

-1
5

 a
g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 n
o

w
 f

lu
e
n

t 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
. 
W

e
 a

re
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 
b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 f
lo

u
ri
s
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

It
 i
s
 o

u
r 

d
u
ty

 a
s
 t

h
e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
o
f 
W

a
le

s
 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 
a

n
d

 n
u

rt
u

re
 

th
e

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
, 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 s
e
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
lis

m
 a

s
 t
h

e
 n

o
rm

 a
n

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 u

s
e

 b
o

th
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 n

a
tu

ra
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

d
a

ily
 l
iv

e
s
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 ‘
c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il'

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
, 

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 o
n

 a
n

 a
d

v
is

o
ry

 r
o

le
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

w
h

ils
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
ra

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 b
e

tt
e

r 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 w

ill
 

p
la

c
e

 a
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 c

o
s
ts

. 

T
h

is
 i
n
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lis

m
 a

s
 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 n
a

tu
ra

l
a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 e

q
u

a
lly

 p
ro

u
d

 o
f 

b
o

th
o
ff

ic
ia

l 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
 h

e
re

 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

is
 r

e
a

lis
e
d

.

E
is

te
d

d
fo

d
 G

e
n

e
d

la
e
th

o
l 

2
0

1
4
 

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

w
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

t 
th

e
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
E

is
te

d
d
fo

d
 i
n

 L
la

n
e

lli
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

t 
o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
ig

g
e

s
t 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 E
u

ro
p

e
. 
B

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 f
o
u

r 
S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 
W

a
le

s
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

n
a
m

e
ly

 M
o

n
m

o
u

th
s
h

ir
e

, 
T

o
rf

a
e

n
, 

C
a

e
rp

h
ill

y
 

a
n

d
 R

h
o

n
d

d
a
 C

y
n

o
n

 T
a
f,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

c
u

re
d
 a

w
e

e
k
 l
o

n
g
 p

re
s
e

n
c
e
.

V
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
a

tt
e
n

d
e

d
 t
h

e
 w

e
e
k
lo

n
g

fe
s
ti
v
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
s
 a

 v
is

it
o

r 
d

e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
. 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

a
n

n
o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
e
n

tr
e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
c
it
y
, 

it
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

re
s
e

n
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 E
is

te
d
d
fo

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

v
e

n
t.

 

4
6

Page 61



C
a

rd
if
f 

h
a

s
 s

e
e
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e
a

k
e

rs
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

d
e

c
a

d
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 a
n
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 c

o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t 

w
h

e
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

It
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 ‘
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 

C
a

rd
if
f’
 b

ra
n
d

 w
it
h

 v
is

it
o

rs
, 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

ra
is

in
g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

tt
e

r 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 a

n
y
 

p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
. 

A
t 
a

 t
im

e
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

re
s
s
u

re
, 

th
ro

u
g
h

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

e
 

a
im

 t
o

 r
e

a
lis

e
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 b

o
th

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

s
 e

q
u

a
lly

.

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
in

g
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
it
 w

a
s
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

D
e
b

a
te

, 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

s
 f
o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 g

iv
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
c
e

rt
a

in
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 
a

s
Il
le

g
a

l 
M

o
n

e
y
 L

e
n

d
in

g
. 

O
u

r 
th

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
e

e
k
 w

a
s
 ‘
Y

 P
e

th
a

u
 B

y
c
h

a
in

’ 
(T

h
e

 L
it
tl
e
 T

h
in

g
s
) 

w
h

ic
h

 a
im

e
d

 t
o

p
ro

m
o

te
 i
d

e
a

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
n

 
e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y
 l
if
e

. 
A

s
 a

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

 a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

f 
a

n
 e

q
u

a
lly

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 i
n

 W
e
ls

h
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
, 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
e

k
 w

e
 

s
o

u
g
h

t 
to

 r
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

.g
. 

C
2

C
. 

O
u

r 
th

e
m

e
 a

ls
o

 t
ie

d
 i
n

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 n

e
w

 c
a
m

p
a

ig
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 n
a
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
u

r 
u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 b
y
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 i
d

e
a

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 o

th
e

rs
 t

o
 

d
o

 l
ik

e
w

is
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
w

it
te

r 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
a

s
h

-t
a

g
 #

p
e

th
a

u
b

y
c
h

a
in

. 
B

y
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

ra
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 g
re

a
te

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 w
e

 
s
e

e
k
 t
o

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
e
s
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 d

e
c
a
d

e
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 C

a
rd

if
f 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
c
it
y
.

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 (

IC
T

)

IC
T

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e
 p

a
c
k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 C

it
ri

x
 u

s
e

rs
 a

llo
w

in
g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 D
ic

ti
o

n
a

ry
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
llc

h
e

c
k
e

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
ir
 M

ic
ro

s
o

ft
 O

ff
ic

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 I

C
T

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 i

n
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 n

e
w

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e

 t
o

 b
e
 

u
s
e

d
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
lly

. 

IC
T

 
w

ill
 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
u
s
e

 
th

e
ir
 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 
d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

to
 
e

n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 
is

 
g
iv

e
n

 
to

 
th

e
 
W

e
ls

h
 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
w

h
ils

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

/ 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 o

f 
n
e

w
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
IC

T
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
m

p
h

a
s
is

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 o
n

 a
n

y
 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a

t 
h
a

v
e

 a
n
y
 p

u
b

lic
 f

a
c
in

g
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 
p

ro
g
ra

m
 
h
a

s
 
b

e
e

n
 
ro

lle
d

 
o
u

t 
to

 
th

e
 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 
w

it
h

in
 
IC

T
 
in

 
lin

e
w

it
h

 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 
L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
IC

T
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
o

ll 
o
u

t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
.

IC
T

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 n

e
w

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a

y
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

c
u

s
to

m
e

r’
s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 w

it
h

 d
e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

4
7

Page 62



C
y
s
g
lia

d
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

c
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 I
C

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

s
k
. 

R
e

m
in

d
e

rs
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

re
g
u

la
rl

y
 s

e
n

t 
to

 s
ta

ff
 v

ia
 ‘
W

e
ls

h
 M

a
tt

e
rs

’ 
a
n

d
 ‘
Y

o
u

r 
In

b
o

x
’ 
a

rt
ic

le
s
.

S
p

la
s

h
 P

a
g

e

T
h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
s
p

la
s
h

 p
a

g
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 f

u
lly

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
e

 h
o

p
e
 w

ill
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 m
o

re
 W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

a
k
e

rs
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

h
o

ic
e

 s
o

 t
h
a
t 

tr
a
ff

ic
 t
o

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 p

a
g
e

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
la

s
h

 p
a

g
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
fo

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

n
lin

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
.

P
e

rs
o

n
a
l 

/ 
G

e
n

e
ri

c
 E

m
a

il
 A

d
d

re
s

s
e

s

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

c
ti
v
a

te
d

 i
ts

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
m

a
ili

n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 e
m

a
il 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 

@
c
a

rd
if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 o

n
 @

c
a
e
rd

y
d

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 e

.g
. 

a
.p

e
rs

o
n

@
c
a

rd
if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 m
a

il 
to

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

a
ilb

o
x
 o

n
 

a
.p

e
rs

o
n

@
c
a

e
rd

y
d

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
. 

G
e

n
e

ri
c
 m

a
ilb

o
x
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 m

a
il 

to
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

a
ilb

o
x
 e

.g
. 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
@

c
a

rd
if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 m
a

il 
o

n
 l
ly

fr
g
e

llo
e

d
d

@
c
a
e

rd
y
d

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
. 

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
d

 m
a

ilb
o

x
e

s
 a

re
 t

ra
n

s
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
a

te
d
 b

y
 I

C
T

.

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t
h

e
 6

th
o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 a

n
d

 a
tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
4

0
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

ir
d

 
p

a
rt

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 B
C

M
G

h
o

ld
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e
, 

to
 a

c
t 
a

s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e

 
g
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 v
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

 i
s
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

a
 l
e

a
d

 r
o
le

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
, 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 t
ru

ly
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

w
h

e
re

 c
it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

 e
it
h
e

r 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 e
q
u

a
lly

.

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 i
d

e
a

s
 t
o

 c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

th
e

 c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 W
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f.

S
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 c

a
b

in
e

t 
a
p

p
ro

v
a

l,
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 c
e

n
tr

e
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 t

h
e

 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a
g
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

 
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

d
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 

o
ff

e
r.

It
w

o
u

ld
 o

ff
e

r 
a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
fé

 b
a

r,
 b

o
o

k
 s

h
o

p
, 
te

a
c
h

in
g
 r

o
o

m
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 f
le

x
ib

le
 e

x
h

ib
it
io

n
 a

re
a

, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 s
p
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

It
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 c

u
lt
u

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 c

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n
 l
e

a
rn

 o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 t
h

e
ir
 W

e
ls

h
 i
n

 a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 a

tm
o

s
p
h

e
re

. 
It

 c
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 l
a

b
o
n

 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 a
n
d

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
lis

m
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

4
8

Page 63



T
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e

 w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 i
n
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 c

re
a
te

 n
e

w
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 t
o

 s
o

c
ia

lis
e

, 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

It
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
d
d

in
g
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

, 
a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 h
o

s
t 
a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 

o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
is

it
o

rs
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 u

n
iq

u
e

 s
e

lli
n

g
 p

o
in

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 
o
f 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

p
e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 a
n

y
 w

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 t
h

e
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

, 
c
u

lt
u

re
 

a
n

d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

S
ig

n
a

g
e

 A
u

d
it

 &
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 G

ro
u

p
 (

B
C

M
G

) 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 i
t 

w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n
 a

u
d

it
o
f 

s
ig

n
a

g
e

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
s
ta

te
s
 f

o
r 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

T
h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
s
ig

n
s
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 a

n
d

 
in

te
rn

a
lly

, 
w

it
h

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

p
p
e

a
ri
n

g
 f

ir
s
t 

in
 m

o
s
t 
c
a

s
e

s
. 
W

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 u

n
d

e
r

th
e

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 [
W

a
le

s
] 

M
e
a

s
u

re
 

2
0

1
1

 s
ta

ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
W

e
ls

h
 s

h
o
u

ld
 a

p
p
e

a
r 

fi
rs

t 
it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
ig

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

is
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 n
o

ti
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r.
 T

h
e
 s

ig
n

a
g
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
n

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

e
m

in
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
ig

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
n

e
w

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 s

ig
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
s
ig

n
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

b
e

 b
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a
g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

A
ll 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t

th
e
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 

h
a

v
e

. 
A

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
4

, 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g
 w

it
h

 
a

ro
u

n
d

 8
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 n
e

w
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
. 
O

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
o

u
r 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 a

w
a

it
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

S
o
m

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
C

M
G

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 u

p
o
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r.

C
a

rd
if

f 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 A
c
t 

w
a

s
 f

a
c
to

re
d

 i
n

 a
t 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
it
-o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

g
u

id
in

g
 t

re
a

ts
 

th
e

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
. 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 w
a

y
fi
n

d
in

g
 g

u
id

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

to
c
k
 g

u
id

e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 i
n

B
ra

ill
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 b

ili
n

g
u

a
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
e

s
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
5

.

T
h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 h
a

s
 a

 W
e
ls

h
 L

ib
ra

ri
a
n

 w
h

o
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 e

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 W

a
le

s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
in

 W
e

ls
h

 o
r 

E
n

g
lis

h
, 

w
ri
tt

e
n

 o
r 

v
e

rb
a

l.
  

A
ll 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

b
o

th
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

ra
n

c
h

 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 h

o
ld

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
o
n

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 w
e

ls
h

 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
o
f 

v
a

ry
in

g
 s

iz
e

s
, 

w
it
h

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
h
o

ld
in

g
 t

h
e 4
9

Page 64



la
rg

e
s
t 

m
o

s
t 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e
 l

ib
ra

ry
 h

o
ld

s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 m

a
te

ri
a

l;
 b

o
o

k
s
, 

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

e
ri
o

d
ic

a
ls

, 
th

e
 b

u
lk

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 d
a

te
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 1

7
th

c
e

n
tu

ry
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
n
u

s
c
ri
p

ts
.

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
m

in
d
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 t

o
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 w

a
n

t 
to

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
.

T
h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 t
e

p
e

e
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

a
g
a

in
 a

t 
th

e
 2

0
1

4
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
T

a
fw

y
l 

fe
s
ti
v
a

l 
It
 w

a
s
 a

 f
a

n
ta

s
ti
c
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
R

e
a

d
in

g
 C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e
a

k
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 t
h
e

 o
n
e

s
 w

h
o

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 r

e
a

d
 w

e
ls

h
 b

o
o

k
s
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 

th
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

.

T
h
e

 C
e
n

tr
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 r

u
n

s
 a

 p
o
p

u
la

r 
m

o
n

th
ly

 '
C

lw
b

 L
ly

fr
a

u
 C

y
m

ra
e

g
',
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t

h
re

e
 o

th
e

r 
W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 M
e

rc
h

e
d

 y
 W

a
w

r
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
d

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a

l.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d

In
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
:

1
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 6

 f
re

e
 o

p
e

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 P
la

y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y
 d

u
ri

n
g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h
o

lid
a

y
s
 i
n

 L
la

n
e

d
e

y
rn

, 
T

ro
w

b
ri
d

g
e

, 
E

ly
, 

F
a

ir
w

a
te

r,
 S

p
lo

tt
 a

n
d

 G
a

b
a

lf
a

.
O

v
e

r 
8

5
0

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

tt
e
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 f
re

e
 p

la
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 e

v
e

ry
 w

e
e

k
 d

u
ri
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
m

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
h

o
u

rs
 i
n

 W
e

ls
h

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
. 

2
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 a

ls
o

 o
ff

e
r 

fr
e
e

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u
a

g
e

 P
la

y
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
e

ro
u
s
 P

a
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r

h
o

lid
a

y
.

T
h

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 i
n
 H

a
y
le

y
 P

a
rk

, 
L

la
n

d
a
ff

 N
o

rt
h

 a
n

d
 L

la
n

d
a
ff

 F
ie

ld
s
, 
P

o
n

tc
a

n
n
a

.
O

n
 o

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
v
e

r 
5

2
5

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
tt

e
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
e

k
. 

3
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
’s

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 C
a

re
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
is

 a
ls

o
 g

o
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 t
o

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 C
ly

b
ia

u
 P

la
n

t 
C

y
m

ru
 v

ia
 T

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 S
p
o

rt
s
 C

a
re

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
.

T
h
e

 C
a

re
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
ll 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 t
h

ro
u
g
h

o
u

t 
a

ll 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
h

o
lid

a
y
 p

e
ri
o

d
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 4

 –
1

1
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 

O
u

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 C
a

n
to

n
, 
W

h
it
c
h

u
rc

h
 a

n
d

 G
a

b
a

lf
a

.
O

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
v
e

r 
6

5
0

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

tt
e
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 e

a
c
h

 w
e

e
k
. 

4
.

W
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
a

ll 
o

u
r 

P
la

y
 a

n
d

 C
a

re
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 m
e

e
t 
C

S
S

IW
 

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 r

u
n

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lly
, 

s
a

fe
ly

 a
n

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
.

P
e

r 
y
e

a
r,

 w
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 5

2
 s

ta
ff

 
w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

C
a

re
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

5
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 2
n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

e
v
e

l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 T
h

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d

 T
ra

in
in

g
 C

o
u

rs
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h
e

 a
g
e

s
 o

f 
1
6

 –
2

5
.

T
h
e

s
e

 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 a

 h
u

g
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 a
tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d

 v
e

ry
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
. 
T

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

w
e

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

th
a
t 

o
v
e

r 5
0

Page 65



1
5

0
 n

e
w

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 a

n
d

 T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

6
.

A
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
A

d
u

lt
 E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 M

e
n

te
r 

C
a

e
rd

y
d

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

 T
h
e

C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 T

e
a

m
.

T
h

is
 y

e
a

r,
 w

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 2

4
 w

e
e

k
ly

 e
v
e

n
in

g
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 2
 d

a
y
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 C

o
o
k
in

g
, 

G
u

it
a

r,
 Y

o
g
a

, 
L
o

c
a

l 
H

is
to

ry
, 
W

e
b

 D
e

s
ig

n
, 

P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
, 

S
e

w
in

g
, 

P
o

e
tr

y
 W

ri
ti
n

g
 e

tc
. 
T

h
is

 y
e

a
r,

 o
v
e

r 
3

1
1

 a
d

u
lt
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
d

 i
n
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o
u

rs
e

s
.

A
n

 E
s
ty

n
 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 t
o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 g

o
o

d
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 a

n
d

 E
s
ty

n
 w

e
re

 h
a
p

p
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
. 

7
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

re
h
e

n
s
iv

e
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 d

u
ri
n

g
 e

a
c
h

 h
o

lid
a

y
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

s
 o

f 
4
 –

1
3

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 A

rt
s
, 

M
u

s
ic

, 
C

o
o

k
e

ry
, 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
, 

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

D
ra

m
a

. 
O

v
e

r 
1

1
0

0
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
6

3
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
. 

8
.

T
a
fw

y
l 
–

C
a

rd
if
f’
s
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l 
w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 o

v
e

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
7

 d
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1

6
,5

3
4

 p
e

o
p

le
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
4

,
a

n
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
3

5
.9

%
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 w

it
h

 2
0
1

3
.

M
e
n

te
r 

C
a

e
rd

y
d

d
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d

e
d

 i
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
6

8
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
T

a
fw

y
l 
fe

s
ti
v
a

l 
w

a
s
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 f
o

r 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 w
it
h

in
 C

a
rd

if
f’
s
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
fe

s
ti
v
a

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

9
.

M
e

n
te

r 
C

a
e

rd
y
d

d
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 T
h

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

re
c
e

iv
e

 a
S

e
rv

ic
e

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 w
e

e
k
ly

 L
e

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 C

a
rd

if
f 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 m
e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
.

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1
3

, 
w

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d
 2

0
 w

e
e

k
ly

 L
e

is
u

re
 c

lu
b

s
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 S
w

im
m

in
g
, 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll,

 R
u

g
b

y
, 

G
y
m

n
a

s
ti
c
s
, 
T

e
n
n

is
, 

A
th

le
ti
c
s
, 

C
ri
c
k
e

t,
 D

a
n

c
e

 e
tc

.
O

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
v
e

r 
5

2
9
 c

h
ild

re
n

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h
e

s
e

 c
lu

b
s
.

T
h

e
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 L
e

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
s
 h

ig
h

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

a
im

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 T
h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a

r.
1

0
.W

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 T
h

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

a
n

d
 6

 C
o

re
 W

e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 W
e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

C
e

n
tr

e
 i
n

 C
a

rd
if
f 

C
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
5

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
.

9
. 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

D
e
ta

il
s

A
n

y
 e

n
q

u
ir

e
s

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t

o
:

B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f

R
o

o
m

 4
0
0

 
C

o
u

n
ty

 H
a

ll,
A

tl
a
n

ti
c
 W

h
a
rf

,
C

a
rd

if
f,

C
F

1
0

 4
U

W

0
2

9
2

0
 8

7
2
5

2
7

B
ili

n
g
u

a
lC

a
rd

if
f@

c
a

rd
if
f.

g
o

v
.u

k

5
1

Page 66



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 f
o

r 
W

el
sh

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e 

S
er

v
ic

es
 i

n
 H

ea
lt

h
, 

S
o

ci
a

l 
S

er
v

ic
es

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
-

‘M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 j

u
st

 w
o

rd
s’

.

T
h

e 
C

it
y

 o
f 

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

 -
H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
a
l 

C
a

re
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
4

/1
5

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

ct
iv

e 
1

: 
S

o
ci

a
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l

C
a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
er

s 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
a

 s
ys

te
m

a
ti

c 
a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 W
el

sh
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

s 
a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

l 

el
em

en
t 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

el
iv

er
y

A
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 d

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
L

ea
d

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
ea

r
1
.1

.2
 U

n
d
er

 t
h
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
, 
d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 t
o
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 t
h
e 

W
el

sh
 l

an
g
u
ag

e 
co

m
m

u
n
it

y
 p

ro
fi

le
 a

n
d
 u

se
 t

h
is

 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

s 
a 

b
as

el
in

e 
fo

r 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 l

o
ca

l 

se
rv

ic
es

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 s

p
ea

k
in

g
 

W
el

sh
 b

y
 w

ar
d

C
o
m

p
il

e 
p

ro
fi

le
 W

el
sh

 l
an

g
u
ag

e 
su

p
p

o
rt

 

se
rv

ic
es

 &
 s

o
ci

al
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

e.
g
. 
W

el
sh

 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 
lu

n
ch

 c
lu

b
s.

D
ir

ec
to

r 
H

ea
lt

h
 &

 

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e

S
ia

n
 W

al
k
er

 (
S

W
)

1 P
ro

g
re

ss
 –

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 

W
el

sh
 s

p
ea

k
er

s 
b

y
 w

ar
d
 

p
ro

d
u
ce

d
.

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h
 A

g
e 

C
o
n
n
ec

ts
 C

ar
d
if

f 
&

 V
al

e 
to

 

p
ro

d
u
ce

 r
es

o
u
rc

e 
d
ir

ec
to

ry
 

o
f 

co
m

m
u
n
it

y
 b

as
ed

 s
o
ci

al
 

ac
ti

v
it

ie
s,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
  
th

o
se

 

o
ff

er
in

g
 W

el
sh

 l
an

g
u
ag

e

1
.1

.3
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 s

y
st

em
s 

to
 

in
cl

u
d
e 

re
fe

re
n
ce

 t
o
 t

h
e 

li
n
g
u
is

ti
c 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s 

an
d
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g
 t

h
is

 i
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

er
v
ic

e 
d
el

iv
er

y

A
s 

ab
o
v
e.

S
W

2 P
ro

g
re

ss
 –

A
s 

ab
o
v
e

1
.1

.4
 R

eg
is

te
re

d
 p

ro
v
id

er
s 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 t

o
 s

er
v
ic

e 
u
se

rs
 o

n
 l

ev
el

 o
f 

b
il

in
g
u
al

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
en

su
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

st
af

f 
re

g
is

te
r 

in
cl

u
d
es

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 o

f 
W

L
 s

k
il

ls
.

S
o
m

et
h
in

g
 w

ri
tt

en
 i

n
to

 s
er

v
ic

e 
sp

ec
if

ic
at

io
n
 o

r 

ac
cr

ed
it

at
io

n
 s

ta
n
d
ar

d
s 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’
s 

W
el

sh
 

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
S

ch
em

e.

C
C

S
IW

C
o
n
tr

ac
ts

 &
 

D
ev

el
o
p

m
en

t 
te

am

3 P
ro

g
re

ss
 –

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 r
el

at
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
S

ch
em

e 

an
d

 M
w

y
 n

a 
G

ei
ri

au
 

S
tr

at
eg

y
 h

as
 b

ee
n
 i

n
se

rt
ed

 

in
to

 t
h
e 

n
ew

 s
er

v
ic

e 

sp
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

5
2

Page 67



d
o
m

ic
il

ia
ry

 c
ar

e 
p
ro

v
id

er
s.

  

1
.1

.5
 T

o
 o

ff
er

 a
n
d
 r

ec
o
rd

 u
se

r’
s 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 
o
f 

n
ee

d
 a

n
d
 e

n
su

re
 c

ar
e 

is
 l

in
g
u
is

ti
ca

ll
y
 s

en
si

ti
v
e.

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 c
ar

e 
p

la
n
s 

an
d
 o

n
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 a

s 
a 

m
at

te
r 

o
f 

co
u
rs

e.

S
W

3 P
ro

g
re

ss
 –

sp
ec

if
ic

 s
ec

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

W
el

sh
 l

an
g
u
ag

e 
n
ee

d
 

/c
h
o
ic

e 
n
o
w

 i
n
se

rt
ed

 i
n
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
 

d
o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 s

y
st

em
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

p
u
ll

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
al

 

ca
re

 p
la

n
s.

 

1
.2

.1
 I

n
cr

ea
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

o
f 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 

se
n
si

ti
v
it

y
 a

m
o
n
g
 I

C
T

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
at

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
o
ci

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

A
ll

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 d

o
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
n
in

g
 i

n
cl

u
d
in

g
 b

u
si

n
es

s 

su
p
p

o
rt

 &
 I

C
T

 /
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 s

ta
ff

.

V
o
lu

n
te

er
s 

fr
o
m

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e 

st
af

f 
g
ro

u
p

 t
o
 u

n
d
er

ta
k
e 

‘T
ra

in
in

g
 t

h
e 

T
ra

in
er

s’
 c

o
u
rs

e,
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
p
ro

v
id

ed
 b

y
 

th
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
U

n
it

.

D
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 g

ro
u
p

S
W

 a
n

d
 I

T
 m

an
ag

er
1 W

el
sh

 L
an

g
u
ag

e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
n
in

g
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
in

 

B
u
si

n
es

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

. 
N

o
t 

C
ar

e 

F
ir

st
 t

ea
m

 y
et

.

1
.2

.2
 I

C
T

 s
p

ec
if

ic
at

io
n
s 

to
 i

n
cl

u
d
e 

d
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

th
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
d
im

en
si

o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 

b
ei

n
g
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
ed

 

D
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 g

ro
u
p

S
W

3 N
o
t 

y
et

 a
ch

ie
v
ed

1
.2

.3
  
D

at
a 

sy
st

em
s 

en
ab

li
n
g
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 

o
p
er

at
e 

b
il

in
g
u
al

ly
 e

.g
. 
m

at
ch

in
g
 s

ta
ff

/S
er

v
ic

e 

U
se

rs
 i

n
 c

ar
e 

ro
ta

s;
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
d
at

a 
sy

st
em

s 

re
co

rd
 s

ta
ff

 l
an

g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

; 
la

n
g
u
ag

e 

n
ee

d
/c

h
o
ic

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n
 c

li
en

t 
d
at

a 
sy

st
em

s

C
ar

e 
ro

ta
 s

y
st

em
s 

m
at

ch
in

g
 W

el
sh

 s
p
ea

k
in

g
 

st
af

f 
to

 s
er

v
ic

e 
u
se

rs
.

D
ig

iG
o
v
 t

o
 r

ec
o
rd

 s
ta

ff
 W

L
 s

k
il

ls

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
n
ee

d
 /

 c
h
o
ic

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
.

S
W

3 S
ta

ff
 b

ee
n
 r

em
in

d
ed

 t
o
 

re
co

rd
 l

an
g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

 o
n
 

D
ig

iG
o
v
.

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
n
ee

d
/ 

ch
o
ic

e 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

u
se

r 
h
as

 b
ee

n
 

in
cl

u
d
ed

 o
n
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 d

at
a 

sy
st

em

1
.3

.2
  
L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

to
 f

o
ll

o
w

 

th
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
er

s 
g
u
id

an
ce

 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 s

er
v
ic

es
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
H

S
S

C
 a

n
d
 S

W
2 N

o
 G

u
id

an
ce

?

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

ct
iv

e 
2

: 
T

o
 b

u
il

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

en
t 

b
es

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

, 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ca
re

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

‘A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
’

A
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

H
 &

 S
C

L
ea

d
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
ea

r

5
3

Page 68



2
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e 
st

af
f 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e 

‘A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
’ 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d
 e

n
su

re
 i

t’
s 

m
ai

n
st

re
am

ed
 

in
to

 i
n
d
u
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
er

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

es
 

et
c

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
in

d
u
ct

io
n

S
er

v
ic

e 
ar

ea
 i

n
d
u
ct

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

es

N
at

io
n
al

 T
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

H
R

T
ra

in
in

g
 O

ff
ic

er

3 D
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 T

ra
in

in
g

2
.1

.3
  
T

ak
e 

p
ra

ct
ic

al
 s

te
p

s 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
A

ct
iv

e 

O
ff

er
 s

er
v
ic

e 
in

 a
n
 i

n
cr

em
en

ta
l 

w
ay

, 
st

ar
ti

n
g
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o
f 

co
n
ta

ct

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 s

er
v
ic

es
. 
R

ec
o
rd

 w
h
er

e 

ab
le

 t
o
 r

es
p
o
n
d
.

U
se

 A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
 f

o
r 

al
l 

ca
ll

er
s 

to
 H

&
S

C
 v

ia
  

C
o
n
ta

ct
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 O
T

 a
n
d
 h

o
sp

it
al

s 
-

ac
ce

ss
 p

o
in

ts
. 

R
ec

o
rd

 r
es

p
o
n
se

 o
n
 C

ar
e 

F
ir

st
 

S
W

1 F
ir

st
 r

es
p

o
n
se

 i
s 

n
o
w

 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 C

2
C

 w
h
ic

h
 

o
ff

er
s 

a 
b

il
in

g
u
al

 s
er

v
ic

e.

C
o
re

 d
at

a 
se

t 
in

cl
u
d
es

 

ac
ti

v
e 

o
ff

er
 q

u
es

ti
o
n
.

N
ee

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 w

it
h
 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 a
ss

es
sm

er
n
t 

o
f 

n
ee

d
.

2
.2

.1
 M

ap
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

ap
ac

it
y
 t

o
 

d
el

iv
er

 A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
 s

er
v
ic

e 
w

it
h
in

 d
em

en
ti

a 

se
rv

ic
es

W
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

e 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

ff
 p

ro
fi

le

D
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 M

H
S

O
P

D
H

S
S

C
 W

el
sh

 l
an

g
u
ag

e 
v
er

si
o
n
 o

f 
co

re
 

d
em

en
ti

a 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
to

o
ls

?

S
W

2 N
ee

d
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 s

p
ec

if
ic

s 

w
it

h
 M

H
S

O
P

2
.2

.3
 T

ak
e 

ac
ti

o
n
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 s
ta

ff
 t

ea
m

s 

h
av

e 
th

e 
ca

p
ac

it
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

m
ed

iu
m

 o
f 

W
el

sh

S
k
il

ls
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o
f 

al
l 

te
am

s

R
ec

o
rd

in
g
 a

b
il

it
ie

s

A
cc

es
s 

to
 t

ra
in

in
g

Is
su

e 
re

co
rd

in
g
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
/c

ar
e 

p
la

n
s 

in
 

W
el

sh

S
W

3 S
k
il

ls
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f 
al

l 

H
&

S
C

 s
ta

ff
 7

5
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

2
.3

.1
 M

ap
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

ap
ac

it
y
 t

o
 

d
el

iv
er

 A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
 s

er
v
ic

e 
in

 o
th

er
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s 
e.

g
. 
ch

il
d
re

n
 u

n
d
er

 5
; 

sp
ee

ch
 a

n
d
 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 
th

er
ap

y

S
W

3 o
n
g
o
in

g

2
.3

.2
 S

er
v
ic

e 
h
ea

d
s 

to
 c

o
n
si

d
er

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri

at
e 

w
ay

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

 

m
o
d
el

 o
f 

d
el

iv
er

y
) 

ac
co

rd
in

g
 t

o
 c

ap
ac

it
y
, 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

, 
w

il
li

n
g
n
es

s 
an

d
 c

o
n
fi

d
en

ce
 o

f 

st
af

f 
to

 u
se

 t
h
e 

la
n
g
u
ag

e.

S
er

v
ic

e 
le

ad
s.

S
W

 /
 s

er
v
ic

e 
le

ad
s

3 T
o
 b

e 
u
n
d
er

ta
k
en

 o
n
ce

 s
ta

ff
 

sk
il

ls
 p

ro
fi

le
 i

s 
co

m
p

le
te

 

an
d
 H

&
S

C
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 i
s 

fi
n
al

is
ed

2
.4

.1
 W

el
sh

 L
an

g
u
ag

e 
C

h
am

p
io

n
s 

w
it

h
in

 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 D

ep
t 

an
d
 l

o
ca

l 
au

th
o
ri

ty
  
H

R
 

d
ep

ts
. 
to

 d
is

se
m

in
at

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y
 t

o
 s

er
v
ic

e 
h
ea

d
s

C
la

ri
fy

 r
o
le

 o
f 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
C

h
am

p
io

n

D
ev

el
o
p

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 o
f 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
‘c

o
-

o
rd

in
at

o
rs

’ 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 h

el
p

 s
h
ar

e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
am

p
io

n
 t

h
e 

st
ra

te
g
y

S
S

 a
n

d
 H

R
1 S

o
m

e 
re

p
s 

fr
o
m

 s
er

v
ic

e 

ar
ea

 g
ro

u
p

s 
w

it
h
in

 H
&

S
C

 

h
av

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
’ 

tr
ai

n
 t

h
e 

5
4

Page 69



R
ep

 i
n
 e

ac
h
 s

er
v
ic

e 
ar

ea
 /

 t
ea

m
 ?

tr
ai

n
er

s’
 t

ra
in

in
g
  
an

d
 w

il
l 

ac
t 

as
 r

ep
s 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
te

am
s.

2
.4

.3
 W

el
sh

 L
an

g
u

ag
e

C
h

am
p

io
n

s
an

d
 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 H
R

 d
ep

ts
. 

to
 l

ea
d

 a
 s

ta
ff

 

‘l
an

g
u

ag
e 

o
f 

ca
re

 i
n

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

p
la

ce
’ 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e 

to
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

fi
d

en
ce

 t
o
 

sp
ea

k
 W

el
sh

 a
t

w
o

rk
 

H
o

m
e 

ca
re

 s
ta

ff
 e

sp
ec

ia
ll

y
S

S
 a

n
d

 H
R

2 B
es

p
o

k
e 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 t

o
 b

e 

ar
ra

n
g

ed
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e 

ca
re

 

st
af

f.
 

N
ee

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e 
a 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 

st
ra

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

w
id

er
 s

ta
ff

 

g
ro

u
p

.

2
.4

.4
 E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

so
ci

al
 s

er
v

ic
es

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

al
 

ca
re

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 w

ea
r 

“W
o

rk
in

g
 W

el
sh

” 
lo

g
o

 

an
d

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
 i

n
to

 u
n

if
o

rm
s 

th
ey

 p
ro

v
id

e 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
w

o
rk

er
s

H
o

m
e 

ca
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

er
s

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

an
d

 

p
ro

v
id

er
s 

o
f 

ca
re

 

se
rv

ic
es

.

O
n

g
o

in
g
 f

ro
m

 1

N
o

t 
ac

h
ie

v
ed

. 
N

o
t 

y
et

ex
p

lo
re

d
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

ct
iv

e 
3

: 
T

o
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 t
h

e 
ca

p
a

b
il

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

W
el

sh
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 i

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e 
a

w
a

re
n

es
s 

a
m

o
n

g
st

 

st
a
ff

A
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

H
 &

 S
C

L
ea

d
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
ea

r
3
.1

.1
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

o
 i

n
co

rp
o
ra

te
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
u
n
it

y
 W

el
sh

 L
an

g
u
ag

e 

n
ee

d
s 

an
d
 t

h
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

 o
f 

th
e 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e

W
ri

te
 i

n
to

 a
ll

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e 
p

la
n
s

E
n
su

re
 s

ta
ff

 e
st

ab
li

sh
m

en
t 

co
m

p
li

es
 w

it
h
 W

L
 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

e.
g
. 
1
0
%

 w
el

sh
 s

p
ea

k
er

s

E
n
su

re
 s

p
re

ad
 o

f 
W

el
sh

 s
p
ea

k
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll

 

te
am

s 
to

 e
n
ab

le
 u

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
er

v
ic

e 
in

 W
el

sh
.

Id
en

ti
fy

 ‘
W

el
sh

 e
ss

en
ti

al
’ 

p
o
st

s 
v
ia

 t
h
e 

sk
il

ls
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

.

S
ta

ff
 n

ee
d
 t

o
 v

al
id

at
e 

an
d
 i

n
p

u
t 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 

sk
il

ls
 o

n
to

 D
ig

iG
o
v
.

S
W

1 S
k
il

ls
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f 
al

l 

H
&

S
C

 s
ta

ff
 7

5
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e 
p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e 

ag
re

ed
 o

n
ce

 d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

st
ru

ct
u
re

 i
s 

fi
n
al

is
ed

.

3
.1

.7
 S

o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 D

ep
ts

 t
o
 r

ep
o
rt

 o
n
 W

el
sh

 

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
ei

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
as

 p
ar

t 

o
f 

L
A

 d
at

a 
co

ll
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
ei

r 
W

el
sh

 L
an

g
u
ag

e 

S
ch

em
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
ee

d
 t

im
es

ca
le

s 
&

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
.

6
 m

o
n
th

 r
ep

o
rt

. 
W

e 
w

il
l 

fe
ed

 i
n
to

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
n
u
al

 

m
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 r

ep
o
rt

 B
il

in
g
u
al

 C
ar

d
if

f 
re

p
o
rt

. 

F
o
rm

 p
ar

t 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

d
el

iv
er

y
 p

la
n

S
W

1 T
o
 f

o
rm

 p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6

6
 m

o
n
th

 r
ev

ie
w

: 

5
5

Page 70



3
.2

.3
 A

ll
 S

o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 D

ep
ts

 t
o
 o

p
er

at
e 

in
 

li
n
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
er

’s
 

re
cr

u
it

m
en

t 
g
u
id

el
in

es

W
el

sh
 e

ss
en

ti
al

 p
o
st

s

A
d
v
er

ts
 i

n
 W

el
sh

S
W

2 W
o
rk

fo
rc

e 
p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e 

ag
re

ed
 o

n
ce

 d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

st
ru

ct
u
re

 i
s 

fi
n
al

is
ed

.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

ct
iv

e 
4

: 
T

o
 c

re
a
te

 l
ea

d
er

s 
w

h
o

 w
il

l 
fo

st
er

 a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e 
et

h
o
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
W

el
sh

 s
p

ea
k

in
g

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 r
ec

ei
v
e 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e 

se
n

si
ti

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

a
s 

a
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ca
re

.

A
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

H
 &

 S
C

L
ea

d
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
ea

r
4
.1

.1
 A

sk
 p

o
li

ti
ca

l 
le

ad
er

s 
an

d
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 t

o
 i

ss
u
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
se

tt
in

g
 o

u
t:

th
ei

r 
w

is
h
 t

o
 s

ee
 s

en
si

ti
v
it

y
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
el

sh
 

L
an

g
u
ag

e 
re

fl
ec

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
ei

r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 q

u
al

it
y
 c

ar
e 

an
d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

n
d

th
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 u

se
rs

’ 
W

el
sh

 

la
n
g
u
ag

e 
n
ee

d
s 

in
 a

ss
es

si
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

ar
in

g
 f

o
r 

u
se

rs

Jo
in

t 
st

at
em

en
t 

b
y
 S

ia
n
 W

al
k
er

 a
n
d
 D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 

C
ab

in
et

 m
em

b
er

 v
ia

 e
m

ai
l 

o
r 

n
ew

sl
et

te
r 

to
 a

ll
 s

ta
ff

.

S
W

 /
 S

u
sa

n
 E

ll
sm

o
re

1 T
h
is

 w
as

 a
ch

ie
v
ed

 i
n
 y

ea
r 

1
.

N
ee

d
 t

o
 i

ss
u
e 

an
o
th

er
 

st
at

em
en

t 
w

it
h
 C

ll
r.

 S
u
sa

n
 

E
ls

m
o
re

, 
w

h
o
 h

as
 t

ak
en

 

o
v
er

 f
ro

m
 C

ll
r 

T
h
o
m

as
.

4
.1

.2
 A

g
re

e 
th

e 
st

ep
s 

th
ey

 w
il

l 
ta

k
e 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 

th
em

se
lv

es
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
h
ey

 p
ro

v
id

e 
w

il
l 

b
e 

se
n
si

ti
v
e 

an
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e

S
ia

n
 W

al
k
er

 a
n
d
 C

ll
r 

T
h
o
m

as
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
S

W
/H

T
1 N

o
w

 n
ee

d
 s

im
il

ar
 f

o
r 

C
ll

r 

E
ls

m
o
re

4
.1

.3
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 t

o
 p

u
t 

ar
ra

n
g
em

en
ts

 i
n
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 m

o
n
it

o
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e 

N
at

io
n
al

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

ra
m

ew
o
rk

 a
n
d
 A

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
 

is
 b

ei
n
g
 i

m
p

le
m

en
te

d

S
W

?
1

4
.1

.4
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 t

o
 p

u
b
li

sh
 a

 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
h
ey

 d
el

iv
er

, 

co
m

m
is

si
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ac
t

S
W

2

4
.1

.5
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 t

o
 d

es
ig

n
at

e 

se
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
er

 a
s 

W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 

S
u
sa

n
 S

ch
el

ew
a,

 O
p

er
at

io
n
al

 M
an

ag
er

S
W

1 A
ch

ie
v
ed

5
6

Page 71



w
it

h
in

 t
h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

4
.1

.6
 L

ea
d
er

sh
ip

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e 
to

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

a 
st

ra
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

la
n

g
u
ag

e 
se

n
si

ti
v
it

y
 

o
n
 e

ff
ec

ti
v
en

es
s 

o
f 

ca
re

, 
as

 a
n
 i

n
te

g
ra

l 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

s 
a 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
il

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
ci

al
 

S
er

v
ic

es
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 i

n
 E

n
g
li

sh
 a

n
d
 

W
el

sh
 (

 5
.1

.3
)

T
ra

in
in

g
 d

ep
t

P
I 

tr
ai

n
in

g
  

S
W

1 O
n
g
o
in

g
.

N
ee

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

o
rk

 

w
it

h
 t

ra
in

in
g
 m

an
ag

er
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

ct
iv

e 
5

:
T

o
 d

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 l

ea
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
 w

h
ic

h
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
es

’ 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y 

to
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

W
el

sh
 l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.

5
.2

.2
 S

o
ci

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
 a

n
d
 S

o
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
o
f 

li
n
g
u

is
ti

c 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d
 t

h
e 

‘A
ct

iv
e 

O
ff

er
’ 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
rm

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

al
l 

in
d
u
ct

io
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

es
.

A
ll

 c
ar

e 
p

ro
v
id

er
s 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 h

o
m

e 
ca

re

o
n
g
o
in

g

5
.2

.3
 S

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

es

to
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 t
h
e 

ca
p
ac

it
y
 o

f 
st

af
f 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 o
f 

W
el

sh
. 
S

ta
rt

 b
y
 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g
 t

h
e 

co
n
fi

d
en

ce
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g
 W

el
sh

 

sp
ea

k
er

s 
to

 u
se

 W
el

sh
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

ai
se

 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
am

o
n
g
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff

 i
.e

. 
fr

o
n
t 

li
n
e 

an
d
 t

ea
m

 

m
an

ag
er

s

T
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

es
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 l

an
g
u
ag

e 
sk

il
ls

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

fo
r 

al
l 

st
af

f 
b

u
t 

w
it

h
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 g

ro
u
p

s 
e.

g
. 

C
&

A
, 
h
o
sp

it
al

s 
an

d
 m

an
ag

er
s

S
W

1 W
el

sh
 L

an
g
u
ag

e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
n
in

g
 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

fo
r 

m
o
st

 m
an

ag
er

s.
 

P
la

n
 t

o
 w

id
en

 t
h
e 

sc
o
p

e 
fo

r 
2
0
1
5
/1

6

5
7

Page 72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 I

I 
F

ro
n

tl
in

e
 p

o
s

t 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts

L
in

g
u

is
ti

c
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 -

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
s

T
e

a
m

s

C
h

ild
re

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

P
e

n
y
la

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

A
d

u
lt
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

C
2

C

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

la
rm

 S
e

rv
ic

e
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

C
o

n
c
ie

rg
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

A
ll 

L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
)

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 H
o
u

s
in

g

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
B

ili
n

g
u

a
l 
C

a
rd

if
f

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 &

 M
e

d
ia

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

W
e
b
 T

e
a
m

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 &

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
F

a
m

ily
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t

W
a
s
te

 C
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 S
u
p

e
rv

is
o

rs
 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
o
f 

W
a
le

s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

/

L
la

n
d
o

u
g
h

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
T

h
e

ra
p

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

H
o

m
e

 C
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 D

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

E
a

s
t

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 D

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 W

e
s
t

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 

J
o

in
t 

E
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

n
d

 D
ru

g
s
 t

e
a
m

 /

5
8

Page 73



H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

te
a
m

T
ra

in
in

g
 D

e
p
t 

( 
a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
)

A
d

u
lt
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 t

e
a

m

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
e
a

m
 E

a
s
t

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 T
e
a

m

H
R

C
a

rd
if
f 
W

o
rk

s

S
p

o
rt

, 
L

e
is

u
re

 &
 C

u
lt
u

re
A

c
ti
v
e

 C
a

rd
if
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

C
a

rd
if
f 

C
a

s
tl
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 T
e
a
m

C
a

rd
if
f 

C
a

s
tl
e

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 &
 E

v
e

n
ts

 

C
a

rd
if
f 

C
a

s
tl
e

 V
is

it
o

r 
H

o
s
ts

 

F
a

ir
w

a
te

r 
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e

M
a

in
d

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

P
e

n
tw

y
n

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n
tr

e

R
id

in
g
 S

c
h

o
o

l

P
e

n
la

n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

W
e
s
te

rn
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

5
9

Page 74



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

II
–

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

W
e

ls
h

 L
e

a
rn

e
rs

 2
0
1

4
/2

0
1
5

 R
e

p
o

rt

E
n

tr
y

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
6

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
4

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 &

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
3

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t

4

F
in

a
n

c
e

1

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2

H
R

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

S
p

o
rt

 L
e

is
u

re
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
4

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 &

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
, 

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

.
3

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 &

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
1

F
in

a
n

c
e

2

H
R

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 C
it
iz

e
n

 F
o

c
u

s
1

S
p

o
rt

 L
e

is
u

re
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
4

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
4

6
0

Page 75



S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
d

v
a

n
c

e
d

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 &

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
1

P
ro

fi
c

ie
n

c
y

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

W
e

ls
h

 T
a

s
te

r 
C

o
u

rs
e

2
7

T
o

ta
l 

L
e

a
rn

e
rs

8
5

T
o

ta
l 

S
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 L

e
a

rn
e

rs
£

9
,2

4
7

.0
0

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
4

0

6
1

Page 76



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
IV

–
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 S

k
il

ls

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 A

b
il

it
y
 b

y
 L

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 *
T

o
ta

l

C
IT

Y
 H

A
L

L
1

2

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 H
A

L
L

7
1

G
L

O
B

A
L

 L
IN

K
1

1

W
IL

L
C

O
X

 H
O

U
S

E
1

3

O
th

e
r

1
1

4

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

2
2

1

*D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 s
o
m

e
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

w
e

 a
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 p
u

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 a

s
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 V

 –
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 -

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 A

b
il

it
y
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
R

E
A

T
o

ta
l

C
H

A
N

G
E

 &
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

6

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
7

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 &

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

2

D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
7

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

9

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 &
 L

IF
E

L
O

N
G

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
4

4

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

1
3

F
IN

A
N

C
E

1
4

H
E

A
L
T

H
 &

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E
2

4

H
R

 P
E

O
P

L
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
6

L
E

G
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
4

S
P

O
R

T
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
2

9

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
S

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

&
T

R
A

N
4

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

2
2

1

W
e

ls
h

 L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e
 A

b
il

it
y
 b

y
 

G
ra

d
e

T
o

ta
l

G
R

A
D

E
N

o
.

C
E

2
6

E
A

I
3

E
D

P
S

Y
 A

4
G

R
A

D
E

 1
8

G
R

A
D

E
 2

2
G

R
A

D
E

 3
2

2
G

R
A

D
E

 4
1

7
G

R
A

D
E

 5
1

8
G

R
A

D
E

 6
3

5
G

R
A

D
E

 7
3

5
G

R
A

D
E

 8
2

5
G

R
A

D
E

 9
1

4
G

R
A

D
E

 1
0

9
J
N

C
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(O
M

+
)

7
O

th
e

r
1

Y
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

2
T

E
A

C
H

E
R

1
3

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

2
2

1 6
2

Page 77



D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 O
F

F
IC

E

D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

D
y
la

n
 H

u
g
h

e
s

F
fi
o
n

 G
ru

ff
u

d
d

R
h

ia
n

 P
h

ill
ip

s
S

u
s
a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
R

h
ia

n
 T

e
m

p
le

T
im

o
th

y
 G

o
rd

o
n

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
R

h
ia

n
 J

o
n

e
s

H
e

le
d

d
 W

ill
ia

m
s

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

(D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 
K

a
re

n
 W

ilk
in

s
o

n
In

g
ri
d

 M
a

s
m

e
y
e

r

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 &

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

M
a

ir
 N

e
w

to
n

 /
 C

a
ro

le
 

M
o

rg
a

n
E

lis
a

b
e

th
 M

o
rr

is

H
u

w
 P

a
rr

y
-E

v
a

n
s
 /

 L
e
a

n
n
e

 
V

a
u

g
h

a
n

R
a

c
h

e
l 
B

is
h
o

p

G
a

re
th

 P
ie

rc
e

J
a

n
e

 T
h

o
m

a
s

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 &
 L

IF
E

L
O

N
G

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
  
  

  
  

  
 

N
ic

o
la

 H
a

y
w

a
rd

A
v
ri
l 
H

o
o

p
e

r

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
B

e
rn

a
d

e
tt
e

 L
e

w
is

 /
 A

le
d

 
E

v
a

n
s

T
a

ra
 K

in
g

S
te

v
e

B
u
m

fo
rd

D
a

v
e

 S
m

it
h

A
lis

o
n

 J
a
m

e
s

H
E

A
L
T

H
 &

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

J
a

c
k
ie

 B
u

rn
s

S
u

s
a

n
 S

c
h
e

le
w

a

S
P

O
R

T
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
 

A
lis

o
n

 J
a
m

e
s

R
o

g
e

r 
H

o
p

w
o

o
d

D
a

n
ie

l 
A

llc
o

c
k

6
3

Page 78



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
S

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 &
 

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
K

a
d

ie
 I
ri
s
h

S
h

a
u
n

 R
e

v
ill

e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

  
  

  
  

 
Ie

s
ty

n
 R

o
b

e
rt

s
Ia

n
 A

llw
o

o
d

H
R

 P
E

O
P

L
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
O

lw
e

n
 M

e
d

i
L

y
n

n
e

 D
a

v
id

L
E

G
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
L

is
a

 M
ic

h
a

e
l

Ia
n

 A
llw

o
o

d

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

(D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
  

  
  

J
e

s
s
ic

a
 P

ri
tc

h
a

rd
J
u

lie
 J

o
n
e

s
M

ik
e

 R
e

ill
y

6
4

Page 79



C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
e
ls

h
 C

o
m

p
li
m

e
n
ts

 &
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

I

C
2
C

W
e
ls

h
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

Q
1
-Q

3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

6
5

Q
1
-Q

3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Page 80



C
u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
a
ti

sf
a
c
ti

o
n
 –

W
e
ls

h

S
u
rv

e
y
s 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 –

2
0

F
ir

st
ly

, 
h
o
w

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 y

o
u
 w

a
it

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 

w
e
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
7
0
.0

%
U

n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

5
.0

%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
2
5
.0

%
V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

D
id

 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
 g

re
e
t 

y
o
u
 i
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
m

a
n
n
e
r?

Y
e
s

1
0
0
%

N
o

0
%

D
o
n
’t

 K
n
o
w

0
%

H
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

tt
it

u
d
e
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 

d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

A
tt

it
u
d
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

8
0
.0

%
P
o
o
r

0
%

G
o
o
d

2
0
.0

%
V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

K
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

7
0
.0

%
P
o
o
r

5
.0

%

G
o
o
d

2
5
.0

%
V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

W
e
re

 y
o
u
 t

o
ld

 w
h
a
t 

a
c
ti

o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

Y
e
s

9
5
.0

%
N

o
0
%

D
id

 C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

re
so

lv
e
 y

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir

y
?

Y
e
s

9
2
.0

%
N

o
0
%

9
2
.0

%
o
f 

W
e
ls

h
-s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
ir

 
e
n
q
u
ir

ie
s 

w
e
re

 r
e
so

lv
e
d
 a

t 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 

tr
a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

If
 n

o
, 

w
e
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

y
o
u
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
e
rs

o
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it

h
 y

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir

y
??

Y
e
s

8
5
.0

%
N

o
1
5
.0

%

O
v
e
ra

ll
, 

h
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

o
u
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f?

1
0
0
.0

%
o
f 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h
 C

o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f’

s 
W

e
ls

h
 l
in

e
 d

u
ri

n
g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
7
5
.0

%
U

n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
2
5
.0

%
V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

W
h
e
re

 d
id

 y
o
u
 s

e
e
 o

u
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
?

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

W
e
b
si

te
 /

 
In

te
rn

e
t

5
5
.0

%
P
o
st

e
r

5
.0

%

B
il
l 
/
 L

e
tt

e
r

2
5
.0

%
O

th
e
r

1
5
.0

%

C
a
n
 y

o
u
 t

h
in

k
 o

f 
a
n
y
th

in
g
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

C
u
st

o
m

e
r

th
in

k
s 

it
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s 

a
 

W
e
ls

h
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 l
in

e
 -

e
.g

. 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

p
ri

n
te

d
 i
n
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

c
o
lo

u
rs

 t
o
 E

n
g
li
sh

 l
in

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 f

o
rm

s 
e
tc

.

A
g
o
r 

d
ro

s 
y
 p

e
n
w

y
th

n
o
s

–
O

p
e
n
 o

n
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s

6
6

Page 81



C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
e
ls

h
 C

o
m

p
li
m

e
n
ts

 &
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

C
u
st

o
m

e
r

sa
y
s 

so
m

e
ti

m
e
s 

h
e
 c

a
ll
s 

a
n
d
 i
s 

to
ld

 t
h
e
re

's
 n

o
 W

e
ls

h
 

sp
e
a
k
e
r 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 -
h
e
 i
s 

u
n
h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

.

D
im

 o
 g

w
b
l
–

n
o
t 

a
t 

a
ll

C
u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
a
ti

sf
a
c
ti

o
n
 –

W
e
ls

h

S
u
rv

e
y
s 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 -

2
0

F
ir

st
ly

, 
h
o
w

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 y

o
u
 w

a
it

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 

w
e
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
6
4
%

U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
3
6
%

V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

D
id

 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
 g

re
e
t 

y
o
u
 i
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
m

a
n
n
e
r?

Y
e
s

1
0
0
%

N
o

0
%

D
o
n
’t

 K
n
o
w

0
%

H
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

tt
it

u
d
e
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 

d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

A
tt

it
u
d
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

7
0
%

P
o
o
r

0
%

G
o
o
d

3
0
%

V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

K
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

7
0
%

P
o
o
r

5
%

G
o
o
d

2
5
%

V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

W
e
re

 y
o
u
 t

o
ld

 w
h
a
t 

a
c
ti

o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

Y
e
s

8
0
%

N
o

1
0
%

D
o
n
’t

 K
n
o
w

1
0
%

D
id

 C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

re
so

lv
e
 y

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir

y
?

Y
e
s

9
0
%

N
o

1
0
%

9
0
%
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
-s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
ir

 
e
n
q
u
ir

ie
s 

w
e
re

 r
e
so

lv
e
d
 a

t 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 

tr
a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

If
 n

o
, 

w
e
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

y
o
u
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
e
rs

o
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it

h
 y

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir

y
??

Y
e
s

1
0
0
%

N
o

0
%

O
v
e
ra

ll
, 

h
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

o
u
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f?

1
0
0
%
 o

f 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h
 C

o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f’

s 
W

e
ls

h
 

li
n
e
 d

u
ri

n
g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
7
5
%

U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
2
5
%

V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

W
h
e
re

 d
id

 y
o
u
 s

e
e
 o

u
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
?

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

W
e
b
si

te
 /

 
In

te
rn

e
t

3
5
%

B
a
g
s 

/
 B

in
5
%

B
il
l 
/
 L

e
tt

e
r

3
0
%

C
a
p
it

a
l 
T
im

e
s

5
%

O
th

e
r

5
%

D
o
n
’t

 
R
e
m

e
m

b
e
r

1
5
%

6
7

Q
1
-Q

3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Page 82



C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
e
ls

h
 C

o
m

p
li
m

e
n
ts

 &
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

C
a
n
 y

o
u
 t

h
in

k
 o

f 
a
n
y
th

in
g
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

N
o
. 

B
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

e
 i
n
 W

e
ls

h
 m

a
k
e
s 

it
 e

a
si

e
r.

H
a
s 

h
a
d
 t

o
 w

a
it

 a
 l
o
n
g
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
. 

H
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

ti
m

e
s 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s 

n
o
 W

e
ls

h
-S

p
e
a
k
e
r.

n
a
, 

b
o
d
lo

n
 i
a
w

n

n
a
, 

p
o
b
 p

e
th

 y
n
 p

ro
ff

e
ss

iy
n
o
l 
ia

w
n
.

(N
o
, 

e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 v

e
ry

 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l)

m
w

y
 o

 p
o
b
l 
g
y
m

ra
e
g
 y

m
 p

h
o
b
 a

d
ra

n
, 

y
n

e
n
w

e
d
ig

 a
r 

y
 f

fo
n
.

(T
h
e
re

 
is

 m
o
re

 w
e
ls

h
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 e

v
e
ry

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,

 e
sp

e
c
ia

ll
y
 n

o
ti

c
e
a
b
le

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

h
o
n
e
)

C
u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
a
ti

sf
a
c
ti

o
n
 –

W
e
ls

h

S
u
rv

e
y
s 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 -

2
0

H
o
w

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 y

o
u
 w

a
it

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

a
n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
6
0
%

U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
4
0
%

V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

D
id

 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
 g

re
e
t 

y
o
u
 i
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
m

a
n
n
e
r?

Y
e
s

9
5
%

N
o

0
%

D
o
n
’t

 K
n
o
w

5
%

H
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

tt
it

u
d
e
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
 w

h
o
 

d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

A
tt

it
u
d
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

7
0
%

P
o
o
r

0
%

G
o
o
d

3
0
%

V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

K
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

5
5
%

P
o
o
r

0
%

G
o
o
d

4
5
%

V
e
ry

 P
o
o
r

0
%

W
e
re

 y
o
u
 t

o
ld

 w
h
a
t 

a
c
ti

o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 y

o
u
r 

c
a
ll
?

Y
e
s

8
0
%

N
o

5
%

D
o
n
’t

 K
n
o
w

1
5
%

D
id

 C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f 

re
so

lv
e
 y

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir

y
?

Y
e
s

1
0
0
%

N
o

0
%

O
v
e
ra

ll
, 

h
o
w

 w
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

o
u
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f?

1
0
0
%
 o

f 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h
 C

o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f’

s 
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

u
ri

n
g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3

V
e
ry

 S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
8
0
%

U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

S
a
ti

sf
ie

d
2
0
%

V
e
ry

 U
n
sa

ti
sf

ie
d

0
%

6
8

Q
1
-Q

3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Page 83



C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 C

a
rd

if
f

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

W
e
ls

h
 C

o
m

p
li
m

e
n
ts

 &
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

W
h
e
re

 d
id

 y
o
u
 s

e
e
 o

u
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
?

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

W
e
b
si

te
 /

 
In

te
rn

e
t

3
5
%

F
ri

e
n
d
s 

/
 F

a
m

il
y

5
%

B
il
l 
/
 L

e
tt

e
r

3
0
%

L
e
a
fl

e
t

5
%

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry
1
0
%

O
th

e
r

1
5
%

C
a
n
 y

o
u
 t

h
in

k
 o

f 
a
n
y
th

in
g
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

D
im

 -
o
n
d
 a

n
g
e
n
 a

ro
s 

y
n

h
ir

 I
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

te
b
 y

n
 G

y
m

ra
e
g
 –

N
o
 b

u
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 w

a
it

 a
 l
o
n
g
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

a
 W

e
ls

h
 s

p
e
a
k
e
r

W
e
d
i 
g
o
rf

o
d
 g

a
e
l 
e
i 
g
a
lw

 n
o
l 
y
n
 C

y
m

ra
e
g
 g

a
n
 f

o
d
 n

e
b
 a

r 
g
a
e
l 
p
a
n
 

ff
o
n
io

d
d
 y

 C
w

sm
e
r 

–
H

a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
ll
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
 W

e
ls

h
 a

s 
n
o
 o

n
e
 w

a
s 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

. 

N
a
 -

h
a
p
u
s 

ia
w

n
 b

o
d
 y

r 
a
lw

a
d
 w

e
d
i 
c
a
e
l 
e
i 
a
te

b
 y

n
 g

y
fl

y
m

 a
 b

o
d
 

rh
if

 y
 l
e
in

 G
y
m

ra
e
g
 a

r 
y
 w

e
fa

n
 a

r 
b
w

y
s 

y
r 

u
n
 S

a
e
sn

e
g
. 

–
N

o
, 

v
e
ry

 
h
a
p
p
y
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

a
ll
 w

a
s 

a
n
sw

e
re

d
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 W

e
ls

h
 s

it
e
 i
s 

n
e
a
r 

th
e
 E

n
g
li
sh

 o
n
e
. 

6
9

Q
1
-Q

3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

Page 84



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

PROPOSED MERGER OF CORONER AREAS

REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA ITEM:  4

PORTFOLIO: CORPORATE SERVICES & PERFORMANCE (COUNCILLOR 
GRAHAM HINCHEY)

Reason for this Report

1. To consider the Rhondda Cynon Taf Council proposal to merge the 
existing Cardiff and Vale Coroner Area with the Powys, Bridgend and 
Glamorgan Valleys Coroner Area.

Background

2. It is a statutory requirement that Local Authorities appoint a Coroner and
reimburses the cost of providing the Coroner Service under the 
provisions of the Coroners and Justice Act 2009. A coroner is an 
independent judicial office holder, appointed and paid by the relevant 
local authority. A coroner must be a lawyer or a doctor, and in some 
cases is both. Each coroner has a deputy and usually one or more 
assistant deputies, and either personally or through a deputy he or she 
must be available at all times. The costs of the coroners’ service are 
generally met by local authorities, not by central Government. In some 
districts the local police force may also contribute towards a coroner’s 
resources, usually by providing and paying the costs of coroner’s officers.

3. The Coroners role is to inquire into violent or unnatural deaths, sudden 
deaths of unknown cause, and deaths which have occurred in prison. A 
coroner’s authority to inquire flows from the report of a body being within 
the coroner’s district and not from where the death occurred. The 
coroner’s inquiries may take one of several forms and may result in the 
holding of an inquest.

4. The current position affecting Cardiff is that of a shared Coroners service 
with the Vale of Glamorgan who act as the host Authority at present.

5. As host Authority the Vale of Glamorgan is currently responsible for the 
appointment of the Coroner and their officers. They are also responsible 
for negotiating all associated cost and fees with the Coroner and 
management of the budget and premises. Due primarily to available 

Page 1 of 12

Agenda Item 4

Page 85



funding from both Authorities the combined area currently only provides a 
Part Time Coroner.

6. Cardiff’s only role is that of an annual financial contribution based on 
population census figures (2001), currently this cost is £555,250 but due 
to the population increase recorded in the 2011 census is set to rise to 
around £565,000. The proposals in this report however seek to provide 
both an improved service and at a slightly reduced cost of the current 
service.        

7. Upon Local Government re-organisation in 1996, the Bridgend and The 
Glamorgan Valleys jurisdiction was created (excluding the Rhymney 
Valleys) with Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) assuming the Lead role. 
Similarly, the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan (VGC) area was created 
with The Vale of Glamorgan as the Lead Authority.

8. In July 2014, Judge Peter Thornton QC in his first annual report to Lord 
Chancellor Chris Grayling quoted that the ‘99 coroner areas should be 
reduced further, to around 75 or fewer.  At present, 60% of coroner areas 
have fewer than 2,000 reported deaths a year and Judge Peter Thornton 
said most senior coroners should deal with between 3,000 and 3,500 
deaths to make the service viable. The Lord Chancellor has the power to 
combine, or merge, coroner areas after consultation.

9. At the beginning of 2012, the Coroner for both Powys and Bridgend and 
The Glamorgan Valleys resigned and a Coroner was appointed as his 
successor.  The post was subject to a joint appointment between Powys, 
Bridgend and The Glamorgan Valleys (PB&GV), albeit these remained 
as separate areas prior to their amalgamation in July 2013.  The Coroner 
resigned from this post in November 2013 and a further appointment 
assumed the role of Acting Senior Coroner.  

10. Similarly, following the resignation of the Coroner for Cardiff and the Vale 
(C&V) in July 2013 the post has until recently been covered by two Part-
time Assistant Coroners.  One of the Part-time Coroners has 
subsequently stepped down and consequently further interim 
arrangements have been put in place. This has meant that PB&GV’s 
acting Senior Coroner, supported by RCT, has assumed, in addition to 
his current role, the Acting Senior Coroner for C&V.  An Assistant 
Coroner for PB&GV is also assisting in this arrangement.  The Acting 
Senior Coroner is confident that whilst he has only been assisting C&V 
for a short period of time, he will be able to introduce some savings with 
further savings if a formal merger were to be agreed.

11. Appendices A1 and A2 show the current structures of both the PB&GV 
area and the C&V area and Appendix C the current financial position for 
C&VG.

Issues

12. A review process has been undertaken involving officers which have 
resulted in a merger proposal from Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) whereby 

Page 2 of 12Page 86



they would act as the relevant authority for a merged Coroner Area of 
C&V and PB&GV.  Details of the merger proposal and other Options
considered are contained in this Report.

13. The merger proposal for the RCT option relies on achieving £70k 
efficiency savings and will ensure

Continuity of service delivery across the merged area;

be cost neutral to existing authorities;

potential future savings resulting from inter alia economies of scale, 
rationalisation of back office support and SLA’s with Local Health 
Boards.

14. The scope of the merger proposal relates to the two coroner jurisdictions 
PB&GV and C&V and sets out the rationale and benefits for a single area 
to cover the six local authorities.  Also included is the proposal to recruit 
a whole time Senior Coroner and part time Area Coroner ensuring a 
resilient service whilst maintaining current service provision.

15. Drivers for change include direct correspondence from the Ministry of 
Justice (MOJ) and the Chief Coroner who are very keen to explore the 
potential for amalgamating the two Coroner Areas particularly as both are 
covered by part time provision and also advocates the post of a Whole 
Time Coroner as set down in the Coroners and Justice Act.  This is 
supported by the Coroner’s Society for England and Wales who appear 
to also prefer this arrangement.  This has been the case in a recent 
review with the appointment of a Whole Time Coroner for North East 
Wales and North Central Wales which have recently merged into one 
jurisdiction; this took effect from 1st January 2013.

16. RCT has previously attempted to recruit a whole time Coroner for the 
PB&GV Coroner Area but the Chief Coroner’s Office has advised that a 
merger should be considered prior to initiating any recruitment 
processes.  Whilst a merger is unlikely to be forced, participating Local 
Authorities must demonstrate valid reasons against such an 
amalgamation.  In the short term mergers of Coroner areas are only likely 
to take place with the agreement of all local authorities, amongst others.  
There is, however, no reason in principle, why the Lord Chancellor 
should not in due course combine areas after consultation but without 
agreement if there is a clear case for merger.

17. The MOJ and Chief Coroner are aware that the Acting Senior Coroner 
and Assistant Coroner for PB&GV are providing cover in the absence of 
a Coroner presence in C&V and will question how effective this 
assistance is proving to be.  They may well determine that the next 
natural step would be to merge the two Coroner Areas.

18. The introduction of medical examiners, expected to be introduced 
following the UK General Election in May 2015 will also impact on the 
number of cases investigated and the number of inquests held in the 
future. This will have a positive impact as it will decrease the number of 
cases going to Inquest and thus result in a reduction in expenditure.

Page 3 of 12Page 87



19. As the proposed option RCT have agreed the terms on which it is 
prepared to act as relevant authority for the merged Coroner Areas.  As 
constituent authorities for the C&V Area, both Cardiff and the Vale of 
Glamorgan Councils must also agree in order for the proposed merger 
business plan to be submitted to the Chief Coroner and Lord Chancellor 
for approval.

20. RCT have agreed to take on the Relevant Authority role on the following 
basis. To merge the two Coroner Areas with one whole-time Senior 
Coroner, one part time Area Coroner, shared administration and 
potentially achieve £70k efficiency savings in year 1.  This proposes that 
the PB&GV and C&V Areas merge to form a single entity. One whole-
time Senior Coroner would be employed to manage the new Area which 
will be supported by a shared administration.  This proposal is supported 
by both the Ministry of Justice and the Coroner’s Society.  Whilst it would 
mean a slight increase in the Coroner’s salary costs, these would be 
negated in part by the cessation of Long Inquest payments. 

21. The reconfiguration of the administration structure could result in 
redundancies, the costs of which would fall to those Councils of the 
existing coroner areas, should the redundancy occur prior to any merger 
and 12 months thereafter, note that as the VoG currently hosts the 
service covering Cardiff then these costs will be shared.  The current 
proportion fo the contribution to the C&V area is 72% Cardiff 28% VoG.

22. Appendix B sets out the structure for the proposed merger and Appendix
D the financial case (assuming £70k efficiency savings).  

23. As discussed this would see the two Coroner Areas merge, with one 
permanent Senior Coroner, a permanent part-time Area Coroner, 
introducing a new restructured administration service headed by a 
Service Manager.  This would relieve some of the existing cost pressures 
as it also factors in potential service savings of £70,000. 

Examples of how these savings could be made include;

Development of beneficial service level agreements. 

Increased options to undertake competitive tenders from Area Health 
Boards

A reduction in Long Inquests realised through employing a full time 
Senior Coroner. 

24. In addition the work of the Service Manager should realise additional 
savings through more efficient procurement of services and reducing 
unnecessary expenses where possible. There would also be a part -time 
Area Coroner which would result in all current service provision being 
maintained and added resilience in event of leave and sickness. This 
would significantly reduce the risk of future service cost increases and 
would result in the following small savings against current contributions 
for Cardiff & the Vale of Glamorgan Local Authorities - A detailed 
breakdown is included as Appendix  D to this report:

Page 4 of 12Page 88



Cardiff £ 6.2k saving
Vale of Glamorgan £ 2.3k saving

25. It should emphasize that this is the preferred proposed option with RCT 
as the Relevant Authority.

26. The current Acting Senior Coroner for the PB&GV has worked with 
Rhondda Cynon Taf on the following initiatives which could be replicated 
for C&V and the proposed wider area;

Introduction of a Service Level Agreement with Cwm Taf Local Health 
Board for the provision of an autopsy service – this will allow more 
efficient payment of invoices and effective budget monitoring.  It will
also enable the Coroner to closely monitor the number of Post 
Mortems performed with a view to reducing the numbers actually 
required and thus decrease future costs.

Introduction of a Service Level Agreement with Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg University Health Board for the provision of an autopsy 
service – again this will see the same benefits as above.  

Initiated a pilot scheme with a Consultant Pathologist with a view to 
reducing the number of invasive Post Mortems required, which will see 
considerable savings in the future.

The Coroner is also working closely with GPs to establish Causes of 
Death, in order to avoid the requirement for unnecessary Post 
Mortems.  In April 2014, a total of ten Post Mortems were avoided 
which resulted in a saving of £4,000, thus potential savings of £48,000 
per annum.

A pilot is also underway in PB&GV with an Assistant Coroner who as 
well as being legally qualified, has a medical background.  The 
purpose of this pilot scheme is to utilise the Assistant Coroner’s skills 
and experience to further reduce the number of required Post Mortems 
by determining the Cause of Death through the medical records.  This 
initiative will further complement the point above in making future 
savings.

27. Under this proposal regular budget reports will be circulated to all partner 
authorities for consideration and Client Officers will have the ability to 
meet when necessary.  A number of performance management reports 
and procedures will be put in place to ensure that all partner authorities 
are being informed of service performance and achievements.  A Service 
Level Agreement will be negotiated between the authorities to ensure 
that all relevant information is communicated in agreed time frames. 
Quarterly financial updates and invoices are examples of information that 
could be shared with all partner authorities. This group will operate at 
Officer Level and report back to the relative Local Authorities as required. 

28. A Relevant Authority is the local authority that is responsible for the 
delivery of a Coroners service on behalf of its partnering authorities.  It is 

Page 5 of 12Page 89



proposed in this case that that RCT will be the Relevant Authority as the 
Council has the specialist knowledge, experience and expertise to 
effectively deliver the service and the anticipated savings.

29. It would however be a requirement that RCT as the Relevant Authority 
produce a Service level Agreement in consultation with all of the partner 
Authorities to ensure a robust system of Governance and financial 
management is put in place. This SLA should be reviewed in 3 years’ 
time to include a review of the future of the agreement being based on a 
population basis. 

30. Other options considered for the future of the Coroner Service include;

Do Nothing with Merger and retain current Cardiff & Vale of 
Glamorgan structures and increase apportioned costs to Cardiff in 
line with latest Census figures.  This would realise a short term 
saving for the Vale of Glamorgan of £9k and additional cost to 
Cardiff of £9k.  This would not put the service in a position to find 
possible long term savings and could actually cost more as we 
would only be able to appoint a Part Time Area Coroner who 
would be entitled to long term Inquest payments as has been the 
issue previously.  Also this option may not be acceptable to the 
Chief Coroner and Ministry of Justice who may intervene to 
enforce a merger at their terms. 

Merge with Powys Bridgend and the Glamorgan Valleys in relation 
to Rhondda Cynon Taf becoming the 'Relevant Authority' for both 
areas.  In this option both services would be run separately which 
would be £10k increase in cost for the Vale of Glamorgan and 
£27k increase for Cardiff as the pool of costs is higher without 
management & admin changes.  Again this would miss 
opportunities to save on other back office costs and lose the 
benefit of economies of scale in tendering for services. RCT have 
identified that this option is not acceptable to them and that they
would not be prepared to be involved if this was put forward.

31. It is therefore proposed that the option put forward by RCT to undertake 
a full merger between PB&GV and C&V Coroner areas is implemented at 
the earliest opportunity to adopt and drive forward the efficiency 
initiatives.  Whilst this Option is dependent on achieving £70k efficiency 
savings it should be achievable through a restructured administration and 
management arrangement plus the added benefit of bargaining power 
within a much larger area and enable the new merged area to drive 
through further economies of scale. 

32. If there is a decision not to proceed with the proposed merger, the 
current interim support will be at risk in the medium and long term.  RCT 
would look to ensure a Senior Coroner is fully employed in their area and 
would fill their vacancy for a Coroner in the PB&GV Area which has been 
on hold for some considerable time whilst merger options have been 
investigated and proposals drawn up.  RCT would give notice for the 
withdrawal of the interim arrangements to support the C&V Area.  

Page 6 of 12Page 90



33. The Vale of Glamorgan as relevant authority for their C&V Area would 
also need to take appropriate steps to fill the vacancy for C&V in light of 
the instruction from RCT above and overspends from previous years are 
likely to continue due to long inquests payments. This service is also out 
of scope of the Regulatory Services Collaboration.

34. There is of course the added fact to consider that the Ministry of Justice 
and Chief Coroner could force a restructured area in the future. It is 
currently unknown how large an area would be considered and whether a
Coroner for the whole of Wales could eventually be appointed however 
given the geographic size of the area this is unlikely. Further mergers 
could occur in Wales which would result in larger areas and this current 
proposal may well be seen as a future operating model for other areas. 

35. The proposed merger will ensure that there is a full time Coroner 
presence in Cardiff which is an improvement on the current part time 
arrangements. Assurances have been given that the merger will not 
require families to travel out of the area to attend inquest hearings as 
local facilities will continue to be used and an administrative base will be 
retained in Cardiff.    

Reason for Recommendations

36. The Vale of Glamorgan is the relevant authority for the Cardiff and Vale 
of Glamorgan Coroner Area (C&V).  RCT is the relevant authority for the 
Powys, Bridgend and Glamorgan Valleys Coroner Area (PB&GV) 
(comprising the unitary authorities of Powys, Merthyr, RCT and 
Bridgend).  At present there are Coroner vacancies in the two adjacent 
Coroner Areas of C&V and PB&GV.

37. RCT as relevant authority for PB&GV had prepared an advertisement to 
fill their vacancy but were requested by the Chief Coroner’s Office to 
defer placing the advert until merger with the adjoining vacant Area of 
C&V was explored. 

38. There is currently an Acting Coroner for PB&GV until a successor can be 
appointed.  In addition to this role he is also supporting the C&V Coroner 
Area until a decision is taken on the proposed merger of the two Coroner 
Areas.  Clearly these temporary measures cannot continue indefinitely. 

39. The merger proposal offers an improved service to the City of Cardiff 
through a full time presence and adequate cover arrangements for the 
whole area.  

40. There is also a small financial saving with the opportunity for this to 
improve in the future through more streamlined processes and greater 
bargaining power of the larger area to reduce necessary costs such as 
post mortem charges with the local health boards.

41. Cardiff will retain a position on the service board at officer level 
overseeing the new arrangements as a stakeholder and ensure that the 

Page 7 of 12Page 91



City still receives value for money, a high standard of service and that 
annual costs are effectively managed. 

Financial Implications

42. The total annual budget for Coroners in the Coroner Area of PB&GV is 
£1,005,190 and in the Coroner Area of C&V is £771,180 giving a 
combined total budget of £1,776,370. Within both Coroner Areas, a 
budget is allocated for Local Authority administration. Consideration has 
been given to a restructure of the staff that are currently based in Rock 
Grounds, Aberdare (PB&GV) and Cathays Police Station (C&V) with a 
view to consolidating the support provided for the Coroner’s Service, 
albeit there would still be a requirement to run the service across the 
aforementioned sites.  Appendix C details the current financial position 
for the Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan Coroner Area.

43. Table1 below states the budgets set by Cardiff &Vale for the last three 
financial years against the actual spend. Cardiff & Vale have exceeded 
their budget in all three financial years.  The main reason for this is the 
substantial costs of Long Inquest payments. Table 2 shows the same 
period for Bridgend & Glamorgan Valleys

Table 1 – Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan

Financial 
year

Budget Actual 
Spend

(Under)/Overspend (Under)/Overspend 
%

2011/2012 £626,000 £656,693 £30,693 5%

2012/2013 £664,000 £743,714 £79,714 12%

2013/2014 £722,000 £765,646 £43,646 6%

Table 2 – Bridgend & Glamorgan Valleys

Financial 
year

Budget Actual 
Spend

(Under)/Overspend (Under)/Overspend 
%

2011/2012 £824,630 £812,900 £(11,730) (1)%

2012/2013 £824,630 £795,510 £(29,120) (3.5)%

2013/2014 £826,572 £746,000 £(80,572) (9.75)%

44. Cost Apportionment - As per the recommendations of the Ministry of
Justice, the cost of the service for both Coroner Areas is apportioned 
amongst the participating Local Authorities on a population basis (as per 
the current Census).  Recent discussions have resulted in a review of the 
contributions that Cardiff and The Vale of Glamorgan local authorities 
make towards the service provision for their Coroner Area. Previous 
contributions have been based on the 2001 Census figures.  As a result 
of this review, future contributions will be made according to the most 
recent Census. A budget position for the existing Coroners service for 
C&VG is attached as Appendix C.

45. For the proposed merger it is proposed that the most appropriate 
commonly used cost apportionment method is on the basis of population 
as supported by the Ministry of Justice.  The reasoning for this is that it is 

Page 8 of 12Page 92



readily available, is updated regularly and is a fair and stable basis which 
enables accurate financial planning for the service and the authorities.  
Implementation and operational costs will be apportioned on this basis. 
Redundancy costs are the exception to this, which will be met by the 
local authorities that contributed to the coroner area from where the 
member of staff originated from.  The financial case for the proposed new 
structure is in Appendix D.

Jurisdiction Population* %

Glamorgan Valleys, 
Bridgend & Powys

565,366 54

Cardiff & Vale of 
Glamorgan

472,426 46

Total 1,037,792 100
*Source: Census 2011  

 

Legal Implications 

46. Legal Services are instructed that Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough 
Council (“RCT”), on behalf of six local authorities, including Cardiff 
Council, is proposing to submit an application to the Lord Chancellor to 
consider a request to merge the existing coroner areas into one new 
merged coroner area covering the whole of the six local authority areas. 
If, following consultation, the Lord Chancellor is agreeable to the same, 
he will make a legal order to merge the existing coroner areas to one 
coroner area.  Legal Services are instructed that the consent of all six 
councils is required prior to RCT submitting the application to the Lord 
Chancellor, hence the purpose of this report.  

47. Statutory Powers in relation to the Coroners Service

48. The provision of a Coroner’s Service is a legal and statutory function of 
the Council.  Put simply, the Council has a duty to appoint a Coroner and 
to provide appropriate resources, funding and support to enable the 
Coroner to carry out his/her statutory role and responsibilities.   The 
Coroner is an independent judicial officer holder and is not employed by 
the local authority.

49. The relevant legislation is set out in the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 
(“the 2009 Act”).  Schedule 2 of the 2009 Act makes provision for 
England and Wales to be divided into areas known as coroner areas and 
gives the Lord Chancellor the power to set and alter the boundaries of 
these areas by order after consultation with the relevant local authorities, 
the Welsh Ministers, and any other persons the Lord Chancellor thinks 
appropriate.    A coroner area may cover either the whole of one local 
authority area or the whole of two or more local authority areas.  Where 
the area includes two or more local authorities one of them will be the 
lead authority for the area, known as the “relevant authority”.     

50. Pursuant to Part 1 of Schedule 3 of the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 
(“the 2009 Act”) appointments of coroners are to be made by the relevant 
authority for each coroner area.  The relevant authority for a coroner area 

Page 9 of 12Page 93



must provide appropriate staffing levels and accommodation to enable 
the Coroner to carry out its functions (Section 24 of the 2009 Act).     

51. It is noted from the body of the report that it if the Lord Chancellor 
consents to the proposal and makes an order to create a newly merged 
coroner area, RCT will take the role of the “relevant authority”.  That is, in 
relation to the merged coroner area, RCT will undertake the statutory 
functions of appointing the Coroner and providing the appropriate 
resources to enable the Coroner to carry out his/her statutory duties.

52. At this stage Legal Services do not know the content of the proposed 
order but it is assumed that it will be based on the business case which is 
to be developed and submitted in support of the proposal.

53. The Council will need to be satisfied that:

the proposals for merger of the budgets and apportionment 
between the Authorities is appropriate and represents value for 
money;

roles and responsibilities are agreed with clear accountability; and 

the Council has appropriate controls/oversight concerning the
continued improvement of the services and delivery of future 
financial savings.

54. Accordingly a service level/funding/collaboration agreement should be 
negotiated with the Authorities as part of any consent to a submission 
being made to the Lord Chancellor relating to a merger of the two 
Coroner’s jurisdictions.   Negotiation of such an agreement should 
finalise the arrangements to ensure the above issues are satisfactorily 
addressed.

55. The agreement should include a provision to enable each of the 
Authorities to call for a review of the arrangements to determine whether 
the contributions each Authority is required to make are appropriate to 
reflect the costs of the Coroner’s Service which are properly attributable 
to each local authority administrative area at that time.  The review 
should be capable of ensuring that the arrangements are not prejudicial 
to any Authority.

Equalities Duties

56. In considering this matter the decision maker must have regard to the 
Council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010. Pursuant to these legal 
duties Councils must, in making decisions, have due regard to the need 
to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality of 
opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected 
characteristics.   Protected characteristics are: (a). Age,( b ) Gender 
reassignment( c ) Sex (d) Race – including ethnic or national origin, 
colour or nationality, (e) Disability, (f) Pregnancy and maternity, (g) 
Marriage and civil partnership, (h)Sexual orientation (i)Religion or belief –
including lack of belief.

Page 10 of 12Page 94



57. The report identifies that an Equality Impact Assessment has been 
carried out and is appended at Appendix E. The purpose of the Equality 
Impact Assessment is to ensure that the Council has understood the 
potential impacts of the proposal in terms of equality so that it can ensure 
that it is making proportionate and rational decisions having due regard 
to its public sector equality duty.  The decision maker must have due 
regard to the Equality Impact Assessment in making its decision.

HR Implications

58. As the Vale of Glamorgan acts as the current Relevant Authority there 
are no staffing issues within the proposal that affect any Cardiff Council 
staff.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to recommend that Council:

 

1. delegate authority to the Director with responsibility for this matter in 
consultation with the Portfolio Cabinet Member, the County Solicitor and 
the Section 151 Officer, to deal with all matters required in order to 
facilitate the proposed merger of the Coroner’s areas referred to in the 
body of the report including:

o finalisation of the proposals to ensure they are appropriate and 
represent value for money, provide clarity on roles and responsibilities 
and facilitate appropriate controls/oversight concerning the continued 
improvement of the services and delivery of future financial savings;

o entry into a service level/funding/collaboration agreement with all of 
the partner Authorities to reflect the finalised proposals including
setting out controls for management and governance of the new 
arrangements subject to a provision that the agreement (and the roles 
and responsibilities of each of the Authorities) will be reviewed every 3
years (to include a review of the basis of apportionment of the costs to 
ensure that the arrangements are equally advantageous to each of the 
Authorities and equitable)

2. subject to finalisation of the details of the business case to be submitted 
in support of the application to reflect the finalisation of the proposals 
referred to in the above recommendation, consent to an application being 
submitted by Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council to the Lord 
Chancellor in respect of the proposed merger of the Coroners areas 
referred to in the body of the report 

PAUL ORDERS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
5 June 2015

The following appendices are attached:

Appendix A1 – Current Cardiff and Vale Coroners Service Structure

Page 11 of 12Page 95



Appendix A2 – Current Powys, Bridgend and Glamorgan Valleys Coroners 
Service Structure

Appendix B - Proposed Merged Cardiff & the Vale and Powys, Bridgend and the 
Glamorgan Valleys Coroner Structure

Appendix C - Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan Current Coroner and Administration 
Costs

Appendix D - RCT Proposed Coroner and Administration Costs (after merger)
Appendix E – Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 12 of 12Page 96



Appendix A.1

Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Coroner Service

Existing 2014 Structure

Head of Public Protection

Vale of Glamorgan Council

Senior Coroner

Coroner 

Officer

SW Police 
Central

Division

SW Police 
Eastern 

Division

Coroner 

Officer 

Coroner 

Officer 

Coroner’s 
Administrative 

Assistant 

WP 

Operator

Page 97



C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

o
w

y
s
, 
B

ri
d

g
e
n

d
 a

n
d

 G
la

m
o

rg
a
n

 V
a
ll
e
y
s

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
. 
2

L
in

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

L
ia

is
o
n

re
p
o
rt

in
g

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

  
  
  
x
1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(D
y
fe

d
 P

o
w

y
s
 P

o
lic

e
)

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

In
q
u
e
s
t 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

C
le

rk
 2

x
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(0
.6

F
T

E
) 

2
0
H

rs

S
e
n
io

r 
C

o
ro

n
e
r

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
C

o
ro

n
e
r 

  

2
x

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

  
  
  

x
3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
(S

o
u
th

 

W
a
le

s
 P

o
lic

e
)

K
E

Y
:

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o
f 

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

R
h
o
n
d
d
a
 C

y
n
o
n
 T

a
f 

C
B

C
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

T
e
a
m

 L
e
a
d
e
r

C
o
ro

n
e
r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

Page 98



P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 M
e
rg

e
d

 C
a
rd

if
f 

&
 T

h
e
 V

a
le

 a
n

d
 P

o
w

y
s
, 

B
ri

d
g

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

la
m

o
rg

a
n

 V
a
ll

e
y
s
 C

o
ro

n
e
r 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B

L
in

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

L
ia

is
o
n

re
p
o
rt

in
g

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

  
  

  
  

&
 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

  
  

  
x
1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(D
y
fe

d
 P

o
w

y
s
 P

o
lic

e
)

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

In
q
u
e
s
t 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

  
  

  
x
2
 

F
T

E

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

C
le

rk
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 x

2
 

F
T

E
 

S
e
n
io

r 
C

o
ro

n
e
r

P
a
rt

 t
im

e
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

re
a
 

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

C
o
ro

n
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

  
  

  

x
6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(S

o
u
th

 

W
a
le

s
 P

o
lic

e
)

K
E

Y
:

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

R
h
o
n
d
d
a
 C

y
n
o
n
 T

a
f 

C
B

C
 

Page 99



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C
 

 C
a
rd

if
f 

&
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o

rg
a
n

 C
u

rr
e
n

t 
C

o
ro

n
e

r 
a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 C
o

s
ts

 
 

 

 
 

 

V
a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o

rg
a
n

 a
n

d
 C

a
rd

if
f 

o
n

ly
 (

e
x

is
ti

n
g

)
2
0
1
4

/1
5
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

  
 

£

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
1
4
4
,2

8
2

 
 

P
re

m
is

e
s

1
0
,5

0
0

 
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

2
0
0

  
 

S
u

p
p

li
e

s
 &

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
8
1
,1

9
8

  
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

3
9
,0

0
0

  
 

In
c
o

m
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

-4
,0

0
0

  
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 T

a
rg

e
t

0
  

 
N

e
w

 J
u

ri
s
d

ic
ti

o
n

 
B

u
d

g
e
t

7
7
1
,1

8
0

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
C

o
s
t 

A
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 
 

 
  

 
 

B
a
s
e
d

 
U

p
o

n
 

2
0
0
1

 
c
e
n

s
u

s

A
p

p
o

rt
io

n
e

d
 

co
st

 
  

B
a
s
e
d

 U
p

o
n

 
2
0
1
1

 c
e
n

s
u

s

A
p

p
o

rt
io

n
e

d
 

co
st

 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
 

ce
n

su
s 

  
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

co
st

 /
 (

S
a

v
in

g
) 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

%
£

%
£

£

T
h
e
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o
rg

a
n

2
8
.0

0
%

2
1

5
9

3
0

 
  

2
6
.7

4
%

2
0

6
2

1
4

 
(9

,7
1

7
) 

C
a
rd

if
f

7
2
.0

0
%

5
5

5
2

5
0

 
  

7
3
.2

6
%

5
6

4
9

6
6

 
9

,7
1

7
 

1
0
0

%
7

7
1

1
8

0
 

  
1
0
0

%
7

7
1

1
8

0
 

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 100



 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 R
C

T
  
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

C
o

ro
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 C
o

s
ts

 
 

 
 

M
e
rg

e
d

 C
o

ro
n

e
r 

J
u

ri
s
d

ic
ti

o
n

2
0
1
4

/1
5
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 
£

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
3
3
9
,1

9
4

 

P
re

m
is

e
s

7
1
,9

0
0

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
,3

0
0

 

S
u

p
p

li
e

s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,2

8
3
,6

5
8

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

4
9
,3

0
0

 

In
c
o

m
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

-4
,0

0
0

 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 T

a
rg

e
t

-7
0
,0

0
0

 
N

e
w

 M
e
rg

e
d

 J
u

ri
s
d

ic
ti

o
n

 
B

u
d

g
e
t

1
,6

7
5
,3

5
2

  

 
 

 
 

 
  

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

%
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 -

W
it

h
o

u
t 

M
e
rg

e
r 

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

(u
s
in

g
 2

0
1

1
 c

e
n

s
u

s
)

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 F

u
tu

re
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

P
o

s
t 

M
e
rg

e
r 

(b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 
2
0
1
1

 C
e
n

s
u

s
)

E
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

M
e
rg

e
r 

-
c
o

s
t/

(S
a
v

in
g

)

£
£

1
3
2
,9

7
6

1
2
.8

1
%

P
o

w
y
s

2
3
6
,4

2
4

2
1
4
,6

1
3

(2
1
,8

1
1
)

1
3
9
,1

7
8

1
3
.4

1
%

B
ri
d

g
e
n

d
2
4
7
,4

5
1

2
2
4
,6

6
5

(2
2
,7

8
6
)

2
3
4
,4

1
0

2
2
.5

9
%

R
h
o
n

d
d
a
 C

y
n

o
n
 T

a
f

4
1
6
,7

6
8

3
7
8
,4

6
2

(3
8
,3

0
6
)

5
8
,8

0
2

5
.6

7
%

M
e
rt

h
y
r 

T
y
d
fi
l

1
0
4
,5

4
7

9
4
,9

9
2

(9
,5

5
5
)

1
2
6
,3

3
6

1
2
.1

7
%

T
h
e
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o
rg

a
n

2
0
6
,2

1
4

2
0
3
,8

9
0

(2
,3

2
4
)

3
4
6
,0

9
0

3
3
.3

5
%

C
a
rd

if
f

5
6
4
,9

6
6

5
5
8
,7

3
0

(6
,2

3
6
)

1
,0

3
7
,7

9
2

1
0
0

%
1
,7

7
6
,3

7
0

1
,6

7
5
,3

5
2

0

Page 101



 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 

1
4
/1

5
 P

o
w

y
s
 &

 G
la

m
 V

a
ll

e
y
s
 -

p
re

-m
e
rg

e
r 

a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 b
a
s
is

 
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

%
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

 
1
3
2
,9

7
6

2
3
.5

2
%

P
o

w
y
s

 
 

1
3
9
,1

7
8

2
4
.6

2
%

B
ri
d

g
e
n

d
 

 
2
3
4
,4

1
0

4
1
.4

6
%

R
h
o
n

d
d
a
 C

y
n

o
n
 T

a
f

 
 

5
8
,8

0
2

1
0
.4

0
%

M
e
rt

h
y
r 

T
y
d
fi
l

 
 

5
6
5
,3

6
6

1
0
0

%
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

T
h

e
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o

rg
a
n

 &
 C

a
rd

if
f 

-
p

re
-m

e
rg

e
r 

a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 b
a
s
is

 
 

2
0
1
1

 
c
e
n

s
u

s
2
0
0
1

 c
e
n

s
u

s
 

 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

%
%

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
 

1
2
6
,3

3
6

2
6
.7

4
%

2
8
.0

0
%

T
h
e
 V

a
le

 o
f 

G
la

m
o
rg

a
n

 
 

3
4
6
,0

9
0

7
3
.2

6
%

7
2
.0

0
%

C
a
rd

if
f

 
 

4
7
2
,4

2
6

1
0
0

%
1
0
0

%
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 102



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

 

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function Title: Proposed Merger of 

Coroners Areas 

New/Existing/Updating/Amending: New 

 

Who is responsible for developing and implementing the 

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function? 

Name: Martin Birch  Job Title: OM Bereavement & Registration 

Service Team: Bereavement & 

Registration 

Service Area: Sport, leisure & Culture 

Assessment Date: 16
th

 March 2015 

 

1. What are the objectives of the Policy/Strategy/Project/ Procedure/  

             Service/Function?             

 

 

The merger proposal offers an improved service to the City of Cardiff through a full 

time Coroner presence and adequate cover arrangements for the whole area. There 

is also a small financial saving with the opportunity for this to improve in the future 

through more streamlined processes and greater bargaining power of the larger area 

to reduce necessary costs such as post mortem charges with the local health boards. 

 

Cardiff will retain a position on the service board at officer level overseeing the new 

arrangements as a stakeholder and ensure that the City still receives value for 

money, a high standard of service and that annual costs are effectively managed.  

 

 

2. Please provide background information on the           

Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function and any research done 

[e.g. service users data against demographic statistics, similar EIAs done 

etc.] 

 

 

It is a statutory requirement that Local Authorities appoint a Coroner and reimburses 

the cost of providing the Coroner Service under the provisions of the Coroners and 

Justice Act 2009. A coroner is an independent judicial office holder, appointed and 

paid by the relevant local authority. A coroner must be a lawyer or a doctor, and in 

some cases is both. Each coroner has a deputy and usually one or more assistant 

deputies, and either personally or through a deputy he or she must be available at all 

times. The costs of the coroners’ service are generally met by local authorities, not by 

central Government. In some districts the local police force may also contribute 

towards a coroner’s resources, usually by providing and paying the costs of coroner’s 

officers. 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 1 

Page 103



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

The Coroners role is to inquire into violent or unnatural deaths, sudden deaths of 

unknown cause, and deaths which have occurred in prison. A coroner’s authority to 

inquire flows from the report of a body being within the coroner’s district and not 

from where the death occurred. The coroner’s inquiries may take one of several 

forms and may result in the holding of an inquest. 

 

The current position affecting Cardiff is that of a shared Coroners service with the 

Vale of Glamorgan who act as the host Authority at present.  

 

As host Authority the Vale of Glamorgan is currently responsible for the appointment 

of the Coroner and their officers. They are also responsible for negotiating all 

associated cost and fees with the Coroner and management of the budget and 

premises. Due primarily to available funding from both Authorities the combined 

area currently only provides a Part Time Coroner. This obviously causes some issues 

affecting bereaved families as the Coroner must be satisfied of a cause of death 

before a body is released for a funeral. 

 

The scope of the merger proposal relates to the two coroner jurisdictions  of Powys, 

Bridgend & Glamorgan Valleys and Cardiff & the Vale and sets out the rationale and 

benefits for a single area to cover the six local authorities 

 

The proposal is to consent to an application being submitted by Rhondda Cynon Taff 

County Borough Council to the Lord Chancellor in respect of the proposed merger of 

the Coroners areas as detailed in the body of the Coroners Merger report.  

 

 

3 Assess Impact on the Protected Characteristics 

 

3.1 Age 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative/] on younger/older people?  

 

                                                                                                        Yes No N/A 

Up to 18 years  N  

18 - 65 years  N  

Over 65 years   N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any.  

No differential Impact – Improved service expected through the full time availability of 

a Coroner.  

 

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 2 

Page 104



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 Disability 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on disabled people?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Hearing Impairment   N  

Physical Impairment  N  

Visual Impairment  N  

Learning Disability  N  

Long-Standing Illness or Health Condition  N  

Mental Health   N  

Substance Misuse  N  

Other   N  

  

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 Gender Reassignment 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on transgender people?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Transgender People 

(People who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have 

undergone a process [or part of a process] to reassign their sex 

by changing physiological or other attributes of sex) 

 N  

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 3 

Page 105



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4.  Marriage and Civil Partnership 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on marriage and civil partnership? 

 

 Yes No N/A 

Marriage  N  

Civil Partnership  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 Pregnancy and Maternity 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on pregnancy and maternity?  

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 4 

Page 106



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 Yes No N/A 

Pregnancy  N  

Maternity  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.6 Race 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project//Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

White  N  

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups  N  

Asian / Asian British  N  

Black / African / Caribbean / Black British  N  

Other Ethnic Groups  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 5 

Page 107



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

 

3.7 Religion, Belief or Non-Belief  

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on people with different religions, beliefs or non-beliefs?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Buddhist  N  

Christian  N  

Hindu Y   

Humanist  N  

Jewish Y   

Muslim Y   

Sikh Y   

Other  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

Some Religious Groups require a funeral to be undertaken as soon as possible after 

death due to cultural and religious requirements. If a death is required to be reported 

to the Coroner this can cause delays to the body being released for a funeral.  

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

The proposed merger will allow for a Full Time Coroner presence in Cardiff rather 

than the current Part Time arrangement. This should therefore have a positive 

impact on those requiring an immediate decision by the Coroner to release a body 

for a funeral.  

 

 

3.8 Sex 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on men and/or women?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Men  N  

Women  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 6 

Page 108



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.9 Sexual Orientation 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on the following groups?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Bisexual   N  

Gay Men  N  

Gay Women/Lesbians  N  

Heterosexual/Straight  N  

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.10  Welsh Language 

Will this Policy/Strategy/Project/Procedure/Service/Function have a differential 

impact [positive/negative] on Welsh Language?  

 

 Yes No N/A 

Welsh Language 

 

  X 

 

Please give details/consequences of the differential impact, and provide supporting 

evidence, if any. 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 7 

Page 109



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

 

 

 

 

 

What action(s) can you take to address the differential impact? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Consultation and Engagement 

What arrangements have been made to consult/engage with the various Equalities 

Groups? 

 

 

Engagement has been ongoing with the Authorities considering the Merger.  

 

Cardiff has a higher ethnic population than the other Authorities and has discussed 

the role of the Coroner with affected cultural groups in the City previously through 

our regular stakeholder meetings.  

 

Once the SLA is being negotiated the Cardiff representative will look to try and 

establish an improved response for those with a cultural need for a short notice 

funeral, the decision however will ultimately rest with the Coroner themselves.  

 

 

 

 

5. Summary of Actions [Listed in the Sections above] 

 

Groups  Actions 

Age  

Disability  

Gender Reassignment  

Marriage & Civil 

Partnership 

 

Pregnancy & Maternity  

Race  

Religion/Belief Consultation with Coroner as part of SLA development to 

recognise the needs of certain religious groups.  

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 8 

Page 110



CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Corporate Assessment Template 

Consult with identified local religious groups as part of the 

SLA negotiations. 

Sex  

Sexual Orientation  

Welsh Language  

Generic Over-Arching 

[applicable to all the 

above groups] 

 

 

6. Further Action 

Any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this Equality 

Impact Assessment (listed in Summary of Actions) should be included as part of your 

Service Area’s Business Plan to be monitored on a regular basis.  

 

7.       Authorisation 

The Template should be completed by the Lead Officer of the identified 

Policy/Strategy/Project/Function and approved by the appropriate Manager in each 

Service Area. 

 

Completed By :   Martin Birch  Date:   16
th

 March 2015 

Designation:       Operational Manager Bereavement & 

Registration Services  

 

Approved By:  Chris Hespe  

Designation: Director  

Service Area: Sport, Leisure & Culture  

 

7.1 On completion of this Assessment, please ensure that the Form is posted on 

your Directorate’s Page on CIS - Council Wide/Management Systems/Equality 

Impact Assessments - so that there is a record of all assessments undertaken 

in the Council.   

 

For further information or assistance, please contact the Citizen Focus Team on 029 

2087 3059 or email citizenfocus@cardiff.gov.uk 

                         

 

4.C.400 Issue 1 Nov 11 Process Owner:  Rachel Jones Authorised: Rachel Jones Page 9 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

REVIEW OF ATTENDANCE & WELLBEING POLICY

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR RESOURCES 
AGENDA ITEM: 5

PORTFOLIO: CORPORATE SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE 
(COUNCILLOR GRAHAM HINCHEY)

Reason for this Report 

1. To update Cabinet on a review of the Attendance and Wellbeing Policy 
and seek approval for an amended version of the policy to be 
implemented.

Background

2. In September 2011 the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny 
Committee published an Inquiry into Managing Attendance that had been 
undertaken by a task and finish group of the Committee. The task and 
finish group reported back to the Committee in October 2011.

3. The policy was agreed at Cabinet in April 2013 for implementation from 1 
July 2013 and it was agreed that a review would take place of the policy 
at 6 and 12 months. At the 6 month review, it was determined that there 
needed to be further operational experience before any changes could 
be proposed. Following the 12 month review post implementation 
involving, representatives from Directorates, schools, Trade Unions and 
the Equality Networks, a revised policy has been drafted and is attached 
as Appendix 1.

4. In addition to consultation with stakeholders, the review also took 
account of the Wales Audit Office Report of May 2014, relating to the 
Management of Sickness Absence in the Council. Additionally, points 
raised on benchmarking and accountabilities by Policy Review and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee of 4 March 2014 which looked at the 
impact of the Attendance & Wellbeing Policy. Further, proposed revisions 
to the Policy have also been considered by Policy Review and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee on 2 June 2015. 

Issues

5. The revised Policy and the accompanying procedures (Appendix 1), if 
approved, will apply to all employees of the Council, irrespective of status 

Page 1 of 12

Agenda Item 5

Page 113



and/ or grade, except those employed directly by Schools.  There will be 
a separate version of the Policy for schools based staff based on this 
policy that will be commended to School Governing Bodies. The reason 
for the separate version is the need to reflect the involvement of school 
governors with any dismissal that takes place in a school. 

Impact of the Attendance &Wellbeing Policy

6. Since the introduction of the revised Attendance and Wellbeing Policy in 
July 2013 (Q2 2013/14) there has been an improvement in the overall 
sickness rates for the Council. For comparison purposes the number of 
FTE days lost for the 12 months before the introduction of the policy was 
11.73 FTE days lost per employee and 12 months after implementation 
the figure reduced to 9.98 FTE days lost per employee. The chart below 
shows the FTE days lost per person since 2011/12, pre and post 
Attendance &Wellbeing Policy introduction.

7. The number of sickness dismissals had also increased over the years:
           

Sickness Dismissals 

  Long  term Sickness Short  term Sickness Total 

2011/12 49 3 52 

2012/13 50 3 53 

2013/14 69 2 71 

2014/15 69 10 79 

Page 2 of 12

Page 114



Benchmarking of Data with Core Cities

8. Further work has been undertaken to benchmark our management of 
sickness and sickness absence levels with the Core Cities. More detailed 
information on this can be found in a report in Appendix 2. A summary of 
the sickness data for total FTE days lost per person is as follows:

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 FTE 
2013/14

Initiatives

Cardiff 11.45 11.49 11.71 10.18 11677 See para 11

Birmingham 11.72 11.67 12.4 10.7 13736.5 Employee Assistance 
Programme & earlier 
intervention 

Bristol* Not 
supplied

7.89 Not 
supplied

Not
Supplied

7213 
(Headcount)

Employee Assistance 
Programme

Leeds 11.78 10.56 10.6 10.34 13136 Corporate target introduced

Liverpool 8.29 7.8 9.75 8.74 2890.03 New triggers 6 months ago

Manchester 10.7 11.52 10.98 12.23 6581 Proactive support from HR 
to managers on short term 
absence, targeted 
intervention for major 
causes of absence, health 
checks and specific 
activities in areas with the 
highest absence 

Newcastle 8.35 8.05 9.5 6.18 5322 24 hr counselling helpline. 
Directors run monthly 
sickness challenge 
meetings with their 
managers. Wellbeing at 
Work booklet and 
workshops

Nottingham 11.64 10.26 10.7 Not 
Supplied

5432.11 
(2012/3)

Improving attendance 
roadshows

Sheffield* 11.54 12.19 11.42 Not 
Supplied

6364 
(2012/13

Improving managerial skills
in tackling sickness 
absence

* Have outsourced waste services

9. As can be seen from the table the FTE varies greatly across the core 
cities. The most comparable authorities to Cardiff are Birmingham and 
Leeds. As can be seen in the table in 2013/14 the FTE days lost per 
person in Cardiff was lower than both Birmingham and Leeds, as well as 
Manchester.

Current Position

10. The Council wide target for 2014/15 was 9.00 FTE days lost per person.   
This was a reduction of 11.6% on last year’s outturn figure of 10.18 days. 
The final sickness outturn figure for 2014/15 is 10.11 FTE days lost per 
person. Whilst the target was not reached, the figure is the lowest 
sickness level the Council has achieved.  Also, significant improvements 
have been achieved by Children’s and Environment Directorates who 
have met and exceeded the targets set.

Page 3 of 12

Page 115



Actions Taken and Initiatives in Place

11. Actions and initiatives taken outside of any policy review to emphasise 
the continued priority of sickness absence management include:

Management Accountabilities 
Directorate sickness absence compliance information is now 
included in quarterly Cabinet Performance reports.
Directors have been reminded by the Chief Executive of their 
accountabilities and responsibilities  in managing absence and a 
number were invited to attend Works Council meeting in 
December 2014 to update on progress.
Inclusion of sickness absence management as a cascaded 
objective for all managers as part of 2015/16 PP&DR process.

            Data Provision 

In addition to monthly reports provided to Directors and Head 
Teachers, detailing  sickness absence data such as missed 
returned to work interviews, missed triggers and long term 
absence cases, more detailed sickness  data is now available 
directly to all managers in respect of their teams in  DigiGOV as 
part of a dashboard approach. Additional information to be made 
available shortly will include compliance with timescales for 
referral to OHS and numbers of no shows at OHS appointments.

Extending the DigiGOV module relating to absence management 
to schools. To date, 97% schools are now using DigiGOV to 
record and monitor their sickness absence.

Stress Management

Introduction of new Stress Control Programme and pilot of 1-to-1
Wellbeing sessions have been positively received and evidence 
shows that   they  have supported staff either to stay in work or 
assist with an early return

As raised at Health &Safety Advisory Forum  in March 2015, 
commitment to redesign the Stress Risk Assessment form in order 
to better support employees and managers by making it more 
user friendly and fit for this specific purpose.

Occupational Health Services (OHS)

Recent discussion at Star Chamber challenge approach with 
Directors and Cabinet Members in relation to OHS which resulted 
in a number of improvements made to the OHS process e.g.
introduction of a clinical audit of OHS reports , clarity over role of
OHS and management responsibilities regarding referrals.

The Employee Counselling Service, which transferred to OHS 
within HRPS on April 1 2015, is being monitored in terms of 
resource issues in order to assess current waiting times for 
appointments.

Directorate Initiatives 

Sickness Absence Management Action Plan initiative in place 
within Environment  and Sports and Leisure  Directorates around 

Page 4 of 12

Page 116



weekly focus on sickness absence by Operational Managers,
regular  long term absence management monitoring meetings
involving HRPS, managers and Management Team and rigorous 
monitoring. This approach is now being extended to other 
Directorates such as Communities.

Health & Wellbeing 

The Partnership for Change report, agreed as part of the 2015/16 
budget includes developing the principle of supporting Health & 
Wellbeing into a wider strategy to better support employees. This 
will include commitment to pursue Welsh Government’s Corporate
Health Standard.

Based on  experience of core cities and other evidence e.g. CIPD 
Annual Survey report 2014,  started to explore the viability of 
Employee Assistance Programmes to support the Well Being 
agenda and complement what is already in place.

Health and Wellbeing is a key element of  the Council’s
Workforce Strategy and Employee Charter, agreed by Cabinet on 
2 April 2015

Development of clear advice for staff regarding the use of e-
cigarettes and commitment to update and refresh the current No 
Smoking Policy. 

Extension of the new mediation service available from within 
HRPS. This approach to alternative dispute resolution aims  to 
restore and maintain the employment relationship wherever 
possible by focussing  on working together to go forward .Where 
there have been workplace issues, this may assist someone from 
going on sick leave or help someone on sick leave return back to
the work.

Summary of Key Changes Proposed

12. Although the overall target for the Council for 2014/15 was not met,
improvements were secured in a number of Directorates ie Environment 
and Children’s Services who met their targets. The Council wide target
for 2015/16 remains 9 FTE days. On this basis, it is therefore proposed 
that no fundamental changes are made to the policy at this stage with the
suggested changes designed to tighten up and further strengthen 
provisions within the existing policy, further clarity on responsibilities and 
accountabilities of all employees (especially managers) and adjusting 
some operational matters which have emerged since the policy was 
implemented in July 2013.

13. General tightening up proposed includes:

Building in a requirement that, in relation to work related stress, a
meeting takes place with the employee as soon as possible to 
discuss issues and try to resolve prior to referral to OHS. Also made 
clear is the ability of the employee to request meeting with an
alternative manager if the current manager is the perceived source of 

Page 5 of 12

Page 117



the stress. The revised form referred to in paragraph 11 will assist 
this discussion.

Clarifying those employees can return to work at any time without 
seeing their doctor in line with fit note rules. The RTW interview would 
address any reasonable adjustments.

Ensuring that employees being referred to OHS understand from their 
managers beforehand that this is happening and why they are being 
referred 

Clarifying that employee compliance must include attending referrals 
to OHS and engagement with contact meetings plus improvements 
put in place to address “no shows” i.e. those who simply do not turn 
up and provide no explanation.

Putting in place a clear and consistent process to be used for 
potential dismissal meetings in both the short term and long term 
absence process.

Short Term Sickness Absence

14. As stated above, the review approach has been to strengthen and 
tighten up the policy so it is not proposed to significantly change the 
triggers stages within the policy. The first change is to add in that Stage 1 
is triggered by ‘1 additional absence of 6 calendar days or more within 
the 8 month period’. This brings this stage in to line with Stages 2 and 3. 
Clarification has been added into Stage 2 and 3 that the ‘additional 
absence of 6 calendar days or more’ needs to be within the period of the 
caution. In Stages 2 and 3 it says that failure to achieve and sustain 
performance can trigger the next stage and it has been clarified that this 
will be the case where an employee has 2 absences in a six month 
period during the period of the caution. 

Long Term Absence

15. In respect of Long Term sickness absence there are no proposed major 
changes to the policy or the way that this is managed at this stage. The 
changes proposed are to ensure clarity of the process, which includes:

contact “visit” changed  to contact “meeting” to better reflect that it 
is  2 way flow of communication and information and made 
clearer that alternative location to home can be made for the 
meeting.

removal of reference to a formal case conference. This is no 
longer required as cases are subject to ongoing review in addition 
to that which takes place at each contact meeting.

clarification that refusal to attend or non-attendance at OH 
appointments and contact meetings may result in suspension of 
sick pay.

Where advice is needed on whether someone is  fit to attend 
meetings with management , employees should be asked this first 
by their line manager and only where they are not sure or say that
they are not well enough should they be referred to OHS for a 
view

Page 6 of 12

Page 118



Those referred to OHS must notify if they are unable to attend at 
the earliest opportunity and no less than 3 working days prior to 
the appointment.

In cases where an employee gives no notice of non attendance, 
the matter will be referred back to the relevant manager to take 
the matter up with individual concerned. Refusal or failure to 
attend 2 appointments (without notice of non attendance) will 
result in pay being stopped and disciplinary action may be taken.

Inclusion of specific requirements for actions required of 
managers following receipt of OHS reports.

Inclusion of an example where triggers can be relaxed e.g.
employee undergoing treatment and may wish to return to work 
between treatments rather than be on continuous long term 
absence.

Made explicit that communication should also be maintained with 
employees who are sick whilst on suspension.

Wales Audit Office Recommendations Relating to Management of 
Sickness 

16. Supplementary to the full Corporate Assessment, WAO undertook a 
review of how sickness is managed across the Council. In December 
2013, they reviewed the Council’s corporate arrangements and their 
implementation across Directorates in order to consider:

Whether corporate arrangements are sufficiently robust to bring about 
a reduction in sickness absence?

Are policies being implemented effectively at Directorate level?

Are review arrangements driving improvements?

17. In addition to reviewing a range of Council documents and interviewing 
HR and managers from all Directorates, they also reviewed the data 
capture systems and management information available both corporately 
and to managers. Their conclusions were that although the policies & 
procedures for managing absence are based on positive practise 
models, they are not being applied consistently at Directorate level. WAO 
have therefore proposed the following which has been taken into account 
in the review:

Directors needing to clarify their expectations of how managers 
should use and report on sickness targets – more accountability and 
challenge within and across Directorates .

Making existing sickness absence data more widely and routinely 
available for all managers as part of their “dashboard”

Review of the central sickness team within HRPS and ensure that 
good practice examples of managing absence are shared across 
Directorates.

18. The issue of accountability and challenge is being cascaded by the Chief 
Executive to all managers. The inclusion of a specific 2015/16 sickness 
management PP&DR objective for all managers further supports this. A
number of Directorates e.g. Environment and Sports & Leisure have also 

Page 7 of 12

Page 119



put in place Sickness Management Action Plan approach which is 
routinely monitored by the Management Team. As stated earlier in the 
report , dashboard information has been made available directly to all 
managers through DigiGOV and further information regarding OHS 
referral information including “no shows” will be provided from June. 
Positive feedback has been received from managers and Star Chamber 
Challenge meetings regarding the work , support and impact of the 
central sickness team within HRPS and good practise examples about 
case management and strategies are being extended to other 
Directorates .

Development of Managers 

19. A theme highlighted by the WAO report and confirmed as part of 
consultation were issues around consistency of policy application by 
managers. Whilst there were many examples of managers who applied 
the policy in a consistent and fair way, the Trade Unions continued to 
highlight examples of where this was not always the case. Whilst the 
Cardiff Manager Programme and specific   skills based training courses 
are facilitated by the Academy, there is limited capacity to offer specific 
training in this area.  Consequently, it is proposed that the current  
Attendance & Wellbeing   e-learning  module will be refreshed and 
updated and it would be a mandatory requirement for completion by all 
those who manage staff. Compliance with this requirement would be 
regularly monitored at a senior level. 

External Review 

20. The proposed revisions have been subject to an external review by 
Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE). The APSE review has 
provided external validation and compared the Council’s updated policy 
proposals against industry best practice. They have confirmed that the 
content and approach of the revised A&W policy is comprehensive, in 
line with good practise and principles. They have made some 
suggestions in terms of format and content which have been taken into 
account in the revised policy attached. They too have commented on the 
need to focus on management capability, compliance and the need for 
accountability. They have also made a number of suggestions including 
the development and implementation of a Health & Wellbeing Strategy,
which aligns with the Council’s intentions already highlighted within the 
Partnership for Change Agreement, Workforce Strategy and Employee 
Charter. 

21. Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee considered the 
changes being proposed at their meeting on 2 June 2015. Their 
response is attached as Appendix 3. In summary, whilst they 
acknowledged that the direction of travel relating to sickness 
management is in the right direction, there still remains some way to go. 
They expressed support for the work of the HRPS  Central Sickness 
Team and confirmed the policy changes proposed in particular those 
relating to  Occupational Health Service appointments, relaxation of 
trigger points for example where an employee is undergoing treatment,

Page 8 of 12

Page 120



mandatory requirement for all managers to complete the e-learning 
module, etc. They have made a series of suggestions as to what could 
be considered as part of the next review, should sickness absence 
plateau rather than reduce further.

Special Leave 

22. As Special Leave is part of the Attendance & Wellbeing Policy, a number 
of comments have been received as part of the consultation process. 
Whilst a number of these are clarification points, a number of policy 
issues  have been raised regarding  time off for Election duties, time off 
for interviews (mainly but not exclusively from schools) and these require 
further consultation with  stakeholders.  The outcome of this will be 
reported to Cabinet in July.

Equalities Impact Assessment

23. An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on the updated 
Attendance and Welbeing Policy and this has identified that the policy 
and statistics should continue to be monitored.

Reasons for Recommendations

24. To strengthen the policy in order to improve the management of sickness 
absence in the Council thereby reduce costs and ultimately save jobs.

Legal Implications 

25. The management of sickness absence must have due regard to
employment law implications generally and particularly in respect of
disability discrimination and unfair dismissal legislation. It is considered
that the proposed Policy is consistent with the legislation.

26. A Sickness Absence Policy is vitally necessary to ensure legal
compliance combined with the effective management of absence.
However it must also be remembered that each case of sickness
absence will have its own particular set of circumstances. There will be a
legitimate expectation that a policy will be adhered to in most cases but
under the law a policy can never be regarded as absolute in its
application.

Financial Implications

27. The report proposes a number of measures to strengthen the policy in 
order to improve the management of sickness absence in the Council. 
Any reduction to sickness levels and paid absences as a result of these 
changes would reduce the opportunity cost of staff absence and provide 
increased capacity in terms of working hours. It would also reduce the 
cost of staff agency or temporary cover where these are necessary to 
maintain services during periods of sickness absence. This would also 
apply to schools but only if the policy is adopted by school governing 

Page 9 of 12

Page 121



bodies. Any costs or management time associated with implementing the 
policy will be met by directorates from existing resources.

HR Implications 

28. This review of the policy will further strengthen the Council's approach to 
dealing with sickness absence. Whilst the corporate target for sickness 
absence for 2014/2015 was not achieved, there were a number of 
Directorates who achieved their targets. 

29. A significant amount of consultation has been carried out again during 
this review with Directorate managers, Head Teachers, the 5 employee 
networks and the Trade Unions on the proposed changes. Throughout 
the period, the proposed policy has been amended to reflect comments 
and suggestions, where possible. The Trade Unions again raised the 
issue of the policy being consistently and properly applied by all 
managers. It is clear that whilst a lot of work has been carried out in 
managing sickness levels, the issue of compliance with the policy by 
managers is still an area of concern. This has been addressed in the 
policy review with the manager responsibilities in Section 1 being 
strengthened and a mandatory e-learning refresh for all managers.

30. A review of the Council’s Disciplinary policy is currently underway and is 
due to be considered by Cabinet in July. A number of  recommendations 
relating to the link between disciplinary investigations/processes  and 
sickness absence have been identified . The Attendance and Wellbeing 
Policy has been updated to make explicit some of the more 
straightforward areas highlighted e.g. need to communicate with those on 
suspension ; rather than immediate referral to OHS where  advice is 
needed on whether someone is  fit to attend meetings with management, 
employees should be asked this first by their line manager and only 
where they are not sure or say that they are not well enough should they 
be referred to OHS for a view. However the whole issue of sickness 
absence management during Disciplinary Investigations will require 
further discussion and supplementary guidance.

Trade Union Comments 

31. Trade Unions have been consulted on the proposals. Their preference 
was to leave the current A&W policy in place for the time being and to 
drill down and further  analyse the  data so that any patterns, hot spots, 
etc. could be identified and addressed and that managers apply the 
provisions of the policy fairly and consistently.  

32. Comments have been received from the Trade Unions and Employee 
Equality Networks about the availability of the Employee Counselling 
Service. At the moment employees can call between 9am and 5pm 
Monday to Friday to book an appointment for counselling. There is no 
access to telephone counselling and there is currently a 4 week wait for 
an appointment. For Cardiff staff, 1.5 Counsellor posts and a 0.5 admin 
resource transferred to HRPS on 1 April 2015 and are based within the 
OHS team  at Nant Garw. Resources available and waiting lists will be 

Page 10 of 12

Page 122



monitored to try and address the current waiting time for staff and this will 
continue throughout 2015/16. The Trade Unions are also supportive of 
the stress control programmes  and associated 1 to 1 Wellbeing support 
pilot sessions which have been provided and are keen that a rolling 
programme of this type of provision be put in place.

33. The Disability Network have suggested that it would be useful for 
managers (and employees) to be trained in understanding and dealing 
with Mental Health issues in the workplace. There is e-learning available 
regarding this as well as external organisations that will deliver training 
on this.  Another suggestion from them regarding training was that it 
would be useful if other colleagues were trained where employees in 
their teams are prone to seizures, diabetic hypes, etc. The Network has 
said that there are such courses available in Wales. These suggestions 
will be considered in the future. Reference to Time for Change (Welsh 
Government initiative), raised previously, will be explored as a way of 
providing support for employees experiencing mental health issues.

34. Some of the Teaching Trade Unions have made representation that the 
provisions of the policy are not fully suited to the working arrangements 
within schools.

35. The Cabinet needs to consider the draft policy in light of these views.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to:

1. approve the revised proposals in relation to the Attendance and 
Wellbeing Policy, attached at Appendix 1 and note that proposals 
regarding Special Leave changes will be considered by Cabinet in July 
2015.

2. agree that the policy should be commended to School Governing Bodies
for adoption and that all avenues should be rigorously explored to ensure
that they adopt the policy.

3. agree that the policy be implemented with effect from 1 July 2015.

4. agree that the implementation of the revised Attendance & Wellbeing 
policy arrangements be monitored and be subject to review following a  
further 12 months of operation.

5.     agree that a Health & Wellbeing Strategy be brought forward, following 
due consultation, to a Cabinet meeting in the Autumn.

CHRISTINE SALTER 
Corporate Director Resources 
5 June 2015

Page 11 of 12

Page 123



The following Appendices are attached

Appendix 1 - Updated Attendance and Well Being Policy
Appendix 2 - Core City Benchmarked Information
Appendix 3  - Response from PRAP of 2 June 2015)

The following Background Papers have been taken into account:

Equality Impact Assessment

APSE Review of Proposed Changes to A&W policy

WAO Review of Sickness Absence Management Arrangements

Full schedule of details of all proposed changes to A&W policy

Page 12 of 12

Page 124



Appendix 1

ATTENDANCE AND
WELLBEING POLICY

DATE DOCUMENT PUBLISHED July 2015

APPROVED BY Cabinet

APPROVAL DATE June 2015

DOCUMENT OWNER Lynne David

DATE FOR REVIEW July 2016

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 1 of 63Page 125



Appendix 1

CONTENTS

SECTION CONTENT PAGE 

1 Introduction, 3

Roles & Responsibilities

Purpose

Who is covered by this Policy?

Key Principles

3
5
5
5

2 Employee Wellbeing Commitment 6

3 Special Leave 7

Purpose

Key Principles

Provisions

Unpaid Parental Leave

7
7
8

4 Sickness Management Procedures 13

Key Principles

Notification Requirements

Sickness & Annual Leave

Sickness Related to 3rd Party Accidents

Resumption of Duties

Suspension/ Recovery of Sickness 
Absence Payments

Plastic/ Cosmetic Surgery

13
15
17
18
18
18

19

5 Frequent/ Persistent Absence 20

Return to Work Interviews

Short Term Absence Triggers

Informal Support Stage

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

21
22
22
23
25
26

6 Managing Long Term Absence 27

Contacting Employees 28

7 Medical Examinations 30

Referral to Occupational Health

Action on OH Reports

31
32

8 Sickness Appeal Procedure 37

Appendix 1 Guidance on Disability Related Absences and 
Reasonable Adjustments

38

Appendix 2 Guidance on Action in Particular Cases 43

Appendix 3 Guidance on Critical Illnesses 45

Appendix 4 Guidance on Mental Health Conditions 52

Appendix 5 Useful Contacts 56

Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit Ref

Frequently Asked Questions See toolkit

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 2 of 63Page 126



Appendix 1

SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION

Introduction

1.1 The Council considers the health and well being of its employees 
important, and is committed to providing a high quality working 
environment for all employees. The Council aims to promote a positive 
approach to maximising attendance through work life balance and health
promotion.

1.2 The Council is committed to help prevent and reduce absence levels, to 
respond effectively to actual and potential problems with service delivery, 
and also provide assistance to employees with health problems at an 
early stage. It is recognised that high levels of attendance contribute to 
the planning and provision of its service. The reduction of sickness 
absence levels will improve service delivery, increase employee morale, 
ensure the organisation is more competitive and increase job security.  
Sickness absence is an inevitable and complex organisational issue and 
should not be viewed in isolation but within the broad context of the 
Council’s obligation to ensure the health, safety and well being of all 
employees and the organisational factors, which may affect sickness 
absence levels.  

1.3 The reason for absence from work is not limited to sickness and health 
issues. Employees can experience non medical issues such as domestic 
problems, both short and longer term that make attendance problematic.  
It is acknowledged that, at times, employees need to take time off work 
due to personal illness or injury or other unexpected domestic 
emergencies. The Council provides appropriate paid (or in some 
instances unpaid) leave in such circumstances and expects its employees 
to respond by ensuring they take reasonable care of their health and 
attend work unless they are unable to do so. Attendance is regarded as 
an essential element of an employee's overall performance along with 
quality of work, output, attitude to the job, relationships, attention to safety 
and time keeping.

1.4 The Council aims to ensure that employees experiencing problems with 
attendance at work are supported, wherever it is both practicable and 
reasonable. Employees who are absent from work due to sickness will be 
treated consistently, with respect, understanding and sensitivity.

Roles and Responsibilities

1.5 It is important that everyone clearly understands their roles and 
responsibilities within this process.

Employee Responsibilities

1.6 All Council employees are responsible for:

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 3 of 63Page 127



Appendix 1

a. Attending work on a regular basis in accordance with their contract 
of employment

b. Ensuring they read, understand and comply with this policy and 
procedure 

c. Fully co-operating with the requirements of this policy when they are 
in operation, including attendance at Occupational Health and 
contact meetings.

d. Maintaining confidentiality at all times during any sickness
proceedings, with the exception of any conversations which may be 
necessary with their Trade Union

e. Behaving and acting in a way that is consistent with the Council’s 
values of accountability, flexibility, openness, professional integrity, 
diversity, respect and working with others

Management Responsibilities

1.7 In addition to their responsibilities as employees, managers are also 
responsible for:

a. Ensuring employees are aware of all relevant policies and 
procedures by whatever means are most appropriate.

b. Establishing, demonstrating and consistently upholding standards of 
acceptable attendance.

c. Fully understanding the Council’s Attendance and Wellbeing policy 
and where it is implemented, applying it fairly, consistently and in a 
timely way.

d. Completing the mandatory on-line training on the Attendance and 
Wellbeing Policy within the prescribed timescales .

e. Seeking advice from HR People Services on all matters relating to 
attendance.

f. Keeping adequate notes and records of all events and evidence to 
support the use of the policy. This is to ensure that there is a robust 
record to protect the Council if there is an Employment Tribunal 
claim and also to ensure the manager has sufficient notes to support 
any witness statement they are required to provide. Notes of 
meetings should be provided to the employee and signed by the 
employee and manager as an accurate record of the meeting.

g. Ensuring that the Council’s Attendance and Wellbeing policy is 
adhered to at all times including timescales, appeal rights, rights to 
representation, etc.

h. Arranging any meetings and support required as part of the 
procedure, e.g. securing dates, despatching invitation letters people
to attend stage interviews, contact meetings etc, organising 
administrative support to record the proceedings, send decision 
letters, etc.

i. Contact the HR People Services Central Sickness Absence 
management team immediately to arrange a referral in cases of
industrial accidents or occupational ill health.

j. Contact HR People Services Central Sickness Absence 
management team immediately regarding work related stress 
conditions

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 4 of 63Page 128



Appendix 1

k. Regularly access information about compliance with the policy by 
their direct reports via DigiGov and ensure that non compliance is 
addressed

l. The Council’s Senior Management Team will monitor absence and 
compliance but this should also be a standing agenda item for 
Directorate management team meetings

m. Maintaining confidentiality at all times throughout the process.

1.8 HR People Services responsibilities:

Act as advisor to managers to ensure that the Council’s Attendance 
and Wellbeing Policy is applied correctly.

Provide all employees with information and advice as necessary 
throughout the process.

Review and monitor sickness cases and outcomes and support 
managers to undertake any remedial action that may be necessary.

Review and collate corporate monitoring data in relation to sickness
for consideration by various groups, e.g. Senior Management Team,
Works Council, etc.

Support line managers to manage sickness cases of 4 weeks plus 
and cases of absence due to stress.

Review the application of the policy and procedures in the light of 
operational experience.

Purpose

1.9 The attendance at work by employees is essential to enable the Council 
to deliver quality services to the citizens of Cardiff.

1.10 This Policy is intended to help and encourage all employees to achieve 
and maintain acceptable standards of attendance and aims to ensure a 
consistent and fair approach to the application of the Council’s 
attendance requirements for all within the Council.

1.11 It is therefore essential that employees observe and abide by the 
requirements of this policy.

Who is covered by this Policy?

1.12 This Policy applies to all employees of the Council, irrespective of status 
and/ or grade, except those employed directly by Schools. There is a 
Policy for schools based on this policy that has been commended to 
school governing bodies. 

Key Principles

1.13 The key principles related to Special Leave and Sickness Absence are 
detailed below in the relevant sections.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 5 of 63Page 129



Appendix 1

SECTION 2 – EMPLOYEE WELLBEING COMMITMENT

2.1 The Council aims to promote and encourage wellbeing at work. Wellbeing 
produces positive attitudes, engagement, motivation and innovative 
thinking. Wellbeing is an important factor in building employee 
engagement and is therefore a key management issue for the Council. 
The Council has an ongoing agenda in this area and is committed to 
continuing to address barriers to wellbeing as well as proactively 
identifying ways in which it can enhance employee wellbeing. This 
commitment is endorsed and fully supported by elected members, senior 
management teams and trade unions.

2.2 The Council already has in place a number of policies, services and 
initiatives designed to support employee wellbeing such as our in-house 
Occupational Health Service, Employee Counselling Service, Work Life 
Balance Policies, etc. In addition a range of health and wellbeing 
initiatives are implemented throughout the year to support employees.

2.3 Commitment to employee wellbeing is referenced within the Council’s 
Workforce Strategy and Employee Charter and will be further 
demonstrated through the development and implementation of an 
Employee Wellbeing Strategy. This will set out the ways in which it will 
respond to employees physical, mental and psychological wellbeing 
needs. It will outline the role of senior managers, HR People Services, 
trade unions and employees in this agenda. It will also identify the ways in 
which we can continue to develop a culture that supports employee 
wellbeing, where employee wellbeing can flourish through the removal/ 
reduction of barriers to wellbeing and implementation of systems and 
initiatives to proactively address employee wellbeing. 

2.4 The Council will:

continue to promote health and wellbeing through management 
policies, support services, information networks and health 
promotions, including initiatives such as smoking cessation, alcohol 
awareness, diet, exercise, self management, and by liaising with 
external agencies.

prevent, so far as is practicable, those circumstances detrimental to 
employee wellbeing or where such outcomes are for whatever 
reason unavoidable, respond with early support and intervention to 
limit the effects and promote recovery. 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 6 of 63Page 130



Appendix 1

SECTION 3 – SPECIAL LEAVE PROVISIONS

PURPOSE

3.1 One of the Council’s key commitments is to support the Work life Balance 
Strategy and in support of this, a range of flexible working policies and 
arrangements exist. These, in addition to the Council’s annual leave 
arrangements, should provide sufficient time off to deal with the personal 
needs of most employees. However the Council recognises that there are 
times when employees will need short periods of time off work to deal with 
family and domestic situations.

3.2 The Council recognises that many areas of public service can only function 
through the good will of employers who agree to their employees having 
time off to attend to such duties. The Council wishes to encourage its 
employees to enter into public service, but must balance this with the 
needs of service users. 

3.3 These provisions outline the reasons where special leave may be granted 
(over and above annual leave entitlements), and the number of days 
allowable. 

KEY PRINCIPLES

3.4 Managers are responsible for ensuring that there is adequate provision for 
the needs of service users and therefore any of the provisions in this policy 
are subject to management approval. They are not an automatic 
entitlement and any request will be subject to the needs of the 
Service. To ensure a fair and consistent approach Managers must consult 
HR People Services prior to giving approval for other than routine special 
leave requests.

3.5 Employees requesting special leave must apply for approval through
DigiGov (or the Special Leave application form for those without DigiGov 
access), as far in advance as possible taking into account the 
circumstances of the request. 

3.6 These provisions are to deal with genuine requests for special leave and 
any abuse of the provisions will be dealt with under the Council’s 
Disciplinary Policy. Where applications for special leave are frequent then 
managers should discuss this with the employee.

3.7 Where special leave is granted and the employee is entitled to claim an 
allowance for loss of earnings, the employee should claim and pay the 
allowance to the Council e.g. Jury Service. In such cases, advice should 
be sought from HR People Services.

3.8 Where special leave with pay is approved the daily amount payable will be 
the amount normally payable when an employee is taking annual leave. 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 7 of 63Page 131



Appendix 1

Where special leave is for periods of less than a day then pro rata 
payments will apply. Unless stated otherwise special leave is with pay.

3.9 Where any of these special leave provisions could also be approved under 
other provisions such as the Parental Leave and Time Off for Dependants 
(both of which are unpaid) then the provisions of special leave would 
normally apply. 

3.10 Frequently Asked Questions regarding Special Leave are available in the 
Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit.

PROVISIONS

Reason for 
Leave

Further Details Days Allowable
(Paid unless 
otherwise specified)

Authority to 
approve 

1. 
Bereavement

a. Death of immediate 
relative:
Husband/ wife/ partner/ child/ 
parent*/ sibling*/ civil partner/ 
guardian/ dependant.

10 days. This may be 
extended in 
exceptional 
circumstances by 
Assistant Director/ 
Director 

Line Manager 
.

b. Death of other relative: 1 day for day of 
funeral.

Line Manager.

c. Death of a member of staff. Leave to attend 
funeral. – for direct line 
manager or 
representative

Other employees may 
request leave/ flexi

Line 
Manager.

2a. Domestic 
/ Personal 
emergencies

Leave to deal with certain 
unexpected or sudden 
emergencies which are 
immediate, severe and/or 
tragic and to make necessary 
long-term arrangements. 
Some examples are: critical 
illness of family/ fire/ theft/
flood

Depending on the 
circumstances of the 
case, up to a maximum 
of 2 days leave for 
each circumstances

Line Manager 

2b
Dependant 
care 
arrangements

To make arrangements for 
care (not actually caring for) 
of dependants

Up to 1 day paid per 
instance
This will be monitored 
and where it is shown 
to be excessive then
limits over a period of 
time will be set.

Line Manager

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 8 of 63Page 132



Appendix 1

Guidance on this is 
available in the A&W 
Toolkit

3a. Personal 
Medical 
appointments

Authorised absence for 
medical reasons to attend e.g. 
GP, dentist, optician, etc.

GP's, dentists and opticians 
often have extended hours 
and so employees should 
make every effort to make 
appointments outside of their 
normal working hours. Where 
this is not possible the 
appointment must be made 
for the start/ end of working 
hours

Where not possible to 
arrange an
appointment outside of 
working hours time 
allowed for 
appointment and 
reasonable travel time.
This is usually up to 2 
hours, although 
extended reasonable 
time may be agreed.
This will be monitored 
and where it is shown
to be excessive then 
limits over a period of 
time will be set.
Guidance on this is 
available in the A&W 
Toolkit

Line Manager 

Hospital appointments/ OH 
appointments/ Employee 
Counselling Service

Time allowed for 
appointment and
reasonable travel time. 
This will usually be 2 
hours, although 
extended reasonable 
time may be agreed. 
This may be extended 
to a maximum of 1 day 
in exceptional 
circumstances e.g. IVF 
treatment/ day surgery/ 
medical procedure.
This will be monitored 
and where it is shown 
to be excessive then 
limits over a period of 
time will be set.
Guidance on this is 
available in the A&W 
Toolkit

Line Manager 

3b.
Dependant 
appointments

Accompanying dependants to 
attend a medical appointment 
at a hospital or GP which 
cannot be made outside 
normal working hours. (i.e.  

Time allowed for 
appointment and 
reasonable travel time,
this would usually be 
up to 2 hours, although 

Line Manager 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 9 of 63Page 133



Appendix 1

for circumstances where the 
relative cannot attend on their 
own). 

Accompanying dependants to 
non medical appointments 
e.g. social worker, care 
professionals which cannot be 
made outside normal working 
hours (i.e. for circumstances 
where the dependant cannot 
attend on their own). Where 2 
employees working for the 
Council have the same 
dependant usually only 1 of 
them may claim this unless 
there are exceptional 
circumstances

extended reasonable 
time may be agreed. 
This will be monitored 
and where it is shown 
to be excessive then 
limits over a period of 
time will be set.
Guidance on this is 
available in the A&W 
Toolkit

Time allowed for 
appointment, this 
would usually be up to
2 hours, although 
extended reasonable 
time may be agreed. 
This will be monitored 
and where it is shown
to be excessive then 
limits over a period of 
time will be set.
Guidance on this is 
available in the A&W 
Toolkit

Line Manager

4. Sporting 
/Cultural 
Events.

Employees who are selected 
to participate in representative 
sporting or cultural events at 
National/ International levels.

Participants in 
representative events 
to be allowed to stay 
for the duration that 
they are actively 
participating in the 
event, up to a 
maximum of 5 days.

Requests in excess of 
above may be 
considered in 
exceptional 
circumstances.

Operational 
Manager

OM in 
consultation 
with HRPS

5. Training Leave to sit approved
examinations relevant to job 
plus examinations approved 
through post entry training 
scheme.

Time required to sit 
exam plus up to 3 days 
revision leave, 
maximum ½ day per 
examination.

Line Manager.

Leave to attend personal 
graduation.

Up to ½ day. Line manager

6. 
Attendance 
at job 

For jobs within Cardiff 
Council.

Time required to attend 
interview.

Line Manager

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 10 of 63Page 134



Appendix 1

interview Any other job interview. Annual leave / flexi 
leave. 
(Paid leave will be 
given for the time 
required to attend 
interviews for 
employees under 
notice of 
redeployment/
redundancy)

Line manager

7. Public 
Duties

Leave to attend official 
meetings/ mandatory training 
during working hours for 
employees  who are

members of Local 
Authorities; 

appointed by a Govt. 
ministry, assoc. of local 
authorities or a local 
authority to serve on a 
Committee, Tribunal or 
panel;

Justices of the Peace;

School Governors;

Official Prison Visitors;

Any other body in 
accordance with Sect 50 
of the Employment Rights 
Act 1996.

Special Constabulary 

Up  to a maximum 
of 18 days p.a. for all 
categories (up to a 
total of 18 days 
aggregated over all 
categories listed).

Initial approval 
by Operational 
Manager.
Subsequent 
requests for 
time off 
approved by 
Line Manager

Military Service (Non Regular 
Forces).

Up to a maximum of 2
weeks per annum for 
annual camp.

Operational 
Manager

Candidate in Local Authority, 
Parliamentary, Welsh 
Assembly or European 
Election.

One day’s leave on 
polling day

Line Manager

8. Cardiff 
Council run 
Elections

Employees involved with 
election duties i.e. Senior 
Election Staff, Presiding 
Officers, Poll Clerks, Count 
Assistants and Assistants for 
the issue and opening of 
postal ballot papers.

1 day off with pay per 
election, subject to 
business requirements

Line Manager.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 11 of 63Page 135



Appendix 1

9. 
Volunteering 
Activities

Employees undertaking 
approved volunteering 
activities in accordance with
Cardiff Volunteering Service 
www.vcscardiff.org.uk

Up to a maximum of 5 
days (pro rata).

Operational 
Manager

10. 
Attendance 
at Court as a 
witness or a 
juror (not in 
connection 
with work)

Time required to attend court. 
(Employee must claim and 
pay to the Council any “loss of 
earnings" payable).

Time required 
attending court.

Operational 
Manager

11. 
Attendance 
at Court as a 
Defendant

Discretion to allow time off in 
exceptional circumstances.

Depending on 
circumstances.

Operational 
Manager

12. Unpaid 
Leave

Requests to take unpaid leave 
will normally be considered 
after the employee’s annual 
leave allowance has been 
exhausted, and in appropriate 
circumstances
(Employees in the Pension 
scheme should seek advice 
from the Pensions section). 
Each case to be dealt with on 
its own merits, with requests 
to be managed by Service 
Areas and advice sought from 
HR People Services.

Unpaid leave Operational 
Manager

(Requests 
beyond 5 days 
to be 
approved by 
Chief Officer 
and HRPS 
Officer, in 
consultation 
with Line 
Manager).

14.  Adverse 
Weather

Non attendance due to 
adverse weather e.g. snow
(See Severe Weather 
Conditions Guidance Note –
5.C.177)

Annual leave, flexi,
unpaid leave or making 
up of hours 

Line Manager

NOTE: Special leave provisions cannot cover all eventualities, and 
there will undoubtedly be exceptional circumstances where it 
would be appropriate to grant special leave.  Where this is the 
case, managers should consult hr people services to ensure 
consistency.

Where leave is to be unpaid this must be confirmed in writing to 
the employee before any deduction from their wages takes 
place.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 12 of 63Page 136



Appendix 1

For the purposes of this policy ‘Dependent’ is defined as: a
spouse, a child of the employee, a parent of the employee, a 
person who lives in the same household as the employee 
(excluding tenants, lodgers, live in employees e.g. nanny) or a 
person that reasonably relies on the employee for assistance.

UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE

3.11 Under the Maternity and Parental Leave etc Regulations there is an 
individual right for a female or male parent to take unpaid time off work to 
look after a child or make arrangements for a child’s welfare. Parents can 
use it to spend more time with children and strike a better balance 
between their work and family commitments.

3.12 For an employee to be eligible all of the following must apply:

(a) they have one year’s service with the Council
(b) they are named on the child’s birth or adoption certificate
(c) they have or expect to have parental responsibility
(d) they are not be a foster parent to the child (unless they’ve secured 

parental responsibility through the courts
(e) the child is under 18 

3.13 The entitlement is for each child and is for 18 weeks unpaid leave up to 
their 18th birthday. 

3.14 There is a limit of 4 weeks per year that can be taken and the leave must 
be taken as full weeks rather than days. However, where a child qualifies 
for Personal Independence Payments it may be taken as days.

3.15 A ‘week’ is defined as the time worked over a 7 day period, e.g. and 
employee who works 2.5 days a week will have 2.5 days unpaid leave 
and a week will come off their entitlement.

3.16 Unpaid parental leave can carry over from previous employment. 
However, an employee needs to have one year’s service to apply for the 
leave. Previous employers should be asked for information about the 
amount of parental leave taken where a new employee requests unpaid 
parental leave.

3.17 Employees should provide 21 days notice of their request to take unpaid 
parental leave, where they or their partner are having a baby or adopting 
a child notice should be given 21 days before the week the baby or child 
is expected.

3.18 Leave can be postponed if the relevant notice is not given. It can also be 
postponed where there is a significant business reason to do so. Within 7 
days of the request, if it is to be postponed, a written explanation for the 
postponement must be provided and a new date suggested. Leave 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 13 of 63Page 137



Appendix 1

should not be postponed where it’s being taken by the father or partner 
immediately after the birth or adoption of a child.

3.19 Unpaid parental leave is requested via Digigov and it will ask managers to 
confirm they have seen relevant documents to confirm eligibility. For non 
pc users there is a form in the Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit for 
employees to make requests and their managers should then enter it onto 
DigiGov.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 14 of 63Page 138



Appendix 1

SECTION 4 – SICKNESS MANAGEMENT

KEY PRINCIPLES 

4.1 It is the responsibility of managers to minimise absence through 
sickness, not only to ensure and maintain best quality service delivery but 
also to avoid disproportionate stress upon remaining employees. The 
management of sickness absence will be a key element in the Personal 
Performance and Development Scheme process for managers. Failure of 
managers to properly manage sickness absence could lead to 
disciplinary action under the Council's Discipline Policy and Procedure.
There is a mandatory e-learning module for all employees who line 
manage employees. 

4.2 To encourage good attendance, Directors should:

provide good working conditions

ensure health and safety standards are maintained

carry out appropriate risk assessments including stress

ensure all employees are aware of this policy and other relevant 
Council policies, e.g. Dignity at Work, equality, stress, etc.

ensure managers are given appropriate training and support to 
operate policies effectively

design jobs so that they give motivation and provide job satisfaction

encourage teamwork

Employees must not attend work if their condition means that they could 
compromise their own, or others (e.g. colleagues, service users), health 
and safety.

4.3 This procedure deals with sickness absence and the effects it has on 
employees and the organisation. Any form of abuse of this procedure will 
be dealt with under the Council’s Disciplinary Policy.

4.4 Any cautions issued under this scheme will not be taken into account 
when a disciplinary penalty is being determined.

4.5 Each sickness case must be judged on its merits, and the individual 
circumstances of each case must be considered with understanding and 
sympathy. The importance of the operational effect of the absence must 
also be taken into account.

4.6 At all stages of the procedure, a proper investigation should be conducted 
into the circumstances of the absence and appropriate information 
gathered.  

4.7 Work related factors, including the job itself, should be monitored by 
managers as part of this process to assess if they are adversely affecting 
attendance.  Employees should raise concerns with their manager or HR 
People Services if they believe their job, or any circumstances connected 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 15 of 63Page 139



Appendix 1

with their employment, is making them ill or contributing to illness. 
Employees should also advise their managers if they have any condition 
which is substantially affecting their ability to do their work. In such cases 
early referral to Occupational Health may be appropriate.

4.8 Employees must be advised by their managers of their right to be 
represented at all formal stages of this procedure by a Trade Union 
representative or a work colleague and that they have a right of appeal in 
relation to any formal action taken as a result of this procedure. Sufficient 
notice must be given to employees prior to any formal interview being 
convened. At the informal support stage an employee would not normally 
need to be represented but they may request it if they feel that the 
circumstances require it.

The routine Return to Work interview is excluded from these 
provisions.

4.9 Appropriate training will be provided to managers to achieve consistent 
and sympathetic treatment of all employees under this procedure. All 
employees must be made aware of the sickness procedures and their
responsibilities.

4.10 This Policy will link in with other associated Council policies in relation to 
health and wellbeing. Whilst the Council will manage cases in 
accordance with the provision of these policies, the fact that sickness 
absence is as a result of a disability, work related or caused by 
substance misuse does not mean that appropriate action cannot be taken 
in these circumstances. 

4.11 Employees will automatically be referred for a medical examination if the 
reason for their sickness absence is, Industrial Injury, work place injuries
or Occupational Ill Health. (Industrial Injury is defined as ‘an injury that is 
the result of the work that someone does or an accident at work that 
happens to an employee while they are performing their job and is as a 
result of the employer failing in its duty to provide a safe work 
environment’). Referrals may also be made at any stage during this 
process, regardless of the duration of sickness absence. Such referrals 
must be made through consultation with HR People Services and the 
employee informed accordingly. In all of the above cases it is the 
manager’s responsibility to contact the sickness team immediately.

In the case of Work Related Stress managers should ensure that when 
an employee makes contact to report sick and state this as the reason 
that they try and ascertain more information about the situation and 
where possible seek to resolve the issue straight away. There are 
relevant questions in the First Call Checklist that is on page 5 of the 
Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit. If the issue is not resolved straight 
away then a meeting with the employee should take place as soon as 
possible and will be facilitated by HR People Services. The meeting 
should look at constructive dialogue about the work place issues and 
additional information will be gathered in line with a stress risk 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 16 of 63Page 140



Appendix 1

assessment. A referral will take place following this meeting if the 
employee has not returned to work. This is due to a high percentage of 
stress cases being linked to organisational issues rather than being 
medical. By meeting as soon as possible with the employee and 
discussing the issues and looking at the areas identified within the stress 
risk assessment document HR People Services, the manager and 
employee may actually resolve any concerns and the employee could 
return to work without requiring a referral. If it is not possible to be 
resolved in this way the details of the discussion and the stress risk 
assessment will provide Occupational Health with the required 
information to deal more effectively with the referral. Employees may 
request for someone other than their line manager to be involved in the 
meeting and if this is the case the Service Area should allocate this to 
another appropriate manager to liaise with HR People Services.
Employees may be accompanied by a trade union representative or work 
colleague at the meeting.

Referrals may also be made where the employee expresses concerns 
about their health before they actually reach the point of reporting sick.

4.12 Communication with employees throughout any period of absence should 
be maintained by line managers. This will be managed through HR
People Services for cases of stress or absences of 4 weeks plus. This 
communication should also be maintained with employees who are 
suspended and are also sick.

4.13 Return to work interviews must be carried out by the relevant manager 
after every incidence of sickness, preferably on the day of return but no 
later than 3 days after the return to work, unless work patterns dictate 
otherwise.

4.14 The Council recognises that a proactive approach to health and well 
being is the best mechanism for improving the attendance and 
performance of employees.  It therefore is committed to developing such 
programmes on an on-going basis.

4.15 Employees who have more than one job with the Council and are absent 
from one job may only remain working in another job if the nature of 
illness does not impact on their capability to carry out the duties of their 
other job. Advice from HR People Services must be obtained in all 
sickness cases where an employee has more than one job with the 
Council and this includes where one post is a school based post.

4.16 Employees must not engage in any external work (paid or unpaid) whilst 
on sickness absence from the Council, without prior approval from their 
Operational Manager.

4.17 Any form of abuse of the requirements of the sickness procedure will be 
dealt with under the Council’s Disciplinary Policy.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 17 of 63Page 141



Appendix 1

SICKNESS NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

4.18 Service Areas will ensure that all employees are aware of this policy, and 
the specific sickness notification requirements relating to their particular
workplace. Reporting arrangements for employees who have varied work 
patterns is a matter for local determination but all elements of this 
process will continue to apply.

4.19 Employees need to fully comply with the procedure and any local 
reporting arrangements to be eligible to receive sick pay and this includes 
attendance at any occupational health appointments or contact meetings.

4.20 The provisions in relation to payment during sickness absence (except 
teachers) are:

During 1st year of service 1 months full pay (26 days) 

During 1st year and after completing 4 
months’ continuous service

2 months half pay (52 days) 

During 2nd year of service
2 months full pay and 2 months half 
pay (52 days) 

During 3rd year of service
4 months full pay and 4 months half 
pay (104 days) 

During 4th and 5th year of service
5 months full pay and 5 months half 
pay (130 days) 

After 5 years of service
6 months full pay and 6 months half 
pay (156 days) 

4.21 For teachers the provisions in relation to payment during sickness 
absence are:

During 1st year of service 

25 working days’ full pay and 
(after completing four calendar 
months’ service) 50 working 
days’ half pay

During 2nd year of service
50 working days’ full pay and 
50 working days’ half pay

During 3rd year of service
75 working days’ full pay and 
75 working days’ half pay

During 4th and successive years
100 working days’ full pay and 
100 working days’ half pay

In recognition of the anxiety that a reduction in sick pay causes for employees 
on long term sick a service to provide signposting to relevant benefits and 
advice is to be set up at satellite locations. These will be communicated to 
employees in general but also specifically to employees before they are likely 
to go into half or nil pay.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 18 of 63Page 142



Appendix 1

FIRST DAY OF ABSENCE

4.22 On the first day of absence, the employee (or, in exceptional 
circumstances, someone acting on their behalf) must contact the relevant 
manager or nominated representative by telephone as soon as possible.
This will be at least before the time stipulated by the Line Manager which 
will usually be before the scheduled start time for the employee. The 
manager should be advised of the start date of illness, nature of illness, 
likely duration, and any outstanding work commitments. This contact 
should be by telephone. If any employee has concerns about this process 
in relation to their access to a telephone or difficulty in using a telephone
they should discuss these concerns with their manager and agree 
alternative methods of communication. There is a First Call Checklist on 
page 5 of the Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit that managers should 
use to gather information from employees reporting sick. This form can 
then be attached to DigiGov when the absence is recorded. A copy of the 
form should be provided to the employee on request. If the Line Manager 
is not available when the employee calls in sick, the Line Manager will 
return the employee’s call as soon as possible. 

4.23 If the employee believes that their absence may have been caused by an
accident or incident that happened at work, including alleged work related 
ill health, they should inform their manager who will arrange for an 
Accident At Work Form to be sent to them for completion. Where the 
reason for their sickness absence is perceived work related stress the 
manager should gather more information about the situation and where 
possible seek to resolve the issue straight away (see paragraph 4.11 for 
more details on this).

4.24 If an employee is taken ill at work and continues to be absent the next 
day, the manager must be notified on the first full day of absence by the 
time stipulated previously.

SECOND TO FIFTH DAY

4.25 The employee (or in exceptional circumstances, someone acting on their 
behalf) must maintain this contact each day thereafter for the next four 
working days or until a Statement of Fitness for Work from the General 
Practitioner is submitted. This reporting requirement may be varied by the 
manager depending on the information received on Day One. Examples 
of this can be found in the Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit.

MORE THAN 7 DAYS ABSENCE

4.26 A Statement of Fitness for Work (previously known as a medical 
certificate) will be required on the eighth day of absence and should be 
forwarded to the manager or nominated representative. For continuing 
absences, further statements will be required. If a private Statement of 
Fitness for Work is requested at any time by the manager the cost will be 
reimbursed to the employee on provision of a receipt. Failure to provide 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 19 of 63Page 143



Appendix 1

these statements despite two reminders will result in the absence being 
treated as leave without pay rather than sickness. Managers will be 
prompted by DigiGov where a Statement of Fitness for Work is overdue 
and DigiGov contains standard letters for managers to send. Managers 
must inform HR People Services of any extenuating circumstances to 
prevent unnecessary stoppage of pay.

SICKNESS AND ANNUAL LEAVE

4.27 Employees who are taken ill on annual leave must follow the normal 
sickness notification procedure, including the requirement to make 
contact with their manager on the first day of sickness absence and 
submit a Statement of Fitness for Work to cover the absence dated from 
the first day of illness if they wish to reclaim the leave. 

4.28 Where an employee is on long term certified sickness and wishes to
travel on holidays, they must inform their manager in writing of their
intentions at least two weeks in advance. They should also provide written 
confirmation from their GP that they are fit to travel (ideally with an 
explanation of why they are fit for travel and not work) and that the holiday 
will not be detrimental to their recovery. 

4.29 The European Working Time Directive allows employees to carry forward
any annual leave which cannot be taken due to long term sickness 
absence. In this instance the calculation of outstanding leave will be 
based on the Statutory Entitlement to annual leave and bank holidays 
stated within the European Working Time Directive and not the Council’s 
annual leave entitlements. Any annual leave and bank holidays already 
taken will be deducted from the statutory amount to determine the amount 
of leave to be carried forward. Where an employee comes back before 
the leave year ends, any outstanding annual leave wherever possible 
should be taken before the end of that leave year.

4.30 An employee on sickness absence can request to take leave whilst they 
are sick. This may occur where an employee is in half or nil pay. If a 
request is made then the employee will receive normal holiday pay (if they 
are in receipt of SSP the Council will offset the SSP against the holiday 
pay). This will not break the period of sickness for reporting purposes and 
will not lead to the absence being counted as 2 separate absences. There 
is no requirement for an employee to get a Statement of Fitness for Work 
to say they are fit as they are not being required to work.

SICKNESS RELATED TO THIRD PARTY ACCIDENTS

4.31 Where an employee is absent as a result of an accident where damages 
may be receivable from a third party, the Council will pay the relevant 
sick pay entitlement, subject to the employee undertaking to refund the 
total amount paid, or a proportion (dependent on the damages received)
should the claim be successful. In such circumstances the employee

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 20 of 63Page 144



Appendix 1

must take all reasonable steps to pursue the claim, which must include 
the sick pay received from the Council. 

Where a full refund of the sick pay is made, the absence shall not be 
recorded for the purpose of calculating sickness entitlement or for trigger 
purposes. This will only happen once the refund has been received. If the 
refund is paid in part only, then the Council will decide to what extent the 
absence should be recorded against the occupational sick pay scheme. 
Advice on this issue is available from HR People Services.

RESUMPTION OF DUTIES

An employee who is sick may return to work at any time (including before the 
end of the Statement of Fitness for Work) without going back to see their 
doctor – even if the doctor has indicated that they need to assess them again.  
A suitable risk assessment must be carried out if requested by the employee 
or their trade union representative.

4.32 In order to assist in the organisation of work, employees must give the 
maximum possible notice to their manager of their return to work. Where 
specific rota schedules may be affected a period of notice may be agreed 
as a specific requirement.

4.33 It is the responsibility of Directors to ensure that there is a system within 
their Directorate to input sickness absence into DigiGov. 

SUSPENSION/ RECOVERY OF SICKNESS ABSENCE PAYMENTS

4.34 Sick pay may be suspended if an employee abuses the Sickness 
Absence Procedure by:

failing to provide relevant certification

failing to report on the days/ times stipulated by the manager

failing to attend 2 or more appointments with Occupational Health 
without giving prior notice

refusal to attend/ non attendance at Occupational Health 
appointments (reasonable costs associated with travelling to 
occupational health can be reimbursed upon production of receipts)

refusal to attend/ non attendance at contact meetings

Or is absent on account of sickness due to:

deliberate conduct prejudicial to recovery

misconduct or neglect

active participation in professional sport

working on their own account for private gain 

working for another employer (paid or unpaid) where they are able to 
access sick pay/ compensation from that employer

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 21 of 63Page 145



Appendix 1

4.35 Where sick pay is suspended, employees shall have a right of appeal, 
through the Grievance Policy.

PLASTIC OR COSMETIC SURGERY

4.36 Where plastic or cosmetic surgery is certified by a Medical Adviser 
indicating that such surgery is essential to the employee's health or 
wellbeing this is a valid reason for an employee to receive occupational 
sick pay.

4.37 If surgery is to be carried out without this certification then occupational 
sick pay will not be paid and arrangements for annual leave or unpaid 
leave must be made in advance. Statutory Sick Pay (SSP) would be 
payable and where annual leave is taken then pay will be offset against 
the SSP.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 22 of 63Page 146



Appendix 1

SECTION 5 - FREQUENT/ PERSISTENT ABSENCE

5.1 Frequent/ persistent absences are normally sporadic and are often 
attributable to unconnected, minor ailments. Absences of one day or less 
caused by pre-arranged appointments for doctors, dentists, hospital or 
physiotherapist etc, which are validated by an appointment card are not 
included, as these are covered by the special leave provisions (see 
Section 3). However, wherever possible employees should arrange such 
appointments outside working hours. Sickness Absences of less than 
a full day will count as a full day’s absence for the purpose of this 
Policy.

5.2 On some occasions, Managers will be required to take action in line with 
the short term absence trigger stages when there is a pattern of absence 
or the frequency/ quantity of absence gives cause for concern. Managers 
should specify why the absences are causing concern. Examples of 
patterns of absences are:

Sickness absence during School Holidays/ Christmas period

Sickness absence immediately before or after Bank Hols/ Annual 
Leave 

Sickness absence on Fridays/ Mondays

Sickness absence at other times of year (e.g. around deadlines, 
Inspections)

Recurring dates

Sporting events 

Always returning to work when going into half pay/ nil pay

Sickness Absences that always last 5 days or are of a similar duration

Sickness Absences that just miss out on triggers 

Repeatedly hitting informal stages

Sickness absence resulting from frequent/ regular industrial accidents.

This list is neither prescriptive nor exhaustive and there is no set number 
of times that absences have to occur before it becomes a pattern. Where 
a pattern is observed this must be dealt with in a timely manner. Although 
some patterns may take time to become evident a manager should not 
normally need to look further than 2/3 years for a pattern to be identified.
In relevant cases, Managers should consider whether it is appropriate to 
escalate the employee to the next trigger stage as set out in the Short 
Term Absence procedure.

5.3 There is no automatic entitlement to have any adjustments to the trigger 
stages for absences related to disability. Where an employee is disabled 
their absences should initially be counted for the purposes of the 
“triggers” for the stages below. However, whether they should 
subsequently be counted will be determined at the formal sickness 
absence trigger interviews and on receipt of medical advice (see 
Appendix 1 with regard to sickness absence related to disability and
Appendix 3 regarding critical illnesses).

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 23 of 63Page 147



Appendix 1

5.4 Pregnancy related illnesses will not be counted towards the trigger 
process. Where an employee is going through IVF then any absences 
linked to this after their eggs have been collected will not be counted 
towards the trigger process.

5.5 In order to calculate whether absences have automatically “triggered” a 
stage in this procedure, the relevant dates are the first day of the most 
recent absence back to the end date of the oldest absence in the time 
period, e.g. for the Informal Support Stage this would be the first day of 
the second absence in the six month period and the last day of the first
absence. DigiGov will notify managers when employees hit triggers.

5.6 Managers must conduct any sickness absence stage interviews within 14
calendar days of the employee returning to work. If these interviews are 
not held promptly there is the possibility of further absences occurring 
which would have triggered later stages of the policy. It is not appropriate 
to miss out stages in the procedure and move to a further level. 
Employees must have been interviewed in accordance with this 
procedure, allowed a period of time for improvement where appropriate, 
before moving on to a next stage of the policy.

5.7 There is flexibility to refer employees to Occupational Health for a 
medical opinion at any point in this procedure.

RETURN TO WORK INTERVIEWS 

5.8 The Return to Work interview is a key measure in supporting employees 
who have been unwell, controlling sickness absence, and identifying any 
underlying work related issues. It is therefore essential that managers 
undertake Return to Work interviews as soon as possible after 
employees return to work and within working hours. Compliance with 
Return to Work interviews will be reported to the Senior Management
Team and all managers are responsible for ensuring that their direct 
reports comply with this requirement.

5.9 Irrespective of the length of absence, all employees, on their return to 
work, must report to their manager and their manager will complete a 
Return to Work interview.

5.10 Ideally the Return to Work interview should be on the day of return.  
However, if that is not possible, it should be held no later than 3 days 
following the return to work unless work patterns dictate otherwise.

5.11 The Return to Work Interview Form, including the discussion notes on the 
back of the form, should be completed at the Return to Work interview. 
The form is available on DigiGov to print off prior to the interview but is 
also in the Attendance and Wellbeing Toolkit. The purpose of the 
interview is for the manager to discuss and raise any concerns about the 
individual’s health, well being, recovery and overall attendance as well as 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 24 of 63Page 148



Appendix 1

highlight any effect the absence has had upon the work of the section/
unit. During the interview the manager should discuss or consider, as 
appropriate to the circumstances, the relevant issues listed below:-

Enquire about the employee’s well being and ascertain whether 
they have made a full recovery

Bring the employee up to date on work related issues/ 
developments during the absence

Discuss whether there are any work related problems which may 
be connected to the absence/ and or whether the employee 
requires any support

Discuss whether the employee’s health is affecting their ability to 
carry out the job

Consider whether the employee’s illness could be regarded as a 
disability under the Equality Act 2010 and if so then a referral to 
Occupational Health may be necessary

Consider referral to, or involvement of, the Occupational Health 
Service 

Discuss whether there are any adjustments required to enable 
the employee to carry out the duties of the post

Remind the employee of the need for good attendance in order 
to maintain service provision, and the financial effect that 
absence has on the service area

Advise of the possibility of the employee hitting an absence 
trigger

Advise the employee of the help available through the in-house 
Employee Counselling Service

Advise the employee of the Council’s Stress Management Policy
and any other appropriate policies.

This list is neither prescriptive nor exhaustive.

5.12 Managers are responsible for closing down absence records on DigiGov 
when an employee returns to work and also for recording the Return To 
Work Interview.

Managers may wish to follow a similar process to the return to work process 
where employees have been absent from work for other reasons, e.g. jury 
service, bereavement, personal emergencies, etc

SHORT TERM ABSENCE TRIGGERS 

It is recognised that the majority of disabled employees maintain an excellent 
attendance record and that it should not be assumed that if an individual is 
disabled they are at a higher risk of sickness absence. Whilst the Council is 
committed to being supportive of individuals affected in this way and to 
implement reasonable adjustments, care must also be taken not to create a 
situation that can be abused and in turn be seen as unfair to other employees.
Where sickness absence occurs, reasonable adjustments such as modification 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 25 of 63Page 149



Appendix 1

to trigger points can be considered but this is not an automatic right under the 
terms of the legislation. Further advice on these should be discussed with HR 
People Services and the opinion of Occupational Health must be sought.

5.13 It is paramount that employees should be informed of their rights to 
representation at ALL formal stages by a trade union representative or a 
work colleague. At the informal support stage an employee would not 
normally need to be represented but they may request it if they feel that 
the circumstances require it. At each formal stage there is a right of 
appeal which is detailed in Section 8. 

5.14 Managers should provide support to employees who are experiencing 
periods of sickness absence. However, it is not usually appropriate for 
the manager to offer advice related to personal, financial or domestic 
problems.  The support referred to here is informal discussion and advice 
and not in-depth counselling which should be referred to a qualified 
counsellor e.g. via the Employee Counselling Service, if this is what the 
employee wants as an outcome of the discussion. An employee can be 
referred to occupational health at any stage and so there could be 
consideration of this.

INFORMAL SUPPORT STAGE

5.15 Managers are required to meet with employees to discuss their 
attendance where:-

(a) there are 2 absences within a 6 month rolling period

Or

(b) It is considered that the employee's pattern of absence is likely to 
lead to or is already causing difficulties - see paragraph 5.2.

Managers need to include the following when reviewing patterns:

Failure to attend work – Absent Without Leave (AWOL) (this will 
need to be dealt with as it occurs)

Special Leave 

Managers need to take into account any reasonable adjustments agreed.

5.16 The absences should be brought to the attention of the employee 
concerned and discussed to determine if there is any underlying reason 
for the absence. If it is discovered that the individual has some problem 
relating to their work situation, which has resulted in sickness absence, 
then this must be discussed with a view to rectifying the situation.
Managers should advise the employee that the next step in this process 
will be the formal stages of the procedure and that would be a written 
caution stage should there be further absences over the next 2 months or
the pattern of absence causes concern.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 26 of 63Page 150



Appendix 1

5.17 The manager has a duty at this point to consider carefully whether it 
would be appropriate for an individual who has a record of sickness 
absence to work overtime or undertake stand-by duties until their 
attendance sufficiently improves. Where an employee has been sick then 
the sick days do not count towards the 37* hours required for the over 
time rate to be paid. They need to have actually worked 37* hours before 
they receive the enhanced over rate (*36 hours until 31/3/15).

STAGE 1 – FORMAL FIRST WRITTEN CAUTION STAGE 

5.18 Managers are required to take action where following the informal support 
stage :-

(a) there are 4 absences within a 8 month rolling period

Or

(b) 1 additional absence of 6 calendar days or more within the 8 month
period

Or 

(c) It is considered that the employee's pattern of absence is likely to 
lead to or is already causing difficulties - see paragraph 5.2.
Managers need to include the following when reviewing patterns:

Failure to attend work – Absent Without Leave (AWOL) (this will 
need to be dealt with as it occurs)

Special Leave 

Managers need to take into account any reasonable adjustments agreed.

5.19 The absences should be brought to the attention of the employee 
concerned and discussed to determine if there is any underlying reason 
for the absence. If it is discovered that the individual has some problem 
relating to their work situation, which has resulted in sickness absence, 
then this must be discussed with a view to rectifying the situation.
Managers should advise the employee that the next step in this process 
will be the final written caution stage should there be further absences
over the next 6 months.

5.20 The manager has a duty at this point to consider carefully whether it 
would be appropriate for an individual who has a record of sickness 
absence to work overtime or undertake stand-by duties until their 
attendance sufficiently improves. 

5.21 The Stage 1 meeting will include a meeting (organised by the manager) 
involving the relevant manager, HR People Services, the employee and 
the Trade Union representative, where appropriate. The aim of this 
meeting is to ensure that all options have been considered.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 27 of 63Page 151



Appendix 1

5.22 Unless there are reasons under the Equality Act why it would be 
inappropriate, the employee concerned must be issued with a first formal 
written caution (the relevant documentation is available via DigiGov),
advising of possible consequences.  

5.23 The manager will place the employee under “Case Management” which 
will involve close monitoring of the situation. Each subsequent absence 
will be reported to the manager who will discuss the appropriate action to 
be taken with HR People Services.

5.24 The letter sent to the individual confirming the action to be taken should 
make absolutely clear that failure to improve the unsatisfactory absence 
record could lead to a further caution and that their future employment is 
at risk.

5.25 To allow an assessment of sustained improvement over a more realistic 
timescale, this formal written caution will remain valid for a period of 12 
months. HR People Services should be consulted and involved from 
stage 1 onwards. Should a formal written caution not be issued due to 
consideration under the Equality Act, the Sickness Workflow will be 
reset accordingly.

STAGE 2– FINAL WRITTEN CAUTION STAGE 

5.26 Managers are required to take action where following Stage 1:-

(a) there have been 6 absences within a 10 rolling month period;

Or

(b) 1 additional absence of 6 calendar days or more within the period of 
the stage 1 warning, i.e. 12 months

Or 

(c) an absence pattern emerges which causes concern - see paragraph 
5.2. Managers need to include the following when looking at patterns:

Failure to attend work (AWOL) (this will need to be dealt with as it 
occurs)

Special leave 

Or

(d) the employee fails to achieve and sustain the required improvement 
during the period of the caution, i.e. they have 2 further absences in a 
six month period.

Managers need to take into account any reasonable adjustments agreed.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 28 of 63Page 152



Appendix 1

5.27 The employee will be required to attend a formal hearing when their future 
employment position will be reviewed. 

5.28 The employee should be issued with a final written caution valid for 18 
months. The employee concerned must be left in no doubt that they have 
been given a final opportunity to substantially improve and sustain their 
attendance, or there will be no alternative but dismissal in accordance 
with Council’s procedures.  

5.29 As part of the Stage 2 meeting and following the issue of a final written 
caution, there will be a meeting involving the relevant manager(s), HR 
People Services, the employee and the Trade Union representative, 
where appropriate, to ensure that all options have been considered and 
to see if any further action can be taken.

5.30 If it has not already taken place, a medical opinion must be sought from 
the Council's Occupational Health Adviser in respect of whether there are 
any underlying medical conditions that should be taken into 
consideration. 

5.31 Where attendance levels have improved and been sustained as 
previously agreed, the manager in conjunction with HR People Services 
will consider ending “Case Management”. Monitoring of attendance will 
then recommence under the trigger point arrangements previously 
outlined from a date to be determined by the manager and HR People 
Services. Should a final formal written caution not be issued due to 
considerations under the Equality Act, the employee will revert to Stage 1
of the Procedure and the Sickness workflow will be reset accordingly.

STAGE 3 – POTENTIAL TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

5.32 Managers are required to take action if, following Stage 2, the employee 
has:

(a) 8 absences in any rolling 14 month period 

Or

(b) 1 additional absence of 6 days calendar or more within the period of 
the stage 2 warning, i.e. 18 months

Or

(c) fails to achieve and sustain the required improvement during the 
period of the caution, i.e. they have 2 further absences in a six 
month period.

Or 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 29 of 63Page 153



Appendix 1

(d) an absence pattern emerges which causes concern - see paragraph 
5.2. Managers need to include the following when looking at patterns:

Failure to attend work (AWOL)

Special leave 

Managers need to take into account any reasonable adjustments agreed.

CONDUCTING A STAGE 3 MEETING

5.33 The employee will be invited to a formal Stage 3 interview which will take 
the form of a hearing and be conducted by a more senior manager with a 
member of HR People Services present. The process is as follows:

Letter sent recorded delivery to the employee giving them 14
calendar days notice of the meeting, informing them of their right to 
be accompanied by a trade union representative or a work colleague
and advising them that a possible outcome could be termination of 
their employment. Where it is already known that the employee is 
represented then where possible dates should be pre-arranged with 
their trade union representative and the trade union representative 
would receive a copy of the letter.

Copies of the paperwork to be considered will be sent to the 
employee with the notification letter and they will be given the 
opportunity to submit any paperwork 5 calendar days prior to the 
meeting

At the meeting the employee's line manager will provide details of the 
sickness absence to date and the actions taken to date. The 
employee will be able to state their case and any factors they wish to 
have considered.

5.34 If absences are related to disability, managers should ensure no 
reasonable adjustment could have prevented dismissal (including 
discounting absence where recommended by occupational health/ HR 
People Services), that redeployment has been properly considered (if 
appropriate via the Council’s Redeployment Procedure) and that 
dismissal is fully justified in accordance with this policy. (See Appendix 
1).

5.35 The manager hearing the case will be able to question those involved in 
the case and will consider all representations before reaching a decision. 
The decision may be, but will not be limited to, one of the following 
outcomes:

there is insufficient evidence that reasonable adjustments and/ or 
redeployment have been fully explored and so it is not appropriate to 
terminate the employee's contract and a timescale will be given for 
this to be carried out 

termination of employment with appropriate notice or pay in lieu of 
notice.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 30 of 63Page 154



Appendix 1

5.36 The decision may be given verbally at the conclusion of the meeting and 
will in any event be confirmed in writing within 5 working days of the 
meeting. Where termination of employment is the outcome the employee 
will be notified of their right of appeal.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 31 of 63Page 155



Appendix 1

SECTION 6 - MANAGING LONG TERM SICKNESS

6.1 Long-term sickness absence is defined as continuous sickness of four 
weeks or more and can usually be traced to a particular medical 
condition. Management responses to long term absence are determined 
on the basis of much firmer medical evidence with advice and support 
from HR People Services and Occupational Health. A central sickness 
team in HR People Services will support the management of any 
sickness cases that go beyond 4 weeks. The manager is an integral part 
of the process but HR People Services will lead on the management of 
the case.

6.2 It is possible that long term absence, by its nature, will stem from a 
disability within the meaning of the Equality Act. If this is the case specific 
advice should be sought from HR People Services. (See Appendix 1).

6.3 Each case, particularly of long term absence, must be assessed on its 
own merits with advice and support from HR People Services and 
Occupational Health. However, the Council cannot keep jobs open 
indefinitely and the underlying principle in dealing with long term absence 
must be to balance the Council’s needs against the circumstances of the 
employee concerned. 

6.4 Employees may be referred for a medical examination at any stage in 
this procedure. However, as it is recognised that early support can lead 
to an earlier return to work then this will be done by HR People Services 
after the first Contact Meeting (which should be arranged by the manager 
by the time the employee reaches 2 weeks absence). It should be 
discussed with the employee at the Contact Meeting that a referral to 
occupational health will take place should they remain absent for 4
weeks.

6.5 No two long term absence cases are the same, and managers will be
supported with any long term absences cases by HR People Services
who will manage the process.

6.6 Managers may not be able to accommodate indefinitely the consequence 
of an employee’s long term absence and an assessment of this will need 
to take place following consultation with the individual concerned, HR 
People Services, Occupational Health and consideration of the service 
needs e.g. impact on the continuing sickness absence on colleagues’ 
workload and flexibility of the unit.

6.7. When an employee is on long term sickness absence the case will be 
reviewed and there will be consideration of the most appropriate future 
action. Clarification can be sought at any time in this process from 
Occupational Health. 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 32 of 63Page 156



Appendix 1

6.8 Where employees are on long term sickness and their condition and their 
work is such that they would be able to effectively undertake their duties 
from home, this may be arranged. The arrangement would be subject to 
the agreement of all parties and a risk assessment. Where employees 
carry out work from home under this provision, they will not be regarded 
as sick.

6.9 Where an employee is waiting to be seen by a consultant in relation to a 
medical problem and the appointment is unlikely to be within a 
reasonable timescale, Occupational Health may make arrangements for 
a consultant to examine the employee concerned and provide a report to 
the Occupational Health Adviser and the employee’s GP. In such 
instances, the fee payable will be met by the Directorate.

CONTACTING EMPLOYEES ON SICKNESS ABSENCE

6.10 Appropriate contact with employees on long term sickness absence is 
particularly important. Effective dialogue should continue throughout the 
absence to enable managers to have a clear understanding of the 
individual’s present health and future employment prospects, at all stages 
of the absence. Throughout this process, employees must always be 
informed that their employment is at risk. After 4 weeks absence HR 
People Services will coordinate this process. It is important that 
managers maintain contact during the first 4 weeks of absence.

CONTACT MEETINGS

6.11 As it is known that early support can lead to an earlier return to work then 
arrangements for a contact meeting (normally at the place of work) 
should be made when the employee reaches 2 weeks of sickness 
absence.  Thereafter, meetings will be coordinated by HR People 
Services on a regular basis (at least every 6 weeks) but attended by the 
manager along with a member of HR People Services. It should be 
stressed that this is not in any way checking up on the individual. 
Additional contact can be maintained by telephone and should be 
encouraged. However, telephone contact should be additional, not a
replacement for contact meetings unless in exceptional circumstances.

6.12 The contact meeting will be pre-arranged with the individual concerned.  
The employee may wish to be represented by a Trade Union during such 
a meeting. Arrangements should, as far as possible, be mutually agreed.  
Normally, meetings should be undertaken by the manager who will be 
accompanied by a representative from HR People Services.

6.13 If employees are not able to attend a contact meeting at their place of 
work then alternative arrangements should be made to use another 
venue, which could include their home or a neutral venue.

6.14 If, due to special circumstances, a contact meeting between the 
employee and the manager is not feasible, then regular contact should 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 33 of 63Page 157



Appendix 1

be maintained through other means e.g. telephone, letter, e-mail, contact 
with relatives, etc.

6.15 The aim of maintaining contact/ undertaking contact meetings is to be 
constructive and positive and to:-

keep in touch with employees who are absent

establish the length of time the employee is expected to be absent 
and inform them if and when a referral to Occupational Health would 
be appropriate

ensure the employee is aware of the Employee Counselling Service 
and how they can access it

ensure that the individual is kept acquainted with developments at 
work and that they do not feel isolated 

enable managers to establish if the cause of absence is job-related 

ensure that the employee is aware of the position of their future 
employment and has received a copy of this policy

6.16 Managers conducting contact meetings should do so with sensitivity and 
take into account the possible stressful nature of the meeting. However 
contact with the employee is maintained, a record of the outcomes, 
information sought/ provided and other associated actions should be 
made on the contact meeting form.

6.17 At the first contact meeting, the employee should be advised that the next 
step will be a medical referral to Occupational Health.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 34 of 63Page 158



Appendix 1

SECTION 7 - MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 

7.1 The Council has the right to require an employee who gives cause for 
concern as a consequence of illness to undergo a medical examination at 
any stage with the Occupational Health Service. Occupational Health 
endeavours to review an employee within 10 working days of referral and
where possible submit a medical report within 5 working days of 
examination. The Occupational Health Service can provide advice as 
follows:-

The likely duration of sickness absence

Where absence seems excessive in relation to the nature of the 
illness/ injury

Where there is concern about recovery

Whether there is a underlying reason for absence

Whether the absence is due to a work related cause

Adaptations to work activities or the working environment to enable 
an employee to continue to work in their substantive post.

Suitable alternative employment where the employee cannot return 
to their substantive post.

Rehabilitation after a period of absence

When referral to an Occupational Health Physician is appropriate

7.2 Employees who have been absent through sickness and are still absent 
following a Contact Meeting will be referred to Occupational Health by 
HR People Services. Employees will automatically be referred for 
medical examination if the reason for their sickness absence is, Industrial 
Injury or Occupational Ill Health. For work related stress the manager 
must find out as much information as possible about the reason for the 
stress. A meeting will then be arranged for the employee, manager and 
HR People Services. At this meeting there will be constructive dialogue 
with the employee and the relevant areas on the stress risk assessment 
will be explored. It is the manager’s responsibility to inform the HR 
People Services sickness team immediately where an employee is 
absent due to the above reasons in order for referrals to be made or a 
meeting arranged. An employee may request that this meeting takes 
place with someone other than their own line manager. Where this is the 
case a manager within the same service should be nominated. 

Referrals may also be made at any stage during this process, regardless 
of the duration of sickness absence. Such referrals must be made 
through consultation with HR People Services and the employee 
informed accordingly. See paragraph 4.11 for further details on referrals 
for work related stress.

7.3 The Occupational Health Adviser may be available to assist with a 
contact meeting in exceptional circumstances. 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 35 of 63Page 159



Appendix 1

7.4 Where an individual refuses to attend an appointment, the Disciplinary
Policy will be invoked. At each stage, the request to undergo a medical 
examination should be repeated along with a request to the employee to 
give reasons for any refusal.

7.5 The employee must notify the Occupational Health Service at the earliest 
opportunity and no less than 3 working days prior if they are unable to 
attend an appointment, e.g. they are too ill to travel, etc. If an employee 
does not attend an appointment (without giving any notice of non-
attendance) the case will be referred back to the manager. The manager 
will need to check with the employee the reason for non attendance and 
discuss with HR People Services the next steps. Failure to attend the 2nd

appointment (without giving notice of non-attendance) or refusal to attend
will result in a stoppage of pay and disciplinary action may be taken. The 
Occupational Health service must notify the relevant manager and HR
People Services of an employee’s non-attendance. 

7.6 If the employee has specific or real concerns about attending a medical 
examination or seeing a particular Occupational Health Adviser, the 
Council should take this into account and will be flexible to try to 
overcome these concerns.

7.7 The Council will take account of the Occupational Health Adviser’s or 
Occupational Physician’s report in making any decision in relation to an
employee. Employees can request that they are provided with the 
opportunity to see a report before it is sent to their manager and this can 
be covered  at the OH examination meeting. Whilst they may raise any 
concerns they have about accuracy, this does not give them the right to 
re-write the report

7.8 Occupational Health reports will be sent directly to the manager via 
DigiGov for them to liaise with HR People Services.

REFERRAL TO OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

(Please read in conjunction with Appendix 2: Action in Particular 
Cases)

7.9 All employees on long term sickness absence should be referred to the
Council's Occupational Health Service immediately after the first Contact 
Meeting for long term absence or when they hit Stage 2 of the short term 
triggers.

7.10 Managers need to provide as much information as possible to HR
People Services so this can accompany the Occupational Health 
referral and detail any specific issues they would like a medical 
opinion on. The referral MUST be discussed with the employee so 
that they are clear about the reason for referral. Employees are able 
to request a copy of the referral form.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 36 of 63Page 160



Appendix 1

7.11 A medical referral may be sought in the following circumstances:

Immediate referral in cases of industrial accidents and occupational 
ill health 

Referral for work related stress following a meeting with the 
employee to discuss the contributory factors and reach a resolution 
to any non medical organisational factors. This meeting must be 
arranged as soon as it is known that the absence is linked to work 
related stress

When advice is needed on the likely duration of the sickness 
absence and an indication of when a return to work is anticipated;

To provide an opportunity for confidential support and advice to 
employees affected by ill health or other wellbeing issues 

Whether an earlier return to work could be achieved on a part time 
or phased basis or to a different job, etc

When the length of absence appears to be longer than would be 
expected in relation to the illness or injury

When there appears to be serious doubt whether the employee will 
recover sufficiently to resume their duties

Whether there could be an underlying reason for the level of absence

Where the employee expresses such concerns before they actually 
reach the point of reporting sick

For advice on whether the Equality Act 2010 is likely to apply and 
whether reasonable adjustments are required

When advice is needed about whether employees are fit enough to 
attend meetings with management/ hearings as prompt resolution is 
in everyone’s interests (however, employees should be asked if 
they are able to attend first by the manager and it is only where they 
are unsure or say they are not well enough to attend that a referral 
to occupational Health should be made)

Reasonable costs associated with travelling to Occupational Health 
appointments will be re-imbursed to employees upon provision of a 
receipt. Employees should discuss with their manager whether travel can 
be organised via the service area.

7.12 Further referrals by HR People Services will take place as advised by 
Occupational Health. Further referrals should be to ascertain whether a 
return to work in the near future is likely.

7.13 The Council will need to assess future employment capability taking into 
account at least:

the medical advice received

the likelihood of the current level of absence occurring or some other 
illness arising

the length of the various absences and periods of good health in 
between

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 37 of 63Page 161



Appendix 1

the impact on those who work with the employee and the overall 
effect of the organisation

the likelihood of suitable alternative employment being found or 
accepted.

ACTION ON OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REPORTS

7.14 The Council’s Occupational Health Adviser will give an opinion on the 
individual’s fitness for work. HR People Services and the manager should 
at the earliest opportunity meet with the employee to discuss the report.
The manager must contact the employee within 7 calendar days of 
receiving the report to arrange this meeting. The meeting should be 
confirmed in writing with a copy of the report enclosed. Employees have 
the right to be accompanied at this meeting by a trade union 
representative or work colleague. .

7.15 There will usually be one of 5 options indicated in relation to the 
employee referred:

Option 1 - Fully fit to resume Duties

7.16 Where the occupational health report states that the employee is fully fit 
to resume duties, when HR People Services and the manager meet with 
the employee they will request that the employee to return to work. This 
can happen even where they are still covered by a Statement of Fitness 
for Work.

7.17 If it is considered justified for therapeutic reasons, the employee may 
return on a phased return to work for up to a month with the actual 
working arrangements being agreed with the manager and employee 
with advice from HR People Services. 

7.18 The situation will be reviewed after a month’s phased return and if the 
manager after consultation with HR People Services and Occupational 
Health considers it necessary, the period may be extended by a further 
month. The maximum period for any phased return will be 2 months.

7.19 Where an employee is undergoing a phased return, they will receive 
normal pay during the period in question. 

7.20 It is reasonable for the Council to rely on the opinions and 
recommendations of Occupational Health regarding whether an employee 
is fit to return to work. Where there is a potential conflict of opinion then 
each case will be considered on its merits. If necessary this may mean a 
further referral back to Occupational Health for a further opinion and to 
determine whether any additional measures or actions are required.

Option 2 - Unfit to return at present, but likely to be able to return within 
reasonable timescale.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 38 of 63Page 162



Appendix 1

7.21 The employee will remain sick but the case will continue to be closely 
monitored by HR People Services to ensure that there is the possibility of 
a return to work within a reasonable timescale.

Option 3 - Unfit To Return to Full Duties of their Substantive Post

7.22 Where employees are deemed unfit to return to the full duties of their 
post on a long term or permanent basis, consideration must be given to 
the three options listed below. While the options are being explored, the 
position with the sickness must be kept under constant review, with 
regular support continuing. At appropriate intervals, further medical 
referrals should be made to re-consider the options.

(i) Rehabilitation Within their Substantive Post

Rehabilitation within their post may take the following forms:

(i) A phased return to work  ( See paragraph 7.17 above)
(ii) Part time working either shorter hours or limited days per week 

on a long term basis, with subsequent reduction in pay
(iii) Changes to work practices

Any rehabilitation to the current job must be done in conjunction with any 
medical advice received and HR People Services.

It should be clearly specified whether any rehabilitation is on a temporary 
or permanent basis. Where it is on a temporary basis, the time 
constraints should be clearly communicated to all parties.

Any rehabilitation agreement should be reviewed on a regular basis until 
such time as the employee and manager do not feel it is necessary.

There may be a need to seek external specialist help e.g. Disability 
Advisers from Access to Work, to help to provide advice and guidance 
(see Appendix 5 for contact details).

(ii) Redeployment

Recommendations for redeployment must be based on medical grounds 
as advised by Occupational Health.

If medical redeployment needs to be sought, the employee must
complete the relevant form and apply for inclusion on the Redeployment 
Register in accordance with the Redeployment Policy which only gives 
an employee 12 weeks to find suitable alternative employment. Where 
the employee is suffering from an illness that falls under the provisions of 
the Equality Act 2010, consideration should also be given to 
redeployment to higher graded jobs (refer to Redeployment Policy & 
Procedure). Where a post is identified as a possible redeployment 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 39 of 63Page 163



Appendix 1

opportunity HR People Services will seek advice from Occupational 
Health on the individual’s likely fitness for the role..

Where an employee is not eligible for redeployment on medical grounds 
managers may contact HR People Services to discuss redeployment on 
others grounds as per paragraph 2.2c of the Redeployment Policy which 
states: ‘Employees need to be moved from one work environment to 
another either for service essential reasons or other exceptional circumstances’.

(iii) Mutual Termination of Contract and Early Release of Pension 
Benefits

Mutual termination of contract occurs where both the employee and the 
manager agree that employment should cease. Where the employee is 
eligible under the pension regulations, consideration will be given to an 
early payment of pension benefits. This will involve a reduction in the 
benefits payable because of the early release which must be agreed by 
the employer. This may involve an assessment by Occupational Health.

Option 4 – Unfit to Return to Work for the Forseeable Future 

7.23 The Council cannot keep jobs open indefinitely and if appropriate, HR 
People Services, in conjunction with the manager, will initiate 
proceedings to consider dismissal on the grounds of long term ill health. 
Before proceeding, given the sensitivity of the situation, a case 
conference will be convened by HR People Services with the manager.

7.24 Prior to dismissal, the Council should seek to redeploy and offer suitable 
alternative employment where available.  This will be important where the 
cause of the individual’s absence is disability related. Under the Equality 
Act this could mean either making significant alterations to a disabled 
person's original job to prevent "substantial disadvantage" or 
redeployment to a more suitable position.

7.25 Dismissal on the grounds of long term but not permanent ill health is 
distressing for both employer and employee. However, the Council has a 
duty to efficiently maintain its services and cannot therefore sustain 
indefinite long term absences.

7.26 To contemplate dismissal, HR People Services and the manager must 
have provided the employee with previous specific cautions that their 
employment is at risk. The first such caution, where appropriate, should 
take place after the Occupational Health Service referral and report.

7.27 The employee will be invited to a formal meeting which will take the form 
of a hearing and be conducted by a more senior manager with a member 
of HR People Services present. The process is as follows:

Letter sent to employee giving them 14 calendar days notice of the 
meeting, informing them of their right to be accompanied by a trade 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 40 of 63Page 164



Appendix 1

union representative or a work colleague and advising them that a 
possible outcome could be termination of their employment. Where it 
is already known that the employee is represented then where 
possible dates should be pre-arranged with their trade union 
representative and the trade union representative would receive a 
copy of the letter.

Copies of the paperwork to be considered will be sent to the 
employee with the notification letter and they will be given the 
opportunity to submit any paperwork 5 calendar days prior to the 
meeting

7.28 At the meeting the employee's line manager will provide details of the 
sickness absence to date and the actions taken to date. The employee 
will be able to state their case and any factors they wish to have 
considered. 

7.29 If absences are related to disability, managers should ensure no 
reasonable adjustment could have prevented dismissal (including 
discounting absence where recommended by occupational health/ HR 
People Services), that redeployment has been properly considered (if 
appropriate via the Council’s Redeployment Procedure) and that 
dismissal is fully justified in accordance with this policy. (See Appendix 
1).

7.30 The manager hearing the case will be able to question those involved in 
the case and will consider all representations before reaching a decision. 
The decision may be, but will not be limited to, one of the following 
outcomes:

there are insufficient grounds to terminate the employee's contract 
under this policy and further consideration should be given to the 
possibility of reasonable adjustments, e.g. allowing a longer period 
for recovery

further consideration given to redeployment 

consideration given to requesting ill health retirement, where 
supported by medical evidence

termination of employment with pay in lieu of notice.

7.31 The decision may be given verbally at the conclusion of the meeting and 
will in any event be confirmed in writing within 5 working days of the 
meeting. Where termination of employment is the outcome the employee 
will be notified of their right of appeal.

7.32 If a meeting is arranged and an employee is not able to attend, HR 
People Services will attempt to re-arrange the meeting within the next 5 
working days, at a mutually convenient time.

7.33 If a second meeting has been arranged with an employee but, for 
example, due to the health of the employee cannot attend, a decision will 
be taken in their absence as outlined in paragraph 7.30.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 41 of 63Page 165



Appendix 1

7.34 Following dismissal on the grounds of long term ill health:

(i) If after their appeal and notice period, an employee subsequently 
regains fitness to work, the Council could consider giving prior 
consideration to re-employment as close to their earlier grade and 
nature of work as possible;

(ii) If an employee in the pension scheme is subsequently found to be 
permanently unfit without regaining fitness to work, under the 
provisions of the Pension Regulations they may be entitled to a 
pension based on ill health retirement (early payment of deferred 
pension benefits).

There is the right of appeal against termination of contract on the 
grounds of long term not permanent ill health and this will follow 
the Sickness Appeal process detailed in Section 8.

Option 5 - Possible Ill Health Retirement

7.35 Where an employee is declared unfit to resume duties in the long term,
if they are a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme, they 
can request that their case is reviewed to see whether they would be 
eligible for ill health retirement. There are 3 tiers of ill health retirement 
and if an Occupational Health Physician, deems that the employee is 
permanently medically unfit , they will determine which tier of ill health 
retirement is applicable. Where an employee is in the Teachers’ 
Pension Scheme the employee would need to apply for ill health 
retirement.

7.36 Where ill health retirement has not been requested and such an opinion 
is received, HR People Services and the manager should meet with the 
employee and inform them of the position. If the employee decides that 
they wish to retire, their request should be confirmed in writing, and the 
procedure outlined above should be followed. However, if the employee 
wishes to be considered for alternative employment, then the Council’s 
Redeployment Policy should be utilised to seek suitable alternative 
employment. Where necessary there should be a referral to Occupational 
Health to ascertain what work would be suitable.

7.37 If a search for alternative employment is unsuccessful and the employee 
still does not wish to retire but it is decided that dismissal is the only 
option, the correct procedure must be followed. i.e. see paragraphs 7.27 -
7.31 above. Employees found permanently unfit on medical grounds will
normally be given a payment in lieu of notice.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 42 of 63Page 166



Appendix 1

SECTION 8 – SICKNESS APPEAL PROCEDURE

8.1 Where an employee appeals against any action taken under the formal 
stages of the sickness absence procedure, either short term or long term, 
the grounds and reasons for appeal need to be identified. 

8.2 At the commencement of the appeal hearing, the Chair of the Appeal (a 
manager more senior than the one that took the decision) will introduce 
all parties present, outline the procedure to be followed and will confirm 
that all parties understand the procedure. At any stage during the appeal, 
the Chair will be able to questions any of the parties present.

8.3 The manager that took the decision will outline the circumstances around 
the employee’s absence that led up to the decision to issue a warning/ 
proceed to dismissal and explain the rationale for their decision. The 
employee or their Trade Union representative and the Chair can ask 
questions of the manager.

8.4 The Chair of the Appeal should ask the employee or their Trade Union 
representative to outline the grounds of their appeal. The manager and 
the Chair can ask questions of the employee.

8.5 After both parties have provided their evidence, each will be given the 
opportunity to sum up the main points, with the Management Side going 
first.  No new evidence can be submitted at this stage. Following the 
summing up stage, all parties will withdraw leaving only the Appeal Chair 
authorised to make the final decision and the HR People Services 
representative.  

8.6 In making a decision, the Chair can, if required, recall any of the parties 
involved to clarify any areas of misunderstanding or doubt.  If one party is 
recalled, then the other party must be present to hear any questions and 
the answers provided.

8.7 The decision should be communicated in writing to the employee as soon 
as is reasonably practicable. The decision of the Chair of the Appeal will 
be final and there are no further appeal rights within the Council.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 43 of 63Page 167



Appendix 1

SECTION 9 – RELATED DOCUMENTS

Document Name Reference

Alcohol & Drug Misuse Policy 1.CM.134

Carers Policy 1.CM.188

Domestic Violence Policy 1.CM.153

Flexible Working Policy 1.CM.088

Dignity at Work Policy 1.CM.109

Reasonable Adjustments Guidance 5.C.275

Redeployment Policy 1.CM.207

Stress Management Policy 1.CM.118

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 44 of 63Page 168



Appendix 1

Appendix 1: GUIDANCE ON DISABILITY RELATED ABSENCES

1. From 1st October 2010, the Equality Act replaced the Disability 
Discrimination Act (DDA).   The Equality Act aims to protect disabled
people and prevent disability discrimination. The Disability protected 
characteristic of the Equality Act is complex and needs careful 
consideration in relation to definition of disability and of discrimination.
Advice can be sort from HR People Services and Occupational Health,

2. Under the Equality Act, a person has a disability if:

they have a physical or mental impairment 

the impairment has a substantial and long term adverse effect 
on their ability to perform normal day-to-day activities".

There is no definitive list of impairments covered by the legislation. The 
definition is very wide and depending on the nature and severity and the 
effect on normal day to activities might include, for example, people 
with:

Sensory impairments (vision and hearing)

Heart conditions

Musculoskeletal conditions, affecting the limbs, hands, back or neck

Recurring or fluctuating conditions such as arthritis, irritable bowel 
syndrome, Crohn’s disease

Mental health problems such as depression, schizophrenia, eating 
disorders, bipolar affective disorders, personality disorders

Epilepsy

Asthma

Dyslexia

Diabetes

Severe disfigurements

Learning disabilities

Progressive conditions (e.g. cancer, HIV or multiple sclerosis etc)

This is not an exhaustive list.

3. A disabled person has the right to take a complaint under the Equality Act 
to an Employment Tribunal. Where a complaint is upheld, the 
Employment Tribunal may award compensation and damages.  As with 
race and sex discrimination, there is no upper limit for compensation for
Disability Discrimination.

4. The Equality Act recognises that treating all employees the "same" can 
penalise disabled people unfairly. Consequently, to remove this 
disadvantage, employers are obliged to make reasonable adjustments to 
working practices to accommodate the needs of disabled people. This 
duty arises where a provision, criterion or practice applied by or on behalf 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 45 of 63Page 169



Appendix 1

of the employer, or any physical features of premises occupied by the 
employer, places a disabled person at a substantial disadvantage 
compared with people who are not disabled. Where the duty arises, an 
employer cannot justify a failure to make a reasonable adjustment. 
“Substantial disadvantages” are those which are not minor or trivial and 
must be causing a substantial disadvantage to the disabled person in 
question. 

5. An employer has a duty to make reasonable adjustments if it knows or 
could reasonably be expected to know that an employee is disabled. The 
implementation of adjustments is not an absolute duty. It is a duty 
to make a reasonable adjustment. In this context reasonableness will 
often depend on likely effectiveness, practicality and cost. Further 
information on reasonable adjustments can be found in the Council’s 
Reasonable Adjustments Policy.

6. In many cases employees will advise managers that they think that they 
are disabled. Managers may also use one to one meetings, return to 
work discussions and/ or Personal Performance and Development 
Review meetings where they think there is a problem to sensitively raise 
the issue. The Disability Rights Commission has advised that local 
authorities should follow self-classification systems, i.e. individuals define 
themselves as having a disability. Whilst the Council adopts this 
approach, to consider relaxing of triggers or discounting absences we 
would look for confirmation from Occupational Health that the Equality 
Act applies.

7. Where managers become aware that a disabled employee has a 
condition that is affecting their ability to do their job, consideration must
be given as to whether reasonable adjustments could be instigated which 
would enable the person to work effectively. Advice may be sought from 
the Occupational Health Service in order to clarify whether the Equality 
Act does apply and if so, whether there are any adjustments that the 
Council should consider. A review of adjustments should take place 
every 6 months (as per the Reasonable Adjustments Policy) and/ or 
when:

the effects of an existing impairment changes;

a disabled employee’s work or work pattern changes;

a disabled employee requires additional training.

8. Some examples of what could be considered as “reasonable 
adjustments” are as follows:

making adjustments to the working environment, e.g. making a 
doorway wider or easier to open, providing natural daylight bulbs 
or changing the height of shelving

allocating some of the employee’s less important duties to 
another person

redeploying the employee to fill an existing vacancy.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 46 of 63Page 170



Appendix 1

altering the employee’s hours of working, including flexible 
working

assigning the employee to a different place of work or training 
closer to their home

allowing the employee to be absent during working or training 
hours for rehabilitation, assessment or treatment

modifying instructions or reference manuals

modifying a policy, practice or criteria

providing a reader or interpreter

changing attitudes, e.g. providing mental health or HIV 
awareness sessions for staff to ensure a more welcoming 
environment, free from misinformed opinions and prejudice

acquiring or modifying equipment (advice may be obtained from 
the Access to Work Team) e.g. voice activated software an 
adapted keyboard or mouse

giving or arranging training or mentoring/ coaching

allowing an advocate to attend any meetings that take place as 
part of this process

allowing an employee to record meetings with the prior 
agreement of all parties and recordings to be made available to 
all parties with no editing

relaxing of the trigger stages as appropriate*. An example of 

this could be where an employee is undergoing treatment and
may want to come into work in between treatments rather than 
be on long term sick and so may have periods of short term 
absence following each treatment.

This is not an exhaustive list.

* It is recognised that the majority of disabled employees maintain an 

excellent attendance record and that it should not be assumed that if 
an individual is disabled they are at a higher risk of sickness 
absence. However, it is recognised that in some cases, medical 
conditions that may fall within the definition of disability may give 
rise to sickness absence. Whilst the Council is committed to being 
supportive of individuals affected in this way and to implement 
reasonable adjustments, care must also be taken not to create a 
situation that can be abused and in turn be seen as unfair to other 
staff.  Where sickness absence occurs, reasonable adjustments 
such as modification to trigger points can be considered but this is 
not an automatic right under the terms of the legislation. Further 
advice on these should be discussed with HR People Services and 
the opinion of Occupational Health must be sought.

9. Whether it is reasonable or not for an employer to have to make any 
particular adjustment will depend on a number of things, such as cost and 
effectiveness. However, if an adjustment is reasonable to make, the 
employer must make it. In order to avoid discrimination, it would be 
prudent for managers not to make fine judgements as to whether a 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 47 of 63Page 171



Appendix 1

particular individual falls within the statutory definition of disability, but to 
focus instead on meeting the needs of each employee. Each reasonable 
adjustment request made should be considered on an individual basis 
depending on the nature of the case.

Various factors influence whether a particular adjustment is considered 
‘reasonable’. These include: 

How effective the change would be in avoiding the disadvantage the 
disabled person, any other employee or member of the public would 
otherwise experience

Its practicality

Costs and extent of any disruption caused

The availability of financial and other assistance

Effect on other employees

Adjustments made for other disabled employees

10. Additional advice and support in this area is available from HR People 
Services and Occupational Health. 

11. Some practical examples of reasonable adjustments are as follows:

A person who is disabled because they have dyslexia applies for a 
job which involves writing letters. The employer gives all applicants 
a test of their letter writing ability. The person can generally write 
letters very well, but finds it difficult to do in stressful situations and 
within short deadlines. They are given longer to take the test. 

A call centre normally employs supervisors on a full time basis. A 
person with sickle cell anaemia applies for a job as a supervisor. 
Because of pain and fatigue relating to their condition they ask to be 
able to do the job on a part time basis. The employer agrees. The 
hours of work offered amount to an adjustment to a working 
practice. 

An employer has designated car parking spaces for senior 
managers. An employee who is not a manager, but has mobility 
impairment and needs to park close to the office and so is allocated 
a car parking space.

An employer makes structural or other physical changes such as 
widening doorways, providing ramps, relocating light switches or 
moving furniture for wheel chair users.

An employer reallocates minor or subsidiary duties to another 
employee as a disabled person has difficulty doing them because of 
his disability. e.g. a job involves occasionally going onto the open
roof of a building but the employer transfers this work away from an 
employee who suffers with severe vertigo.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 48 of 63Page 172



Appendix 1

12. The manager should talk to the employee who requires a reasonable 
adjustment to find out exactly what difficulties or barriers they are facing 
in achieving their role effectively. Once the specific detail has been 
ascertained, the Manager is likely to be in a position to assess what 
reasonable adjustments can be made to overcome the barriers 
experienced by the employee. If the Manager and the employee are 
able to easily and informally implement or accommodate the 
adjustment, without having to seek further advice from Health and 
Safety or Occupational Health; they should do so.

13. Records of the conversations/ agreements made between the manager 
and employee should be made, ensuring both parties have a copy. 
Where a more formal approach may be required then the documentation 
in the Reasonable Adjustments Policy should be used. 

14. Where a manager is considering refusing a reasonable adjustment they 
must refer to the relevant section of the Reasonable Adjustments Policy.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 49 of 63Page 173



Appendix 1

Appendix 2 - ACTION IN PARTICULAR CASES

1. An employee will be entitled to be paid if suspended from work on 
medical grounds under various statutes.

2. Where the individual is unable to work because of adverse medical 
reaction to workplace conditions, consideration should be given to a 
search for alternative work.

3. In cases where effective consultation directly with the affected individual 
proves difficult, the manager should keep in touch through relatives/
carers.

4. An investigation of every accident which results in time being lost from 
work will be undertaken by the manager and, where appropriate, the 
relevant Health and Safety Adviser.  A written report of the incident will 
be made. Similarly all alleged work-related ill health must be investigated 
by the manager with the support of a Health and Safety Adviser and 
Occupational Health Adviser. (Please see 1.CM.012 and 1.CM.122).

Terminally Ill Employees

5. In the case of a terminally ill employee, there is a need to consider the 
person's situation and their continued employment in a particularly 
sensitive and understanding way.

6. Consultation is a key part in determining the individual's wishes and in 
providing them with information on the best options available.

Alcohol/Drug Dependency

7. Managers should ensure that such issues are dealt with in an appropriate 
manner, i.e. recognising that normally drug/ alcohol dependency is a 
health problem, which could be treated, and that employees need to be 
treated with sympathy and understanding. 

8. HR People Services will provide assistance to managers in dealing with 
people who have dependency problems.

9. The Council's Alcohol and Drug Misuse Policy should be followed and 
training will be available to assist managers in this area.

10. Addiction to or dependency on alcohol, nicotine or any other substance 
(apart from prescribed medication) is explicitly excluded from constituting 
a disability under the Equality Act.  However, illnesses caused by 
addiction e.g. certain liver conditions, will be covered.

Stress

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 50 of 63Page 174



Appendix 1

11. It is a legal obligation for stress to be included in the health and safety 
risk assessment process. The Council has procedures and offers training 
in risk assessing and stress for teams and individuals.

12. The Council has a Stress Management Policy that should be 
implemented. e.g. in respect of risk assessing and implementation of 
Annual Service Area Stress Action Plans. The Council is addressing the 
Health and Safety Executive’s six stress management standards as part 
of its approach to managing stress.

HIV/ Progressive Illnesses

13. Managers should approach HIV and AIDS as one of a number of 
illnesses where mismanagement can result in stigma and discrimination
for the individual concerned. Confidentiality is, therefore, of the utmost 
importance and will be reflected in any Policy the Council determines.  In 
many cases, time off for counselling should be allowed and systems
should be established for the safeguarding of the employee's privacy.  An 
employee diagnosed as either HIV or AIDS is under no obligation to 
disclose this to the Council, however under the Equality Act a person 
diagnosed with HIV or AIDS is classed as disabled from the point of 
diagnosis. 

14. Progressive conditions are conditions which are likely to change and 
develop over time. Where an employee has a progressive condition, they 
will be covered by the Equality Act from the moment the condition leads 
to an impairment which has some effect on ability to carry out normal 
day-to-day activities, even though not a substantial effect, if the 
impairment is likely eventually to have a substantial effect on such ability
(with the exception of HIV/ Aids as per paragraph 13).

Critical Illness/ Cancer in the Workplace Policy

15. A manager may be one of their employee’s most important sources of 
support when faced with dealing with a critical illness such as cancer. An 
understanding of what that illness is, its treatment, side effects and the 
issues that may emerge during an individual’s recovery and return to 
work will help managers fulfil this important role. Macmillan has
developed specific advice and guidance for employers on how to handle 
cancer related cases and this has been incorporated into Appendix 3 
Critical Illness guidance. The Council has a Carers Policy which further 
supports staff in the management of attendance. Details of the Carers 
Policy can be obtained from HR People Services.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 51 of 63Page 175



Appendix 1

Appendix 3 – CRITICAL ILLNESS GUIDANCE

1. The Council has a responsibility to provide help and to support 
employees diagnosed with a critical illness and will be as flexible as 
possible in its approach to these situations, dealing with each case on its 
own merits. At a time of uncertainty and conflicting emotions for those 
diagnosed, this guidance endeavours to establish a good practice
framework approach whilst allowing flexibility to accommodate the 
circumstances of each case. It also provides guidance to managers in 
how best to support their employees and signposts sources of internal 
and external guidance and advice.

2. The way the Council responds to the needs of employees diagnosed with 
a critical illnesses will reflect its commitment to being an employer of 
choice, adhere to the Social Model of Disability and will impact on 
employee morale. 

3. For the purpose of this guidance a critical illness is broadly defined as a 
life limiting and/ or life threatening condition as diagnosed by a GP and/
or professional health specialist that may or may not require a course of 
treatment. By way of example, critical illnesses would include cancer, 
heart attack, Muscular Dystrophy, Parkinson’s Disease, polio, etc. This 
list is illustrative only and is not exhaustive.

4. An employee’s dignity, privacy and confidentiality should be respected at 
all times. Consequently, no sensitive information concerning their medical 
condition should be shared without their prior consent.

5. Every effort will be made to support individuals diagnosed with a critical 
illness and this will include sensitive communication with and appropriate 
involvement/ engagement with the employee whilst they are in work and 
during periods away from the workplace. 

6. Advice from Occupational Health and HR People Services should be 
sought at the earliest opportunity on the possibility , where practicable, of 
introducing temporary flexible working arrangements, where necessary or 
required, to support employees in managing their absence, treatment and 
related needs.

7. Employees will in no way be discriminated against on the grounds of their 
critical illness and the principles of the Council’s Equal Opportunities 
Policy will be fundamental to the implementation of this guidance.
Specifically, the Council will not discriminate against those diagnosed 
with a critical illness in relation to access to learning and development 
opportunities, promotion, secondment opportunities, etc.

8. Practical and relevant guidance, advice and support covering issues such 
as treatment, absence from work, return to work, work adjustments etc. 
will be made available to the employee. Further, in recognition that teams 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 52 of 63Page 176



Appendix 1

may also be affected by the employee’s situation, support and 
information will also be widely available.

9. Employees diagnosed with a critical illness should be treated fairly and 
consistently although each case will be slightly different.  However, where 
an employee feels that they have been treated unfairly as a result of their 
critical illness, the matter should be raised with their manager in the first 
instance who will seek to try to resolve the issue informally. If the matter 
cannot be resolved in this way, the Grievance Procedure remains 
available to the employee. The Grievance Procedure should not be used 
following any formal action taken against an employee in respect of the 
Sickness Absence Procedures. In these instances employees have the 
right to appeal using the appeals procedure outlined in the Sickness 
Absence Procedures.

PROCEDURE FOR EMPLOYEES DIAGNOSED WITH A CRITICAL ILLNESS

ADVISING MANAGERS

10. Once an employee feels able to share their diagnosis, they should advise 
their manager and/ or arrange to meet. If the employee feels unable to 
discuss this with their line manger, if they have been referred or have self 
referred, they can request that Occupational Health and/ or HR People 
Services can be involved on their behalf. In some cases, employees may 
feel more comfortable with Occupational Health advising the organisation 
about the illness as part of the Occupational Health report process. 
Occupational Health can provide advice in their report and agree a way 
forward with the individual regarding what information needs to be 
relayed to their manager. Occupational Health will provide appropriate 
support throughout the illness.

11. Although the initial disclosure may not be easy for the employee, it is 
difficult for a manager (and therefore the Council) to support someone if 
they are unaware of the individual’s circumstances. In practical terms, it 
is also difficult to attend treatment, take time off to meet health needs or 
ensure that work is covered, without the manager knowing the reason 
why and what is involved.

12. Employees have the right to be accompanied by a Trade Union 
representative or work colleague at any time during discussions with their 
manager.

13. The employee may not know the full extent of their illness until they have 
begun treatment, or had some form of surgical procedure/ investigation 
and so there may be a need to take time off at very short notice. This 
would be covered by time off arrangements in Sickness Absence 
Procedure, Special Leave Provisions or some other form of flexible 
working arrangements.

EARLY DISCUSSIONS

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 53 of 63Page 177



Appendix 1

14. Following disclosure of the diagnosis by the employee and as soon as it 
is appropriate to do so, the manager should meet with the employee 
and discuss:-

The provisions and application of the Sickness Absence Procedure 
including any reasonable adjusting advised by Occupational Health

Any need to take immediate time off e.g. special leave, annual leave 
to come to terms with the immediate diagnosis 

Any potential impact of treatment on the employee’s ability to work 
and whether working arrangements need to be temporarily adjusted 
to assist in supporting them to continue working

What agreed information, if any, should be shared with team/ work 
colleagues and when

Referral to Occupational Health, if not already done, to seek 
information about the illness, recommendations for returning to work, 
reasonable adjustments, possibility of redeployment, etc.

15. In practical terms, the employee will be offered information on:

The Council’s Sickness Absence Procedure and details of sick pay 
entitlements

Counselling and other support services, e.g. Employee Counselling 
Services, external support agencies

Flexible working information and possible work adjustment options 

Other sources of information and support

ADVISING WORK COLLEAGUES

16. It is up to the employee, when they feel ready, to share any information 
with others who need and/ or should know and they can either relay this 
information themselves or ask their manager to do so on their behalf. 
Where possible, the manager will agree with the employee from the 
outset what (if anything), when and who will advise colleagues and others 
at work 

17. Managers should respect the employee’s wish for privacy and 
confidentiality concerning their personal circumstances. At the same
time, however, the manager may need to make arrangements to cover 
sickness absence if it occurs.

PAYMENT OF SALARY/ WAGES DURING SICKNESS ABSENCE

18. The Sickness Absence Procedure will be applied (including provision of a
Statement of Fitness to Work, etc). The payment of sick pay will be in 
accordance with the relevant sick pay provisions and will be based on the 
employee’s sickness entitlement. Further advice can be sought from HR 
People Services or the Trade Unions.

OPTIONS FOR SUPPORT

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 54 of 63Page 178



Appendix 1

19. The employee may choose to seek counselling and support and this can 
be from the in-house confidential Employee Counselling Service, 
Occupational Health Service, the Disabled Employee Group or external 
agencies. Full contact details of further sources of information are 
attached in Appendix 5 of this policy.

20. Occupational Health, because of their required early involvement, will 
play a key role in advising on fitness for work, suitable alternative duties 
to be undertaken, reasonable adjustments, etc. The Council has a duty to 
make reasonable adjustments to workplaces and working practices to 
make sure that disabled people are not at a substantial disadvantage 
compared to others .What is considered a reasonable adjustment will 
depend on the costs and practicality of making the adjustment and 
affects on the employer’s business. Health and safety issues should also 
be considered.

21. Depending on the nature of the illness, the employee may wish to carry 
on working during treatment, either on a full time or part time basis. Prior 
to treatment; it is often difficult to know exactly how it may affect the 
employee so it is important that close contact on this matter is 
maintained. Full or part time flexible working options, where practicable, 
should be explored and discussed by the manager with the employee. 
Based on advice from Occupational Health, reasonable adjustments and 
modification should, wherever the job allows it, be made.

22. In summary the manager can help an employee by:-

Planning a reduced and/ or more flexible working arrangement,
e.g. changing the employee’s hours so that the employee can 
travel to and from work at less busy times (e.g. outside rush 
hour).  

Temporarily reassigning duties to others, if this is feasible and/ or 
considered appropriate.   

Encouraging the employee to take short breaks every now and 
again to rest. 

Allowing the employee to work from home, if the job can be 
reasonably adjusted to sustain home working for an agreed and 
time limited period of time

23. It may however not be practicable for the employee to continue working 
during treatment and consequently, they will be on sick leave. The 
manager should ensure that formal contact meetings, in accordance with 
the Sickness Absence Procedure, take place so that the employee knows 
what is happening at work and is kept up to date with developments.

TIME OFF FOR TREATMENT

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 55 of 63Page 179



Appendix 1

24. If an employee returns to work either during or after treatment, they may 
need to take time off for medical appointments and follow up procedures.
These appointments are covered as part of Special Leave provisions. 
The employee should, as far as possible, let their manager know of these 
appointments in advance so that any cover arrangements if necessary 
can be made.

EXTENDED PERIOD OF ABSENCE

25. If an employee needs to take an extended period of absence, this time off 
will be treated as sickness absence in accordance with their entitlement. 
Trigger points may be varied and advice should be sought from HR
People Services.

KEEPING IN TOUCH

26. Employees on sickness absence may feel very vulnerable which can 
exacerbate any feelings of isolation .In the case of a lengthy period of 
absence away from work and in addition to contact meetings by the 
manager; colleagues may wish to keep in social contact with the 
individual, in order to keep them updated on a range of matters.  Where 
contact meetings are not appropriate, the option of periodic telephone 
discussions by the manager to review how the employee is doing should 
be considered. 

AFTER TREATMENT - RETURNING TO WORK

27. Often a diagnosis of a critical illness will lead individuals to rethink their 
lifestyle and priorities. Some employees may choose not to return to work 
or are not able to do so. For others, work can take on an increased 
importance in their life.

28. It is important that employees returning to work, especially following a 
prolonged absence, are offered the support they need. After treatment 
has finished and, if the employee has not been working during this 
period, the basis of the return to work will need to be determined. This 
will be based on the Occupational Health advice received.  

29. Returning to work after a break of a few weeks or months can be 
physically and emotionally stressful and difficult to adjust to. The 
employee must take time to think about what is right for their situation 
and circumstances. Again, the role of Occupational Health is important.
Planning for the return to work and welcoming them back is key along 
with monitoring their progress once they have returned

30. Prior to the formal return to work, the manager will arrange to meet with 
the employee to discuss the options for making the transition back to 
work. A visit to the workplace by the employee prior to the formal return 
to work should also be considered. Other options to be explored could 
include:

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 56 of 63Page 180



Appendix 1

Agreeing a phased return to work within an agreed timescale, where 
an employee increases their hours gradually over a period to time

A change to working pattern or hours

Temporarily working from home, where the job can be appropriately 
modified  

Other flexible arrangements working or reduced hours

Modifying the employee’s role or some of the employee’s 
responsibilities for a temporary period

Help with transport to and from work, e.g. Access to Work

Reasonable adjustments to the employee’s physical location or 
workstation

Consider any training or refresher course that may be needed

Scheduling regular review dates for this transition period

IMPAIRMENT CAUSED BY CRITICAL ILLNESS

31. If an employee’s illness causes an impairment that affects the return to 
work, the Council will make reasonable adjustments to enable the 
employee to continue to work. The Disability provisions of the Equality 
Act 2010 cover all aspects of the employment cycle from recruitment 
through to an individual leaving the organisation, including after they 
have left. It also makes it unlawful for an employer to treat a disabled 
person less favourably, (e.g. an employer cannot refuse to employ or 
promote an individual simply because they have an illness that is covered 
by the Equality Act.)

32. The Act also protects an employee against harassment and/ or 
victimisation and makes it unlawful for an employer (or prospective
employer) not to make ‘reasonable adjustments’ for disabled employees 
(or job applicants), such as changes to employment practices and 
procedures and the working environment, if it means someone with 
illness covered by the Equality Act is placed at a substantial 
disadvantage. Further advice on these issues is available from HR 
People Services.

GIVING UP WORK

33. Some people choose to give up work completely when they are 
diagnosed with a critical illness. This allows them to focus on their illness, 
its treatment and to reassess their lives and priorities. If work has been a 
major focus of an employee’s life, it can be difficult to adjust to not 
working. If the employee wishes to leave, it is important to clarify the 
reasons why as sometimes these decisions are taken when emotions are 
at an all time low. Whilst such decisions are personal, employees should 
be encouraged to take proper advice before making the decision to give 
up work. In this situation an employee may want to seek counselling and 
talk this through. The Employee Counselling Service or external agencies 
listed in Appendix 5 can be accessed. The employee could consider 

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 57 of 63Page 181



Appendix 1

leave under the Sabbatical Leave Policy whilst they consider their long 
term options.

34. If following referral to Occupational Health the employee is considered to 
be permanently unfit and suitable alternative roles are not available, their 
employment will be terminated on ill health grounds with any associated 
pension benefits. If an employee is ineligible for retirement because of ill 
health, can no longer carry out their role and alternative employment is 
unavailable, termination of the contract may need to be considered. 
Managers should consult HR People Services and seek advice from 
Occupational Health to discuss options prior to making these decisions. 

35. It is strongly advised that in these circumstances, if the employee is in the 
Local Government Pension Scheme, they (or someone acting on their 
behalf) should contact the Pensions Section for advice on options 
available.

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 58 of 63Page 182



Appendix 1

Appendix 4 - GUIDANCE ON MENTAL HEALTH CONDITIONS

1. Where it is known that an individual suffers from a mental health 
condition, it is reasonable that the manager should take account of this 
when reviewing sickness absence.  In relation to the normal approach to 
sickness absence management, because of the nature of certain types of 
mental health conditions, managers should be particularly alert to the 
effects of their action on the employee.

2. In recognition of this, it is advisable that close liaison with Occupational 
Health, the relevant GP and Trade Union, etc is maintained throughout.  
Specialist bodies such as charities and Disability Service Teams in some 
of the larger local Job Centres can also be of help.

3. Mental health conditions include a wide range of experiences:  some 
conditions may be quite mild and moderate, while others may take on a 
more severe form, affecting a person’s ability to cope with day-to-day 
living.  

4. Mental health conditions can range from feeling ‘a bit down’ to common 
disorders such as anxiety and depression, to severe mental health 
conditions such as bipolar disorder or schizophrenia. 

5. No one really knows why some people react to life events far more than 
others. There are various medical, psychological and social factors which 
may contribute to a decline in a person’s mental health, but there is no 
one ‘cause’.  

6. Conditions may emerge suddenly, as a result of a specific event or 
incident, or gradually, over a period of time when the condition may
worsen or improve.

7. Some conditions are persistent and may be classed as a disability, while 
others come and go, giving the individual ‘good days’ and ‘bad days’.

8. According to some estimates, 1 person in 4 has some form of mental 
health condition in their lifetime. For as many as 1 person in 50, the
condition will be serious enough to affect their ability to work or to form 
personal relationships.

9. Illness is more easily understood if it is visible and mental health 
conditions may be less conspicuous than some forms of physical illness.  
An employee may also work very hard to disguise their symptoms, or 
they may develop other ‘secondary symptoms’ not directly related to the 
original condition – for example, the strain of coping with depression may 
cause someone to become dependent on alcohol or drugs. 

10. Many employees and line managers are uncomfortable talking about 
mental health.  Misconceptions about mental health conditions persist –

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 59 of 63Page 183



Appendix 1

mental health is often viewed as something disturbing or dangerous that 
lurks hidden beneath the surface of someone’s personality. 

11. Managers may also be reluctant to intervene because: 

They feel they may have contributed to the poor mental health of the 
employee – perhaps by overloading them with work

They do not have the confidence or knowledge to deal with an issue 
and may feel out of their depth.

12. You do not necessarily need to be an expert or counsellor to manage 
mental health conditions.  A good starting point is to manage physical 
and mental illness in the same way by focusing on: 

Effective line management, particularly around communication –with 
the employee and other employees 

Awareness of the issues and the ability to empathise – feeling 
sympathetic may not be appropriate

The development of an open culture in which employees feel able to 
discuss their problems

13. Learning about mental health conditions will prevent managers from 
feeling they are getting out of their depth and to judge when they need to 
refer employees to outside help.

14. ACAS have stated that there are three things you can do to help maintain 
the health of employees and help those with mental health conditions 
remain in work and productive: 

Spot the signs – This may initially mean taking a note of what you 
see as you walk around or in team meetings and then choosing the 
right moment to intervene. 

Engage with the problem – There are some good practical steps you 
can take to help with coping strategies, and some legal requirements 
you need to bear in mind, for example your duty to make reasonable 
workplace adjustments to the working environment in certain 
circumstances

Keeping a watching brief – This does not necessarily mean 
passively observing, although in some circumstances this be the best 
option.  Promote awareness of mental health issues and create a 
culture where employees feel they can talk to you about their 
concerns.  Keeping communication channels open is critical.   

15. The first signs of mental health conditions will differ from person to 
person and are not always easy to spot.  In many cases of moderate 
depression (the most common mental health condition) the person 
becoming distressed may not display symptoms, or may seek to hide 
them because they worry about what others will say or think about them.  
The key thing to look out for is changes in usual behaviour and some
common early signs of a mental health condition could be:

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 60 of 63Page 184



Appendix 1

Losing interest in activities and tasks that were previously enjoyed 

Poor performance at work 

Mood swings that are very extreme or fast and out of character

tearfulness

Self-harming behaviour

Changes in eating habits and/or appetite: over-eating, bingeing, not 
eating

Sleep problems

Increased anxiety, looking or feeling ‘jumpy’ or agitated, sometimes 
including panic attacks

Feeling tired and lacking energy

Isolating themselves, socialising less

Wanting to go out a lot more, needing very little sleep, feeling highly 
energetic, creative and sociable, making new friends rapidly, trusting 
strangers or spending excessively – this may signal that they are 
becoming ‘high’  

Hearing and seeing things that others don’t

Other differences in perception; for example, mistakenly believing that 
someone is trying to hurt them, or trying to take over their body. 

All these signs can vary in severity. They can be relatively minor, or pass 
quickly, or be particularly severe and distressing.  

16. Possible issues to raise with an employee who has a mental health 
condition (taken from SHiFT Line Managers' Resource -A Practical Guide 
to Managing and Supporting People with Mental Health Problems in the 
Workplace):

ask open questions about what is happening, how they are feeling, 
what the impact of the mental health condition is. Ask them what 
solutions they think there might be but appreciate that they may not be
able to think clearly about solutions while experiencing distress

how long has the employee felt unwell? Is this an ongoing issue or 
something that an immediate action could put right?

discuss whether work has contributed to their distress. Listen without
passing judgement and make sure you address their concerns 
seriously

are there any problems outside of work that they might like to talk 
about and/ or it would be helpful for you to know about? (You should 
not put pressure on the person to reveal external problems)

is the employee aware of possible sources of support such as 
relationship or bereavement counselling, drug/ alcohol services, legal 
or financial advice?

ask the employee if there is anything that you can do to help and make 
sure that they are aware of any support that the organisation may 
provide such as reference to occupational health, counselling and that 
if they access them it will be confidential

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 61 of 63Page 185



Appendix 1

is there any aspect of the employee's medical care that it would be 
helpful for you to know about? For example, side effects of medication 
that might impact on their work. While you have no right to this 
information, the employee should be aware that you cannot be 
expected to make 'reasonable adjustments' under the terms of the 
Equality Act if you are not informed about the problem

does the employee have ideas about any adjustments to their work 
that may be helpful? These could be short or long term

do they have any ongoing mental health condition that it would be 
helpful for you know about? If so, is it useful to discuss their 
established coping strategies and how the organisation can support 
them? It is the employee's choice whether to reveal this but you can 
explain that it will be easier for you to make reasonable adjustments 
for a condition you know about

establish precisely what they wish colleagues to be told and who will 
say what. Any inappropriate breach of confidentiality or misuse of this 
information might constitute discrimination under the Equality Act

agree what will happen next and who will take what action

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 62 of 63Page 186



Appendix 1

Appendix 5 – USEFUL CONTACTS

INTERNAL SOURCES OF SUPPORT

Employee Counselling Service

The Employee Counselling Service (ECS) offers free and confidential 
counselling to anyone who is employed by Cardiff Council.  

The Employee Counselling Service is confidential.  No-one will be told that an 
employee has been in contact: Manager, Supervisor or colleagues in People 
and Organisational Development do not have to know.  Employees can access 
the Employee Counselling Service between 9am - 5pm Monday to Friday 
(answer phone at all other times).  The telephone number is 029 2078 8301

HR People Services Advice and Guidance

Tel. 029 2087 2222 or hrpeopleservices@cardiff.gov.uk

Occupational Health Service 

Tel. 02920 788534 or 02920 788535 or occupationalhealth@cardiff.gov.uk

Pensions Section - Financial Services

Tel. 029 2087 2330 or pensions@cardiff.gov.uk

EXTERNAL SOURCES OF INFORMATION

Access to Work 
Jobcentre Plus
Alexandra House
377 Cowbridge Road East
Cardiff 
CF5 1WU
Email: AWTOSU.LONDON@DWP.GSI.GOV.UK
Tel: 0845/0345 268 8489

There are a number of external organisations that can provide support to 
employees with particular conditions and these can be found via the internet

1.CM.049 Issue 2 Page 63 of 63Page 187



APPENDIX 2

CORE CITY SICKNESS DATA

Background  

1. A request was sent to the following authorities to obtain data of their sickness 

absence.

Birmingham City Council

Bristol City Council

Leeds City Council

Liverpool City Council

Manchester City Council

Newcastle City Council

Nottingham City Council

Sheffield City Council

Cardiff has worked extremely hard to reduce levels of sickness absence and the 

ability to benchmark its performance against other major UK cities should aid further 

reductions in sickness absence levels.

2. Each authority was asked to provide the following information;

Question 1 Sickness information for the authority as a whole.

Question 2 Sickness information of FTE days lost per person broken down by 

service area with specific interest in the area of waste services.

Question 3 Age profile for the authority and waste services. 

Question 4 Confirmation if a separate sickness policy was used for manual 

workers compared to office workers, given the more intensive 

nature of the constant outdoors work? 

Question 5 What new initiatives, if any, have been introduced which have

shown a reduction in sickness absence levels?

Question 1 Responses - Sickness Information for Authorities as a Whole

3. Cardiff’s sickness data for both long and short term absence has been reported as 

shown below;  Each authority were asked to provided data under these headings to 

enable us to compare our progress.

Page 1 of 13Page 188



The City of Cardiff Council

Result 
Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long 
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE Days 
lost per 
person 
(LT)

Short term 
FTE Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

2009/10 12,786 87,017 6.81 64,911 5.08 151,928 11.88 3,460

2010/11 12,399 82,199 6.63 59,703 4.82 141,902 11.45 1,731

2011/12 11,985 83,077 6.93 54,585 4.55 137,662 11.49 1,751

2012/13 11,790 85,317 7.24 52,726 4.47 138,043 11.71 1,776

2013/14 11,677 
            

71,653 6.14
           

47,201 4.04 118,854 10.18 2,191

Core City Data

Birmingham City Council

Authority as
a whole Result 

Date
No. of 
FTE staff

Long 
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Birmingham
City Council

2010/11 17948.91 152064 8.47 58149
Not 
supplied 210213 11.72

Data Not available 
2011/12 16873.12 148509 8.80 48844

Not 
supplied 197353 11.67

2012/13 14795.91 119139 8.05 64256
Not 
supplied 183396 12.40

2013/14 13736.50 94311 6.86 52667
Not 
supplied 146978 10.70

Bristol City Council

Authority
as a whole Result 

Date
Headcount

Long 
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Bristol 
City 
Council

2010/11 8851

Data Not available 

77110 8.71

Data Not 
available

Data Not 
available

2011/12 8375 66091 7.89 367

2012/13 8052 67512 8.38 835

2013/14
Ending
31/05/14

7213 62258 8.63 967

Page 2 of 13Page 189



Leeds City Council

Liverpool City Council

Authority 
as a whole Result 

Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long
Term FTE 
Days Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term FTE 
Days Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(ST)

Total FTE 
days lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Liverpool
City 
Council

2010/11 6113.11 42888.94 5.87 17869 2.44 60569 8.29

Data Not 
supplied

497.66

2011/12 4987.53 33750.41 5.34 15179.68 2.40 49281 7.80 870.16

2012/13 4424.46 39448.23 6.75 15952.87 2.73 56951 9.75 146.19

2013/14 2890.03 34304.21 6.25 13682.70 2.49 47989 8.74 183.71

Manchester City Council

Authority 
as a 

whole
Result 
Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term FTE 
Days Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Man. 
City 
Council

2010/11 9310 62633 6.72 37135 3.98 99768 10.70

Data Not Supplied 
2011/12 7616 57491 7.54 30327 3.98 87818 11.52

2012/13 7495 51281 6.84 31060 4.14 82341 10.98

2013/14 6581 54381 8.26 26179 3.97 80560 12.23

Newcastle City Council

Authority 
as a whole Result 

Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total FTE 
days lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Newcastle
City 
Council

2010/11 7214

Data Not Supplied 

71627.81 8.35

Data Not 
Supplied

913.26

2011/12 6531 61198.59 8.05 722.15

2012/13 6114 55571.75 9.50 1034.97

2013/14 5322 47621.19 6.18 639.18

Authority 
as a whole Result 

Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long Term 
FTE Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term FTE 
Days Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(ST)

Total FTE 
days lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Leeds 
City 
Council

2010/
11 13158 104668.99 7.95 50367.37 3.83 155036.36 11.78

Data Not 
Supplied

2206.04

2011/
12 12876 91205.50 7.09 44647.75 3.47 135853.26 10.56 2285.98

2012/
13 12555 87393.60 6.96 45717.94 3.64 133111.54 10.60 1568.07

2013/
14 13136 93132.22 7.08 43010.54 3.26 136142.76 10.34 1076.71

Page 3 of 13Page 190



Nottingham City Council

Authority 
as a 

whole
Result 
Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long
Term FTE 
Days Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
perso
n (LT)

Short term 
FTE Days 
Lost

FTE
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total FTE 
days lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Notting.
City 
Council

2010/11 5667.52 44487.35 7.85 21489.44 3.79 65976.99 11.64

Data Not
Supplied

4176.18

2011/12 5413.20 35242.51 6.51 20313.73 3.75 55556.24 10.26 4355.63

2012/13 5432.11 35964.05 6.62 22161.43 4.08 58125.48 10.70 2833.29

2013/14 Data Not Supplied

Sheffield City Council

Authority 
as a 

whole
Result 
Date

No. of 
FTE 
staff

Long
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost per 
person 
(ST)

Total FTE 
days lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Industrial 
Accident 
Incidents

Industrial 
Accident 
FTE days 
lost

Notting.
City 
Council

2010/11 6686

Data Not Supplied

77154 11.54

Data Not Supplied 
2011/12 5848 71311 12.19

2012/13 6364 72712 11.42

2013/14 Data Not Supplied

4. Cardiff’s total FTE days lost per person for 2013/2014 is 10.18 days.  From the 8 core 

cities sampled for data, Cardiff shows more positively than 5 of them in connection to 

total FTE days lost per person.  However, the number of FTE staff varies considerably 

and so the closest comparable match with Cardiff is that of Birmingham City Council 

losing 10.70 days per person and Leeds City Council losing 10.34 days per person.  

Question 2 Responses - Sickness Information Broken Down by Service Area with 

Specific Interest in the Area of Waste Services

The City of Cardiff Council

Service Area: WASTE OPERATIONS, FTE in: Days

Post Type: Permanent,Temporary

Reporting Period
Short term 

Sickness FTE 
Long term 

Sickness FTE 
Total 

Sickness FTE 
No of Days Lost per 

Employee Year 

July 12 -March 13 3,325.99 4,396.38 7,722.36 23.94 

April 13 - March 14 3,627.49 5,700.16 9,327.65 21.36 

April 14 - Oct 14 1,103.93 2,587.18 3,691.11 16.42 

DigiGov Report as at 16.10.14 

Page 4 of 13Page 191



5. For several authorities it is not possible, since the introduction of Single Status, to 

identify those employees who could be deemed to be part of this part of the workforce 

and thus sickness information for them cannot be provided.  However, the below 

information has been provided by 5 authorities.

Birmingham City Council – Fleet and Waste Management Service

Fleet & 
Waste 

Management 
Services Result 

Date
No. of
FTE staff

Long 
Term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(LT)

Short 
term 
FTE 
Days 
Lost

FTE 
Days 
lost 
per 
person 
(ST)

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost

Total 
FTE 
days 
lost 
per 
person

Birmingham
City Council

2010/11 850.95 6264.15 7.36 3329.84 3.91 9594.00 11.27

2011/12 720.83 5643.79 7.83 2297.57 3.19 7941.36 11.02

2012/13 576.20 5786.78 10.04 2511.28 4.36 8298.06 14.40

2013/14 532.66 4700.83 8.82 1776.49 3.34 6477.32 12.16

Bristol City Council – Service Area Breakdown

Service Areas
Headcount *** Total FTE days lost **

Total FTE days lost per person
*

2011 2012 2013 2014 2011 2012 2013 2014 2011 2012 2013 2014

Restructured 
Department N/A 1 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A 4351 N/A 0 N/A 0.00

Chief Executive
N/A 83 197 N/A N/A 331 442 N/A N/A 3.99 2.24 N/A

Corporate
Services 1693 2076 2018 N/A 11574 15797 16298 N/A 6.84 7.61 8.08 N/A

Children Young 
People and Skills 1660 1581 1445 1320 15191 11949 11890 9749 9.15 7.56 8.23 7.39

Deputy Chief 
Executives

594 88 N/A N/A 4339 350 N/A N/A 7.30 3.98 N/A N/A

Health & Social 
Care 1908 1709 1596 1329 25706 18536 19176 12895 13.47 10.85 12.02 9.70

Neighbourhoods 
& City 
Development N/A 2837 2796 2003 N/A 19128 19708 15856 N/A 6.74 7.05 7.92

City Development 1016 N/A N/A N/A 6941 N/A N/A 6.83 N/A N/A

Neighbourhoods 1980 N/A N/A 5 13359 N/A N/A 0 6.75 N/A N/A 0.00

Organisational 
Development

N/A N/A N/A

1238

N/A N/A N/A

8507

N/A N/A N/A

6.87

People N/A N/A N/A 7 N/A N/A N/A 54 N/A N/A N/A 7.64

Place N/A N/A N/A 13 N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A 0.08

Business Change N/A N/A N/A 12 N/A N/A N/A 857 N/A N/A N/A 71.42

Public Health N/A N/A N/A 34 N/A N/A N/A 33 N/A N/A N/A 0.97

Regeneration N/A N/A N/A 1341 N/A N/A N/A 12416 N/A N/A N/A 9.26

*** Employees who have more than one job with the council are included once for each job

** Working days lost is based on Mon-Fri (excluding bank holidays) pattern applied to all 

instances of absences

* Average number of working days / shifts lost due to sickness absence per employee.  

Excludes absence of leavers

Page 5 of 13Page 192



Leeds City Council – Waste Services

Waste 
Services

Result
Date Total FTE days 

lost per person

Leeds 
City 

Council

2012/2013
11.77

2013/2014
13.58

Newcastle City Council – Refuse & Cleaning Staff

Refuse & 
Cleansing 
Staff Only

Result
Date

 

 

Sickness days lost 

per FTE Total FTE days 
lost per person

Newcastle
City 
Council

2010/11 Refuse staff 10.60

Cleaning staff 10.66

2011/12

Refuse staff 9.71

Cleaning staff 9.75

2012/13

Refuse staff 9.50

Cleaning staff 12.26

2013/14

Refuse staff 10.31

Cleaning staff 6.81

Nottingham City Council – Service Area Breakdown

Service Area 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Chief Executives 
Group 

8.91 5.98 8.29

Children & 
Families 

13.17 11.99 11.53

Communities 12.44 11.55 12.42

Development 9.22 8.51 9.72

Resources 8.29 8.61 8

The sickness levels for waste services in FTE days between 2010 and 2013, which in 

Nottingham City Council was called ‘City Services’ were as follows:

Waste 
Services

Result
Date

Total FTE 
days lost per 

person

Nottingham 
Council

2010-2011
16.81

2011-2012 11.29

2012-2013 13.97

Page 6 of 13Page 193



Question 3 Responses – Age Profile for Authority and Waste Services

6. Only those authorities below were able to provide the data following single status:

Bristol City Council

Age Profile as at 31.03.14

Age Range Staff

16 – 24 267

25 – 34 1,087

35 – 44 1,631

45 – 54 2,385

55 – 64 1,604

65 – 70 193

70+ 75

Liverpool City Council

Age Profile as at 31.03.14

Age Range Staff

16 – 24 159

25 – 34
578

35 – 44
973

45 – 54 1778

55 – 64 1184

65 + 174

Nottingham City Council 

Age Profile as at 31.03.14

Age Band All Staff City 
Services

16-19 74 28

20-24 342 59

25-34 1221 60

35-44 1643 89

45-54 2273 173

55-64 1331 111

65+ 140 9

Grand 
Total 

7024 529

Page 7 of 13Page 194



Manchester City Council – Service Area Breakdown

It is not possible to provide a breakdown to reflect waste/ cleaning services for Manchester 

due to single status:

Age Profile as at 31.03.14.

Department Age Range %

Corporate Core < 20 0.12

>= 70 0.12

20 - 29 2.61

30 - 39 8.31

40 - 49 11.41

50 - 59 11.50

60 - 69 2.31

Growth & Neighbourhoods < 20 0.03

>= 70 0.03

20 - 29 1.12

30 - 39 4.58

40 - 49 5.76

50 - 59 7.27

60 - 69 0.76

Children’s & Families < 20 0.15

>= 70 0.50

20 - 29 3.29

30 - 39 8.62

40 - 49 13.72

50 - 59 14.01

60 - 69 3.78

Grand Total 100

Newcastle City Council – Service Area Breakdown

Age profile as at 1 April 2014

Count of Pers.No. Age Range

Directorate 16 TO 24 25 TO 44 45 TO 64
65 TO 
74

75
AND 
OVER

Grand 
Total

Assistant Chief Executive's 3 141 133 4 281

Communities 97 1042 2068 54 6 3267

Investment and Development 69 50 119

Resources 61 299 387 2 749

Schools 189 2119 1851 50 2 4211
Tyne and Wear Archives & 
Museums 26 109 92 2 229

Wellbeing, Care and Learning 26 837 1091 32 1986

Grand Total 402 4616 5672 144 8 10842

Page 8 of 13Page 195



Age profile as at 1 April 2014

Count of Pers.No.
Age 
Range

Directorate Personnel Subarea 16 TO 24 25 TO 44
45 TO 
64

65 TO 
74

Grand 
Total

Communities Street Services 2 56 186 1 245

Waste, Rec & WM 3 46 90 139

Communities Total 5 102 276 1 384

Grand Total 5 102 276 1 384

Sheffield City Council

The graphs below illustrate the age profile of the Council as a whole and the five portfolios 

as at Quarter 4 2013/14. Household waste services in Sheffield are provided by Veolia 

Environmental Services under an integrated waste management contract. We therefore 

have no data relating to their age profile.

Page 9 of 13Page 196



Question 4 Responses – Separate Sickness Policy for office / manual workers

7. All authorities confirmed that they only have one Managing Sickness Absence 

procedure which applies to all council staff. However, Nottingham City Council’s 

Employee Health & Wellbeing team provides a number of health checks specifically for 

manual workers, including hand-arm vibration syndrome checks, hearing tests, sleep 

pattern checks for night working and confined spaces checks.

8. Bristol and Sheffield City both outsource their waste services.   Bristol’s waste services 

(bin collection and recycling) are out-sourced to May Gurney: 

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/press/recycling-rubbish-and-waste/new-%C2%A396-

million-waste-contract-means-fresh-approach-bristol.  However, cleaning of council 

property is still undertaken in-house. Sheffield’s waste services are outsourced to 

Veolia.

Question 5 Responses – New Initiative to reduce sickness absence levels

Birmingham City Council

Has introduced changes whereby employees can be assisted earlier via a final case 

hearing system to determine what assistance can be offered to an employee to assist them 

to return to work in a timelier manner than was previously the case. A new employee 

assistance programme is now in place to support employees.

Bristol City Council

A new Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) initiative was implemented on 1 April 2013.

Details of the programme are as follows:

The EAP provides confidential support, which is available to employees 24 hours a day 

and 7 days a week. If they are experiencing issues / concerns either at home or at work, 

then EAP is on hand to provide support and guidance to them wherever they are. The 

service is fully confidential and employees are able to refer themselves for support rather 

than requesting this via their manager.

Page 10 of 13Page 197



The team of trained counselling practitioners offer discreet, independent and unbiased 

guidance in a range ways. These include:

• Over the phone 

• Online 

• Face to face appointments 

• Mediation (this must be referred by Occupational Health): 

Over 1,000 employees have called the EAP service and 200 employees have had a face-

to-face appointment with the EAP since its launch earlier this year. There is no waiting list.  

Where appropriate, employees have been able to access face to face counselling within 

ten days of initial referral. Feedback from employees using the service has been extremely 

positive. 

Leeds City Council

Have introduced a corporate target for sickness absence (not disclosed) and every 

employee who triggers this is placed on Stage One of their internal policy.

Liverpool City Council

Have introduced new sickness trigger points (not disclosed) to prompt managers to 

address short term absences along with a series of new review meetings with timescales 

attached for addressing long term absences. However, these were only introduced six 

months ago, so it is too early at this stage to identify any clear impact or trends regarding 

reductions in overall sickness absence.

Manchester City Council

They have introduced proactive support from HR to managers on short term absence.  

There is targeted intervention linked to some of the major causes of absence and health 

checks for employees.  There are specific activities within the Directorates with the highest 

absence rates.  The below report details ongoing measures to reduce absence by the 

Human Resources Scrutiny Sub-Group. 

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/16727/2_attendance_monitoring

Page 11 of 13Page 198



Newcastle City Council

HR holds regular sickness surgeries with managers to discuss sickness absence and 

strategies to help enable staff to return to work or achieve sustainable attendance levels. 

The Council has a 24 hour counselling helpline for all staff. Directors run monthly sickness 

challenge meetings with their managers to discuss staff with a Bradford Factor of 500+.  

These meetings are also a way of ensuring consistency of approach across council 

directorates when managing sickness absence. Staff are referred immediately to 

Occupational Health for reasons relating to stress/anxiety/depression and musculoskeletal 

(these are the two main reasons for sickness absence at Newcastle).  The period of a 

formal sickness warning was recently extended from 6 months to 12 months.

Newcastle has introduced the following 2 new policies to provide more support to staff with 

caring and disability related health issues:

Disability Related Special Leave

Leave for Carers of Terminally Ill Dependents

The Council has recently launched their Wellbeing at Work booklet and as part of their 

Health at Work Award they have held health and wellbeing workshops across a range of 

council depots and offices.  These workshops offer staff the following:

Blood pressure test

Cholesterol test

Diabetes check

Body composition analysis

Healthy eating advice

Back massage taster sessions

Staff were then given additional support/directed to their GP if their test results showed 

cause for concern.

Page 12 of 13Page 199



Nottingham City Council

Has undertaken several ‘Improving Attendance’ road shows for employees to attend, in 

addition to undertaking an employee survey questionnaire to help further understand how 

issues of absence can be corporately addressed. The outcomes of this will be feed into 

new strategies for improving attendance.

Sheffield City Council

There has been an overall reduction in sickness levels compared to last year and links to 

improving managerial skill in tackling sickness absence and a focus on the issue within 

services. Children and Young People’s Portfolio has used workshops and a courageous 

conversations approach to dealing with sickness levels. The Portfolio has also invested in 

their approach through the purchase of additional HR support. A new Managing Absence 

Procedure has recently been launched replacing the Managing Absence and Capability at 

Work procedure. It includes new sickness absence trigger points and provides managers 

with a framework for identifying and supporting employees back to work as quickly and 

effectively as possible.

CONCLUSION

The Council is currently reviewing its Attendance and Wellbeing Policy and Procedures 

and will pay close attention to the initiatives implemented from other authorities in an 

attempt to further reduce our level of sickness absence.  It is encouraging to see that 

Cardiff shows more positively than 5 authorities on average days lost for 2013/2014.  Early 

intervention with employee support appears to be the key in tackling absence 

management.  2 authorities provide a 24 / 7 confidential employee counselling service with 

no waiting lists.  HR surgeries are held with managers along with skills training to tackling

sickness related absences and health checks are used with feedback on managing any 

conditions effectively to reduce the likelihood of future absences.    

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS TEAM

HR PEOPLE SERVICES

October 2014

Page 13 of 13Page 200



Cardiff County Council, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff Bay, CF10 4UW  E-mail: nhowells@cardiff.gov.uk 

My Ref: T: Scrutiny/PRAP/Comm Papers/Correspondence 

Date: 5 June 2015

Councillor Graham Hinchey,  
Cabinet Member, Corporate Service & Performance, 
Cardiff Council,  
County Hall 
Cardiff 
CF10 4UW 

Dear Councillor Hinchey, 

Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee:  2 June 2015 
Attendance & Wellbeing Policy Review 

Please accept my thanks on behalf of the Committee for attending the Policy Review 

and Performance Scrutiny Committee to facilitate consideration of the Attendance 

and Wellbeing Review. Please also pass our thanks to your officers who supported 

the scrutiny. The Committee has asked me to pass on the following comments and 

observations. 

Overall the Committee considers that the direction of travel of sickness absence is 

clearly in the right direction, however we feel that there is still some way to go on the 

journey. We suggest that, to have a more dramatic impact on the figures, greater 

urgency is required. Members were encouraged to hear that you will continue 

reviewing the policy, and when sickness absence reaches a plateau you will consider 

further measures. However it is Members’ view that at some point the Council should 

consider setting harder targets and timescales, and if these are not achieved then the 

Council should consider revising the policy. Members feel this view is justified given 

the significant cost of high sickness levels in services where agency staff are brought 

in to cover. The Committee would urge it is important that the Trade Unions continue 

to be a part of this journey.  

The Committee wishes to endorse the existence of an HR Central Sickness Team, 

noting that both the Environment, and the Sports, Leisure and Culture Directorates 

consider the support received from the team has been critical in assisting them to 

tackle sickness levels. They recognise the impact such support has had, and would 

therefore support its continuation going forward. 

During our discussion Members felt strongly that the strengthening of Occupational 

Health support will be a positive action in lowering sickness levels. They wish to add 

their weight to the views expressed by the Directorates they heard from at the 

meeting, that there is an opportunity for stronger, more challenging, occupational 

health support. For example, Members feel it would be helpful to take action if a 

Appendix 3

Page 201



Cardiff County Council, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff Bay, CF10 4UW  E-mail: nhowells@cardiff.gov.uk 

member of staff misses a first occupational health appointment. They also wish to 

propose that pay is stopped where occupational health appointments are repeatedly 

missed. Members are interested in the cost to the Council of missed appointments, 

particularly where those appointments have required the Council to book specialist 

sessional doctors. 

 
More generally, the Committee wishes to point out it considers it appropriate that the 

Council is more flexible with trigger points where there are long term sickness issues, 

for example where an employee has cancer and is undergoing radiotherapy. 

Members are most keen to support phased return to work from sickness absence, 

and welcome the recommendation of the review that staff be allowed to return to 

work without a doctor’s note. 

 
The Committee wishes to re-state its view that the key to achieving success from the 

freshly reviewed policy is the quality of implementation by all managers. Members 

feel that management accountability for tackling sickness absence is key. The 

Committee raised the matter of how managers are held to account for their team’s 

sickness absence levels over the period of a reporting year. They considered that, 

whilst sickness absence is a routine part of the Challenge Sessions, as compliance 

and training in policy implementation is key, a strengthening of holding managers to 

account might be appropriate. 

 
Members were interested to note that work related stress is automatically referred to 

Occupational Health; and that the manager is expected to identify the source of a 

stress related illness. Therefore they wish to suggest that sickness absence e-

training for managers be made mandatory.   

 
A few Members suggested that in some cases accidents that lead to long term 

sickness absence may be resolved sooner with private health care. They felt there 

may sometimes be a business case for earlier referral to a consultant. The 

Committee was therefore pleased to hear that HR is looking into Employee 

Attendance Support packages for staff.  

 
Members found it most useful to hear the experiences of two frontline services in 

tackling sickness absence, noting that there are challenging differences between 

those Directorates with many frontline workers exposed to sickness bugs in dealing 

with the general public. They were pleased to hear that the Sport Leisure and Culture 

Directorate trains all duty managers in the sickness & absence policy; has in place a 

Directorate action plan to tackle sickness absence levels; and monitors patterns of 

absence. They note also the particular difficulty faced by the Environment Directorate 

in achieving all Return to Work interviews within 3 days, due to the mobile nature and 

shift working patterns of operatives. 

 
You will be aware that the Committee has flagged up the value of comparative 

performance data on many occasions, particularly with regards to non-Welsh 

authorities. We were therefore pleased to note the core city sickness data 

Page 202



Cardiff County Council, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff Bay, CF10 4UW  E-mail: nhowells@cardiff.gov.uk 

comparisons you provided. Whilst this is reassuring, the Committee feel rather than 

comparing the City just with core cities, it would be enlightening to compare the 

Council with large organisations within business and industry. Members are aware, 

for example, that organisations that gave evidence to its Infrastructure Business 

Model & Alternative Delivery Options task group typically suggested they would be 

seeking to reduce sickness to 3 days FTE per annum.  

 

With regard to DigiGov, the Committee wishes to highlight the risk of inaccurate 

manual inputting of sickness data. The officers confirmed those checks are not 

currently a part of any existing audit and Members were pleased that you consider 

auditing the accuracy of data would be a good idea, and is achievable.  

 
During the meeting, the Committee requested clarification of the final sickness 

2014/15 outturn figures for Waste Operations. We would be grateful if this could be 

forwarded.  

 

Once again on behalf of the Committee, please pass my thanks to all who attended 

PRAP Scrutiny Committee to brief Members on the review of the Council’s 

Attendance & Wellbeing Policy.  

 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
COUNCILLOR NIGEL HOWELLS 
CHAIR, POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
cc   Christine Salter, Corporate Director Resources 

Philip Lenz, Chief Human Resources Officer  
Lynne David, Operational Manager, Human Resources 
Jane Forshaw, Director of Environment 
Malcolm Stammers, Operational Manager, Leisure & Play 
Cabinet Office  

 Members of the Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee 

  

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

ANTI - FRAUD, BRIBERY & CORRUPTION POLICY (INCLUDING 
MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND PROCEDURE)

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR RESOURCES    
AGENDA ITEM: 6    

PORTFOLIO:  CORPORATE SERVICES & PERFORMANCE (COUNCILLOR 
GRAHAM HINCHEY)

Reason for this Report

1. The purpose of this report is to present the Anti Fraud, Bribery and
Corruption Policy, and the Money Laundering Policy and Procedure for
Cabinet to approve.

Background

2. This policy was last reviewed and updated in 2011. 

3. Whilst the main thrust of the Policy has not changed significantly in 
recent years, Members will be aware from regular reports that the 
Council does deal with a number of cases of suspected fraud and 
financial impropriety and that there has been an increase in the number 
and complexity of these in recent times. This has emphasized the 
importance of having a policy in place which is fully understood and 
implemented consistently across the Council. 

4. The Financial Procedure Rules place a responsibility on Corporate 
Directors and Chief Officers to immediately notify the Audit and Risk 
Manager whenever any matter arises which involves, or is thought to 
involve, a breach of security, theft, or irregularities concerning cash, 
stores or other property of the Authority.  They are also required to liaise 
with Internal Audit in respect of the investigation of these irregularities.

5. In July 2014 the responsibility for investigating benefit related frauds 
transferred to the Department for Work and Pensions under the Single 
Fraud Investigation Service initiative, which impacted on the work 
undertaken within the Internal Audit team. Members will be aware a 
resource has been retained to target non benefit related fraud.

6. During 2014 - 15 Internal Audit undertook a wide range of non benefit 
fraud work and continue to be part of the National Fraud initiative. The 
team received notifications from directorates in respect of 48 cases that 

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 6

Page 205



required further investigation. These cases covered a range of 
allegations, including: flexi abuse, inappropriate use of social media,  
inflated hours, not following procedures, speeding, submitting false 
invoices, theft (from buildings, cash, stock, vehicles) and working whilst 
sick. A number led to disciplinary action, undertaken in accordance with 
the Council Disciplinary policy, and as a consequence there was 1 
prosecution, 6 dismissals, 7 formal warnings issued and 3 resignations.   

7. In recent times there has been a slight increase in the incidence and 
complexity of investigations undertaken and this has been reflected by 
having a Corporate risk for fraud on the Corporate Risk Register and a 
briefing is provided to the Corporate Director Resources - Section 151 
Officer and the Audit Committee each quarter.

8. There is a detailed review underway of the Council’s Disciplinary Policy 
and Procedure which has a direct impact on how suspected cases of 
fraud and financial impropriety investigations will be handled.  The 
Internal Audit team has contributed to this and worked closely with the 
lead reviewer.

9. Whilst updating the Anti Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy, it was 
apparent that the Money Laundering Policy and Procedure also required 
updating.

Issues

10. The Anti Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy (see Appendix A), sets out 
how the Council will prevent, detect and investigate any suspicions of 
fraud or financial impropriety both from within and referrals received from 
outside the Council, setting in place a framework to ensure a consistent 
approach. 

11. The opportunity has been taken to set out clearly the expectation of 
officers working within the Council and those who have dealings with the 
Council, in terms of our “zero tolerance” approach to this type of activity. 

12. The Section 151 Officer, under her responsibility for overall financial 
stewardship, plays a key role through the work of the Investigation team,
within Internal Audit.  Under the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules, 
Audit are required to be involved with investigations in all suspected 
cases of fraud, bribery and financial impropriety. The officers within 
Internal Audit are professionally trained in undertaking Investigations 
including PACE interviewing, surveillance etc. 

13. The policy highlights where the Council is proactive in adopting 
prevention and detection techniques and sets out a detailed process for 
investigation of cases to ensure these are undertaken to professional 
standards and in a consistent manner. 

14. The procedures recognise the role of Senior Management in terms of 
their responsibility for financial control and the actions of their members 

Page 2 of 3Page 206



of staff, but with the requirement that Internal Audit oversees and is
content with how the investigation is undertaken and reported. 

15. The main changes made have been to remove reference to the 
investigation/prosecution of benefit frauds as the responsibility to 
investigate benefit fraud transferred from the Council to the Department 
for Work and Pensions in July 2014 and to emphasize the zero tolerance 
approach given the increasing trend of referrals in times of austerity 
where it is even more important that all frauds are identified and acted 
upon as a priority.

16. In respect of Money Laundering, suspicious activity reports used to be 
dealt by the Serious Organised Crime Agency, but are now dealt with by 
the National Crime Agency.

Reason for Recommendations

17. To receive and approve the updated Policies, taking into account recent 
changes to the responsibilities for the investigation, and sanctioning, of 
benefit fraud.

Financial Implications 

18. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  

Legal Implications 

19. There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

approve the Anti Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Cabinet is recommended to
Policy, and the Money Laundering Policy and Procedure.

CHRISTINE SALTER 
Corporate Director Resources 
5 June 2015

The following Appendices are attached:

Appendix A – Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy
Appendix B – Money Laundering Policy and Procedure

Page 3 of 3Page 207



Appendix A

Anti Fraud, Bribery 
& Corruption 

Policy

A guide to the City of Cardiff Council’s 
approach to preventing fraud, bribery

and corruption, and managing 
suspected cases

Owner:  Derek J King, Audit & Risk Manager May 2015
Page 208



Contents Page

PURPOSE OF THE POLICY 1

FRAUD PREVENTION: 1
Policies, Action and Awareness 1
Recruitment and Training 2
Procedures for Preventing and Detecting Fraud 2

DETECTION 3

REPORTING: 4
Employees 4
Members of the Public 5

INVESTIGATIONS 5

POST INVESTIGATION 6

COUNCIL MEMBERS 7

CONTACTS 7

Page 209



FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY

PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

1. The Council is one of the largest employers in Wales, delivering services to
approximately 340,000 people, with assets, interests and annual transactions
running into billions of pounds. This policy details how the Council will deal with its 
responsibilities in relation to fraud, bribery and corruption, whether it is attempted on 
the Council or from within it.

2. The Council’s reputation is underpinned by ethical behaviour, financial probity and 
honesty.  Fraud, bribery, corruption or other dishonesty adversely affects the 
Council’s reputation and puts its ability to achieve its policies and objectives at risk 
by diverting the Council’s limited resources from the provision of services to the 
people of Cardiff.  

3. The Council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud, bribery and corruption and in 
managing its responsibilities is determined to protect itself against fraud and 
corruption both from within the authority and from those who have dealings with the 
Council. The Council is committed to an effective Policy designed to:

encourage prevention

promote detection

identify a clear pathway for investigation

act as a deterrent against future fraud or corruption

4. Members and staff are an important element in the Council’s stance on fraud, 
bribery and corruption and they are expected to be alert to the possibility of such 
activity in all their dealings and are positively encouraged to raise any concerns 
associated with Council's activities, either currently or in the past. They can do this 
in the knowledge that such concerns will be properly investigated.

5. The Council requires Members and employees at all levels to lead by example in 
adhering to legal requirements, financial and contract rules, codes of conduct and 
prescribed procedures and practices.

FRAUD PREVENTION

Policies, Action and Awareness 

6. The Council uses a number of ways to deter potential fraudsters from committing or 
attempting fraudulent or corrupt acts (including bribery) whether they are inside 
and/or outside of the Council, including:-

Having a zero tolerance approach to fraud;

Publicising the Council’s determination to prevent and detect fraud, bribery and 
corruption e.g. clauses in contracts, publications etc;

Acting robustly and decisively when fraud, bribery and corruption are suspected 
and proven e.g. the termination of contracts, dismissal, prosecution etc;

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 1
Page 210



Taking action to recover any losses through fraud, bribery and corruption e.g. 
through agreement, Court action, penalties, insurance etc;

Having sound internal control systems, which allow for innovation, whilst limiting 
opportunities for fraud, bribery and corruption;

Optimising the publicity opportunities associated with anti - fraud and corruption
activity within the Council and where appropriate, publishing the results of any 
action taken, including prosecutions in the media.

Recruitment and Training

7. The Council recognises that a key preventative measure in the fight against fraud, 
corruption and bribery is to take effective steps at the recruitment stage to establish, 
as far as possible, the previous record of candidates in terms of their propriety and 
integrity. Staff recruitment is, therefore, required to be in accordance with
procedures laid down by the Council. In particular, written references regarding 
known honesty and integrity of potential staff must be obtained before employment 
offers are confirmed. Where appropriate Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) 
checks will also be undertaken before appointments are confirmed.

8. It is essential that the Council delivers appropriate training to employees that relates 
to identifying possible fraud, corruption and / or bribery and that this is tailored for 
employees who are involved in internal control systems and financial and finance-
related systems. The development of appropriate knowledge and skills in respect of 
fraud awareness, prevention, detection and investigation applies more widely 
across the Council than those directly engaged in investigative work.  

9. Senior managers have a responsibility to understand and implement this policy in 
seeking ways of preventing fraud by working with employees specifically involved in 
the review of internal control systems and investigative work.

Procedures for Preventing and Detecting Fraud

10. There are a wide range of procedures in place to minimise the risk of fraud that 
constitute a major part of the Council’s system of internal control, designed to 
ensure the Council conducts its business properly and effectively and completes its 
transactions fully, accurately and correctly.

11. The Council aims to have in place efficient and effective systems of control that as 
far as possible prevent potential fraudsters from exploiting weaknesses. The prime 
responsibility lies with senior management who are expected to design and operate 
systems and procedures that will minimise losses due to fraud, bribery, corruption 
and other dishonest action. The Council’s Internal Audit Team supports senior 
management through an independent appraisal of the integrity of all internal control 
systems and assists with or leads investigations as appropriate.

12. Key documents in the prevention of fraud and corruption are the Council’s Financial
Procedure Rules and Contract Standing Order & Procedure Rules which must be 
adhered to at all times. Employees are expected to abide by their professional 
Codes of Conduct and the Local Government Wales Code of Conduct.. Members 

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 2
Page 211



are required to adhere to the Council's Member’s Code of Conduct – need link to 
this document.

13. Employees are reminded that they must operate within Section 117 of the Local
Government Act 1972, regarding the requirement to disclose any pecuniary
interests in contracts relating to the Council and not to accept any fee or reward
other than their proper remuneration. Employees are also required to comply with 
other Council policies such as those relating to gifts and hospitality etc. 

14. Any failure to comply with this policy may result in disciplinary proceedings in 
accordance with the Council’s Disciplinary Policy.

15. The County Clerk is the appointed Monitoring Officer in line with the Local 
Government Act 2000. This role includes overall responsibility for the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy.

DETECTION

16. It is important that there are ways of detecting fraud when it happens. Most systems 
will have controls to measure the throughput of transactions and provide
management reports for monitoring as a means of identifying suspected fraud.

17. The work of both Internal and External Audit is primarily to ensure controls are 
embedded into systems as a prevention measure, but as part of their work around 
compliance etc they will be proactively looking at areas where there is increased 
risk of fraud or financial impropriety and reporting any suspicions that arise. 
Management should also have inbuilt mechanisms to support early detection of 
anything untoward.

18. It is the responsibility of all managers, Members and employees to prevent and help 
detect fraud, bribery and corruption. 

19. The Council is committed to exchanging information with other local and national
agencies in order to identify and prevent fraud using data matching techniques. 
Such activity is carried out in full compliance with the Data Protection Act and with 
the Audit Commission’s Code of Practice for the National Fraud Initiative, Data 
Matching exercises, and includes providing information to other agencies for data 
matching purposes. Any employee found to be perpetrating fraud, corruption or 
bribery against a local or national agency could be the subject of disciplinary 
proceedings which could result in dismissal. Internal Audit, undertakes the NFI Data 
Matching exercise at least every 2 years.

20. With the increase in recent years of fraud perpetrated against a variety of public
bodies, which usually involve fraudsters having multiple identities and addresses,
the necessity for liaison with other organisations has become paramount. Some of 
these include Police forces, the Audit Commission, Universities and Colleges,
Student Loans Company, HM Immigration Service, Department for Work and 
Pensions and the National Anti Fraud Network.

21. Fraud, corruption or bribery is often detected because employees and the public are 
alert to this activity. Any person who suspects fraud or financial impropriety has a 
responsibility to report this and if in doubt, should contact Internal Audit for advice. 

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 3
Page 212



All referrals will be considered, but officers must not abuse the process by raising 
unfounded or malicious allegations.

22. Depending on the nature and anticipated extent of the allegations, Internal Audit will
work closely with Directorates, other agencies and, as appropriate, the Police, to 
ensure that all allegations and evidence are properly investigated and reported 
upon.

REPORTING

Employees

23. Under the Financial Procedure Rules – Section 4, Senior Managers are required to 
notify the Audit Manager immediately when any matter arises which involves, or is 
thought to involve, a breach of security, theft, or irregularities concerning cash, 
stores or other property of the Council, or any suspected irregularity in the exercise 
of its functions.

24. Suspected fraud can be notified in a number of ways, but in all cases it is important 
that employees and/or the public feel confident to report their concerns and are 
clear of the means by which they are able to do so.

25. If an employee discovers suspected fraud then they should first report the matter,
as soon as is practicable, to their line manager. Line managers should attempt to 
establish as many details as possible (by discussion with the notifying officer only).

26. If the concern relates to the employee’s line manager, the notifying officer may
consider reporting their concerns direct to the Audit Manager or the Section 151 
Officer.

27. Following any notification of fraud, financial impropriety or irregularity, Management 
should in the first instance take the following actions:

a. Send an email to the Group Auditor Investigations, d.hexter@cardiff.gov.uk
summarising allegation(s), including as much detail as possible;

b. Determine and agree with the Group Auditor Investigations who will lead the 
investigation i.e. Directorate or Internal Audit;

c. Determine and agree with the Group Auditor Investigations who will initiate 
actions where the allegation is against an employee

28. The overall responsibility for investigating suspected fraud, bribery, corruption or 
financial impropriety rests with management of the employing Directorate; however, 
the Section 151 Officer has overall responsibility for financial stewardship 
throughout the Council and as such seeks assurance, through the Audit Manager,
that a proper investigation is undertaken. 

29. For the majority of allegations a Director/Assistant Director will appoint an
Investigating Officer from within their own Directorate and it is important that this 
person is of sufficient grade, seniority and status with the appropriate skills,
experience and training to undertake the role. Ideally the Investigating Officer

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 4
Page 213



should be independent of the area where the suspicion has arisen to reduce the risk 
of any conflict of interest.

30. For all Investigations where the Investigation Officer is appointed from within the 
employing Directorate, support will be provided by an Investigator from the Internal 
Audit Team, who will provide professional advice and guidance and ensure proper
process is followed in accordance with this policy. 

31. There may be certain circumstances i.e. serious and/or complex cases or where 
monitoring of an employee’s movements are involved, where discussion with the
Group Auditor Investigations determines that it will be more appropriate for Internal 
Audit to lead the investigation. 

32. Where the circumstances suggest a criminal offence has been, or is about to be
committed, then consideration should be given to referring the matter immediately 
to the Police. Internal Audit can advise on this and need to be informed, at the 
earliest opportunity. In such circumstances reference should be made to the 
guidance “Police involvement in allegations against Council employees” contained 
within the Council’s Disciplinary Policy, Procedures & Guidance Notes

33. Every effort should be made to protect the interest of any person who honestly 
reports a suspicion of fraud or corruption to try to ensure they do not receive any 
adverse treatment as a consequence of making such a report.

Members of the Public

34. The Council’s website www.cardiff.gov.uk hosts an online referral form which may 
be completed by members of the public to report their suspicions.

35. Alternatively the Internal Audit Investigation Team can be contacted as follows:

Email: fraud@cardiff.gov.uk
Telephone: 029 2087 2284
Post: Audit Manager, Internal Audit Section, Financial Services, County Hall, 
Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW. All mail to Internal Audit is delivered unopened.

36. Any member of the public wishing to report suspicions of a breach of security, theft, 
or irregularities concerning cash, stores or other property of the Council, or any 
suspected irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the Council, should in the 
first instance refer to information, guidance and FAQ’s available on  the Council’s 
Fraud web page at www.cardiff.gov.uk. (Your Council/Council Finance/Managing the 

Council’s Finances/Fraud).

INVESTIGATION

37. The Internal Audit Investigation Team is professionally trained and follows
methodology in accordance with professional standards.  The team is available to 
offer advice and support to Investigating Officers. The team has a responsibility to 
provide assurance to the Section 151 Officer that all suspicions of fraud, bribery and 
corruption and financial impropriety are dealt with in an effective, efficient and 
consistent manner and it is important it works closely with the Directorate where 
fraud or financial impropriety is suspected.  

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 5
Page 214



38. In all investigations undertaken by the Council or the Police into fraud, bribery or 
corruption, the Council requires full co-operation to demonstrate and preserve 
transparency, integrity and accountability for the public funds it administers.

39. Whether the investigation is led by a Manager from within the employing Directorate 
or from within Internal Audit, it is important that both are kept fully informed and that 
there is an ongoing dialogue as the investigation proceeds.

40. Following an assessment of the case, where it is decided further investigation is not 
appropriate, then this will be agreed between the Investigating Officer and the 
Internal Audit Investigator. The officer who raised the initial concern will be notified 
with the reason why the matter is not being pursued.

41. All investigations into the conduct of officers will be undertaken in accordance with 
the Disciplinary Policy and Procedure. 

42. If at any time there is a suspicion or an allegation that a serious crime may have
been committed (or is about to be committed) the Directorate, in conjunction with 
the Audit Investigation Team, should immediately report the matter to the Police
(see paragraph 32).

43. Throughout all investigations the Investigating Officer will retain material obtained 
as part of the investigation. This includes not only material coming into the 
possession of the investigator (such as documents seized) but also material 
generated by them (such as interview records).

44. The Investigating Officer will ensure that interviews are conducted and statements
taken in accordance with relevant Council policy and procedures.

45. The Council's Disciplinary Policy, Procedures & Guidance Notes will be used where 
the outcome of the investigation indicates any evidence of employee misconduct.

46. Where a case to answer is established against an employee, this will be managed 
in accordance with the Disciplinary Policy. Internal Audit will report anonymised 
Disciplinary Hearing outcomes and sanctions relating to fraud, bribery, corruption or 
financial impropriety to the Audit Committee.

POST INVESTIGATION

47. The Investigating Officer is responsible for identifying and reporting on failures to 
comply with procedures and/or control failings, however, it is important that Internal 
Audit works closely with Directorate colleagues to ensure that all control issues 
relating to any suspected financial impropriety are identified along with appropriate 
actions to target weaknesses. 

48. Where applicable the Investigating Officer should incorporate weaknesses or 
failings in a report/action plan (along with appropriate recommendations to address 
the control issues) which will be forwarded to the Director for him/her to consider 
and act upon. 

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 6
Page 215



49. Internal Audit will follow up the issue of a report/action plan after 3 months to 
confirm all recommendations have been implemented or ensure progress is being 
made towards doing so. 

50. Where Directorates do not respond to the report of action plan, or there are delays 
in taking action, this will be referred to the Audit Manager and consideration will be 
given to advising the Section 151 Officer and Audit Committee.

COUNCIL MEMBERS

51. The County Clerk and Monitoring Officer, in liaison with the Audit Manager, will 
arrange for an appropriate investigation of referrals, in accordance with the 
Member’s Code of Conduct.

CONTACTS

52. Initial contact on any matters relating to investigations should be with David Hexter, 
Group Auditor Investigations, Tel: (029) 2087 2284, alternatively, contact the Audit
Manager, Tel: (029) 2087 2248.

53. Further guidance relating to making a fraud referral can be found on the Council’s 
internet site at www.cardiff.gov.uk (Your Council/Council Finance/Managing the Council’s 

Finances/Fraud).

___________________________________________________________________________________

X:\Cabinet Business\Formal Cabinet\11 June 2015\Cabinet 11 June 2015 Fraud Bribery policy 

app A.doc Page 7
Page 216



Appendix B _____________

Money Laundering Policy and Procedure

Cardiff Council

Page 217



                                                                                                                        MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY & PROCEDURE

1. Introduction

Although local authorities are not directly covered by the requirements of the Money 
Laundering Regulations 2007, guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accounting (CIPFA) indicates that they should comply with the underlying spirit of the 
legislation and regulations. 

The legislative requirements concerning money laundering procedures are lengthy and 
complex.  Cardiff Council is committed to the highest possible standards of conduct.  This 
policy has been written to enable the Council to meet the legal requirements in a way that 
is proportionate to the Council’s risk of contravening the legislation and to ensure that 
there are adequate safeguards and reporting arrangements to ensure that the Council is 
not used by 3rd parties for the purpose of money laundering.

This Policy sets out the procedures which must be followed and it is suggested that this 
be read in conjunction with the referral guide for money laundering, the Fraud, Bribery 
and Corruption Policy and the Financial Procedure Rules which governs the day to day 
operation of the Authority’s financial administration.

2. Scope of the Policy

This policy applies to:

All council employees (permanent, temporary or casual)

Elected Members

Agency Staff

Consultants

Contractors

Partners

The aim of this policy is to enable officers and Members to respond to a concern they 
have in relation to suspicions of money laundering activity as part of their work and sets 
out the procedures that must be followed.  The policy and procedures as set out are 
commended for use by schools.

Individuals who have a concern relating to a matter outside work should contact the 
Police.

3. Definition of Money Laundering 

Money laundering describes offences involving the integration of the proceeds of crime, 
or terrorist funds, into the mainstream economy. Such offences are defined under the 
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 as the following “prohibited acts”:

Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing criminal property from 
the UK 

Becoming involved in an arrangement which an individual knows or suspects 
facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by or on 
behalf of another person 

Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property 

Doing something that might prejudice an investigation e.g. falsifying a document 

Failure to disclose one of the offences above, where there are reasonable grounds 
for knowledge or suspicion Page 218



                                                                                                                        MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY & PROCEDURE

Tipping off a person(s) who is or is suspected of being involved in money 
laundering in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of, or prejudice an 
investigation 

Whilst the risk to the Council of contravening the legislation is low, it is extremely 
important that all employees are familiar with their legal responsibilities as serious 
criminal sanctions may be imposed for breaches of the legislation.  

4. What are the obligations on the Council

The main requirements of the legislation are:

Appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer to receive disclosures from 
employees of money laundering activity

Implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money laundering

Maintain client identification procedures in certain circumstances and 

Maintain record keeping procedures. 

The key areas covered by the Act relate mainly to Accountancy, Audit services and 
property transactions undertaken by Legal Services.  However, to ensure compliance with 
the law, all staff are required to comply with the reporting / disclosure procedure set out in 
section 6 below.

5. The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO)

The Council is not obliged to appoint a MLRO, however, it is considered to be best 
practice to nominate one or more officers to become responsible for their organisations 
anti money laundering activities. The officer appointed to receive disclosures about 
suspected money laundering activity within the Council is David Hexter, Group Auditor 
(Investigations) whose contact details are as follows: 

Group Auditor (Investigations)
Resources
Internal Audit
County Hall 
CF10 4UW

Telephone: 029 2087 2284

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer is responsible for receiving reports of suspicious 
activities relating to money laundering and evaluating the information provided, before 
determining if a referral should be made to the National Crime Agency.

6. Reporting Procedure for Suspicions of Money Laundering

Where a person identified in section 2 knows or suspects that money laundering activity is 
taking / has taken place, or is concerned that their involvement may amount to a 
prohibited act, a disclosure must be made to the MLRO as soon as is reasonably
practicable, a referral form is available on the intranet.  You must not make any further 
enquiries yourself or warn the individuals against whom you have concerns.

Page 219



                                                                                                                        MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY & PROCEDURE

The Council has set a general cash transaction limit of £13,000 (in line with the Money 
Laundering Regulations 2007) over which any transaction or group of transactions for the 
purchase of goods must be classified as suspicious.  This does not mean that 
transactions under this limit should not be reported, as all suspicious transactions,
irrespective of their value should be reported.

A significant overpayment of an amount owed, which results in a repayment should be 
treated as suspicious and advice sought from the MLRO. 

7. Client Identification

Although there is no legal requirement for the Council to have formal procedures for 
evidencing the identity of those they do business with, staff should be alert to potentially 
suspicious circumstances.  Where there may be doubt and in particular, when forming a 
new business relationship or considering a significant one off transaction, identification of 
the party to the transaction(s) should be sought.

8. Record Keeping

Each section of the Council conducting relevant business (Accountancy, Audit and certain 
Legal Services) must maintain appropriate records of:

Client identification evidence obtained and

Details of all relevant business transactions carried out for clients for at least 5 
years.  This is so that they may be used as evidence in any subsequent 
investigation into money laundering. 

The precise nature of the records to be held is not prescribed by law, however they must 
be capable of providing an audit trail during any subsequent investigation, for example 
distinguishing the party giving rise to concern and the relevant transaction and recording 
in what form any funds were received or paid.

9. Training and Awareness

The Council does not have any areas of activity that are considered to be especially
vulnerable to money laundering.  This is supported by the fact that local authorities are 
not included as a “relevant person” in the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 and are 
therefore not covered by those regulations.  

Those receiving, or arranging to receive cash on behalf of the Council must ensure they 
are familiar with this policy.  As the types of transactions which may be used by money 
launderers are almost unlimited, it is difficult to define a suspicious transaction.  

Training will be delivered upon request.

10.Further information

Money Laundering guidance is available from professional bodies (for example ACCA, 
CIPFA, IIA, The Law Society) and HM Revenue and Customs.

Page 220



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

APPROACH TO HOMELESSNESS ‘INTENTIONALITY’ 
DECISIONS

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES, HOUSING & 
CUSTOMER SERVICES

AGENDA ITEM: 7

PORTFOLIO: HEALTH, HOUSING & WELLBEING (COUNCILLOR SUSAN 
ELSMORE)

Reason for this Report

1. To confirm the City of Cardiff Council position on the use of intentionality 
in homelessness decisions Under the Housing Wales Act 2014 and in 
accordance with the Homelessness (Intentionality) (Specified Categories) 
(Wales) Regulations 2015.

Issues

2. On 2nd April 2015 Cabinet received an update on the progress with the 
implementation of the new homelessness duties under Part 2 of the 
Housing Wales Act 2014. Cabinet approved the approach to be taken 
including the consideration of intentionality in homelessness decisions.

3. The Welsh Government have since advised that decisions made by local 
authorities prior to the new legislation coming into force on 27th April 
2015 could be open to challenge. They have therefore recommended 
that decisions be remade after this date and have extended the deadline 
for local authorities to make their decisions on the use of intentionality 
until 1st July 2015 

4. The Council must then notify the Welsh Government before 1st July 2015 
and the decision must be published on the Council’s website at least 14 
days before it can take effect.

Intentionality

5. The new Act gives local authorities the option to continue to assess 
whether the applicant is intentionally homeless and to take this into 
account in determining whether they should be provided with 
accommodation. 

Page 1 of 4

Agenda Item 7

Page 221



6. While it is not envisaged that this power would be used in a large number 
of cases (only 5% of homeless cases were found to be intentionally 
homeless in 2014) it is still considered important that this remains an 
option. 

7. Consideration of intentionality works as a deterrent to households to 
discourage them from giving up accommodation which is suitable for 
their needs. It also deters behaviour which could lead to loss of 
accommodation such as deliberately failing to pay the rent or serious 
antisocial behaviour. It recognises the expectation that, where possible, 
people should take responsibility for their actions. 

8. To continue to consider “Intentionality” the Council must notify the Welsh 
Government and publish which priority need categories the ‘intentionality 
test’ will be applied to. These categories are -

A pregnant woman; 

A person with whom a dependent child resides; 

A person who is vulnerable as a result of some special reason (for 
example: old age, physical or mental illness or physical or mental 
disability); 

A person who is homeless or threatened with homelessness as a 
result of an emergency such as flood, fire or other disaster 

A person who is homeless as a result of being subject to domestic 
abuse; 

A person who is aged 16 or 17; 

A person who has attained the age of 18, but not the age of 21, 
who is at particular risk of sexual or financial exploitation; 

A person who has attained the age of 18, but not the age of 21, 
who was ‘Looked After’, accommodated or fostered at any time 
while under the age of 18; 

A person who has served in the regular armed forces of the 
Crown who has been homeless since leaving those forces; 

A person who has a local connection with the area of the Local 
Housing Authority and who is vulnerable as a result of one of the 
following reasons: 

i. Having served a custodial sentence within the meaning of 
section 76 of the Powers of Criminal Courts (Sentencing) 
Act 2000, 
ii. Having been remanded in or committed to custody by an 
order of a court, or 
iii. Having been remanded to youth detention 
accommodation under section 91(4) of the Legal Aid, 
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012. 

Proposal

9. It is proposed that intentionality should be considered for all of the priority 
need categories with the exception of 16/17 year olds, who it is felt 
cannot be deemed responsible for any loss of previous accommodation. 

10. Each case will be considered carefully on an individual basis to ascertain 
whether the loss of tenancy was really deliberate and to identify any 

Page 2 of 4Page 222



mitigating factors which should be taken into account such as whether 
they had unmet support needs which resulted in difficulty sustaining the 
tenancy or whether failure to pay rent was a result of financial difficulties 
beyond the applicants control. 

11. If found intentionally homeless the Council will not have a duty to provide 
accommodation however will still have a duty to provide advice and 
assistance and also help to secure accommodation. The Council may
also need to provide temporary accommodation while the applicant 
seeks their own accommodation. 

Reason for Recommendations 

12. To agree the approach to be taken to the implementation of the new 
homelessness legislation. The decision to consider intentionality in 
making homeless decisions must be forwarded to the Welsh Government 
and published on the Council’s website 14 days before it can be brought 
into force. 

Financial Implications

13. The Welsh Government has made available transitional funding for the 
implementation of the new homelessness legislation under the Housing 
Wales Act 2014. This funding is for the 3 year period 2015/16 to 2017/18 
and the grant award for Cardiff for 2015/16 has been confirmed as 
520,714. It is proposed that this grant will be utilised to meet all costs of 
the new responsibilities including additional staffing resources and the 
payment of bonds and other measures.

Legal Implications

14. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the 
legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 
imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in 
accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council 
e.g. standing orders and financial regulations; (e) be fully and properly 
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 
Council’s fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and 
proper in all the circumstances.

15. The Council may not have regard to intentionality, unless it has decided 
to have regard to one or more of the categories of applicants of 
applicants specified by Welsh Ministers in Section 78(1) of the Housing 
Wales Act 2014.

16. When discharging a housing function to secure that accommodation is 
available for an applicant who is homeless, or threatened with 
homelessness, a local authority must ensure that is suitable.

17. The Council has to satisfy its public sector duties under the Equalities Act 
2010 (including specific Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these 

Page 3 of 4Page 223



legal duties Councils must in making decisions have due regard to the 
need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality of 
opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected 
characteristics. Protected characteristics are:

• Age
• Gender reassignment
• Sex
• Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality
• Disability
• Pregnancy and maternity
• Marriage and civil partnership
• Sexual orientation
• Religion or belief – including lack of belief

18. As such a decision to implement the proposal has to be made in the 
context of the Council’s equality act public sector duties.

19. The report identifies that an Equality Impact Assessment has been 
carried out. The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure 
that the Council has understood the potential impacts of the proposal in 
terms of equality so that it can ensure that it is making proportionate and 
rational decisions having due regard to its public sector equality duty.

20. The decision maker must have due regard to the Equality Impact 
Assessment in making its decision.

21. The decision maker must also have regard to certain other matters when 
making its decision as outlined in the Statutory Screening tool. The 
decision maker is therefore referred to the Screening Tool attached.

HR Implications

22. There are no direct human resources implications.

RECOMMENDATION

Cabinet is recommended to agree to the consideration of intentionality as part 
of homeless decision making as set out in the report.

SARAH MCGILL
Director 
5 June 2015 

The following Background Papers have been taken into account:

Cabinet Report, 2nd April, ‘Implementing Part 2 of the Housing Wales Act 2014’

Page 4 of 4Page 224



CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF 
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CABINET:11 JUNE 2015

COMMUNITY COUNCILS CHARTER

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AGENDA ITEM: 8

PORTFOLIO: SAFETY, ENGAGEMENT & DEMOCRACY (COUNCILLOR 
DAN DE’ATH)

Reason for this Report 

1. To review and update the Community Councils Charter.

Background

2. On 8th March 2012, the Executive adopted a Community Councils 
Charter (“the Charter”), following consultation with relevant stakeholders, 
including the six Community Councils within the Council’s area and the 
Standards and Ethics Committee.  The Charter reflects the model 
Charter issued by the Welsh Government under section 130-133 of the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  

3. The aim of the Charter is to support structured, regular engagement and 
communication between the County Council and the six Community 
Councils in Cardiff, based on the key principle of equality of partnership 
between the two tiers of local government.

4. The Charter provides that it is to ‘be fully reviewed every four years or 
more often if there is a need to do so’; and that the ‘Standards and Ethics 
Committee will also review progress towards achieving the measures 
and actions set out in the Charter and Charter Action Plan respectively 
on an annual basis’.

5. In response to concerns about the implementation of the Charter, the 
Standards and Ethics Committee has reviewed the Charter, and at its 
meeting on 27th January 2015 the Committee resolved to recommend to 
Cabinet that the Charter should be updated.

Issues

6. The Charter adopted by Cardiff Council on the 8 March 2012 is attached 
as Appendix A to this report.  

Page 1 of 4

Agenda Item 8

Page 225



Proposals to update the Charter

7. The Standards and Ethics Committee considered the Charter at its 
meeting on 21st October 2014, at a Task and Finish group meeting on 
16th December 2014 and a further Committee meeting on 27th January 
2015. The Chair of the Standards and Ethics Committee and the 
Committee’s Community Council representative have also met informally 
with the Cabinet Member for Safety, Engagement and Democracy.
Discussions at these meetings have indicated that most of the Charter is 
still relevant and an important recognition of the role of Community 
Councils in representing their local areas. 

8. However a few sections of the Charter do need to be updated in the light
of the reduced resources now available to the Council. The Charter 
currently comprises 16 sections, out of which 5 sections have been 
identified as requiring revision, as follows:

Recognition

Local  Governance – Review obligation to hold regular quarterly 
liaison meetings (an annual meeting with the Monitoring Officer is 
a possible alternative) and to nominate a Community Liaison 
Officer (but seek to ensure that Community Councils have access 
to a contact officer).  Also, to delete reference to the “Proud capital 
leadership group” 

Consultation

Information and  Communication - Review obligation to provide
a list of contact persons (but seek to ensure access to a contact 
officer, as above)

Joint Working and Engagement

Land use Planning

Financial Support

Expertise

Ethics

Financial Arrangements

Delegating Responsibility for Service Provision

Sustainability

Community Strategy – Inserting reference to Neighbourhood 
Partnership arrangements was considered but not agreed to be 
appropriate from the Community Councils’ perspective.

Community Council Elections 

Action Plan - Review obligation to develop and monitor an annual 
Charter Action Plan in light of resource limitations.

Monitoring and Review – Review obligation to review Charter 
every 4 years (and develop an annual Action Plan) to reflect 
resource limitations.

9. The Community Council representative on the Standards and Ethics 
Committee, Community Councillor John Hughes, has discussed the 
current Charter arrangements and suggestions for improvement with the 
Clerks to the Community Councils.  The feedback received highlights the 
perception of many Community Councillors that County Councillors have 

Page 2 of 4Page 226



limited knowledge of the work of Community Councils and the 
contribution Community Councillors make to their wards.  It has been
suggested that from the Community Council’s perspective, the key to the 
success of the Charter will be improving communication and access to 
information.

Reason for Recommendations

10. To refresh and update the commitments set out in the Community 
Councils Charter to facilitate good working relationships between the City 
of Cardiff Council and the six Community Councils in Cardiff.

Legal Implications

11. There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations 
of this report.

Financial Implications

12. There are no direct financial implications arising from the
recommendations of this report, as any liaison or support must be 
provided from within existing resources.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to:

1. Note the information set out in this report;

2. Reaffirm the Council’s commitment to the aims of the Charter; 

3. Delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
relevant Cabinet Member, the Standards and Ethics Committee and the 
six Community Councils, to update the Charter and make any further 
minor amendments as may be required from time to time; and

4. Authorise the relevant Cabinet Member, with advice from the Monitoring 
Officer and Section 151 Officer, to sign the Charter (updated or amended 
under recommendation 3 above) on behalf of the City of Cardiff Council.

MARIE ROSENTHAL
County Clerk and Monitoring Officer 
5 June 2015

The following Appendix is attached

Appendix A A Shared Community – Charter between Cardiff Council 
and Community Councils in Cardiff

Page 3 of 4Page 227



The following background papers have been taken into account

Standards & Ethics Committee reports ‘Community Councils Charter’, dated 21 
October 2014 and 27 January 2015; and minutes thereof;

Executive report ‘A Shared Community – Charter Between Cardiff Council and 
Community Councils in Cardiff’, 8th March 2012; and minutes thereof

Page 4 of 4Page 228



Appendix A

Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 11 JUNE 2015

RESIDENTIAL EXTENSIONS AND ALTERATIONS 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE (SPG)

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, 
HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION

AGENDA ITEM:  9

PORTFOLIO: TRANSPORT, PLANNING & SUSTAINABILITY (COUNCILLOR 
RAMESH PATEL)

Reason for this Report

1. This report seeks approval of the Residential Extensions and Alterations 
document as Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 

Background

2. Welsh Government guidance encourages local planning authorities to 
prepare SPG to provide advice on how development plan policies will be 
implemented. Such guidance should help those involved in the 
development and planning process understand the purpose and 
objectives of policies and assist the submission of permissible planning 
applications.

3. SPG must be consistent with planning legislation, guidance and relevant 
development plan policies. It should be prepared in consultation with the 
public and appropriate interests, and their views should be taken into 
account before formal Council approval. SPG may be given weight as a 
material consideration when making decisions on planning applications.

4. The design guidance for Residential Extensions and Alterations will 
update and replace the Householder Design Guide SPG (Approved 
March 2007) which formed one of a series of design guidance 
documents prepared by the Authority to guide the design quality of 
development in Cardiff.

Issues

5. Residential Extensions & Alterations are one of the most common forms 
of development and the majority of planning applications made to the 
Council are householder applications.

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 9

Page 241



6. Both individually and cumulatively, extensions and alterations can have a 
significant impact on the quality of the built environment. Changes to 
Permitted Development came into force in 2013 which allows 
homeowners to build larger home extensions and garden buildings 
without planning permission. Guidance is required to give advice as to 
what is acceptable in planning terms.

7. The SPG sets out what applicants should consider when planning to 
extend or alter their home, even if it does not require planning 
permission.

8. The Residential Extensions and Alterations SPG will update and replace 
the Householder Design Guide SPG (Approved March 2007) and will 
form Supplementary Planning Guidance to Policy 11: Design and 
Aesthetic Quality, of the City of Cardiff Local Plan (Jan 1996)

9. It will offer robust design guidance in line with national planning policy 
and will assist Development Management when assessing planning 
applications.

Public Consultation

10. Public consultation was undertaken between 17th November and 15th

December 2014. A press notice was placed in a local newspaper on 
Monday 17th November 2014 and notices and copies of the draft 
guidance were placed in all Cardiff library facilities and at County Hall 
Reception. The draft guidance was also published on the Council 
website.

11. Letters notifying that a public consultation was being undertaken on the 
draft guidance were sent to all Cardiff Councillors, the Welsh Assembly 
Government, Community Councils in Cardiff and other organisations and 
individuals known to have general interest in planning in Cardiff or a 
potential interest in this guidance.

12. A total of 30 representations were received from 10 respondents. These 
have been considered and where necessary amendments have been 
made to the document. A summary of the consultation 
responses/representations received have been included in Appendix D of 
the document.  

Local Member consultation 

13. Member consultation was undertaken as part of the Public Consultation 
identified in paragraphs 10 – 12 above.

14. Three responses to the consultation were received from local Members, 
which are included in appendix D of the document. 

Page 2 of 3Page 242



Reason for Recommendations

15. To update the design guidance for Residential Extensions and 
Alterations within Cardiff.

Financial Implications

16. There are no direct financial implications arising from the attached report.

Legal Implications

17. The adopted development plan the City of Cardiff Local Plan (adopted 
January 1996) contains policies and proposals which provide the basis 
for deciding planning applications.  The policies in the adopted 
development plan have special status under Section 54A of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (re-enacted in section 38(6) Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) which means that planning decisions 
must be taken by the Council’s planning authority in accordance with it 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

18. Whilst the development plan contains policies and proposals which 
provide the basis for deciding planning applications supplementary 
planning guidance (‘SPG’) can be used as a means of setting out more 
detailed guidance on the way in which those policies will be applied in 
particular circumstances or areas.  An SPG may be taken into account by 
the LPA as a material consideration when determining the planning 
application.

19. In order for a SPG to be given as much weight as possible as a material 
consideration it must be formulated, prepared and adopted in the proper 
manner.  A SPG must therefore conform to the requirements mentioned 
above.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to approve the Residential Extensions and Alterations 
Supplementary Planning Guidance for consideration by Council

ANDREW GREGORY
Director
5 June 2015

The following appendix is attached:

Appendix 1: Design Guidance Residential Extensions and Alterations 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Final Draft for Approval)  

Page 3 of 3Page 243



Appendix 1

Page 244



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

2

Page 245



Contents

1.0  Summary of Points     4

2.0  Introduction      5 

3.0  Do I need Planning Permission?  6

4.0  Other Considerations    9

5.0  Preparing Your Design    11 

6.0  Carry out an assessment of your       12    
 house and the surrounding area 

7.0  Extensions      13

8.0  Other Alterations     31

9.0  Sustainable Design and Renewable  38 
 Energy 

10.0  Design for Security     40

11.0  Householder Design Checklist   41

12.0  Appendices      42
 Appendix A:  Policy Context   42

 Appendix B:  Contacts    44  

 Appendix C:  Glossary    46

 Appendix D:  Consultation Representations 50

   and Responses

   

      

C
o

n
te

n
ts

Page 246



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

4

1.0 Summary of Points

 Before You Start
 

1.1 Find out whether a planning or a Building Regulation application is required (see Section 3.0).

 Get Advice If You Need It
 

1.2  If necessary, get skilled technical advice from an experienced architect or surveyor. They can 

design, prepare drawings and make an application on your behalf.

 Follow The Design Guidance
 

1.3 This guidance will help towards a good design solution and a successful planning and Building 

Regulation application.

 Look At Your Surroundings
 

1.4 Ensure your proposal respects the context of your neighbourhood.

 Detailing & Use of Materials
 

 Be a Good Neighbour
 

1.6 Consult your neighbour if your proposal may affect their home or privacy, or if you will need to 

gain access for building work or maintenance. Be aware of the Party Wall etc. Act 1996 which places 

obligations on you in such circumstances.

Page 247



 

5

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

2.0 Introduction

 Introduction

2.1 The City of Cardiff Council is committed to raising standards of design in Cardiff. This guidance 

sets out what you should consider when planning to extend or alter your property, whether it is in use as 

principles of good design and intended to be applied to all forms of extensions and alterations including 

those that do not require planning permission.

2.2 Poorly-designed alterations which detract from the appearance of your property can often reduce 

its value. All applications are judged on their individual merits. In situations where unsympathetic 

2.3 An alteration to a house or garden may have an impact, not only on its own setting, but also on the 

widerneighbourhood. It is therefore essential that these types of proposals achieve the highest design 

quality. Good design can be achieved at comparative cost and can avoid future expenditure associated

with problems and maintenance due to poor design. 

2.4 This design guidance does not detail whether planning permission or Building Regulations 

approval are required or not, but instead sets out broad principles that will be used to guide and assess 

the most common forms of development. It is not intended to be an exhaustive document therefore if a 

contact the council for further advice.

2.5 This SPG is written in the broader context of sustainable development outlined in the Welsh 

Assembly Government’s Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Note 12: Design (Tan 12: Design). 

2.6 This guidance is primarily supplementary to Policy 11 (Design and Aesthetic Quality) of the 

Adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan, although other development plan policies may also be relevant.

2.7 The Welsh Assembly Government supports the use of Supplementary Planning Guidance 

(SPG) to set out detailed guidance on the way in which the development plan policies will be applied in 

particular circumstances or areas. SPG must be consistent with development plan policies and national 

planning policy guidance and may be taken into account as a material planning consideration in planning 

decisions.

2.8 It is your responsibility to check whether any proposed works require planning permission 

and/or Building Regulations consent.

2.9 This guidance is intended for use by prospective applicants, agents, architects, members of the 

public with an interest in an application, elected Members of the council, and other decision-making 

bodies. For applicants, agents and architects it should be read prior to the submission of a planning 

application, or prior to seeking more formal pre-application advice from the Council. For members of the 

public with an interest in a planning application, this document provides design guidance on the criteria 

planning applications will be determined against.

2.10 If you are unclear about how the guidance contained in this guidance applies to your home 

or want more detailed advice, please contact Development Management or Building Control. 

There may be a fee for this service.

Page 248



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

6

3.0 Do I need Planning Permission?

 Do I need Planning Permission?

3.0 Planning permission, Building Regulation approval or other consents may be required for 

even minor alterations to a dwelling. 

3.1 The majority of planning applications that the council receives are for permission to extend 

a residential property.  Improvements to the city’s housing stock are welcomed in principle.  House 

properties as well as the form and character of the surrounding environment.

3.2 Even in cases where planning permission is not required you are advised to consider the guidance 

contained in this SPG in order to ensure a high standard of design.

3.3 General advice is set out below relating to the main consents you may require.  

3.4 Starting building works without the necessary consents can render the owner of the 

property liable to enforcement action and prosecution.

 Permitted Development

3.5 Starting building works without the necessary consents can render the owner of the 

property liable to enforcement action and prosecution.  

3.6 Permitted Development is granted under the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 

(Amendment) (Wales) Order 2013.

3.7  Not all development requires planning permission. For more information as to what development 

a householder can carry out without planning permission please use the Planning Portal interactive 

3.8 The Welsh Government’s Planning: A Guide For Householders (July 2013) also provides 

information on what improvements, alterations and extensions to your home you can make without 

needing planning permission. 

3.9  For a formal determination as to whether your proposal requires planning permission you are 

required to submit an application for a . A fee is charged for this. 

3.10  In certain circumstances, Permitted Development rights may have been removed.  This applies 

to Listed Building or as a result of conditions placed on a property or development by a previous planning 

consent.  

 Flats and Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)

3.11  The design considerations within this document will also be applied to alterations and extensions 

3.12  

3.13  Flats have different permitted development rights to single dwellings. You should check if 
permission is required for the alteration you are considering using the resources above.

3.14 Licensing requirements and the need for planning permission relating to Houses in Multiple 

Occupation can be found at the Planning Portal and by searching for ‘HMOs’ on the Council’s Website.

3.15 Page 249



 

7

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Pre-Application Advice

3.16 Pre-application advice can be provided by Development Management prior to the submission of 

a planning application. 

  buildings & archaeology)

  avoids rejection at the registration stage or early refusal because of inadequate  

  information

3.18 Note: if you want a formal determination as to whether your proposal requires planning permission 

please submit a  as outlined previously. 

 Conservation Areas

3.19 Alterations to buildings within conservation areas must preserve or enhance the character 

or appearance of the area.

3.20 If you are not sure whether your home is within a conservation area you can view and download 

. 

3.21 If you live in a conservation area, some alterations and extensions may be permissible under 

Permitted Development rights. However other forms of development normally permitted may require 

a planning application due to Article 4 Directions. An Article 4 Direction does not prevent occupiers 

from altering or repairing their homes, rather it requires planning permission to be sought before 

3.22 Remember: The council can take enforcement action against any unauthorised work to 

buildings in a conservation area. 

 Listed Buildings

3.23 Alterations to listed buildings will only be acceptable where they relate sensitively to the 

original building and preserve the character of the listed building.  

3.24 Government advice is that there should be a general presumption in favour of the preservation 

of listed buildings. The council will therefore endeavour to preserve listed buildings, their settings and 

those features of special architectural and historic interest that they possess. 

3.25 Works to listed buildings may require Listed Building Consent and/or planning permission, 

depending on the nature of the proposal. This applies to all parts of the building including objects and 

structures, interior or exterior, regardless of its grade and whether or not the feature concerned is 

curtilage of the principal building and can include boundary walls.  

acquiring the necessary Listed Building Consent. Specialist conservation advice should be obtained 

for proposals affecting listed buildings (See section 5.0)Page 250



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

8

 Archaeology

3.27  Alterations or extensions to buildings (whether ‘listed’ or not) in certain parts of the city may 

have archaeological implications which could be affected by even minor works. The 

Sensitive Areas SPG provides further advice. 

 Trees

3.28 Consideration should be given at the design stage for adequate distancing between an extension 

and  trees or hedging to avoid structural design problems with the building, problems with drainage 

for future growth to maturity. In circumstances where trees (including canopies and root structures) 

are likely to be affected by a proposed extension or hardstanding, a tree assessment may be required 

in accordance with BS 5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - 

Recommendations, with the assessment being used to inform design.

3.29  offers further advice on trees and legal issues. 

the council.

 Tree Preservation Orders

3.31 Some trees which are important to a local area are protected by Tree Preservation Orders (TPO).  

Trees of any size or species may be protected and they are usually on private land. Special controls 

apply with regard to work to protected trees and you should consult the for advice, or refer 

to the  for further information. 

 Protected Species 

3.33 The Council’s Biodiversity SPG (Part 1 & Part 2) explains the action which should be undertaken 

if protected species such as bats and nesting birds are present on a site.  It is important that no works 

are undertaken until the necessary investigations have taken place. 

3.34 Bats and birds such as House Martins, Swifts, Swallows and Barn Owls are all species which 

regularly use buildings to nest or ‘roost’ in. Great crested newts are often found in garden ponds. 

Homeowners can undertake simple compensatory measures such as: 

Page 251



 

9

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

4.0 Other Considerations

 Building Regulations 

4.1 This is not the same as planning permission. Building Regulations deal with technical matters 

electrical safety. You are strongly advised to seek advice before carrying out any works. Contact Building 

Control for further advice. 

4.2 Important: Obtaining planning permission does NOT mean that you have obtained Building 

Regulations Approval and any changes sought by building regulations may mean you have to 

revise your planning application and vice versa.

 Works Exempted from Building Regulations

4.3 Certain types of work are considered exempt from the requirements of the Building Regulations 

(e.g. small detached buildings, garden sheds, greenhouses and some conservatories). These are listed 

under Schedule 2 of the Building Regulations 2010 (as amended).

 Sewers and Services

4.4 The effect of any development on sewers, water mains, gas pipes and electricity mains should be 

considered. An extension must not compromise any rights of access required by service providers. 

4.5 The position of a sewer can affect the size of the extension that is allowed.  Your plans might 

have to be altered to suit the existing conditions or the sewer has to be diverted.  In Cardiff,  Dwr Cymru 

Welsh Water are responsible for the Public Sewer network and Building Control is obliged to consult 

with them where your proposals have an impact on a public sewer. The advice of Building Control 

should be sought at an early pre-development stage. Failure to do so may jeopardise the viability and 

implementation of a proposed extension.

 The Party Wall Act

4.6 If you intend to carry out work on or near to a boundary (including boundary walls and lofts), 

the Party Wall  etc. Act 1996 requires that you notify your neighbours and give them the opportunity 

to comment, whether or not the work needs planning permission or Building Regulation approval. It is 

always advisable to check before you start work. For guidance, you should read 

. 

4.7 If further guidance is required, the advice of a competent professional Party Wall 

Surveyor should be sought as the council does not control this matter. The Faculty of Party 

competent surveyors. 

 Flood Risk

please go the 

of buildings can be found in the guidance, .

Page 252



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

10

  Inclusive Design

4.9 The potential for improving accessibility to a property should be considered when alterations and 

helpful to a wide range of households, including families with push chairs and wheelchair users, and can 

assist everyone in daily life whilst recognising that needs may change in the future.

 Legal Restrictions 

4.10 In addition to planning controls, there may be legal covenants which restrict the use and 

development of your property. 

4.11 Details of covenants will be set out in your title deeds.  If you require advice or guidance in this 

matter you should consult a solicitor. It is important to note that covenants are separate and distinct from 

planning control and from the remit of the council. 

 Skips, Scaffolding & Hoardings  

4.12  Building materials should not be placed on the pavement or highway – please ensure you have 

enough space on your own property to accommodate any deliveries (pallets of bricks, bags of sand 

etc.). 

4.13   are issued by the council for skips, scaffolding and hoardings to be placed 

upon footways, verges and carriageways.  Inspections are made by Cardiff Council Highway Inspectors 

to ensure that the skips, scaffolding and hoardings comply with these conditions. 

 Deep Excavations  

4.14  Deep excavations for foundations and drainage works should be considered carefully, especially 

near existing buildings or boundaries. Deep excavations can undermine and destabilise existing 

The  contains some helpful guidance.

Page 253



 

11

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

5.0 Preparing Your Design

 Get Advice

5.1 You are advised to use a competent architect or designer to prepare your planning application. 

They will be familiar with these guidelines and should help you to achieve a well-designed extension/

alteration. The Royal Society of Architects Wales (RSAW) provide guidance on selecting and appointing 

an architect. In addition the Royal Town Planning Institute, (RTPI), The Royal Institute of Chartered 

Surveyors (RICS) and the Chartered Institute of Architectural Technologists (CIAT) can provide advice. 

For proposals within a conservation area or affecting a listed building, you should consider using a 

heritage specialist on a register such as IHBC, AABC or RIBA’s Conservation Architect members list. 

Contact details are provided in Appendix B.

5.2 Alternatively you may know someone who has carried out similar work and may be able to 

recommend someone to assist you. It is a good idea to obtain references from previous clients if 

possible.

5.3 Further guidance is available from the 

 Speak to your Neighbours

neighbours. When your planning application is received, we will write to your neighbours to inform them 

of your proposal and to give them 21 days to formally object to, or support your application in writing. 

To maintain goodwill, it is therefore a good idea to speak to your neighbours about your plans before 

submitting your application. Ensuring they are well informed of your proposals may result in a more 

5.5  If your proposal affects a shared wall or boundary, you must comply with the requirements of the 

Party , (See page 9).

5.6  Please note that issues that relate to boundary disputes and land ownership are not a 

planning matter.

 Design Commission for Wales 

5.7  

sectors. The Commission prioritises the design quality of the built environment in Wales and of places, 

buildings and public space. Among a range of services the Commission provides a national Design 

Review Service facilitating early strategic consultation for plans and projects throughout Wales. The 

service is available to all Local Authorities, National Parks, clients, developers, other promoters and/

energy infrastructure. The Commission’s advisory services are usually free of charge, and each project 

 

 

Page 254



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

12

6.0 Carry out an assessment of your

house and the surrounding area

 Understanding the Character of your Area

6.1 All alterations and additions to a property should relate well to the character and context of the 

surrounding area. 

6.2  For smaller schemes, ‘context’ may relate to the character of the street or estate, while for larger 

schemes, or those on prominent sites, consideration should be given to the scheme’s impact on the 

wider area. 

6.3  House alterations and extensions should be sympathetic to their context in terms of scale, 

positioning, detailing and materials to ensure that the development results in a balanced appearance 

or character.

6.4  Innovative contemporary design solutions may be appropriate where they demonstrate a sound 

understanding of context, effective use of resources and satisfactorily address issues of layout, density, 

scale, massing, height and detailing.

Gaps between 

properties

Size, position and 

design of extensions

Shape and pitch 

of roof

Size and shape 

of windows and 

doors

Materials

Symmetry and 

pattern of windows 

and doors

Boundary treatment 

should respect the 

character of the 

street

Page 255



 

13

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

7.0 Extensions

 Rear Extensions

7.1 A rear extension may have less visual impact on the existing house and the surrounding area than 

a side or front extension. Rear extensions do however have the potential to impact on the daylight and 

outlook of your neighbours.  

7.2 Design principles: 

 

  properties

7.3 The extension should preferably be set in from the end gable of the building in order to ensure it 

is subservient to the existing dwelling.

         

         

         

         

Page 256



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

14

 Side Extensions

the symmetry of the pair of dwellings.  

7.5 With a semi-detached property it is crucial to make sure that the extension does not detract from 

the character and appearance of not just your property but also the pair of semis. It is important that 

they appear as a balanced pair. A two storey side extension to a semi detached property should be set 

back from the front of the original property and set down from the existing ridge line. This will make the 

extension appear more subservient. 

7.6 Design principles: 

 

7.7 Side extensions should be set in from the neighbouring boundary. This can help to ensure that 

the street scene does not appear cramped. It will also help to prevent a terracing effect should your 

allow for future maintenance.

Page 257



 

15

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Front Extensions

7.8 

neighbourhood.

7.9 For most properties, (in particular semi-detached and terraced) any form of front extension other 

than a porch will appear an overly prominent feature within the street scene.  Large detached properties 

set well back from the road usually have more scope for front extensions. 

7.10 An excessive projection can impact negitively on the rhythm of a row of properties and become 

the dominant feature in the street scene. It can also be overbearing and result in the loss of light or 

privacy to neighbouring properties.

7.11 Front extensions can also change the overall architectural character and emphasis of a property. 

They can impact on features such as bay windows or decorative entrances. The loss of these features 

is detrimental not only to the property, but can also undermine the character of a whole street.

7.12 Front extensions should normally be sited behind the building line The building line is considered 

a line formed by the fronts or sides of houses along a street. Each case is a matter of judgment. Some 

areas have a clear building line whereas others are more variable. Any development forward of the 

Page 258



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

16

 Side Return Extensions

7.13 In Cardiff there are a number of terraced houses that have an original 2 or 3 storey rear annexe. 

These are usually set in from the boundary on one side, which creates a narrow gap to the boundary 

wall or passage to the rear of the property, often known as the ‘side-return’.

7.14  

 

7.15 Side Return extensions can have an overbearing impact on the adjacent property. It is important 

that careful consideration be given to the height and design of the roof of the extension in order to 

minimise the impact of extension on your neighbour. 

‘lean-to’ design with the eaves set at a level that respects the fact that Permitted Development would 

allow for the construction of a 2m high wall or fence along the boundary with your neighbour. 

7.17 Materials that are soft or light weight in appearance, such as glazing, may help to reduce the 

       

 

         

      

Page 259



 

17

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Corner Plots

7.18 To avoid creating a ‘tunnel’ effect, any extension should adhere to the building line along 

both of the streets to which it relates.

7.19 Corner plots and plots located at junctions are likely to have more than one established building 

line, each of which should be respected.  In most cases there will be two building lines, one to the road 

facing the property, and one to the side.  

7.20 There may be circumstances where developments on corner plots contribute to the creation of a 

‘gateway feature’ at the entrance to a housing area.  In such instances, extensions which do not conform 

to the above criteria may be acceptable subject to the site context and character.

          

Page 260



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

18

 Conservatories

7.21 Conservatories are treated as an extension to your property and are subject to same 

considerations as a brick extension.

7.22 Care should be taken to ensure that conservatories do not compromise neighbours’ privacy. This 

can be achieved by careful siting, or if necessary, incorporating a solid wall or obscured glazing to the 

side nearest to the boundary of an adjoining dwelling. 

7.23 Ensure that the conservatory can be fully accommodated within your own property boundary. 

If you build right up to the boundary it is likely that the guttering will overhang. You will need your 

neighbour’s permission to do this, and you will also need to serve notice on them when you apply for 

planning permission. You should also note the requirements of the Party Wall etc. Act 1996 and the 

possible implications from building regulations requirements. 

            with a solid   

            wall along   

            the neighbouring  

            

            glazed glass   

            along the   

            neighbouring   

Page 261



 

19

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Siting, Scale & Impact on Street Scene

7.24 The scale and form of an extension must be in keeping with, and subservient to, the existing 

available around your home and the prominence and appearance of the extension to the street scene. 

 Overlooking

7.25 Extensions should not result in adverse loss of privacy to your neighbours. Windows in an 

to your neighbour’s property or garden, should generally be avoided or be obscurely glazed and non-

opening. If this is the only window in the room it should only sensibly serve a landing or bathroom.

 

property and its rear boundary, and 21m between the rear habitable room windows of dwellings 

 

 

10.5m 21m 

If the angle of rotation is 

more than 30 degrees, 

dwellings could be 

brought slightly closer 

together. Account needs 

to be taken of building 

height. 

Allowing 21m where 

there is direct 

overlooking of a 

neighbour’s principal 

room window (lounge, 

dining, bedroom and 

kitchen) will avoid loss 

of privacy. 

21m

10.5m

21m

10.5m

Page 262



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

20

 Avoid Overbearing

7.26 Extensions should not be overbearing to your neighbours or result in an unacceptable loss of 

daylight or sunlight to neighbouring properties.

7.27 As a general rule, two-storey extensions should not be positioned very close to the boundary 

adjacent to the garden of a neighbour’s property. Two storey extensions if appropriate should be 

subservient to the main dweling and be limited in depth, width and height so as to avoid an overbearing 

  

Page 263



 

21

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Roof Extensions

7.28 

design needs careful consideration.

7.29 Some roof extensions do not require planning permission, they will however require Building 

Regulation approval. The Planning Portal (Welsh site) provides a comprehensive guide. Roof 

extensions in Conservation Areas will always require planning permission for which a fee is 

applicable.

7.30 A loft conversion or roof extension is an effective way of achieving extra accommodation within 

the roof space (play room, guest room, or study), subject to the suitability of the existing roof structure.  

Different roof types mean there cannot be a standard design solution, but often the work will result in 

the installation of dormer windows. The same care and attention to detail should be taken over size, 

position, materials and window details as for any other alteration, addition or extension. 

7.31 Roof extensions should be sympathetic to their context in terms of scale, positioning, detailing and 

the wider street scene, particularly if the neighbourhood has a very strong style or character.

 Roof Alterations and Increased Roof Height

of an area, and can lead to loss of privacy and amenity to neighbours

7.33 As with other types of extensions, the size, location, materials and design should complement 

those of the existing dwelling. Overlooking should be avoided where possible and the extension should 

not adversely affect the living conditions of surrounding neighbours.

7.34 Proposals for roof extensions to create extra living space should be designed to minimise the 

effect on neighbouring properties of overshadowing and overlooking. It may be more appropriate to 

create a dormer bungalow, by increasing the roof pitch and adding dormer windows. You should follow 

the advice set out in the Dormer Windows section (see page 28), as in some cases the addition of new 

loft dormers can overlook previously private areas which could compromise the privacy of neighbours. 

7.35 Before submitting for roof alterations to a bungalow it is advised to ensure that the existing 

bungalow can support the extra weight. Any demolition of a bungalow will require planning permission 

and the appropriate fee.

Page 264



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

22

7.36 Where a roof ridge needs to be raised to allow increased headroom in the roof space, 

careful consideration should be given to its impact on the street scene.

7.37 Some roof spaces may not be suitable for conversion as the roof pitch is too shallow. In such 

circumstances getting enough headroom may result in an overly large addition to the roof, which may 

have a detrimental effect on the character and appearance of the house.

as appropriate. Any such proposal will be considered within the context of the site and associated levels.

Page 265



 

23

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Roof Form

7.39 The roof of an extension should match the main roof in terms of style, form, pitch and 

materials to ensure that the extension appears to be part of the original house.

7.40 The ridge height of any extension should usually be lower than the original roof to emphasise the 

distinction between the original dwelling and its addition, and to ensure the subservience of the addition.  

Depending on the architectural style of the original building, a pitched, hipped or gabled roof will almost 

 

          

          prominent positions are best   

          and rarely appear as though they  

          blend harmoniously with the   

 Impact on Amenity Space, Privacy and Visual Amenity  

7.41 Any extensions to the side or rear of your house should maintain a ‘reasonable’ extension 

the over-development of a property will result in an inadequate amount of amenity space within the plot 

and could have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity through overshadowing and loss of light 

and privacy. Any extension should not result in the overdevelopment of the original garden area.

  

     

 

Page 266



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

24

and a useable form of private amenity space.  A minimum of 25 sqm of an appropriate shape and siting 

and garden. 

7.44 For larger houses, or those in areas where the established character includes good sized private 

gardens, any extensions or groups of extensions / outbuildings beyond the Permitted Development limit, 

considered in relation to the character and context of the original house.

         

7.45 Trees and established hedges and vegetation provide amenity value and, wherever 

and healthy trees. Where trees and hedges are retained then the foundations for the development 

must be designed to accommodate existing root structures and future growth. Also ensure that if a 

young tree is to remain close to the extension that it has room for future growth. If the loss of a tree is 

unavoidable, a replacement should be planted in another location within the site.

 Rear Access 

7.46 Many dwellings have a direct access from the front of the property to the rear, other than by 

passing through the building. If a side extension is set away from the boundary then it can allow for bins 

to be stored at the rear, easier access to the rear garden without needing to go through the house, and, 

for easier access to undertake future property maintenance.

 Bin Storage 

7.47 Adequate provision should be made for waste, recycling and composting facilities in accordance 

with the guidelines of the Councils . 

7.48 If planning an extension you should consider where refuse bins are to be located so that they are 

stored in a visually discrete manner. It is preferable to provide for bin storage to the rear. 

Page 267



 

25

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Highway Safety & Parking

7.49 An extension should not have an adverse impact on highway safety. The loss of parking provision 

as a result of an extension, or the conversion of a garage, will be assessed against the guidance 

contained in the .   

 Detailing and Materials

7.50 

7.51 Matching brickwork and pointing is important. Unless your property is very modern, it is likely that 

the original bricks have weathered and changed in appearance. When you construct your extension, 

even if it is from the same type of bricks that were originally used, there will be a distinctive difference 

in the appearance of the extension compared to the original house. It is therefore appropriate to set 

the extension back slightly so that there is a neater join in the materials and a more acceptable visual 

appearance. If necessary, roof tiles from the rear of the original building should be used to ensure a 

colour match at the front of the property.

        

        

        The size, positioning, style and materials of 

        new windows and doors should generally 

.  

7.52 The architectural detailing on the existing property should be repeated, where appropriate, on any 

extension.  This includes the continuation of plinths, stringcourses, decorative brickwork, bargeboards, 

sills and fascias as they are important elements in the overall design. The repeat of details such as 

decorative bargeboards, quoins or brick courses can also help to integrate the extension with the 

original property.

       

The materials and detailing of the extension fails 

to complement those used in the existing property. 

those in the original dwelling in terms of design,  

Page 268



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

26

 Hip to Gable Roof Extensions

7.53 An extension that results in the conversion of a hipped to a gabled roof can unbalance the 

appearance of a house, pair of semi-detached houses or terrace. This is especially so when the roofscape 

and spaces between buildings are important features of the character of a street.

7.54 All hip to gable extensions should have roof tiles or slates to exactly match those of the 

original roof. The extended gable wall should also match the materials of the existing dwelling. 

7.55 Often, enough old slates or tiles from the rear of the original property can be salvaged to re-cover 

the front roof slope to ensure a colour match at the front. 

           

The extended gable wall should  match the existing dwelling.

Page 269



 

27

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

  Roof Lights

7.56 Where a roof light is required to the front, or other prominent elevation, care should be taken to 

7.57 In conservation areas the installation of roof lights requires planning permission. Roof 

lights should be few in number, discreetly positioned so that they are not readily visible from 

prominent views within the conservation area and should be of a ‘conservation type’ which 

do not protrude above the plane of the roof. Consideration should also be given to the general 

arrangement of any roof lights in order to reduce their impact, even if this is limited to private 

views alone.

 Chimneys

7.58 Chimneys are an important feature of many properties and contribute to the overall character of 

the skyline. The rebuilding of stacks and reinstatement of chimney pots where possible will be supported. 

ensure that they can discharge the products of combustion safely. 

7.59 Within conservation areas the installation, alteration, replacement or removal of a chimney will 

require planning permission.

7.60 Where a chimney, or group of chimneys, make a positive contribution to the character and 

appearance of a conservation area, its removal or unsympathetic alteration will be resisted.  

Page 270



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

28

 Dormer Windows

7.61 Where there is inadequate headroom within an existing roof space, it may be possible to create 

additional space through the insertion of dormer windows.

Design

7.62 The design of dormer windows should be considered carefully as they can have a 

Dormer windows should:

  appropriate distance

Position

7.63 Dormers should normally be positioned on the least prominent elevation – usually the rear. Front-

facing dormers have a big impact on the appearance of the house and the street.  Dormers positioned 

to the side of rear annexes, where planning permission is required, can be inappropriate in terms of 

privacy and visual impact. Where there is a requirement to provide adequate headroom for stairs, the 

dormer should be set down from the ridge and clear of the hips.

         

         

         

Page 271



 

29

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Scale

7.64 Dormer windows should not dominate the original house and should look as though they were 

designed as part of the original roof of a dwelling.

7.65  The scale of a dormer window should be appropriate to the roof upon which it is located. To 

achieve this, dormers should be set in from either side of the roof, set down from the ridge and set up 

from the external wall. It is important that dormers appear well proportioned and therefore subservient 

to a roof.

7.66  The roof of the dormer should not extend to, or beyond the external wall of the existing roof, nor 

appear ‘top-heavy’.

        

        

Page 272



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

30

7.67 Dormer extensions should appear subservient to the original dwelling/roof and relate well to the 

in order to limit the use of surrounding cladding materials.

Window Style

Avoid mixing window types. 

7.68 The windows of the dormer should match those in the rest of the house in terms of proportions, 

Page 273



 

31

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

8.0 Other Alterations

 Porches

8.1 A porch can take many forms from a simple canopy to an enclosed structure.  The front entrance 

of a property is the main focal point and small alterations can have a large impact on the streetscene, 

8.2 Porches should be designed to complement the character of and be subservient to 

situated close to a neighbouring property should be designed to have minimal impact on the 

amenity of the adjacent dwelling. 

            Scale and design of  

            the porch is out of 

            character within the 

            street scene

 Recessed Entrances

property can detract from the appearance of the dwelling. 

8.4 Many Victorian and Edwardian terraced houses in Cardiff have recessed front doors, often with 

ornate tiled or feature doorways. In conservation areas planning permission may be required for the 

enclosure of this type of entrance and in general such applications will not be supported.

Page 274



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

32

 Garages

8.5 A new garage, whether an extension or a detached structure should:

 

the proposed garage. You should design a layout which retains some of the landscaping and planting in 

the front garden, together with safe pedestrian access to the house.

8.7 Separate consent for the construction of a new crossover across the pavement should be obtained 

from . They will provide further information about construction standards and 

current charges. 

8.8 Although car ports do not have enclosing walls, the same design issues apply.

 Conversion of a Garage to Living Space

8.9 The conversion of an existing garage into additional living space can result in changes to the 

external appearance of the building as well as reducing parking availability.  New windows and doors 

should match the main property in terms of proportions, materials and openings.  

8.10 Advice should be sought from  as to whether planning permission is 

required for converting your garage. See also the Planning Portal.

8.11 Building Regulation approval will be required.

8.12 The loss of parking provision as a result of the conversion of a garage will be assessed 

against the guidance contained in the Council’s adopted Access, Circulation and Parking 

8.13 Any structures within the curtilage of your property should respect the privacy and amenity of 

neighbours, and should respond positively to local character and context, as well as the main house. 

8.14 Large garden buildings if used for purposes other than storage may intensify the use of garden 

spaces and they may detract from the generally green nature of gardens, contributing to the loss of 

amenity for existing and future residents of the property. 

 

8.15 The materials should be similar to the ones used in the rear of the existing house. The proposed 

roof style should also match that of the roof of the original house.

Page 275



 

33

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Family Annexes

8.16 If the purpose of an extension is to provide accommodation for a relative, and not a separate 

dwelling, you should follow the general guidance for extensions outlined in this document. 

8.17 Annexes will only be acceptable where: 

8.18 Dependency can be demonstrated through the sharing of facilities with the main building, such 

as garden space, kitchen/bathroom facilities, site access and the retention of internal links.

 Driveways and Hardstandings

8.19 When considering driveways and hardstandings you should use permeable surfacing or only 

cover a small part of the front garden, allowing water to drain into remaining soft landscaped areas 

Guidance on the permeable surfacing of front 

gardens. . 

8.20 A standard car parking space is 2.4m (width) x 4.8m (length) and no vehicle must project out from 

the driveway and over the pavement. If the hardstanding is to be enclosed with gates they should open 

inwards to prevent obstruction of the pavement/ highway. 

8.21 The hardstanding must be connected to the highway via a crossover across the pavement. 

Separate consent for the construction of a new crossover may be required from the 

.

         

 WATER 
  

 WATER 

 

 

Page 276



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

34

 Garden Decking and Platforms

8.22 Any structures within the curtilage of your property should respect the privacy and amenity of 

neighbours. 

8.23 Proposals will be assessed in terms of:

8.24 Decking should not be prominently located or easily viewed from public vantage points. It should 

boundary wall or an outbuilding in an adjacent garden. 

8.25 In some circumstances, to reduce overlooking, it may be possible to install screening such as 

neighbouring dwellings or have a detrimental impact on visual amenity.

8.26 Raised areas of decking and platforms should be provided with suitable edge protection or 

guarding to prevent the risk of falls. The Building Regulations Part K provides suitable guidance.

Page 277



 

35

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Balconies and Roof Terraces

8.27 When considering a balcony or roof terrace you should take into account the impact on 

neighbours. 

8.28 Potential problems include overlooking and privacy, structural stability, daylight, noise, light 

spillage and security. Consideration should therefore be given to the following:

 

  entire available wall space)

  without reducing daylight and sunlight or outlook

8.29 A roof terrace should be set back behind the slope of a pitched roof or a parapet. The dimensions 

the roof or the elevation of the property. A Building Regulation application will be required to change an 

  invisible from the ground

Page 278



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

36

 Walls, Fences, Hedges and Railings

character of an area and the street. 

8.31 Original gates, railings and walls should be retained, restored and repaired. Where walls, hedges 

or railings have been previously removed, consideration should be given to their reinstatement. 

8.32 Alterations to walls, fences, hedges or railings should be carefully considered in terms of both 

appearance, siting and security.

8.33 Front enclosures will be resisted in areas which have established open plan gardens as they 

could disrupt the open character of the street and harm the visual amenity of the area.

 Satellite Dishes, TV and Radio Aerials

8.35 In order to minimise the visual impact, such equipment should respect the views from the street 

and neighbours’ properties. 

8.36 Keep dishes and aerials out of sight as much as possible. Consider placing them: 

8.37 More information is outlined in 

. 

8.38 Within conservation areas, satelite dishes require planning permission where they face on to and 

are visible from a road.

Page 279



 

37

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Cladding, Pebble Dash, External Wall Insulation

8.39 If you are thinking of carrying out any external wall treatment please consider whether it will have 

an adverse effect on the structural integrity of the house. 

8.40 External treatments can bridge damp courses and block air bricks. Rainwater / ice can be trapped 

behind them. This may result in condensation and timber rot. 

8.41 Work on the ‘thermal envelope’ either inside or outside the property is likely to require Building 

Regulations approval; you should contact Building Control for further advice.

8.42 Cladding of properties in a Conservation Area in any external wall insulation or with stone, 

.

 Replacement Windows and Doors

8.43 Altering door or window openings, or replacing windows and doors, can radically change the 

character and appearance of your home and affect the appearance of the area.  This is particularly the 

case where the property forms part of a terrace or is one of a pair of semi-detached houses.

8.44 Alterations to windows and door in conservation areas often requires planning permission.

8.45 For further advice on window replacement in conservation areas please see the Window Repair 

 advice note.

Page 280



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

38

9.0 Sustainable Design and

Renewable Energy

9.1 All proposals for alterations or extensions should take account of opportunities for reducing 

energy-use.

to introduce further sustainable design measures, you may wish to consider the following 

points:  

 

  recyclable materials.

9.3 For further guidance see;

2014)

 Solar Panels, Photovoltaics and Wind Turbines

9.4 Consideration needs to be given to the visibility of the panels and turbines and their likely impact. 

They should be positioned in an unobtrusive location and integrated with existing features such as on a 

rear or inner roof-slope. 

9.5 Solar and PV panels should not be installed above the ridgeline and should be positioned to 

balance with existing features such as roof lights, chimneys and gable details. Sensitive design and 

appearance is required. Flat plate solar collectors can be integrated more closely with the roof. 

9.6 With domestic wind turbines you will need to consider:

9.7 If you wish to install a solar panel or turbine on your roof Building Regulations will normally apply. 

The ability of the existing roof to carry the load will need to be checked and some strengthening work 

may be needed.

 

9.8 Installation should be carried out by a trained and experienced contractor who is accredited 

with the . Further guidance is available from the 

.

Page 281



 

39

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

 Green Roofs and Living Walls

9.9 Green roofs or living walls can create habitats and store / slow down the rate of rain water run-off, 

9.10 Green roofs are specially designed and constructed to be waterproof and covered with material 

to encourage wildlife and to help plants grow. Green walls are structures attached to walls, where plants 

have been planted either directly into material within the wall or in the ground or a pot and encouraged to 

climb up a structure so that the wall is covered with vegetation. They both provide useful habitats and a 

food source for birds and bats. Dense foliage provides nesting sites for birds, evergreen climbing plants 

provide insulation and can reduce wind chill during winter months. Climbing plants provide shade which 

can help to cool a building in summer. 

9.11 Careful consideration needs to be given to the design of the roof and any blank walls to enable 

the incorporation of these features and the need to access these areas for maintenance.

9.12 Where green roofs are to be accessible for amenity / sitting out purposes, potential 

overlooking and loss of privacy to adjoining properties will need to be assessed; additionally 

the requirements of the Building Regulations will also be relevant.

Page 282



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

40

10.0 Design for Security

 Design for Security

10.1 Under S17 of the Crime & Disorder Act, the Council is obliged to encourage design that reduces 

crime.

10.2 All developments must demonstrate how they positively contribute towards safe and secure 

environments (such as providing natural surveillance together with a sense of ownership), and these 

measures should be effective, and proportionate to the local crime risk factors. 

10.3 Alterations should maximise opportunities to provide overlooking of access routes and parking 

areas and limit the creation of hidden recesses and poor sightlines.

  that they do not provide climbing aids to gain access into the property

  private areas

  unnecessary light pollution

10.4 Particular care is needed when installing security devices on listed buildings. Listed 

Building Consent may be required.

10.5 Further advice is available from 

Page 283



 

41

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

11.0 Householder Design Checklist

Have you discussed the proposal with neighbours?

Is a Design and Access Statement required?

Is your property a Listed Building or in a conservation area requiring specialist 

advice?

Are there any implications for Tree Preservation Orders or protected species,  

requiring specialist advice?

Does the design address the character of the property and surrounding street?

Does the design avoid harmful impact on your neighbours in terms of loss of light, 

overshadowing and privacy?

Does the proposal result in an adequate provision of amenity space?

Have measures been taken to reduce crime?

Have any changes to access and/or parking been agreed with the council?

Do your proposals also require a separate Building Regulation application to be 

made to the council?

Are your proposals affected by the requirements of the Party Wall etc. Act 1996?

Page 284



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

42

12.0 Appendices

 Appendix A: Policy Context

The Welsh Assembly Government supports the use of supplementary planning guidance (SPG) to 

set out detailed guidance on the way in which development plan policies will be applied in particular 

circumstances or areas. SPG must be consistent with development plan policies and national planning 

policy guidance and may be taken into account as a material planning consideration in planning decisions. 

High quality building design is encouraged throughout the planning policy framework:

Planning Policy Wales

Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design acknowledge the role that good 

design in new development can play in enhancing the environment, delivering sustainable development, 

attracting inward investment and promoting social inclusion and well-being. Good design is not just 

about the physical appearance of development, but achieving sustainable forms of development that 

successfully respond to their local context and character.

The order introduces a number of changes to permitted development rights including:

homes without the need to apply for planning permission. 

A Householder Guide is available from the website wales.gov.uk (see )

City of Cardiff Local Plan

This draft guidance supplements Policy 11 (Design and Aesthetic Quality) of the City of Cardiff Local 

Plan (Adopted January 1996), which states:

‘All new development should be of good design which has proper regard to the scale and character of the 

surrounding environment and does not adversely affect the aesthetic quality of the area.’

The Cardiff Unitary Development Plan was placed on deposit in October 2003. Following introduction of 

the European SEA (Strategic Environmental Assessment) Directive in 2004 and subsequent up-dated 

guidance from the Welsh Assembly Government on development planning, the Council has sought the 

agreement of the Assembly to cease preparation of the Cardiff UDP and commence preparation of a 

Local Development Plan (LDP).

Guidance issued by the Welsh Assembly Government in respect of LDPs indicates that where a UDP 

has been put on deposit it may remain a consideration in development control decisions until such time 

as an LDP has been placed on deposit.  Generally, the weight to be attached to policies in emerging 

number and nature of any objections and/or representations in support of the policy.

Page 285



 

43

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Policy 1B (Achieving Good Design) of the deposited Cardiff UDP states:

 

Good design will be sought in all development

Policy 2.20 (Good Design) of the deposited Cardiff UDP states:

All development will be required to demonstrate good design by:

 a) Satisfactorily responding to local character and context;

 b) Achieving a legible development which relates well to adjoining spaces and the  

  public realm;

 c) Providing a safe and accessible environment for everyone who might use or visit it;

  requirements; and

 e) Satisfactorily addressing issues of layout, density, scale, massing, height, detailing  

  and landscaping

Representations were made at deposit, objecting to the above proposed policies.

Page 286



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

44

 Appendix B: Contacts

Connect to Cardiff

Tel.: 029 2087 2087

Tel.: 029 2087 2088 (Cymraeg)

Planning advice, Building Control advice, maps to download of conservation area boundaries, advice on 

statutory considerations listed above.

Planning Permission, Pre-Application discussions 

developmentcontrol@cardiff.gov.uk

Building Control 

Building Regulations

buildingcontrol@cardiff.gov.uk

Biodiversity

biodiversity@cardiff.gov.uk

conservation@cardiff.gov.uk

developmentplan@cardiff.gov.uk

treeprotection@cardiff.gov.uk

Sewers & Drains 

highways@cardiff.gov.uk

highwaypermits@cardiff.gov.uk

Sustainable Development 

sustainabledevelopment@cardiff.gov.uk

Vehicle Crossovers

highways@cardiff.gov.uk

Page 287



 

45

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Cadw 

The Welsh Assembly Government’s historic environment service

cadw@wales.gsi.gov.uk

CIAT

Chartered Institute of Architectural Technologists 

DCFW

Design Commission for Wales

Natural Resources Wales

Floodrisk, protected species etc.  

Party Walls

Faculty of Party Wall Surveyors provides party wall surveyors by area 

RICS Wales

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors

RSAW

Royal Society of Architects in Wales 

RTPI

Royal Town Planning Institute

Secured by Design 

Planning Portal 

The Government’s online planning and building regulations resource. (Please ensure you view the Welsh 

The Institute of Historic Building Conservation

AABC

Register of Architects Accredited in Building Conservation 

RIBA

Royal Institute of British Architects

Page 288



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

46

 Appendix C: Glossary

Arboricultural     Relating to trees.

Amenity     The quality of life enjoyed by occupants. Factors which make a   

      positive contribution to the overall character of the area – trees,   

      landscaping, architecture etc. 

Amenity Space   Areas of open space such as gardens, balconies and roof terraces.

Article 4 Direction  A direction under Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning (General  

      usually within a conservation area.

Bargeboard

      for decorative effect.  

Bay      A protruding element of the main elevation, set forward of the building  

      line.

Building Line    The line formed by the frontages of buildings along a street.

     The horizontal ledge at the base of a window or door frame.

Conditions    Requirements or restrictions placed on a property or development,  

Conservation Area  An area of special architectural or historic interest designated under  

      the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990, whose  

      character and appearance is desirable to preserve and enhance.

Context     The setting or surroundings of a building, usually the area from which  

      a building can be seen (front, rear or side).

Curtilage     The land around, and belonging to, a house. Includes hard standing  

      and garden areas.

Dormer Window       A small window, projecting beyond the plane of the existing roof slope.

Page 289



 

47

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

      The front, side or back walls of the building and features inserted in  

      them. 

Features      In relation to buildings; the aspects of it such as windows, materials  

      used, corner and edge treatments that are distinctive and give the  

      building unique character. 

Fenestration    The style and arrangement of the windows on a property.

Gable Roof    The generally triangular section of wall at the end of a ridged roof.

  Any room used for sleeping, cooking, living or eating purpose. Bath  

      or toilet facilities, corridors, hallways, utility rooms or kitchens with no  

     Any road open to vehicles (adopted or not) as well as any footpath  

      (which can be used by the public) and bridleways. 

    A roof that slopes down to each of the eaves of the House.

Page 290



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

48

Listed Building   A building of special architectural or historic interest. Listed buildings  

      are grade 1, 2* or 2 with grade 1 being the highest. Cadw is   

      responsible for designating buildings for listing in Wales.

    The primary source of light into main living rooms of a dwelling,   

      including dining and living rooms.

Off-street Parking   Car parking provided on private land which reduces the use of the  

      highway for car parking. 

Party Wall     A wall or fence that straddles the boundary between two or more  

      properties or stands entirely on land in one ownership but used to  

      separate two buildings in separate ownership/occupation.

Permitted Development You can make certain types of minor changes to your property   

      without needing to apply for planning permission. These are   

      called ‘Permitted Development’ rights. They derive from a general  

      planning permission granted not by the local authority but by the   

      Welsh Assembly Government.

Plan      The plan should show property boundaries and means of access  

      to the site, and nearby structures if they are relevant to the design.  

      Within the site boundary, the plan should show the buildings already  

      existing and those that are proposed.

Plinth      A visible support or base to a wall, pedestal or column.

Pointing

      in a wall.

   Usually the front of the house which faces (directly or at an angle)  

      the main highway serving the house.  It will contain the main   

      architectural features such as main bay windows or a porch serving  

      the main entrance to the house.

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 291



 

49

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Quoins     The junction formed between the front and side wall of a building;  

      also at a window or door opening. In traditional buildings the quoin  

      is often emphasised by larger blocks of stone or different colours of  

      brickwork.

Render

      often painted.

Ridge Line     Generally the highest point of the roof except for the chimneys, where  

      the slopes meet. 

Ridge Tile

Roof Light 

Roof Pitch     The angle at which the roof slopes from the top of the wall to the  

      ridgeline. 

Roughcast     A rough textured render.

Sightlines      Direct lines of vision for a driver of a motor vehicle. Can be taken  

      along a highway or at a road junction or access point. 

Skylight

Street Scene / Streetscape Everything that can be seen along a street from any given point.

String course    A continuous layer of building material, such as brick or tile, on a wall  

      or roof of a building.

Subordinate / Subservient Of lesser importance or status

Surveillance    An area which can be easily observed by overlooking windows, doors  

      the building from the external environment or an unconditioned or  

      lesser conditioned space.

Valley      The intersection of two sloping surfaces of a roof towards which water  

Visibility Splay    An area of land on which the height of any object is restricted in order  

      that a sightline can be taken across the land. 

 

 

Page 292



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

50

 Appendix D: Consultation Representations and Responses  

Public consultation was undertaken between 17th November and 15th December 2014. A press notice 

was placed in a local newspaper on Monday 17th November 2014 and notices and copies of the draft 

guidance were placed in all Cardiff library facilities and at County Hall Reception. The draft guidance 

was also published on the Council website

Letters notifying that consultation was being undertaken on the draft guidance were sent to all Cardiff 

Councillors, the Welsh Assembly Government, Community Councils in Cardiff and the following that 

are known to have general interest in planning in Cardiff or a potential interest in this guidance:

Alder King

Artisreal Ltd

Arup

Asbri Plannning

Atkins

Atriarc Group

Austin-Smith: Lord

Barton Willmore Planning Partnership

Boyer Planning

C2J Architects & Town Planners

CFW Architects

Cadw

Cardiff Access Group

Cardiff University

CDN Planning

Civic Societies of Cardiff and Penarth

Civic Trust Wales

Davies Sutton Architects

David Preece Architect

Derek Prosser Associates

Design Circle RSWA South

Design Group 3 Architects

Design Commission

DLP Consultants Cardiff

DPP

DTB Design

DTZ

Gerald Eve LLP

GL Hearn

G Powys Jones

Geraint John Planning Ltd

GVA Grimley

Harmers

Holder Mathias

Honesty Planning

Hyder Consulting

John Wootton Architects

Loyn & Co Architects

Malcolm Scott Consultants Ltd

Mason Richards Planning

Mango Planning

Neame Sutton

Peacock & Smith Planning 

Peter Brett Associates

Peter Wiliams Architects

Phillippa Cole PMG

Planning Aid

Planning Issues 

Paul Dickinson & Associates

Pagasus Planning Group

Powell Dobson

Robertson Francis Partnership

Rio Architects

RICS Wales

RPS Cardiff

RTPI Wales 

RSAW

Savills

SK Design

SLR Consulting

Stedman Architectural

Shawn Cullen

Stephen Hoday MBE

Sullivan Land & Planning 

Stridetrglown

Tanner & Tilley

Terry Nunns Architects

The Planning Bureau

Turley Associates

White Young Green

Wigley Fox Partnership

WAG

Vale of Glamorgan Council

Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council 

Caerphilly Borough Council 

Newport City Council 

Lisvane Community Council

Old St Mellons Community Council

Pentrych Community Council 

Radyr and Morganstown Community Council

St Fagans Community Council

Tongwynlais Community Council

Llandaff Conservation Group, East Cardiff Conservation 

Group, North West Cardiff Conservation Group, Cathedral 

Road Consevation, Central Area Conservation GroupPage 293



 

51

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Page Comment Response / Action

First Consultation

Page 10 We welcome reference to ‘permits and licences’ needed for 

skips in Other Considerations. Could reference be made 

here the considerations necessary for materials stored 

directly on the road or pavement and for proper disposal of 

waste during development?

This issue falls outside of planning 

control. 

No Change.

Page 13 On the issue of developments above a single storey leaving 

10.5m to rear garden wall, which we support, can it be 

planning applications?

Scale drawings submitted as part 

of any planning application should 

demonstrate that appropriate 

separation distances are achieved. 

appropriate levels of privacy are 

maintained on a case by case basis. 

No Change.

Page 17 Rear Extensions - there is reference to natural light and 

outlook to ‘habitable rooms’ in neighbouring properties. 

In York’s document (House Extensions and Alterations 

SPG) there is reference on Page 7 & 8 to the impact of light 

on the neighbouring property and Page 9 of outlook and 

dominance, some of which potentially could be incorporated 

to strengthen this guidance.

Issues surrounding light and 

outlook from rear extensions will be 

case by case basis.

No Change.

Page 20 Side Return Extensions - this should also take into account 

whilst possibly relatively small by itself, could create a very 

domineering effect out-of-keeping with the original property 

if there is already a rear extension, to the detriment of 

garden space and neighbouring properties.

application on its merits and on a 

case by case basis. 

No change.

Page 26 Why is the sentence that in conservation areas roof lights 

may only be acceptable to the rear being removed? Whilst 

sensitive development with front roof lights may be possible, 

surely keeping that in would retain control in conservation 

areas. Is this to do with changes in Welsh planning Law?

Changes to permitted development 

rights mean that the addition of a 

now requires planning permission 

wherever it is located on a building. 

As a consequence, the Council 

has powers to restrict inappropriate 

placement.

No change.

Page 28 With regard to dormer windows - the guidance could say 

‘The scale of a dormer window should be appropriate to 

the roof upon which it is located. To achieve this, dormers 

from the external wall. It is important that dormers appear 

well proportioned and therefore subservient to a roof. The 

from the edge of the roof and we feel this should be retained 

in some form.

permitted development rights. These 

require a minimum 200mm set in 

distance from the edge of a building. 

No Change.

Page 31 The section on recessed entrances seems completely 

unenforceable and unrealistic. I would suggest this element 

of the SPG for areas not in Conservation Areas is dropped.

Document and illustrations amended 

to be less prescriptive.

Page 32 Where applications are made to convert garages into living 

accommodation, consideration should be taken of the impact 

this will have on parking and what alternative arrangements 

for parking will be made.

representation. Reference made 

to the Council’s adopted Access, 

Circulation and Parking Standards 

SPG (2010).

Page 294



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

52

Page Comment Response / Action

Page 40 / 

Section 10 

The inclusion of security in section 10 of the document is 

welcomed. 
No Change. 

Page 40 / 

Section 10 

An additional bullet point should be added, saying that 

any external double doors should meet the following 

standards:PAS24:2012 or STS201 issue 3 2012 or LPS 1175 

issue 7: 2010 Security Rating 1 or LPS 2081 issue 1:2014 

Security Rating 4.

This information is considered to be 

to prescriptive for the document. 

No Change.

Page 40 / 

Section 10 

Any new or replacement main entrance door sets should 

comply with; PAS24:2012 or STS201 issue4:2012 or 

LPS1175 issue 7:2010 Security Rating 2 or STS 202 issue 

3:2011 Burglary Rating 2 or LPS 2081issue1:2014 Security 

Rating B.

This information is considered to be 

to prescriptive for the document.

No change.

Page 40 / 

Section 10 DK or DKT.

This information is considered to be 

to prescriptive for the document. 

No change.

Page 40 / 

Section 10 

Where reference is made to the councils best practice guide 

this should be replaced with; Further advice is also available 

from www.securedbydesign.com

Document amended to include a 

reference to Secured by Design.

General

from protecting them.

are under the control of central 

government, not the Council. 

No change.

General R&MCC welcomes this new guidance and found it useful, 

easy to read and follow.

Support Noted.

No Change. 

General A section should be added to the SPG which addresses 

the issue of retrospective applications for over-bearing 

extensions and sets out the penalties which will be enforced 

on those developers or home-owners who build large 

With the exception of Listed 

Buildings, it is not an offence to 

undertake works to a building, 

or begin development prior to 

permission being obtained. All 

applications are considered on their 

merits, including those submitted 

retrospectively. 

No Change.

General We have concerns about the consultation process for such 

an important set of planning guidelines namely the length 

of the consultation period which made it impossible to get 

proper input from local residents on the guidelines.

A second public consultation was 

undertaken on a revised document. 

This was be advertised in the local 

press and on the Council’s website. 

The draft document was also 

available to view online or at any of 

the libraries in the city and at County 

Hall. The second consultation 

provided an additional four weeks 

to allow any further comments to be 

made. 

General The document has something to say about porches that I 

feel is limiting. I love a porch and think that they should be 

useful. This means that they have to be of a useable size, 

not just a petty inconvenience (which is what small porches 

are). So I would like to see some encouragement for larger 

porches that can act as a proper transition space between 

outside and in.

Text and illustrations amended to 

provide greater clarity.

Page 295



 

53

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

Page Comment Response / Action

Page 8

‘mature’ should be removed as a tree need not be mature to 

be a potential constraint to design.

Wording amended.

Page 25 Highway Safety and Parking

The current draft says: “Where an extension would be built 

over an existing car parking space, this may have to be 

replaced within the boundary of your property to a standard 

acceptable to the council”. I would like to suggest that this 

wording be amended in two ways. 

Firstly, that the word “may” is replaced with the word “must” 

so that developed have to ensure that parking spaces are 

not lost when extensions are built. 

Secondly, I would want the SPG to ensure that where 

extensions are built in such a way that ANY parking is lost 

(off-street or on-street), it should be replaces elsewhere. 

In several instances, I have seen extensions built in such 

a way that they have caused on-street spaces to be lost 

to allow access, yet these spaces have not been replaced 

elsewhere. It would be a sensible proposition to ensure that 

if a development causes any parking to be lost, it has to be 

replaced elsewhere, so I would hope that these amendments 

would be taken on board.

The paragraph has been amended 

to provide greater clarity and place 

more focus on the requirements set 

out in the Access, Circulation and 

Parking Standards SPG. 

Page 32 The section on recessed entrances seems completely 

unenforceable and unrealistic. I would suggest this element 

of the SPG for areas not in Conservation Areas is dropped.

Document revised to be less 

prescriptive. Illustrations deleted.

Page 39/40, 

Section 9

Section 9 Sustainable Design and Renewable Energy 

should make clear reference to Planning Policy Wales, TAN 

12: Design and to current practice guidance Planning for 

Sustainable Buildings Practice Guidance (July 2014). 

added.

General I did think that it might be time to improve some of the very 

naive graphic images that communicate to people the key 

messages. I think that Sketch up software can allow much 

more convincing representations of a domestic/residential 

environment without distracting from the key messages.

The images used in the document 

to understand as it was felt that more 

detailed graphics could be more 

open to misinterpretation. 

No Change.

General I would suggest that the SPG sets out the process for 

retrospective applications but makes it clear to prospective 

applicants that Cardiff Council takes a dim view of such 

applications.

With the exception of Listed 

Buildings, it is not an offence to 

undertake works to a building, 

or begin development prior to 

permission being obtained. All 

applications are considered on their 

merits, including those submitted 

retrospectively. 

No Change.

General

be Technical Advice Note. These and other references to 

planning policy should be included in the glossary.

Document to be amended 

accordingly.

Page 296



S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l E
x
te

n
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

54

Page Comment Response / Action

General Reference is made to the Design Commission for Wales 

remit which is NOT accurate. It should be replaced with the 

below.

The Design Commission for Wales promotes good 

The Commission prioritises the design quality of the built 

environment in Wales and of places, buildings and public 

space. Among a range of services the Commission provides 

a national Design Review Service facilitating early strategic 

consultation for plans and projects throughout Wales. The 

service is available to all Local Authorities, National Parks, 

clients, developers, other promoters and/or members of 

the public. The Commission works with all the design 

landscape design, transport infrastructure, civil engineering 

advisory services are usually free of charge, and each 

scale, location or method of construction.

Document to be amended 

accordingly.

General

and terminology throughout. This will help ensure that it 

is both clear and accessible to a range of users. Phrasing 

confusion, for example, ‘obscurely glazed glass’ p18 could 

simply say ‘obscure glazing’.

The language used in the SPG 

possible, however a number of 

technical terms will inevitably need 

to remain.

representation.

General An initial explanation of what is meant by ‘subordinate’ and 

‘subservient’ may help users to understand the overall aim of 

many of the individual aspects that are covered in Section 7 

of the document.

Description added to Appendix C: 

Glossary.

General The Design Commission for Wales is keen to ensure that the 

issue of precedent is considered from a planning perspective 

and integrated into the document. An existing extension 

that is unacceptable in design terms should not provide 

this is not clear in the document. The principles provided 

within the SPG, when adopted, should provide the basis 

for consideration of the application and override historic 

decisions.

Section added to address the issue 

of Precedent.

General There may be some value in examining principles that may 

Model Design Guide for Wales: A Guide for Householder 

Development, that may provide a context for smaller 

extensions and alterations.

Reference to the document added.

Page 297



Page 298



 

 

Page 299



Page 300

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held on 28 May 2015
	2 Assistant Cabinet Members
	3 Welsh Language Scheme Annual Monitoring Report 2014 -15
	4 Proposed Merger of Coroners Areas
	5 Review of the Attendance & Wellbeing Policy
	6 Anti - Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy (Including Money Laundering Policy and Procedure)
	7 Approach to Homelessness 'Intentionality' Decisions
	8 Community Councils Charter
	9 Residential Extensions & Alterations Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)

